STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
3/20/2018 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Agenda for March 20, 2018.




4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Minutes for January 16, 2018.
5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Minutes for February 20, 2018.
6. CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $1,104,300.09 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $926,752.20.

Il For possible action, Approval of business license first readings:
A. NIKKE MACHINE MANUFACTURING CORP - Contractor / Hyogo, Japan
B. KORBIN CONRAD, DBA: TOP DOG CARPET CLEANING - Home Business
/2105"0” ~VC, NV
C. WHITE DAISY DESIGNS, LLC - General / 160 C St ~ Virginia City, NV
D. SABER ENGINEERING, INC - General / 5421 Kietzke Ln ~ Reno, NV
E. FLUX RESOUCES LLC - General / 2100 SW River Pkwy ~ Portland, OR
F. CGS MULE, LLC - General / 680 E Glendale Ave ~ Sparks, NV
G. AUTOMATION & CONTROL CONCEPTS, INC - General / 401 Ryland St ~

Reno, NV

H. PRECISION AIR BALANCING CO, INC- General / 1240 N. Jefferson St ~
Anaheim, CA

I. TRAVELERS ALLIANCE GROUP - General / 6775 Engle Rd ~ Middleburg
Heights, OH

J. VICTORY WOODWORKS, INC - Contractor / 3401 Kresge Ln ~ Sparks, NV

K. APEX ANODIZING (NEW), INC - General / 280 B Coney Island ~ Sparks, NV
L. ATKINS NORTH AMERICAN, INC - General / 10509 Professional Cr ~
Reno, NV

M. RAGLEN SYSTEM BALANCE, INC - Contractor / 1121 University Terrace ~
Reno, NV

N. DEBBIE TAYLOR - General / 9910 Matterhorn BLVD ~ Reno, NV

O. EUROSOFT-CONTROL LLC - General / 401 Ryland St ~ Reno, NV

P. OCS GROUP LLC - General / 401 Ryland St ~ Reno, NV

Q. JEOL USA, INC - General / 11 Dearborn Rd ~ Peabody, MA

R. ADF INTERNATINAL INC - Contractor / 1401 N. University Dr ~ Coral Springs,
FL

S. EDEN HOSPICE AT CARSON CITY - General / 4601 NE 77th ~ Vancouver, WA
T. W.W. GRAINGER, INC - General / 100 Grainger ~ Lake Forest, IL

U. VINNIE’'S ELECTRIC INC - Contractor / 1773 Walnut Dr ~ Fernley, NV

V. NORTH BEND EQUIPMENT - General / 7453 Empire Dr ~ Florence, KY

W. PIPEWORKS PLLUMBING & HEATING INC - Contractor / 550 E. Plumb Ln ~
Reno, NV

X. VIRGINIA CITY LODGING.COM - General / 74 S. “C” St ~ Virginia City, NV




111

v

\%

VI

Y. FUNDIN PUMP & WELL SERVICE LLC - Contractor / 4030 Eastlake Blvd ~
Washoe Valley, NV

Z. MARSH CREEK, LLC - Contractor / 2000 E. 88th Ave ~ Anchorage,

AA. ORBIS TECH SERVICES, LLC - Contractor / 1215 Kleppe Ln ~ Sparks, NV
BB. ALPHA OMEGA MECHANICAL LLC - Contractor / 135 Coney Island Dr ~
Sparks, NV

CC. TA OPERATING LLC, DBA: TRAVEL CNTRS OF AMERICA-General /24601
Cntr Ridge ~Westlake, OH

DD. GEORGE DELONG CONSTRUCTION INC - Contractor / 833 E. Fourth St ~
Winnemucca, NV

EE. SAGE RIVER DEVELOPMENT - Contractor / 9460 Double R Blvd ~ Reno, NV
FF. VIEGA LLC - General / 12303 Airport Way ~ Broomfield, CO

GG. TIMELY TESTING, LTD - General / 8725 Technology Way ~ Reno, NV

HH. HOTATECH, INC - General / 15348 Valley Blvd ~ City of Industry, CA

II. MARK STAFFORD REAL ESTATE APPRAISER - General / 685 Sienna Park Ct
~ Reno, NV

JJ. DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS - General / 375 Beale St ~ San Francisco, CA

KK. EVOLVED K9 TRAINING LLC - Home Business / 1537 Canal Rd ~ Sparks, NV

For possible action, approval of first reading general license- Virginia City Brewery
& Taphouse at 62 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the
existing business license.

For possible action, approval of first reading for General Business License name
change - Firehouse BBQ, name change to Firehouse Grill & Saloon. 171 S C St.,
Virginia City, NV.

For possible action, approval of Storey County to assume orginal Pipers Opera
House elevator contract with OTIS United Technologies.

For possible action, approval of Treasurer's Report for February 2018.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Resolution # 18-483 authorizing staff to negotiate with the developers for
the formation of Storey County Special Assessment District No. 01 (Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center) to provide a portion of the funds needed for the construction of an
effluent water line. Also attached are draft forms of a propose Expense
Reimbursement Agreement and a Deposit Agreement for review and possible
approval of the forms.

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Appoint Storey County representative to the Carson Water Subconservancy District
(CWSD) Carson River Watershed Committee as a voting member.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Authorize the County Manager to sign contract between Storey County and the
Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) in the amount of $15,000 in the 2018-
19 fiscal year to reimburse the CWSD for development of the Mark Twain drainage
area master plan identifying and quantifying the flood hazard risk in the Mark Twain
Estates and immediate surronding area.

PUBLIC HEARING (NO ACTION):

Public hearing on an Interfund Loan for the Storey County 5 Mile Water Line project
from the General Fund to the Water System Fund in the amount of $2,126,000.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development
Loan Resolution for the Financing of the Storey County 5 Mile Water Line Project.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Resolution #18-484 authorizing an Interfund Loan to the Storey County
Water Fund from the Storey County General Fund for the Five Mile Waterline
Replacement Project.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Workshop to review and discuss different performance evaluation criteria and
methods that may be used for evaluating the annual performance of a County
Manager.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of administrative policies that give the county manager either significant
job duties or the responsibility for making sure the policies are approved by the board
and are followed by staff.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of Auditor Recommendations pertaining to Storey
County Audit Report for the period ended June 30, 2017.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Selection of an Auditor for Storey County for the year ended June 30, 2018.




19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-283 an ordinance amending Storey County Code
Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.28 C Commercial Zone to restrict "adult uses"
with a special use permit, and Chapter 17.10 Definitions to amend definitions and add
definitions for adult uses including "adult retail", "adult bookstore", and "adult motion
picture theatre" uses, and other properly related matters. In addition to provisions of
the NRS, any person may complete and return to the board or planning commission a
statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and
zoning ordinance. Additional information may be ontained from the Planning
Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance 18-284 amending provisions of the transient lodging tax
provisions of Storey County Code chapter 3.60 to provide for the maximum stay to
which the tax applies, to clarify the disposition of the revenues of the tax, providing a
route for review of a transient lodging tax audit and other matters properly relating
thereto.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Interlocal agreement providing the terms and conditions for the use of Piper's Opera
House by the Storey County School District and the display of historic personal
property within Pipers belonging to the School District.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Interlocal Agreement between Nevada Department of Public
Safety /State Fire Marshal Division, Storey County Fire Protection District and Storey
County.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of Interlocal Agreement between Nevada Department of Public
Safety /State Fire Marshal Division, Storey County Fire Protection District and Storey
County.
ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

First reading for On-Sale Liquor & Cabaret License for Virginia City Brewery &
Taphouse at 62 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the existing

business license.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First reading for On-sale liquor license Firehouse Grill & Saloon. 171 S C St., Virginia
City, NV.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Second reading for On-Sale Liquor License. Applicant is Stephanie Collins, business
owner of Silver Dollar Saloon located at 15 N C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Second reading, General Business License. Applicant is Stephanie Collins, business
owner of Silver Dollar Saloon located at 15 N C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Special Use Permit 2018-008 request by the applicant Evergreen Reno Industrial Park,
LLC, to construct a hotel with additional height beyond the allowed 3 stories or 45
feet in height. The proposed hotel will be four stories and approximately 59 feet in
height. The subject property is located at 691 Britain Drive, Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-041-
57.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Business Licesnse Second Readings:

A. DESERT BOILERS AND CONTROLS, INC - Contractor / 303 W. Saint Louis Ave
~ Las Vegas, NV

B. OUTBOUND TECHNOLOGIES INC - General / 30026 Research Dr ~ New
Hudson, MI

C. GEORGE & SONS, INC - Contractor / 5301 Longley Lane ~ Reno, NV

D. GREGORY R. ANDERSON, DBA: MOBILE NOTARY SVC’S - General / 785 Joel
Way ~ Fallon, NV

E. CMC TIRE INC - General / 95 Washington St ~ Spokane, WA

F. GREGORY R. CHAPEL, DBA: ONSTREET CONCESSIONS - General / 385
Freeport~ Sparks, NV

G. GILLETT CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 1226 Wigwam Pkwy ~ Henderson, NV
H. LEE'S JANITORIAL SERVICES, INC - General / 561 Keystone~ Reno, NV

I. TOP DOG CARPRT CLEANING - Home business / 210 S. O St ~ Virginia City, NV




33.

34.

35.

PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

ADJOURNMENT
CLOSED SESSION:

I Call to order closed session meeting pursiant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations
with the Storey County Employees Association/ AFSCME 4041 Comstock Chapter.
Discsussion will be limited to Appendix A of the 2016-2019 collective bargaining
agreement pertaining to wages for building inspectors and fire prevention officers,
and other properly realted article(s) of the agreement. This meeting will commence
immediately following the regular meeting of the board.

II Call to order closed session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations
with the Storey County Sheriff's Office Employees' Association/ NAPSO. Discussion
will be limited to amending Appendix B of the 2017-2020 collective bargaining
agreement pertaining to wages for certain employees promoted to Sergeant in 2016
and Deputies fired in 2011 and other properly related matters of the agreement. This
meeting will commence immediately following the regualr meeting of the county
commission.

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family / parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.




Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 3/14/2018; Virginia City Post
Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,
NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By W\Wtacﬂ%aw

Vanessa Stephens ClerK-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meetinﬁg ate: March 20, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1. Title: Approval of the minutes for January 16, 2018.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

4. Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.

S. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: No

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:
@_ Department Head Department Name: Clerk

/,,ﬁ/%t{_ County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, JANUARY 16, 2018 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman County
Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Deputy District Attorney Keith
Loomis, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne, IT
Director James Deane ,Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Tourism Director Deny Dotson, Community
Relations Director Cherie Nevin, Justice of the Peace Eileen Herrington, Recorder Jen Chapman,
Special Counsel Robert Morris, Senior Center Director Stacey Gilbert, and Community Chest/
Library Director Eric Schoen.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:20 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for January 16, 2018

Public Comment;
None

Motion: Approve Agenda for January 16, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

4. CONSENT AGENDA:
I For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $398,434.35 and accounts
payable claims in the amount of $669,395.92.




Il For possible action, approval of the Treasurers Report for December 2017.
Il For possible action, approval of First reading for General Business License - CCW
Instructor. Applicant is James Wes Francis, owner of First Shot, 176 Rind Rd. Dayton, NV.

IV For possible action, approval of Justice Court Quarterly Report.

V For possible action, approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

A. INTERNATION FLOW TECHNOLOGIES, INC - Contractor / 30230 Los Alamos Rd

~ Murrieta, CA
B. CONCRETE NORTH, INC - Contractor / 10274 Iron Rock Way ~ Elk Grove, CA
C. ENCORE - Contractor / 14830 Kivett Ln ~ Reno, NV

D. FREMOUW ENVIRONMENT SERVICES, INC - Transportation / 6940 Tremont Rd

~ Dixon, CA

E. MIKE HICKEY CONSTRUCTION, DBA: 3M ROOFING / Contractor / 3046 Achilles

Dr ~ Reno, NV

Public Comment;

None

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for January 16, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice

Chairman McGuffey,

vote,

(Summary: Yes=3)

5. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports:
Community Chest/Library Director Erik Schoen:

The Community Chest Angel Tree Program was very successful with a record number of 105 gifts from

members of the community. 40 holiday baskets were passed out.

A gift of $150,000 has been received from the Pennington Foundation. This donation will enable
completion of the new Library building without incurring debt.

The building is scheduled to be finished by the end of March.

Recorder Jen Chapman:

With the approval of the contract with Tyler, technological changes are moving at record
speed.

Busy with business process changes, and all paperwork has been completed. The AS400
cannot be applied to modern programs.

Goals and needs of the different offices are being looked at.

A data pull has been done, but due to issues will be done again.

Updates will be given as work is completed.

Tourism Director Deny Dotson:

The 2018 Special Event calendar is now available.

New events this year include: Cowgirl Saloon Crawl and a line-dancing competition. A
Mexican rodeo has been added to Sunday of the weekend of the rodeo.

At this time, the Ferrari Hill Climb has not been authorized.

Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous




* Beacons, which work with the VC mobile app, are being installed in various locations around
Virginia City. By downloading the app visitors will be able to receive notifications regarding
properties and history of various buildings.

e Work has started on the next budget.

e The V&T Rail Commission meets next week with a workshop to discuss various items that
need to be addressed.

Director of Planning/Administrative Officer Austin Osborne:

* The Truckee River Flood Project has approached the County to look at a 60% design review for
a portion of the (Truckee River) flood project that would affect Storey County - in Vista
Narrows, an area in Sparks. The plan is to widen the river and send it down to Storey County,
raising the river one foot. They want to abate any flooding in the Rainbow Bend/Lockwood
areas and downstream to Pyramid Lake. The County will review the 60% design and make
sure Rainbow Bend/Lockwood residents’ needs are met. The County’s position is what the
residents want the County wants, regarding any proposals for abatement by the project.

» Mark Twain flood project is moving forward. FEMA will be paying the majority of the cost
with the balance split between Lyon and Storey County for the rest of the study looking at
future flood abatement.

» Working with the Carson Water Sub-conservancy Board to become a higher level member in
that agency which would give the County better access to FEMA funds for various projects.
 Health benefits situation is still bad. The County will likely stay with Hometown Health as no
one else will bid based on the County’s current experience rating. It is typical to have cycles
with a lot of claims followed by a few years of not many claims. Some adjustments may be

needed.

» Approximately 50 or so new or revised personnel policies have been approved with an
additional 50 to come.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher:
» Pipers Opera House accounting has been received.
e There are reconciliation accounting issues for the V&T Rail Commission. The steps taken two
years ago, the County not giving them any funds, looks like it was a good decision.
» Attended a Government Financial Officers seminar regarding new systems coming in.

Project Manager Mike Northan:
e Masonry work is being done on the Courthouse roof with sheeting replacement to follow.
¢ Beginning around January 29t, the north half of the parking lot will be cordoned off for this
work.
e Materials have been submitted to SHPO for approval of the Courthouse interior work.

Planner Kathy Canfield:
» Work has started on updating the sign ordinance, making it more user-friendly. Input is
requested from property/business owners.
» Confirmation was received from the Census that maps have been updated for the County’s
boundary area survey - 600 acres annexed from Washoe County.

County Manager Pat Whitten:
On behalf of Acting Public Works Director Jason Wierzbicki:

3




* New playground equipment has been ordered for Louise Peri Park. Commissioner Lance
Gilman donated $10,000 towards the purchase of this equipment.

e Equipment is being readied for the potential storm later this week.

e Mike Nevin reports he is actively working with Ames Construction on the sewer project and it
is going quite well. Only issues so far are the fairly significant historic findings around E
Street which require notice and approval from several agencies.

e A team is working on a solution for a new courtroom for Justice Court. The primary option
would be to build a court structure on the north side, to be contiguous with, the Courthouse
building. Currently estimates are all over the board.

6. BOARD COMMENT (No Action-No Public Comment):

Commissioner Gilman: Recently had a private discussion with a management individual from Tesla
who stated how happy they are in dealing with Gary Hames, and how professional Mr. Hames and
County Fire Department employee Martin Azevedo are. He said the attitude and response of the
County employees is extremely helpful while enforcing codes. This came from an individual who
developed major infrastructure around the world. The building of Tesla is a major challenge in any
community - yet they reached out regarding Mr. Hames and Mr. Azevedo. There had been concern
with the retirement of Mr. Haymore. Two times the permits have been processed by the Hames
group than any other time - processed diligently, and faster and better. This is a win/win for
everyone. Credit to Mr. Whitten, Mr. Osborne, and the Planning Department on a hard transition.

Tesla is not the only company praising the County’s permitting process and fire plan review. Storey
County is now known throughout the world as the premier site for global tech company relocation.

In the meantime, Mr. Osborne and his team, finalized the County’s Master Plan, re-wrote the County
Codes regarding subdivision, and drafted a design manual. It is amazing what has been done over
the last year. Everyone should be proud of Storey County.

Vice Chairman McGuffey:
* Wasrecently in Lockwood for Mustang Cares and saw that work has begun on the bridge in
Rainbow Bend. The residents are very happy this is moving along.
e Also visited Mark Twain for Mustang Cares. Noticed there is a lot of trash along the roads,
including along 341 from Lousetown Road.

7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: National Radon Action Month Proclamation

Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin: Each January the Board is asked to declare January,
National Radon Action Month.

Nadia Noel, UNR Cooperative Extension Radon Education Coordinator, discussed the importance of
testing for radon:
» Free radon test kits are available to residents during the months of January and February.
* Tests kits are available at the Storey County Library - weekdays from 10 am to 5pm, at the
Storey County Senior Center on February 15, and other locations.
e 29% of homes tested in Storey County have elevated levels of radon.
e For information regarding radon, go to www.radonnv.com or call 1-888-radon10.




o It is recommended testing be done every two years, after remodeling and earthquakes, and
prior to selling a home.

Ms. Nevin read the Proclamation: A Proclamation Declaring January 2018 as National Radon Action
Month in Storey, Nevada:

Whereas, many Storey County residents don’t know about radon, yet need to know, for the safety
and health of their families, as radon is a colorless, odorless, naturally occurring radioactive gas that
is the primary cause of lung cancer among nonsmokers; the second leading cause of lung cancer in
smokers, and

Whereas, the U.S. EPA estimates 21,000 people in the U.S. die each year from lung cancer caused by
indoor radon exposure, and lung and bronchus cancer kill more people in a year than any other
cancer, and

Whereas, radon kills more people than secondhand smoke, drunk driving, choking, drowning or
home fires, and

Whereas, any home in Storey County may have elevated levels of radon, even if neighboring homes
do not, and living in a home with average radon level of 4 picocuries per liter of air poses a similar
risk of developing lung cancer as smoking half a pack of cigarettes a day; and

Whereas, testing is the only way to know if a home has an elevated radon level, and testing is easy
and inexpensive, and when identified, homes can be fixed; and

Whereas, University of Nevada Cooperative Extension, the Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral
Health, and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency support efforts to encourage all Storey County
residents to test their homes for radon, mitigate elevated levels of radon, and have new homes built
with radon-reducing materials and features,

Now, therefore, We, the Storey County Board of Commissioners, do hereby proclaim January 2018, as
“National Radon Action Month” in Storey County, Nevada.

Adopted this 16t day of January 2018.

Public Comment:

None

Motion: I move to proclaim January 2018 as National Radon Action Month in Storey County,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: A resolution honoring Bruce and Linda Larson & Botcha-
Caloop’s as the 2017 Storey County Business of the Year.

Virginia City Tourism Director Deny Dotson: Each year Storey County recognizes one business as
Business of the Year. This award is selected based on input from the County Commission, County
Manager, department heads, and the Tourism Commission Board. The business selected will show
significant achievements and contributions to the residents of Virginia City and/or Storey County.

Staff has recommended Bruce and Linda Larson of Botcha-Caloop’s be nominated as the 2017 Storey
County Business of the Year.




Mr. Dotson read the Resolution:

A Resolution Honoring Bruce and Linda Larson & Botcha-Caloop’s as the 2017 Storey County
Business of the Year

Whereas, this award will be given to a Storey County business or organization that has shown
significant contributions towards the economic stability in Storey County;

Whereas, Bruce and Linda Larson & Botcha-Caloop’s have shown nearly 20 years of extraordinary
entrepreneurship, market innovation, strong community relations and contributions towards
fulfilling a needed service in Virginia City;

Therefore, let it be known to all present that the Board of County Commissioner of Storey County do
hereby resolve to commend and honor Bruce and Linda Larson & Botcha-Caloop’s for their
continued and exemplary service to the people of Storey County.

Passed and adopted this 16t day of January 2018.

County Manager Whitten: We are recognizing the true epitome of “mom & pop” operations and I
can’t think of a better honoree.

Bruce Larson: We are proud to put out a good product, proud to work with the County and with
“Made in Nevada” since 2003 - who helped get us in front of the Legislature and other places that we
wouldn’t have seen otherwise. Thank you very much.

Vice Chair McGuffey: Has purchased and received products, the quality is amazing,

Chair McBride: Bruce and Linda’s work is seen all over the state - in government offices, the
courthouse, and the Bucket of Blood Saloon. Bruce is a Comstock native, retired from the Storey
County Sheriff’s Office.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve resolution honoring Bruce and Linda Larson & Botcha-Caloops as the
2017 Storey County Business of the Year, Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possible approval of reimbursable costs
through the voucher program payable to TRI Center for its extension of Milan Drive in the amount of
$ 825,647.23 which amount includes an overage of $28,921.00 over the estimated costs previously
approved.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself from discussion and vote on this item due to a pecuniary
interest. '

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher: The Board previously approved improvements to the Milan Drive
extension in 2015. This item is for approval of a $28,921.00 overage resulting from additional design
and materials.




Chuck Reno, Senior Engineer - Farr West Engineering: Farr West became involved in this project in
2015. Some improvements had been made prior. A cost estimate was submitted in July 2015 for
$1,063,600. Seven bids were received ranging from $653,000 to $832,000. The project was awarded to
the lowest bidder, F&P Construction. During construction, asphalt costs went over about $19,000.
There was about $10,000 in overage to Farr West for engineering and surveying.

The project was completed in spring 2016.
Chair McBride commented this did not seem out of line as far as cost overruns go.

Mr. Whitten, as Administrator for the Public-Private Partnership Capital Improvement Plan under
the Development Agreement, recommended approval.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Per staff’s recommendation, I hereby approve the infrastructure costs for the extension of
Milan Drive in the amount of $825,647.23, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possible approval of agreement with VIEVU
Solution Services LLC to provide 18 body cameras and associated services to the Storey County
Sheriff's Office for a subscription fee of $47.00 per month per camera, an approximate total amount
$50,000.00.

Sheriff Antinoro presented this item which was before the Board previously. The District Attorney’s
Office and the provider have worked out issues with language in the contract. Approval is
recommended noting this was not in the budget but that it is mandated by the State to begin July 1st.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis: Had requested about 11 changes to the contract, VIEVU
accepted 9. Approval is recommended as it stands today.

Mr. Whitten: This is a 5 year contract, not 3 years as stated in the previous contract.
Sheriff Antinoro: That was one of the errors in the prior contract - this is a 5 year contract. This can
be an annual payment, a one-time payment, monthly payments - whichever is best. The Comptroller

will be asked about this.

Mr. Loomis: A paragraph has been added to include terms for termination unless this contract is
funded in the budget (non-appropriation).

Mr. Whitten: Staff recommends the County pay no more frequently than annually.
Public Comment: ,

Mark Joseph Phillips, Virginia City Resident: Loves body cameras and believes it holds citizens
and Sheriff/Police Departments responsible.




Motion: I make a motion to approve the contract and expenditure for the purpose of body cameras
for the Storey County Sheriff's Office that are outside the budget for fiscal year 1/18 and augment the
budget accordingly, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading for General Business License. Applicant is
Carol Maley, owner of Virginia City RV Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

Sheriff Antinoro recommended approval.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve Second reading for General Business License. Applicant is Carol Maley,
owner of Virginia City RV Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia City, NV 89440, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGulffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

12. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading for Off-sale Liquor License. Applicant is
Carol Maley, owner of Virginia City RV Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

Sheriff Antinoro recommended approval.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I motion to approve Second reading for Off-sale Liquor License. Applicant is Carol Maley,
owner of Virginia City RV Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia City, NV 89440, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=4)

14. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Chairman McBride called for recess at 11:35 AM
Meeting reconvened at 11:45 AM

15. DISCUSSION/WORKSHOP (No Action): Discussion of administrative policies that give the
county manager either significant job duties or the responsibility for making sure the policies are
approved by the board and are followed by staff.

District Attorney Anne Langer present via telephone.

Outside Counsel Robert Morris presented this workshop item. No action will be taken today. Mr.
Morris reminded the Board to not consider the current County Manager’s job performance in




connection with this item. Existing, revised, and new policies are provided in this review.
Suggestions provided by Mr. Osborne and the Board are included - there are no real major changes.

Mr. Morris reviewed the list of policies he has addressed. Including;
o Policy No. 8 - Agenda requests:

o This is clearly County Manager responsibility.

o To simplify the process - it is suggested the Agenda Action form used by the County,
be used by everyone outside the County.

o Mr. Whitten requested all agenda items be turned in by noon on Monday, with all back-
up provided by end of the day Tuesday.

o Mr. Morris and the Clerk feel everything should be turned in on Monday.
At this point, it is suggested to follow Mr. Whitten’s request.

Mr. Whitten: Using the same form for County staff and everyone outside the County is a good idea.
I will work with Mr. Morris and the Clerk in finalizing other items.

Mr. Morris continued:
e Policy No. 042 - Contracts and Agreements (reviewed with and some changes made by Mr.
Osborne):
o Paragraph IL.C contains additions by Mr. Osborne regarding personnel - temporary and
permanent, and other additions;
o Current policy authorizes the County Manager to sign contracts and agreements valued
at less than $10,000. The Board should decide what number they are comfortable with.

Commissioner Gilman: My position is for a $5,000 cap for any expenditure, not necessarily just
contract expenditures, and it should be reviewed and approved at least by the County Manager and
Comptroller. Anything over $5,000 should be reviewed by the Board. Mr. Morris’ position for
$10,000 is understood.

Mr. Morris: It could be this as long as the Comptroller approves, it could be a higher amount (over
$5,000).

Commissioner Gilman: Not referring to the present County Manager who has many years of
banking experience and as County Manager - this is looking forward to when a new county manager
is in place. There should be more stringent controls for the next manager - who we may not know.

Vice Chairman McGuffey asked where the $10,000 number came from.

Mr. Morris: Looked through many different County policies and is not sure where he saw it. Some
counties have much higher policies - reflecting scale.

District Attorney Langer: Spoke with other counties. In Douglas County, if it was below $50,000 -
the Comptroller sees if the money is there, the District Attorney makes sure it is legal, H.R. looks to
be sure there are no employment issues - and along with the County Manager, they get together to
Jook at those contracts. Anything over $50,000 goes before the Board.




Mr. Morris: This is an option. As stated, we could have the Comptroller sign off and/or have a
meeting with the D.A. and H.R. and maybe raise the $5,000 to a higher amount. It depends on what
Board wants.

Ms. Langer: Thinks the County is still small enough to go over contracts at a weekly meeting to make
sure everything is covered. This will insure there are “checks and balances”. Each jurisdiction deals
with different numbers. Talking with other jurisdictions anything that did not go before the Board
had a group looking at it. Everyone doesn’t necessarily sign off on the contract, but they all sign off
stating the contract has been reviewed and approved.

Commissioner Gilman: Whether it's an appropriated expense or outside appropriation should be
addressed. Items that have been appropriated by the Board for expenditures during the year may not
need much scrutiny and may be handled by the County Manager and Comptroller.

Unappropriated items need a higher level of scrutiny.

Chair McBride: A budgeted item would not need to come before the Board, a non-budgeted item
would.

Ms. Langer: If $10,000 is the amount - anything above that would go before the Board. Amounts
under that would go through the “checks and balances” with the group.

Mr. Morris: Current policy states contracts must be reviewed by the District Attorney, County
Manager, and Comptroller.

Chair McBride: Any amount? Are there any issues with the edits by Mr. Osborne?

Mr. Morris: Yes - any amount. I might re-word Mr. Osborne’s edits a bit. Payments made on a
regular basis, routine items - need to be pinned down and would not need such review.

Ms. Langer: Right now contracts are being discussed. Routine things, not necessarily a contract,
would not have to go through the group.

Mr. Morris: With the suggestions, some items and language can be changed and added to make it
cleaner.

e Voluntary Retirement Program: Douglas County’s program was reviewed.

o If someone is going to be replaced by someone making less money, the County would
benefit by someone retiring early.

o If the new person comes in at a pay grade or salary level (lower or the same) over a
period of say three years, as incentive for early retirement the County could pay up toa
certain number in PERS. Generally the County would not suffer because the new
employee will be earning less which should cover the cost of PERS purchase.

o A procedure is set out under the new policy Voluntary Retirement Program. There is
no existing policy.

o There have been discussions regarding people who have had buy-outs through the
years.

10




o This would set policy for people voluntarily retiring early, being replaced by someone
earning a lower pay.
o The Board should consider this policy as budgetary savings are part of this.

e Separation Agreements:

o The Board can approve an agreement the County Manager makes that an employee
separating from County employment receive a separation bonus for outstanding
service, in addition to any pay or PERS.

o There is another potential of an outright bonus for persons working for the County. A
policy has not been prepared for this.

When a person asks to retire early, the Board will have checks to insure eligibility for the program
and will know what the salary savings are going to be.

Ms. Langer: These are things that have been coming up. We want the Board to make decisions on
how they want these matters handled and what they would like to see.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Is a policy needed? There are guidelines here. When someone wants to
retire early, it can be negotiated with H.R. and the County Manager - they will determine when the
person retires early if someone else will be hired at a lower rate. There should be advantage to
having a lower wage person which fills the gap if a bonus or buyout is given. This should come
before the Board so the Board knows what’s going on. I'm not against the buyouts, just need
transparency.

Mr. Morris: The premise of this policy is that it’s a Board decision whether to go forward with a
buyout or not.

Ms. Langer: Some sort of language or policy is needed to bring it to the Board.

Vice Chair McGuffey: County Manager, H.R., and Comptroller make sure everything is on “the up
and up” and then it's brought to the Board for approval.

Commissioner Gilman: Believes quality policies and procedures protect employees, the Commission,
and puts everything in perspective as to the rules.

Chairman McBride: The “voluntary retirement program” is a tool to be used for the reasons
indicated. Not so sure about putting this into policy. If every employee has an expectation of early
retirement, the Comptroller will have to “book time” on how much it’s going to cost. I like the way it
has been done in the past - it’s a “one on one” basis, the decision is made on whether or not it’s in the
County’s best interest. It will not always be of financial benefit to the County. I don’t believe it
should be policy.

Mr. Morris: If some employees are going to get a voluntary early retirement, shouldn’t there be rules
to show what the basis is? I feel there will not be that many people who will use early retirement as
in the past.

Chair McBride: It could be a monetary savings, health issues, or a variety of other reasons.

11




Ms. Langer: How can there be a system in place without something in writing? The policy would be
what the rules are - everyone will know that it’s going before the Board.

Chair McBride: The person who would like to retire early could go to the County Manager and H.R,,
plead their case, and based on the numbers, early retirement would or would not be recommended.
If not recommended, it would not go to the Board.

Mr. Morris: This is what's currently in the proposed policy. If the Board is going to make a decision,
there has to be some sort of procedure or criteria.

Public Comment:

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Agrees with Chairman McBride somewhat - you do not
want to incentivize employees to leave. Typically, early retirement is at the discretion of the
company for business purposes. This should not be the employee making a request, but the County
looking at better, cheaper ways to do business. Why are elected officials excluded?

Mr. Morris: They are elected by the people and salaries are set by the Legislature, there would not be
any salary savings.

Ms. Barde: What about other bonuses for employees who continue employment with the County?

Mr. Morris: This was not drafted at this time and will defer to the Board if they want a policy or not.
If the Board is interested, a performance-based policy could be brought forward next time.

Mr. Osborne: A performance bonus for employees would be a restructure of the entire compensation
plan and will affect union contracts. The entire organization would have to be re-evaluated.

Chairman McBride: If someone is exceeding at their job, they could be re-classified.

Mr. Osborne: If you go into a new classification, additional duties are taken on outside of the existing
job description.

Ms. Barde: Not talking about progression, but about out-of-cycle bonus that says you're doing a
great job. Either cash payment or purchase of PERS years, other than regular compensation.

Mr. Osborne: If we go to bonuses for a great job, we have to restructure and make sure performance
evaluation is measurable, consistent, and tailored to different department heads. In the private
sector, pay and benefits can be based on the bottom line of what is produced and other items. It is
much more difficult in the public sector. It takes time to build a program,

Mr. Morris: There are other items regarding the County Manager’s job not included. It is requested
this item be bought back in a month with changes. Suggestions should be sent to Mr. Morris.

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of revised county manager’s job description.

12




Outside Counsel Robert Morris: Again, the Board should not consider the current County Manager’s
job performance in connection with this item.

Three changes have been made to this job description:

e Arevised date of 1/16/18 has been added,;

e Section 3, D: language added (underlined) - is designated the authorized representative to be
responsible for the development, award and proper administration of all purchases and
contracts made pursuant to a the local government purchasing law, negotiates an supervises
county contractual agreements, and after approval of the contract by the board, administers
the agreements and if authorized by the board, enforces agreements;

e Section 2: added (underlined) - The County Manager will be given a yearly evaluation by the
board after the end of the fiscal year and a consideration of an increase in salary and possible
performance based bonus.

If the Board does not want a specific time for review, this can removed.

Chairman McBride: This is the end of a budget cycle, is this the right time to look at job performance
and likely pay increases? Not sure what would be a good time for review.

Mr. Morris: This was the existing description (other than the underlined addition) which does
provide for a performance based bonus. This ties into the policies and whether the Board wants
performance based bonuses.

Chairman McBride: Are “at will” employees set up on the same schedule as those with Collective
Bargaining Agreements - on the anniversary of employment or?

Mr. Osborne: Department heads are set up similarly to the AFSCME contract - receiving a 3.5%
merit every year if they meet, or exceed, an evaluation by the County Manager. Who evaluates the
County Manager? Should he automatically receive the 3.5% - or should he be provided something
different, a bonus, or a pay increase based on whatever the Board feels is correct? A program should
be in place so that when Boards and conditions change it is consistent.

Chairman McBride: What would be the time frame for a County Manager?

Mr. Osborne: Generally the standard is once a year. Currently it is based on anniversary date.

Mr. Morris: Listed under (1) Job Summary are the areas to be looked at for performance.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Does the Board appoint the County Manager?

Mr. Morris: Yes. Should we change the timing of the evaluation to the beginning of the year? This
would enable suggestions on how the budget is going to work. Maybe pre-budget consideration is a

good idea.

Chairman McBride: Would this be a public evaluation? Traditionally there is one meeting only in
December, so this would have to be scheduled for that meeting.

13




Mr. Morris: NRS requires County Manager evaluations to be public. The date does not need to be
locked down - it could state “within proximity to the end of the calendar year”.

Mr. Osborne: Do we want the County Manager to be on the same system, or do we want to reinvent
a new system? Or do we want to keep the person on the standard 3.5% merit if the person passes and
goes up to the next step? Maybe build in a bonus or whatever. Do we want to maintain the current
system, build around that, or completely start from scratch? This would not be in a job description
but in a policy.

Ms. Langer: The County Manager is different - no one else goes before a public meeting of the
Commission for an evaluation.

Vice Chairman McGuffey asked if County Manager Whitten had ever had a review. The answer was
no.

Chairman McBride suggested Mr. Osborne and Mr. Morris work together on this item and bring it
back to the Board.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Since this (County Manager) has not had a review, salaries in other areas
should be looked at for comparison.

Mr. Osborne: This has been done.

Public Comment:

Kris Thompson, as a private citizen: We have been blessed the last five years with the respect and
mutual admiration between the Commissioners and current County Manager. The job description
will be critical and fair for the incoming County Manager. Based on past experience, Mr. Thompson
suggested the new policy include who actually drafts and writes the evaluation and what kind of
input is included so the process is streamlined and efficient. Also, what are the key reports,
milestones, and events important to the Commission. List specifics on day to day tasks.

Motion: I make a motion to continue this agenda item to February 20, 2018, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

17. DISCUSSION//POSSIBLE ACTION: File 2016-030-A1-2017. A request to amend Special Use
Permit 2016-030, Condition 5, by the applicant Sally Summers to allow for additional time for the
onsite temporary trailer (watchperson’s dwelling) to remain on the property. No other changes or
modifications to the original Special Use Permit are proposed. The property is located at 199 Scales
Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-331-08, 004-331-22 & 004-331-40, Amended
Special Use File 2016-030-A1-2017.

Planner Kathy Canfield presented this item.

e The original Special Use Permit was granted in 2015 allowing applicant Sally Summers to
place a temporary watchperson’s dwelling on the property while permanent structures were
built.

e Applicant’s operation was found to be in compliance during a recent review.

14




e It is taking the applicant longer to build a residence/barn and more time for construction is
requested.

e Staff recommends approval of the request to amend Condition 5 of the Special Use permit
allowing for two years additional time.

o Comstock Mining, Inc., the owner of the property, did not have any concerns with the request.

Ms. Canfield read the Findings of Fact:
The amended special use permit does not conflict with the provisions of the 2016 Storey County
Master Plan including the goals and objectives listed in Chapter 3 Land Use and Chapter 11
Cultural and Historic Resources, including as related for the maintenance of an orderly, efficient,
and sustainable development; compatibility between existing and future uses; the advancement
and diversity of the local economy from tourism and other sources; and for the preservation of
historic and cultural resources for the subject area.

The amended special use permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards
on the adjacent properties or the surrounding area.

The conditions of the special use permit adequately address potential structure and wildland
fire hazards and require compliance with the applicable fire codes, including setback and fire
protectionratings.

The conditions of this special use permit do not conflict with the minimum requirements in
Storey County Code 17.32 F Forestry Zone, or any other federal, state, or county regulations,
including building and fire codes.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the
Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey, move to approve amended Special Use Permit 2016-030, Condition 5,
by the applicant Sally Summers to allow for additional time for the onsite temporary trailer
(watchperson’s dwelling) to remain on the property until January 31, 2020. No other changes or
modifications to the original Special Use Permit are proposed. The property is located at 199 Scales
Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-331-08, 004-331-22 & 004-331-40, Amended
Special Use Permit File 2016-030-A1-2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-279 amending Storey
County Code Title 16 Subdivisions to adopt new codes for land subdivisions, parcel maps, division of
land into large parcels, surety requirements, land readjustments, boundary line adjustments, and
reversions to acreage/lot consolidations. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any person may
complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement supporting or opposing the
proposed amendments to the county code. Additional information may be obtained from the
Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.

15




Austin Osborne reviewed this revised ordinance. This is First Reading of an ordinance amending
Storey County Code Title 16 to adopt new codes for land divisions. Everything would go to the
Board and the Planning Commission with the exception of certain boundary line adjustments and lot
adjustments. Water issues are addressed in this ordinance.

Chairman McBride: What would happen to acquired water rights if a planned unit development is
not built? Are the water rights put into a sort of impound account?

Mr. Osborne explained the water would be dedicated to the State Division of Water Resources who
manage the water and make sure the water is there when units are actually built.

Mr. Osborne read the ordinance title: An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 16 to adopt
new codes for land divisions and other properly related matters. Ordinance No. 18-279.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-279 amending
Storey County Code Title 16 Subdivisions to adopt new codes for land subdivisions, parcel maps,
division of land into large parcels, surety requirements, land readjustments, boundary line
adjustments, and reversions to acreage/lot consolidations, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-278 amending Storey
County Code Title 17 Zoning, including Chapter 17.56 Planned Unit Developments to revise the
procedure for approval and standards of planned unit developments. In addition to provisions of the
NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement
supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance.
Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning
@storeycounty.org.

Mr. Osborne read the title: An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning, Chapter
17.56 Planned Unit Developments to revise the procedure for approval and standards of planned unit
developments and providing for other properly related matters.

Mr. Osborne: If a sub-divider wanted to do something unique in a planned unit development, such
as different kinds of cluster developments, creating a custom development - this ordinance provides
the language for that to happen. It also provides standards to insure high quality of Planned Unit
Developments.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: In accordance to the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-278 amending

16




Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning, including Chapter 17.56 Planned Unit Developments to revise
the procedure for approval and standards of planned unit developments, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-280 amending Storey
County Code Title 17 Zoning including chapters 17.03 Administrative Provisions, 17.10 Definitions,
17.12 General Provisions, 17.15 Public Zone, 17.24 Agriculture Zone, 17.28 Commercial Zone, 17.30
Commercial-Residential Zone, 17.32 Forestry Zone, 17.34 Light Industrial Zone, 17.35 Heavy
Industrial Zone, 17.40 Estate Zone, 17.44 Special Planning Review Zone; and 17.84 Signs and
Billboards. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or
Planning Commission a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county
code and zoning ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department
at 775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.

Mr. Osborne read the title: An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including
chapters 17.03 Administrative Provisions, 17.10 Definitions, 17.12 General Provisions, 17.15 Public
Zone, 17.24 Agriculture Zone, 17.28 Commercial Zone, 17.30 Commercial-Residential Zone, 17.32
Light Industrial Zone, 17.35 Heavy Industrial Zone, 17.40 Estate Zone, 17.44 Special Planning Review
Zone; and 17.84 Signs and Billboards, and other properly related matters.

Mr. Osborne: There is clean-up as well as substantial changes in this ordinance. Items not in the
ordinance for a reason have been removed. This ordinance: regulates shipping containers used as
accessory structures; deals with open storage; defines auction houses; gives a better definition of
mixed uses; provides no fees or permitting for signs; eliminates unnecessary definitions; provides
definitions for development permits; provides discussion on non-conforming and sub-standard uses;
de-regulates and provides a more user-friendly ordinance.

Addendum 17.44.070 - M, needs to be removed.

The Master Plan supports creating downtown Virginia City to be a true downtown, mixed use
environment. There’s no square footage any more for residential use in the commercial/ residential
zone. There is also no longer a 5,000 square foot lot requirement in the commercial/residential zone.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-280 amending
Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including chapters17.03 Administrative Provisions, 17.10
Definitions, 17.12 General Provisions, 17.15 Public Zone 17.24 Agriculture Zone, 17.28 Commercial
Zone, 17.30 Commercial-Residential Zone, 17.32 Forestry Zone, 17.34 Light Industrial Zone, 17.35
Heavy Industrial Zone, 17.40 Estate Zone, 17.44 Estate Zone, 17.44 Special Planning Review Zone;
and 17.84 Signs and Billboards, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGulffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

17




21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-281 amending Storey
County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.06 Nonconforming Uses pertaining to legally
nonconforming uses and adding language pertaining to substandard development. In addition to
provisions of the NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a
statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning
ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or
planning @storeycounty.org.

Mr. Osborne read the title: Ordinance No. 18-28, and Ordinance amending Storey County Code Title
17 Zoning Ordinance to amend requirements pertaining to legally nonconforming uses and adding
language pertaining to substandard development, and providing for other properly related matters.

Mr. Osborne thanked Planning Commissioner Summer Pellet for bringing forth this concept - this is
an excellent recommendation.

This new ordinance addresses legally non-conforming uses and allows things in Virginia City to
remain in perpetuity, as long as there aren’t substantial changes - 50% or more of the property. New
ownership would allow the use to continue.

Public Comment;
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-281 amending
Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.06 Nonconforming Uses pertaining to
legally nonconforming uses and adding language pertaining to substandard development, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-276 amending Storey
County Code Title 17 Zoning to provide for design criteria and improvement standards for certain
types of development and a design review process with review by the planning director with appeal
to the planning commission and board. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any person may
complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement supporting or opposing the
proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance. Additional information may be
obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.

Mr. Osborne read the title: Ordinance No. 18-276 amending Storey County Code Title 17 to provide
for design criteria and improvement standards for certain types of development and a design review
process with review by the planning director with appeal to the planning commission and board, and
providing for other properly related matters.

Mr. Osborne: This ordinance creates language in the Zoning Ordinance that allows the Design
Standards Manual to exist. This is consistent with, and driven by, the Storey County Master Plan.

Public Comment:
None

18




Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to approve the First Reading of Ordinance No. 17-276
amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning to provide for design criteria and improvement
standards for certain types of development and a design review process with review by the planning
director with appeal to the Planning Commission and Board, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-282 amending Storey
County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions to revise the
procedure for the expiration of development permits. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any
person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement supporting or
opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance. Additional
information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning
@storeycounty.org.

Mr. Osborne read the title: Ordinance No. 18-282 title and ordinance amending Storey County Code
Chapter 17.03, 230, Administrative Provisions to revise the procedures for expiration of development
permits, and providing for other properly related matters.

This is an ordinance addressing the procedure for the expiration of development permits, such as
Special Use Permits, for which no development occurs within 24 months.

Public Comment;
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-282 amending
Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions to revise the
procedure for the expiration of development permits, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution No. 18-474 to the Board of County
Commissioners with recommendation by the Planning Commission adopting a design criteria and
improvement manual setting forth certain development and design standards and guidelines for
residential and non-residential planned unit developments, multi-family residential complexes, and
other uses.

Mr. Osborne requested this item be continued to February 6, 2018 as this Resolution pertains to
design standards and the Ordinance regarding which is on First Reading.

Public Comment;
None

19




Motion: I make a motion to continue agenda item 24 to February 6, 2018, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

25. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution No. 18-481 determining and
consolidating all planning fees, including removing certain fees from code and placing them into
resolution.

Mr. Osborne: This will be the first fee schedule approved by the Board. This Resolution is not
dependent on the previous ordinances in this agenda. There are no new fees nor any increase in fees
in this item.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Based on the recommendation from staff, I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to
approve Resolution No. 18-481, determining and consolidating all planning fees, including removing
certain fees from code and placing them into resolution, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

26. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Business Licenses Second Readings:

A. B STREEET HOUSE BED & BREAKFAST - General / 58 N “B” St ~ Virginia City, NV

B. AIR GUYS LLC - General / 1211 Avian Dr. ~ Sparks, NV

C. NEW ELECTRIC STERLING HEIGHTS LLC- General / 6475 19 2 Mi. ~ Sterling Hghts, MI
D. URTON LTD - Contractor / 1512 Hwy 395 N ~ Gardnerville, NV

E. SUGINO CORP - General / 1380 Hamilton Pkwy ~ Itasca, IL

F. LIBERTY INDUSTRIAL GROUP INC - Contractor / 1132 S 500 W ~ Salt Lake City, UT

G. AQ&B, LLC - General / 5470 Sidehill Dr ~ Sun Valley, NV

H. KYYBA, INC - General / 28230 Orchard Lk ~ Farmington Hills, MI

I. YBD TECH MOVING, LLC - General / 1 East First St ~ Reno, NV

J.SHRED IT USA - General / 28161 N. Keith Dr - Lake Forest, IL

K. COMSTOCK COPYWRITING - General / 21335 Saddleback ~ VC Highlands, NV

L. GO SOLAR GROUP, LLC - Contractor / 4892 S Commerce Dr ~ Murray, UT

M. TANAMERA CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 5560 Longley Ln ~ Reno, NV

N. GULF COAST PROTECTIVE WRAP, LLC - General / 5301 Longley Ln ~ Reno, NV

O. MASKINE LLC - General / 704 Mill Rd ~ Webster, IN

P. AMAZON.COM.KYDC, LLC - General / 410 Terry Ave N ~ Seattle, WA

Q. COSCO FIRE PROTECTION INC - Contractor / 3620 W. Reno ~ Las Vegas, NV

R. COMSTOCK CRITTER TAXIDERMY - Home Business / 2247 S. Main St ~ Virginia City, NV
S. THERMAL RESOURCE SALES, INC - General / 750 Yellow Pine Rd ~ Reno, NV

T. ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS, INC - Contractor / 6265 San Fernando ~ Glendale, CA

U. TESLA, INC - General / 3550 Deer Cr Rd ~ Palo Alto, CA

V. APPLIED MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGIES LLC - 219 Kay Industrial Dr ~ Orion, MI
W. CALIFORNIA-NEVADA ILLUMINATION, INC - General / 4000 Executive Pkwy ~ San Ramon,
CA

20




X. QUALITY TELECOM CONSULTANTS, INC - Contractor / 3740 Cincinnati Ave ~ Rocklin, CA
Y. EAGLE NEST PARTNERS - General / 2255 Green Vista ~ Sparks, NV

Z. ELWEMA AUTOMOTICE GMBH - General / 21 Schneider-Strasse 21 ~ Ellwanger Wagst,
Germany

AA. SPARKS ELECTRIC MOTOR REPAIR, LLC - General / 845 Marietta Way ~ Sparks, NV

BB. INMAN'’S JEWELRY - Home Business / 204 Wagon Wheel ~ Dayton, NV

CC. BOURQUE ENTERPRISES - General / 5017 S 36th St ~ Phoenix, AZ

County Manager Whitten said Community Development recommended approval of all items A.
through CC. ’

Motion: Imove to approve Items A. through CC., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

27. PUBLIC COMMENT:

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Ms. Barde said she has requested and received a list of all
County employees receiving severance packages in years of service purchases. There are two public
officials on this list. Earlier it was said that NRS prescribes salary for public officials. How did these
two individuals get purchased years of service to retire early? Under purchased years of service,
there is a one-year payment to Mr. Whitten, who is currently employed - what was this for?

Chairman McBride: This is public comment to talk about items not agendized, it is not a question
and answer forum, not a debate. However, Mr. Whitten has offered to answer.

County Manager Whitten: Without notice, I cannot be specific about dates. In discussing statutory
requirements of elected officials and why they are left out, an important component was not brought
up. The two individuals mentioned (by Ms. Barde) had probably 15% statutory longevity earned in
their positions while there. The incoming official would not be eligible for at least five years -
resulting in longevity savings. These were long-term employees who chose to leave early.

Mr. Whitten explained his PERS purchase. To his memory, in the 1999, 01, and possibly 03
Legislative sessions, there were BDR’s to increase certain elected official and County Commissioner
salaries. The Legislature kept denying. In 2003, the Legislature said, “no you can’t do it”, but stated
1 year of PERS can be bought for each elected official. Mr. Whitten was not eligible at the time as he
was not vested in PERS and believes he was at year four, not five. In 2005, they said salary increases
can be done - Mr. Whitten, along with other elected officials - received a raise. In 07 or 08, the
County Administrative Officer and the Commission stated that in 03 the Sheriff was a victim because
he did not get benefit of the one year of PERS being short of vesting by one year. They opted to buy
and approved one year of PERS.

Scott Jolcover, citizen at large, property owner in Virginia City: Has been in the county for over 30
years. Congratulations to Team Storey for all the work over these 30 years. Mr. Jolcover said he
received an email containing information that is on the StoreyTeller.com website produced by Sam
Toll, stating that Mr. Jolcover has received stacks of money from the County under a lease
arrangement for the County fairgrounds. For the record, Mr. Jolcover has an interest in the

21




companies that lease the property - an equal interest in one of the corporations, a minority interest in
one of the LLC’s that is paid by the County an amount on an annual basis slightly in excess of what
these companies pay the County in property taxes. Mr. Jolcover has never taken a penny from these
corporations in wages or salary. Mr. Jolcover is personally aligned with this county when it comes to
tourism - not personally conflicted with this county. The County came to him for a place for the
fairgrounds. Over the last 30 years, the County has called on Mr. Jolcover many times to assist the
County in different situations. People know Mr. Jolcover as a giver - not a taker. Mr. Jolcover makes
his money by working hard. Revenue is earned through real estate transactions, consulting, and
hard, honest work at the mining company. Mr. Jolcover has tried to reconcile why certain
individuals - everyone has a right to free speech - tend to spend their time attacking this community
when that time can be put to use improving the community. Mr. Jolcover is aligned with tourism.
With the County’s lease on the fairgrounds - the VCTC, and the Board of Commissioners can cancel
that lease anytime with 30 day notice - get rid of the events. Mr. Jolcover purchased the property in
1993 and moved a huge amount of dirt so there was a flat spot - their company was going to put in
an RV park. Currently, Ames Construction is utilizing the property - outside the scope of the lease -
that the company voluntarily says it's good for the citizens. Mr. Jolcover states he does not believe he
has a personal conflict with Storey County and he has not received any personal enrichment from
funds from the County’s lease.

Mr. Whitten: Looking at the fairgrounds, Ames currently has so much material down there it is
amazing - at no compensation. We are working with Ames so that when the County does need to
use the fairgrounds for special events - again at no compensation (to the owners) - it will be
available.

28. ADJOURNMENT
Chairman McBride adjourned the meeting at 2:05 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

By:ﬂﬂﬂ.ﬂm
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer

22




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 20, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1. Title: Approval of the Minutes for February 20, 2018.
2. Recommended motion: Approve as submitted.
3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

4. Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.

S. Supporting Materials: See attached
6. Fiscal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:
@_ Department Head Department Name: Clerk

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:
[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2018 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL; Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, Clerk &
Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, District Attorney Anne Langer, Deputy
District Attorney Keith Loomis, Security Director Melanie Keener, Recorder Jen Chapman,
Planning Director/ Administrative Officer Austin Osborne, IT Director James Deane, Project
Manager Mike Northan, Tourism Director Deny Dotson, Outside Counsel Robert Morris,
Undersheriff Tony Dosen, Fire Marshal Martin Azevedo, Virginia City Senior Center Director
Stacey Gilbert

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for February 20, 2018
Chairman McBride stated that Item 18 will be moved to follow Item 5.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Agenda for February 20, 2018 with changes noted, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)




4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Minutes for January 2, 2018.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Minutes for January 2, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

5. CONSENT AGENDA:
I For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $714,439.06 and accounts
payable claims in the amount of $1,334,782.60.

II For possible action, approval of the cancellation of the March 6, 2018 meeting.

III For possible action, approval of the cancelation of the March 6, 2018 meeting.

IV For possible action, approval of Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures including 001 Functions, Policy, and Procedures; 002 Creating, Reviewing, and Modifying
Policies; 003 Smoking and Vaping; 004 Travel Policy; 005 Use of Public Buildings and Facilities; 006
Use of Employer Premises; 007 Facilities Maintenance and Project Assistance; 009 General
Communications; 010 Vehicle-Equipment Assignment and Use; 011Use of Private Vehicle; 012
County Vehicle Maintenance; 013 Vehicle Fuel; 015 Mailing Procedures; 016 Telephone Usage; 017
Social Media; and associated request forms.

V For possible action, approval of business licenses first reading:

A. DESERT BOILERS AND CONTROLS, INC - Contractor / 303 W. Saint Louis Ave ~ Las Vegas,
NV

B. OUTBOUND TECHNOLOGIES INC - General / 30026 Research Dr ~ New Hudson, MI

C. GEORGE & SONS, INC - Contractor / 5301 Longley Lane ~ Reno, NV

D. GREGORY R. ANDERSON, DBA: MOBILE NOTARY SVC'S - General / 785 Joel Way ~ Fallon,
NV

E. CMC TIRE INC - General / 95 Washington St ~ Spokane, WA

F. GREGORY R. CHAPEL, DBA: ONSTREET CONCESSIONS - General / 385 Freeport~ Sparks, NV
G. GILLETT CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 1226 Wigwam Pkwy ~ Henderson, NV

H. LEE'S JANITORIAL SERVICES, INC - General / 561 Keystone~ Reno, NV

I. KORBIN CONRAD, DBA: TOP DOG CARPET CLEANING - Home Bus / 210 S”0” ~ VC, NV

VI For possible action, approve renewal of Government Affairs Consulting Agreement with
Porter Group.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for February 20, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of revised county manager’s job description.

Outside Counsel Robert Morris explained that there has been quite a bit of work put into this and we
are getting towards the end. He reviewed the current revisions related to job performance. There

2




should be a policy in place that describes the process for salary increases or bonus. A section has
been added stating that it is the responsibility of the Human Resources Director to place the
performance review on the Board’s agenda.

Chairman McBride added that he appreciates all of the work that has been put in to this; the review
will now be done on an annual basis.

Vice-Chairman McGuffey stated he talked with Mr. Whitten this morning and expressed that he felt
it was good to go.

Mr. Morris addressed the policies that were reviewed during the process. The policies will be
brought forward at the next meeting for approval. There are two minor changes that he would like to
make: 1) A style change on page 2, subsection E, a clause has been added to include the Comptroller
in the budget preparation and monitoring process. An applicable policy will be developed to ensure
they are cohesive; 2) Grammatical changes have been made to the verbs.

Discussion was held regarding the appropriate weight for items that may be lifted. Commissioner
Gilman and Chairman McBride expressed that they are comfortable with the current 50 Ibs weight
limit.

Austin Osborne recommends 25 Ibs as the weight limit. This is the limit for other administrative type
positions.

Chairman McBride: In the event of a disaster, “all hands on deck” will be picking up sandbags,
barriers, etc. He feels the limit should stay at 50 Ibs.

Commissioner Gilman: Is comfortable with the 50 1b limit.
Mr. Morris asked that the job description be approved with the changes he presented.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve the County Manager’s job description, revised February 20, 2018,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

6. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Flood Damage Project Coordinator Mike Northman:
¢ Estimates for all sites have been submitted to the insurance adjustor for final approval.
¢ In contact with the foreman to finalize a schedule on all sites.
¢ The weather has delayed roof repairs - work should continue shortly.
e Mold remediation has begun at Station 72.

Virginia City Senior Center Director Stacey Gilbert
e Received a “meals on wheels” van from Douglas County

3




¢ Community Chest and the Senior Center now has a partnership with Thrive Market, and the
tirst pallet has arrived. Goods will be distributed to Lockwood, Mark Twain, and other
Community Chest locations.

* Had an audit last week by State Aging and Disability - the Senior Center is now listed as low-
risk.

Tourism Director Deny Dotson

* VCTCis unveiling a new website for Pipers and the VCTC. VCTC is working on branding for
Piper’s.

* There is a change of date for the rodeo which will now be held August 18 and 19. This year a
there will be a cattle drive as well as a mutton bustin’ tournament for kids. Sunday will be a
Hispanic style rodeo.

* Whitney Brunson has been selected as the new special events coordinator. Whitney has been
working in the Visitor Center, and is very excited for the change.

* Working on some schedule changes for the V&T Rail Commission and are looking for a
Director.

Planning Director/Administrative Officer Austin Osborne

¢ Currently in the insurance enrollment period and in negations with the help of LP Insurance,
the county’s insurance broker. Should be able to negotiate fairly and come up with an
acceptable plan.

* LP has been reviewing our union contracts to ensure we are in compliance. They have been
fabulous to work with.

* Inregards to the Zip Code issue and Lands bill, The Porter Group in Washington DC asked
Mr. Osborne to read this statement:

“The Lands Bill, complete with language and updated maps, has been sent to

staff for Senator Heller, Senator Cortez-Masto, and Congressman Amodei. We

spoke with all three offices and none of them see any real problems in getting this
moving in the near future. We are now going to work on getting both House and
Senate versions introduced at this time, likely in two weeks - since Congress is

on recess this week, of course.

Regarding the Postal Bill, we are attaching the Storey County language to the Storey
CountyLands Bill. It’s going to be offered as an amendment to Congressman Amodei
in an upcoming energy bill. No timeline for that bill has come into the fore yet though
(and it has been passed by the House Oversight and Government Reform Committee in
the Postal Service Reform Act). We'll continue to look for every available avenue.”

* The Porter team has been great in working with the County in trying to get these two bills
moving forward. The current situation is Washington right now makes it difficult to get
anything passed.

* Atitle 17 update will be coming before the board to correct a conflict under adult uses.

* AT&T has approved funding to provide service on the mono-pine in the Highlands and a
potential tower in Virginia City.

7. BOARD COMMENT (No action-No Public Comment:
Vice Chairman McGuffey:

* The 4% Ward School has received the new wishing well.

4




Chairman McBride:
¢ There was a great turn out in town to celebrate President’s Day weekend.

8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Update regarding implementation of Tyler Technologies ERP
system.

Recorder Jen Chapman and IT Director James Deane provided an overview of the implementation of
the Tyler Technologies software throughout various County Departments. Ms. Chapman reviewed
the company’s history and presence in the State. Additionally the current status, testing, issue
tracking, project objectives, and basic timelines. The project is on track to stay within the approved
budgets and hit the go-live dates.

9. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Review of the 2nd Quarter 2018 Unaudited Budget to Actual.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher reviewed the spreadsheet provided to the Board. Revenues are
trending at approximately 63%. Expenditure side is at 45%. Mr. Gallagher discussed the
departments that are over 50% in expenditures.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possible approval of the Storey County
Property Tax Rate for 2018-2019.

Mr. Gallagher explained that the County is required to furnish the Department of Taxation a letter no
later than today informing them if there are plans to change the Storey County controlled portion of
the rate. We have been looking at property reductions. It is understood if there was a reduction or
rebate, the industrial park would probably receive about 65 cents on the dollar, centrally assessed
about 22 cents on the dollar, and residents about 13 cents on the dollar. How/if this can be done is
still being researched - an exhaustive review has been done. NRS prohibits some of the ideas that
have come forward. At this time there is no good avenue for tax relief to bring to the Department of
Taxation and State Board of Equalization that they would approve. Last year approximately $45
million in property taxes were abated for the tax free zone and industrial park.

Mr. Gallagher requested that the current rate of 3.4607 percent be approved.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: With a rebate, it would be the big companies that would receive the
largest tax break. Local residents, maybe $12 to $18 per year. Other ideas are being looked at -
something will be found.

Commissioner Gilman: Disappointed. Not giving up - there are some potential ideas to look at.

Chairman McBride: As the abatements expire, there will be a lot more to deal with. There are only
four County-controlled “line items” out of nine on the tax bill. The County has no control over the
rest of the items.

Public Comment:
None




Motion: I make a motion to approve the Storey County tax rate of 3.4607 percent for the fiscal year
2018-2019, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Interlocal Agreement between Nevada
Department of Public Safety/State Fire Marshal Division and Storey County.

Fire Marshal Martin Azevedo requested this item be continued to March 20, 2018.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to continue this item to March 20, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

12. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Storey County Fire Protection District contract agreement
between Chartwell Staffing Solutions to provide temporary staff for fuels reduction.

Fire Chief Jeff Nevin stated the County has received a grant for fuels reduction to be done in the
Highlands and along Geiger Grade. This contract will cover staffing needs.

Public Comment:
Joseph Prohaska, with Chartwell Staffing: Is present to answer any questions.

Motion: I make a motion to approve the agreement between Storey County Fire Protection District
and Chartwell Staffing Solutions, and allow the Fire Chief to sign the agreement, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

14. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of contract with Morpho Trak for maintenance
and service agreement for the period of 8/17 to 8/18 for the fingerprinting at the Lockwood

substation in the amount of $2,181.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis stated this is a basic contract to keep the fingerprinting
service functioning at the Lockwood Substation.

Deputy Dosen: This contract is for the software.

Public Comment:
None




Motion: I motion to approve the maintenance and service agreement for the Morpho Trak system
and authorize the Chairman to sign, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Interlocal agreement providing the terms and conditions
for the use of Piper's Opera House by the Storey County School District and the display of historic
personal property within Pipers belonging to the School District.

Mr. Loomis: In the contract for the purchase of Pipers Opera House, there is provision stating the
School District can use Pipers for up to 30 times per year at no charge. In addition, the School District
will leave historic, personal property in Pipers for the County to display. The County did not
purchase the personal property.

Public Comment:

Nicole Barde, Storey County resident: Is there a way for them to itemize the personal property and
to clarify what is different from what the School District received when they purchased Pipers?
There is concern that items could have gone missing,

Chairman McBride: Thinks this is a good idea as personal property can be removed. When the
School District purchased Pipers, it included all of the contents. This item can be continued so that
the School District can provide an itemized list.

Mr. Loomis: The Agreement requires that the School District insure their personal property - the
County will insure the real property.

Mr. Gallagher: There needs to be an inventory regardless of who owns it - a market value needs to
be determined.

School Board President, Jeff Nevin: Some donated items were put in Pipers after the School District
took over.

Motion: I move to continue this item to March 20, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Adoption of Resolution 18-482 setting forth a procedure by
which a business may object to the adoption of a "rule" by Storey County which impacts the business.

Mr. Loomis: Under NRS chapter 237, the County is required to conduct a business impact study on
any rule adopted that may have an impact on business. The County is required to approve a process
for a business to object to adoption of a rule. The Department of Taxation is required to provide the
regulations and forms for possible approval. These forms will be available in the Clerk’s office for
any business that wishes to object to adoption of a rule.

Mr. Loomis read the Resolution No. 18-482:
Resolution: Providing for the adoption of a procedure for objecting to the enactment of

7




rules which require a business impact statement.

Whereas, NRS 237.100(4) requires that each governing body of a local government
provide a procedure for an aggrieved business to object to a rule adopted by the
governing body; and

Whereas, NRS237.100(4) further provides that once the procedure is adopted it must
be filed with the clerk of the local government and be available upon request at no
charge; and,

Whereas, The Nevada Tax Commission, upon the request of the Committee on Local
Government Finance is required to advise officers of local government regarding
procedures and forms that are required for compliance with the provisions of NRS
237.030 to 237.150, inclusive; and,

Whereas, the Nevada Tax Commission has promulgated a form of a procedure
by which an aggrieved business may object to a rule adopted by a local government; and,

Whereas, Exhibit A attached hereto sets forth a procedure by which a business may
object to a rule adopted by the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County based
upon the form of the procedure promulgated by the Nevada Tax Commission.

Now, therefore, it is hereby resolved as follows:

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County (Board) does hereby adopt
as the procedure by which a business may object to a rule adopted by the Board the
procedure set forth in the attached Exhibit A.

It is further resolved that;
The attached Exhibit A be filed with the Clerk of Storey County and be made available

upon request without charge.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve the adoption of Resolution18-482 and authorize the Chairman to sign,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Business Licenses Second Readings:

Community Development recommended approval of all items A. through AA.

Public Comment:
None




Motion: Imove to approve Items A. through AA, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

20. PUBLIC COMMENT:

Louise Pena, River District resident: Reported that she has taken on the new endeavor of being the
field representative for the RSVP. She is asking for the board’s support. Ms. Pena acknowledged the
passing of Lockwood resident, Jim Kittrell.

21. ADJOURNMENT
Chairman McBride adjourned the meeting at 12:02 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

By:ﬁcﬂu&@@xl
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting dafe: March 20,2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1. Title: For possible action, Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $1,104,300.09
and accounts payable claims in the amount of $926,752.20.
2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.
3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969
4. Staff Summary: Attached.
S. Supporting Materials: See attached
6. Fiscal Impact: 0
7. Legal review required: No
8. Reviewed by:
— Department Head Department Name: Treasurer
< “M)_-€ounty Manager Other Agency Review:
9. Board Action:
Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




YTANSTIAL

YITTIOULIWOD

YINOISSIWWOD YIANOISSTIRKWOD NYWAIVHO

B —

iSIQUOTSSTWWO) FO pieog Ajunod A810315 ayy Aq paaoxddy

06°681°'S8BE :p9sangsTg Te30l
zz°'8ZE’'8BE $I1030NpaQ 03 I3FSur] IISN [PIOL
Z€° L8991 ;91714 dog x1Q uo pidFX spea sakordwy TeloL
¥y ce8’L9C :3180dag 30917 99kotrdug TR0l
Z1° 216 :8)0ayD oskotdug TeloL
€T 69V 'ST :S)YDayD Iojonpag TeIoL
L9°096°SY ‘§d1dd 103 I9jysuell I9sn TeIOL
Junouy @9hed # paa # aa
/% duz  /y28ud
6 8 L 9 S % € T 1 :sdnoxp Troakeq
81/81/Z0 :93eq pua-porisg 81/€Z/Z0 :93ed oayd Tetnbay :adAl 1y1o1deq
AYVNINITI™G I93sTHay yoayd BE:LTITT BT/1IZ/20 :uny
S abeg WILSAS TTIONAVd ALNNOD AFYOLS Y0IS0¥d :3day




YINOISSIWWOD

ATANSYIAL

YATTOALAWOD

YANOISSIWWOD NYWAIVHD

81/61/20

AYYNTIWITIAG

4

abegq

:93eQ PUS-POTIAIL

I93s1bey Yooyd
WALSAS TTIOYAVd AINNOD AHAOLS

:sI8UOTSSTWWOD JO pieog Ajuno) Aaxo3s 9yl Aq poaoxddy

6L €E88'% rpesangs1g
ve"10¢ :I030NpPdg 03 I2Jsuril 198N
00" :91Td dag 1Td uo piazxX speg skorduzm
00" :3tsodag 109a1g 9skorduy
S9°'¥69°¢ :s30ay) oakorduy
00" 1SYD8YD I03onpag
08°LB6 :5d1dd 107 I9Jsuei] I9asn
Junowy saked # peq

/# duz

z :sdnoin TTOIAR4
81/9Z/20 :®3eQ }d23yd Tetoads :adA1 T10xleg

TeloLn

1305
Te3oL
Telor
Te30L
Te30L

Te3loL

# aa
/323ud

8T:L0:ST 8T/92/20 :uny
Y0TS0dd :adsy



JITINSVHAL

YATTOALIWOD

YINOISSTIIWHWOD YANOISSIWNOD NYWAIVHD

FSI2UOTSSTWWO) JO paeod Ajuno) Aaxols ayy Aq pasozddy

9T L¥8 'THT 18309YD I030MpP3Qg TeIOL
00" ‘SdLdd I0F a93Fsuri] IdSN TRIOL
Junowy o3ded # poa # aa
/# duz  /soeyp
8T/S0/€0 :93ed ¥yO3UD Io3onpag :odAy troxkeq
TYNIL 293sT1bay yo8yp

0T:8S:ZT 8T/50/€0 :uny

4 abeag WHLSAS TIOJAVd ALNNOD AFTIAOLS ¥Y01S0¥d :3dey




AYYNINWITI™G

4

abeg

YINOISSTIWWOD

YAANSYIAL

YITIOALIWOD

YANOISSTIWWOD

NYWIIVHD

FSIJUCTSSTWWO) JO paeod Ajunop A9a03s ayl LAq pasoiddy

66°28€°99

00"

Jjunowy

8T/S0/€0 :8®3ed Yo8ud

a93s8Tbsy 3dayd
WILSAS TIOJYAYd ALNNOD XFYOLS

{S308YD I1030NpPag 1eI0L

$8d1dd I0J I9Fsuei] 95 [eIOL

29ked # pPaa # aa
/# dwg /yoeyd

ao3onpaq :adAy Troiled

92:6S:¢T 81/S0/€0 :und
V0150dd :3dey




YTANSVIAAL

YITIOYLANOD

YAINOISSIWWOD YANOISSTWWOD NYWIIVYHD

iSI9UOTSSTUNO) JO preog Ajuno) Aa103s 8yl Aq pasoxddy

$Z°966°S0S :pAsaINgsSTg Te3oL
9€°€16°'T¥H $1030NnpaQ ©3 I8Isueal I3Sn TeIOL
LT°89Z°9T :911d dag 1TQ uo paozx spag sekordum Tejor
2e 9¢68'z8Z 131sodag 3o091Ta @9Kkordwd TejO0lL
21216 :s308yD 93kotdwg Tejolr
8V 9T6 €ETT $S)09Y) I03onpag Te3ol
08°680°0S $§didd 103 I93suel] I9s) TeJOL
Junowy 99ked 4 pea # aa

/# dwy  /yos8yd

6 8 L 9 S§ % € T 1 :sdnoan [1oakeq

8T/¥0/€0 :23eQ pua-poTaad 81/60/£0 :93eq 0aud Ternbay :adAl T1oaked
AYYNIWITHEd I33sTBOy dByD TEO0SET 8T/L0/€0 :uny
S abeg WILSAS TTOYAVA ALNNOD AFAOLS vY0150dd :3doy




T

00°0TT
0S° LY
LE TOY
00°0€€E
Tz°626'1
00°00T
297902
88°96¥%
06" L6T
00°20%°2
0S°6S
CT°LZ
6E°V6¢
8C2°€60°1
S€°082
00°00S'%
S9°9¢1
00°'%¥0’9
00°919
TYIOL
ADIHD
abedq

00°0TT
0S° LY
LE'TOY
0s-zz
0S°L0€
12°626'1
00°00T

99°1¥%T
96°€9

887967
0S° L6l
00°zov'z
05765

ci Le
6E°V6€
BZ €60°T

00 €V
¥8°LL
v8°LL
2s° 0T
85871
LL™8

08" €T

00°00S‘%

96°LOT
69°82

00°0Te
00°%1s
00°8TT'T
00°%10’2
00° 08
00°6T9
00°00T
00°002
00°61S

00°9T9

LNOOWY

[4:34%]
9vvES
vsves

T€S€ES8
TeS€E8

£35€8
8¥se8

6LYES
6LYES

8LYVES
Lv¥ES
LLvES
055¢8
[421%:]
£55€8
voses

svves
Svves
svves
¢SS¢E8
28s¢8
(433}
255¢e8

voves

155¢€8
15%¢€8

92s¢8
9Z5¢€8
92Z5¢e8
9Z9¢€8
92Zs¢e8
92s€8
92s¢8
9Zs€8
6LGEB

955¢€8

#SNVIL

81/91/2
81/91/¢
81/91/¢2

81/91/2
81/91/2

81/91/2
81/91/¢2

8T/91/2
81/91/2

8T/91/2
81/91/¢
8T/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/¢
81/91/¢2
81/91/2

8T/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/Z
81/91/2

81/91/¢

81/91/¢2
81/91/z

81/91/2
81/91/¢
8T/91/2
81/91/¢2
8T/91/2
8T/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/¢2
81/9T/2

81/91/¢

dLYa

81/91/2

¥IVAEE ADOT TIVL
A3 JI¥DITdANdg

ZLa HYI4

81/L/T OL 81/S2/1

LINANOD AALNED ¥YIVd

SYIAQD SSHIULVK
OOdWVYHS HELVWNI

SHILNGI YOI SYHIAWYD
JANVI HILYON ¥LM

A¥ELIVE SYFISTOH STANVH
SWJ04 00ST

SEDIAYAS HONFAFTANODHTHL
TYDISXHA ZIT3ds

FDIAYIAS ANVIO™d

HO
dOHS
dOHS

A¥ANOVYT ¥L IS
AYANAYT SL LS
AYANNVYT ZL LS
AYANNYT TL IS

LOELO¥d JaMmis

SAIT4dNS SWA
SAITdANS SWH

SW¥I4 IDI4 ‘HOVINYNVA‘X¥OL
dDEY SAYHINSYINUL 'NOIDITIOD
SNOILAWAXE ‘ONILSOD dodd
SIISSY aIXIA’1IDHANE ‘vad
SASNADIT ¥ONVIT
ONILAIFDTY ANY ONIXHANI
SASNADIT SSANISNg

L¥0ddNS ATHLNOW

SWALI 13900d ATHLNOW

EDVTAAY dWNd JLYSNIAANOD

# 0/4 NOILAI¥DSHA 3FDIOANI

AILSIOAY ADHHD
ALNOOD ATMOLS

NANIAOIAWI TVHIANTD NOANYD 8£CT6
ONI SIEDJIAYAS T-TIVD LEZTE

JAV¥S ¥ SSVID ‘MDO0T M ® D 9€216
ONI H¥Id S.NOIdNg SeZle

SIMET LIODS ‘T1d¥dng veEZTe

ONI ‘DINIDATE SOOIV €ECT6
NATOCL AINLIHM ‘Qxog [4 X AR

ONI ANYAWOD YANIVE €0dg €216
*d°1 ‘SEYOLS AN€ Lszd 0€CTE
(ONTN) S0Td SHIVALIVE 62216
ONI ‘ASI¥d¥AINT NOXY 82216

alT INFWAOTIATA SAV LZZ16

IA¥ES FONFYHANODITAL IRLV 92216
SSANTTIM ANV HITVAH DAY SZ216
dT INVAOYd SVYOHIAANY veeie

ONI 0DS1IV €2216

OTT ADOLSWOD T1¥ [42x A

ONI NDN SVOAIY 12216

ONI SWALSAS V.IVA JIDNVAQY 02216
d HI¥13d ‘NMO¥d 6TCT6
YOANFA YAEWON

ADEHD

81/ST/20 : 93eg uny
SIETEd :ON 3Jxoday




S0°991

08°80T

09°1¥%1°S
00°006°T

00°80%

vETSLE
00°0¥%2
00°0¢
£9°6€T
€€°502
00°2z02
2Z°S6t’S
0Z° &S

TV.LOL
ADEHD

z abeg

LE0€

¥c' 98

8T°S¢

86°1T

£€6°29
29°s2
¥8°6CT
0T 9¢
16202
gz-9zt
S9°¥TT
£€9°%2
89°18
0z '1¢
€2°12T
86° €T

91°S¢
Sv 12
v0°8C
§9°0¢
Le-es
91" S¢
LT TET
-08°9%
-CCT E1E
2s°9

65°8

S0°991

S6°S¢
s8°e8

09°T%1’S
00°006'T
00°02T
00°2¢t1
00°9ST
LAN-TA
00°0%2
00°0L
€9°6¢€T
£€°502
00°zoZ
2T S6E’'S
0Z°S§9

LNNOWY

05%€8
osves
0sves
0sves
057€E8
osves
osves
0s5v€8
0sveEs
0sves
osves
0SveES
0sves
osves
osveg
0sves
osves
osves
0sves
0sves
0syes
0sves
0sves
0SvEs
0sves
0sSves
0sves

SBvES

€LSE8
LBYVES

z95¢8
9%S€8
98v¢E8
98vES
98V ES
vLS€E8
§57¢€8
6€EVER
(342 %]
s05¢€8
8%7vE8
vvves
8%€8

#SNVAL

8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/9T/2
81/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/z
81/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/2

8T/91/2

81/91/2
81/91/¢

81/91/¢
81/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/¢
8T/91/¢
8T/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/¢
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/¢
81/91/2

HLYa

81/91/¢

LTId4 ¥IV SO%9SdOHS
FENT AVEAD SO0Y9SAOHS
LI¥ 3Aavig 21229 OS
LIAA¥Y TINd 6LZES SIWWOD
aQvd IS0d ¥0999Md

JAVTE HSVIdS 906Z€H¥IL
JEgNT /1I74/71V3S

AD0LS HOIA¥IS

aN3 qOd HIL 00099 0OS
OUD HAOD ADNUL NIV Md
¥HD FAOD $6L09FWIA
JYALTIL AIV 8V669TUIA
aoy¥ IIL £€2099 0§

HIAVA TE€8LY OS

g0H Z€8LY9 OS

Jd30 LZ669Md

2122908

g0 S¥S9eMd

LIIId TINA L6TTEHUIA
L1Id /39NT $ZZ9SAAIA
YOSNAD ZT1€9S0S

avd ISO0d 09¥LSOS
YOSNIS 09¥%LSOS

LVE HdVL D713

dWNd 73N LT

LI1d 3104 TLL JFIA
INVTOOD L6TTEAVIL

SLoo"

TYLNIY OZH
SNE/TIVL DAS YFLVM

TIYISNI JILNID V.IVQd

III/II 1SISSY NIWAV FIId
@I00D INIAZ DHAS S¥YAJI
DEJSNI ONQTINE AZA WWOD

996-T0892T AN/AAA WId-OWI
YIAYID Md

S3Ed L¥N03 9ONYA 0D ATAOLS
S3IT4dNS dIV LS¥Id
SLONAOYd ¥WAJVA

LI0ddNS HOWVYNW

LINAWHTUDY FAIIVIIAIOOD ddd

AIAMEAS /JTLYM

NOILAI¥DSEA FDIOANI

YALSIDAY ADHHD
ALNNOD AZYOLS

ONI X7d4dNS OINY LIOITIA

dAIAvYa ‘miIna

ONI ¥SN SHOIYd
SNOTLVYDINNWNOD AYMNOD

QIVHDIA ‘TTINNOD

(DA) FTTIDINOMHD MDOLSWOD
TOS INWONW WND0d HLATAWOD
ONI HIIL DWD

YTANSYIUL NOSUVD 40 ALID
¢ "ON NOILVIOdN0D SVYINID
AT1ddNS AAVIINVS TVALNID
ONI ATTASVD

g0¥d HTINIANL ALID NOSAVD

JOaNIA

81/S1/20
S1€14dd

15216

05216

6%CT6
8%2Te

LyC16

9¥Z16
S¥Z16
vvZie
£v216
Z¥216
1vZTle
ove1ie
6€CT6
YIEWON
ADEHO

i 93eg uny
iON 3xoday




€

00°80€£°0T

00°0Z% 1T

SZ'698°S

CLTSLY

0% 9LT

0€°Z8L 08

00°0LS

S6°90¢€

$6°610°1

TYLOL
JADEHD

obeg

86°19Z'T
¥1°SS6
LB S6L

00°02L'9
00°80Z°2
00°08€°T

00°02%’1T

SE°¥¥9
[4 %244
SL"L96
¥8°00%
¥8°00¥
€8°06L
01°9%9
€L 0TV
T 40) 4
€ETTLT
80°8LZ
£C2°S0¥

00°88¢
2L L8

0% 9.1

05°258°TT
L8°9SZ°¥9
05 egst’s

00°5¢9

€V 098’1

00°0€S°T

-00°009°6

00-sLe’‘z

00°0c¢e

00°0LS

cL 162
-00°S6T
€C'01¢

29°9¢
£9°%¢C
8%°S6
el Le
-88°¥09
9V ¥9
16" 16
65°8

ve' s

09°8T
09°'8T
09°8T1

LNOOWY

8S¥€E8
85v¢8
857¢e8

(4345}
Zsves
00s¢es8

LoYvES

v8vEs
v8ves
£9ve8
£9ves
£Sves
£5ve8
£5v¢E8
£Sves
SSS€E8
§9S¢E8
§59¢E8
555¢€8

95v¢€8
957€8

15v¢e8

£rveS
£vves
£vves
[4°34 %]
ZSveER
£vves
£vves
£€vves
£vves

99%¢€8

60G€E8
605€8
veves

osves
0sves
0svEeS
0sve8
0sves
0S¥E8
0S¥vE8
0sves
osves
osves
osveR
0S¥v€E8

#SNIL

81/91/¢C
81/91/2
81/91/2

81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2

81/91/2

81/91/¢
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/¢
81T/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/¢2
8T/91/¢

81/91/2
81/91/2

81/91/¢

81/91/¢
81/91/2
81/91/2
8t1/91/2
81/9T/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/2
8T/9T/2

81/91/2

81/91/¢
81/91/2
81/91/2

8T1/91/C
8T/91/2
8T/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/¢
81/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/¢2
81/91/2
81/91/2

CAR (e

81/91/2

S4IA T¥1 DFA0SY IAL
SdId €6T DHA 622 IUL
SHIA 99T DdY 98T M1

dTAT - ¥YDEETST
FDIAA0 WWOD/TIVLSNI

ANVd0dd
ANYAOdd

LNVTId ¥IM

ad TIOL 00T

dy¥ TIOL 001
ISNOHIAINOD

ANVd0¥d T00d

O5MT

ANVdOdd 2ZLT 1S

HIDNIAISHY 2L 1S

INVd0dd 1L LS

ANYd0dd %L LIS

dve /M EMOX
MD0LS SAYOod

SHEAQTD

SLIdE ® SNV'Id NDISIA %09
130d4dNs NY[L ‘INJEQVOdd
1sANDEY VIVA ADUINE AN

011ddS HO
LNIWIAQIANI SAVOY DA
dWAV SYIAVT SID 9T# ASVL

0STT6 Z/Z UNVY $€0T6 61/1

LOT dAVLS ZO0ZEVE NAY
OV Ad DHEY

ISTANI TYONNA/KIAANS ONIAA

Savd NOILVITINEIJAdd
LITEAD
Savd gqIv

AOLVNLOY 21229 OS
LNIWITE 8¥669ddIA
DYYHD HYO0D Savod
YOSNIS 09%LS OS
LITEAD

LTId SNYEL SO0%9SdOHS
LINA ¥OLOW Z12290S
LNVTO0O 9062¢ d¥IA
dWYT L6TTE HUIA
NYATO dFAVIE JAUId
NV3ETD advid JdIg
NYATD IAVdd SAvOd

NOILAI¥DSHIA ADIOANI

YILSIODAY XDHHD
ALNNOD AFYOLS

WNIATOALAd LIAS/ALVD NITTIOD 09216
'V QIVMAE ‘ONIAAVID 6SCT6
HOONI IV ® ONILVAH LIFTA 8SCT6
d1 SYOTTI¥ddA LSZT6
ONI SHSTJdYALNA NOSNDIHI 95216
ANVAWOD TYNILSVYL §59216
ONTYHINIONH LSIM YAV ¥SCl6
0D % DNILSILTVINIWNOAIANA €82716
TOS TYDIAIW 1OIdSUANA (AT A4

|

YOANHA ATEWAN

MOEHD

8T/ST/20 : @3eqg uny
STETEd :ON 3xodsy




LT LY ZLYvES 81/91/¢2 HOLIMS 9062€ ddId

6T %2 ZLYEB 81/91/2 NOILONAOL 0LBELIUIA
6E°TE cLves 81/91/¢ HSINONILXA FATIA LZ669Md
o711 ddr 0LzZie
ST EP8°€T T11°059 89S¢8 81/91/¢ JANNYOS DHLOA
89°599°9 895¢t8 8T/91/2 SASNADIT YIAYIS DILOA
0S°S0T 895¢8 81/91/2 QYOO ¥IMOJd
895901 895¢8 81/91/¢ SYFLSHL HTAVYDO MYOMLAN
LT 69¢ 89GER 8T/91/¢C OISIA DNoa
80°¥58'¥ 895¢8 8T/91/2 SESNADIT TIVMWA
z8 z18’1 895¢8 81/91/¢ HOLIMS ¥HIINADVIVA
SE°LBE 895¢8 81/91/¢ dSNEDIT FDIA40 OIDA
SE° LBt 895¢€8 8T/91/¢C ASNADIT FDOIAJ0 DJHLOA
SE°LBE 895€8 81/91/2 dSNADIT EDIAJA0 DHNOd
SETLBE 895¢€8 81/91/¢2 ASNIDIT IDIAJ0 ¥d
S€°L8E 895€8 81/91/¢C dSNIOIT dD0Id440 dNSMO0T
00" LL 895€8 8T/91/¢C d7dY0 dSN DE10A
£€°L8T 895¢€8 81/91/2 ADATULAVD YIANOL SLIS
SS90 89G€8 8T1/91/2 dJ¥OV HOIAYAS ¥HINID Yi¥d
€2°796'2 89S5¢E8 81/91/2 0ODSID DdLOA
SS YOV 89S¢E8 gr/9t/z LNIWITADY HDIAYIS OFIOA
oL 06L 895¢€8 81/91/¢ ASNADIT LVEOdDV AFOAY
62°9¥%9 895€8 81/91/2 SADATALAVD ¥INOL SL IS
00°00T - B89g€e8 81/91/¢C SETEY0 HOLVd dILNIDVIVA
S¥"vs9 89s¢e8 81/91/¢C ASNADIT AHAVES VLINTOVIVA
9€° 981 895€8 81/91/2 ASNADIT 0T SMOONIM DIDA
OTT d0dN0S T.LI 69216
2Z veEL Yv9eT SLYES gr/9t/e Z/1 dTIOSNOD NIF JadHS
vvroel SLYES 81/91/2 NOIINILAA+Z/T NIF JEYHS
veE 197 SLSES 81/91/2 81/2 DIS WId ANNOLS/LYTIN
NI 1DW O4NI NIVINNOW NOJI 89216 :
1% 91¢ oL"6T vS5€E8 8T/91/2 HI1L ITAVD
TIL796C vsses 8T/91/2 SYALAWILIAW SHAYId MVSDIC
dOIA¥YAS LIAAYD LO4d3A HWOH L3216
8T 697 81697 63vE8 81/91/¢ SLIA LSAL dOTHD dI¥A
QLT INIVW TIDOVd ATddNS dH 99216
88°¥IL’T PYTLSE'T 6G7€ER 81/91/2 Savoy
Py LSE’T 65S%¢E8 81/91/2 Savoda
ai1 ‘IVH S9216
00°000°S 00°000°S [oh:2°2 %] 81/91/¢ NODVYM HSUVHAH NID WHD
Ya¥ENg "3 dONYOIN 79¢16
9T " ¥00'1T £€€°809 LSSES 81/91/2 HIMOL A¥dd ANO4G
00°0¥% TZS¢es 81/91/2 SEILITILN
£8°46S¢ TZSE8 81/91/¢C INEY AVdd aNOd
OTT SLNIWLSHANI dID €9216
00" St 00°S¢E 2LS€E8 81/91/2 LS3d NID
S3d ¥ JLIWJAL NISVE LVIYD 2916
€0°2ST’1 6L°S6 LSVES 81/91/2 YISNALSIA
857161 LSVES 8T/91/2 YIASNYELSIA
6L°S6 LSPES 81/91/¢ HIASNHdSTIA
6L°56 LSYES8 81/91/2 UIASNIJSIA
25" L82 LSVES 8T/91/¢C dNSSIL
$8°599 LSVESB 81/91/2 AdVL dTEVT
S6°99 LSVES 8T/91/2 HONO4 13ASVYD
9L729¢C LShES 8T/91/2 HOLIMS LIWIT
YADNIVHED 19¢16
66°210°¢€
TYLOL LNNOWY H#SNAL JLva # 0/4d NOILAI¥OSHA dDIOANT YOANIA HIENNN
ADEHD ADEHD
81/91/2 ¥IALSIOHIAY NDEHD 8T/ST/20 @ 23eq uny

2 abeg ALNNOD AHAOLS STETEd :ON 3xoday




S

LZ ¥SS‘V

90°¢2T

I8 96T

v 6c

vL SOL

T0°086°T1

0S° €2

ZT6TL'9

ST 6€6°9

00°00S’¥¢E

00°TTIE’Z

00°50¢
00°SES
00°00T
0S°L80°€E
00°'STT ¥
6% L9T

TY.LOL
ADFHO

obeg

00°00T
LZ ¥SS’'VY

00°LE
90°98

S6°SL
95721
$8°88
96° L
676

T0°086°1T

05791

00" L

LL Y9V'T
67 6111
L6°292'1
v 61v'T
8¥ ZSV'1T
SZ°6£6°9

00°00S5‘%
00°000°0€

09°28

05 T€T
0L 60¢€
€9°C6T
LS P6S‘T
00°50¢€
00°SES
00°00T
05°L80°€E
00°STIT’V
YL Y9

LNNOWY

9LSES
£8vEs

o6ve8
(13231

1LS¢e8
26v€8
08¥eEd
08veER
08vES

20s¢8

0LSES
85¢8
€EveES
09ves
675€8
09s¢e8
66%€8

Seves

2ESES
ZESES

99s¢8
995¢€8
995¢€8
995¢8
995¢8
TLvES

805€8
805¢8

65S€8
655¢8
6S5€8
65S¢E8
655¢8
¥8s¢€8
SPSeEs
LYSES
89v¢e8
9EvES
ZLYES

H#SNVAL

81/91/¢
81/91/¢2

81/91/2
81/91/2

81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/¢
81/91/2

81/91/2

81/91/2
81/91/¢
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/¢
81/91/2

81/91/2

81/91/2
81/91/2

81/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/¢
8T/91/¢C
8T/91/¢C

81/91/2
8T/91/2

81/91/2
8T/91/2
8T/91/2
8T/91/2
8T/91/2
8T/%1/¢
8T/91/¢C
81/91/¢2
81/91/¢
81/91/¢
8T/91/¢

aLiva

8T/91/2

YILYM AAVONYL

JAO0LS dDIAYES
dANd d1nd /IAIM

SYIvday

S¥YD ® HDIAA0 ¥04 SAIA
JSOA ONIFRNTA

SAIX

LILVE 2d €

LA¥LS 2122905

SUEANAYH

YATTOULAWOD TT6000S# LSND
SdITddNS IDIJJ0

HNSSIL ‘¥EAvd

SdITddNS dDIA40
Sd17440S

HOLVW INVYD ddH OVKWS
8T/L/C OL 81/s2/1
HILNAWOD VSSHENVA
YILNAWOD dNSAD01
JIILNAWOD V¥SHAAL

HILNAWOD DILOA
YALNAWOD DNoa

JANVE ITIHD
dXd ITIHD

SIITddNS SKA
SHITddNS SWA
SIITddNS SKWA
SdITddNS SWA
SdITddNS SWA
XI¥LVAN dWOD Q0D HAIA

LOHSATHNOYL YHLSVWIANI

DNIDNVNIS THAEA DIWONODH
¥L20S LDOVY
YOLVTANI HHIIL

NOILdI¥DSHA ADIOANI

YALSIOFE ADAHO
ALNOOD AFYOLS

YIATIOALAWOD AAN

SANNOYD *® HATE NIWAV A3N

SI¥Yd NMONIL ¥ OLAY ¥WdVYN

dNTVA d0dL ESONOH ANNOW

0D ¥OLOW THOH THYHDINW

NI SNOILNTOS dOIAJ0 OULIW

ONI DOSSV 3 NATAD NAATIW

NOISNVW AYADYNW

ONI SHI¥OLVIOHYT ¥NW

YATIOULAWOD 0D NOXT

OTT SINIAT INTE AINOIT

ONI LSISSV-FJIT

II "d TIVHSYVH ‘NOSAYI

® ONIdWNTId SN¥dd ¥ 1

S HLIZA ‘NOsdnr

01T dNo¥d ONILTINSNOD WNL

SAS OHAIA 0OIUNY NOSIFIIAL

JOANIA

81/s1/20
STETEd

LBZ16

98216

S8Z16

v8216

£8216

28216

8216

08216

6LCT6

8LZT6

LLTTE

9LZ16
SLZT6
vLZi6
€L216
cLTTE
TL216
YHEWON
JADHHD

ajeq uny
:ON 3jxodey




00°SLE 9LV ES 81/91/2 asvd

007005 9LVES 8T/91/2 YIQAW TYID0S/NOILYIZY dand
00°008 9LYES 8T1/91/2 YIQIW TYIDOS/NOILVIFE €nd
ONI SIIDALVALS aAvd LOETE
66°0T0°T 66°020°T Z15¢8 81/91/2 ANIHOVW ¥0d IHYLSOd
¥IMOd FSYHOANG 90€16
66°600°'C €0°€00°C TESEB 8T/91/¢ I ‘¥DI¥av
969 PESER 81/91/2 T ‘quvod
INIWHYILEY ATdWI OITdnd SO0ETE
00°s2¢ 00° 5L L0SER 81/91/2 AV OL €34 ¥OLINOW WIVTY
00°S¢L ZS€E8 81/91/2 DINYd TL 1S
00°5¢L j24:12:] 8T/9t/¢ DONI¥OLINOW INL
ONI SEDIAZA NOILDIALOAd Y0ET6
L6°06T'T L6°06T'T [442%:] 8T/91/2 ¥FALIVAD Qi€
(VET) TVEOTD SEIMOE AANLIA €0ET6
00°8€ 00°8¢€ €ESER 81/91/¢ 81/L/Z2 O1L 8T/SZ/T
d OTIONY ‘INIMLAd ZOET6
09°€€9 09°€€9 0tTS5¢€8 81/91/¢2 auvog1IIg
| D71 VIAAW INO¥ALNO TOET6
| 82°20S 82°20§S S9v€E8 81/91/¢2 qDI440 NYATO
W DTT ‘LOdHd ¥I¥d ALISII0 00€T6
05 %82 05" %8¢ v9s5¢e8 81/91/¢2 TYDISAHd QdA MATANYHD
HINED HIIVEH TYNOILYANDDO 66216
S8 v6L $6°S9 Y6vES 8T/91/2 TIO ¥VHD S0%9S HDIAUIS
z8°82 Y6vES 8T/91/2 LTII4 SNY¥IL S0¥9SHDIAYIS
ET €1 Y6vES 8T/91/2 DN1Td UIV ADOLS ADIAUIS
86°GS YEVES 81/91/2 SOP9SEADIANIAS JIAOD IVIS
00°2¢ P6¥ER 81/91/2 WOO'T H¥IM OLBELHAVIL
66°8T 76¥€8 8T1/91/2 ainTd FAOWS ADOLS IDIANIS
66 % P6vES 81/91/2 AD0LS HIIAMAS
00°SLS TEVER 8T/91/¢ HOVIW HMOWS XDO0LS IDIAUIS
SASTYAMAINT OLAY ATTIFH.0 86216
09°9€1 09°9€T 6TS€EB 81/91/¢ AV¥AS MOVTIH OJIJdAViL
DT ONILINSNOD NOIJON L6216
Zv° 565 Z¥° 565 196€8 81/91/2 ANNAEY AMYINNTOA
HIVOIAAW NYIAIAON 96C16
00°SLT 00°SLT 695€8 8t/9t1/e TMNY dIHSYEWW YdAN
YddN S6216
LS TOE LS TOE LTSES 8T/9T/¢ NOISSIWWOD ONINNYId
ONI VINNOAITYD J0 TILXIN 6216
00°8TL 00°8TL ovbes 8t/91/¢ QaLOFTIOD SHAA
ONI HDIANAS TYDAT VAVAIN £6216
00°0% 00°0% LLSEB 81/91/2
ATANSYIAL AHN Z6216
SLLL8'T SLLL8 T €LYES 81/91/¢ OW-dY¥A-8TAdS WIOANY
AT ‘SEDUNOSHA NYWAH AIN 16216
0§°959°9 0579599 vLVES 81/91/2 €0-DS-MDYU-BTAJS
SEDUNOSEY NYWOH AEN 06216
ST TIS0'T SZ°1S0°T 88¥%£8 8T/91/2 ANNO¥ONOVE ¥ LININJUAONIA
ALZAYS DITENd IdEA AAN 68216
00° LSS 00°LSS 154251 81/91/¢ Sddd =DYOAIA
MITIONLANOD AAN 88216
LT ¥¥%S'8 L9 TPS’S 9L5¢€8 81/9T/2
0S°2%0°'1 9LSES 81/91/¢ saad
00°09L 9L5€8 81/91/¢2 s
00°00T 9LGES 8T/91/2¢
IVLOL LNOOWY #SNYIL aivad # 0/4d NOILJI¥DISHEA HDIOANI "OANIA YAGWAN
ADHIHD MDHHD
8T/91/2 WHLSIDAL MDIHD 8T/ST/2Z0 : 93eg uny

9 abed ALNNOD AHAOLS STETEd ‘ON 3xodey




69°8CT 1¥5€E8 81/91/2
TL 9%T 8 A1 %] 8T/91/2
6L°8ST 152°1%1 81/91/2
09°%6T 8TS¢E8 81/91/¢ YILYM DIDA
6S°82T v5¢8 81/91/2
WALSAS ¥HIVM 0D IS LZETE
$0°555°08¢2 ¥0°555'08¢2 LEVES 81/91/2 QIATIDHY XV.I ALIIJONd
IDI¥LSIA TOOHDS 0D 1S 92¢€Te6
00°006°'% 00°00T‘2 L9SEB 8T/91/¢ SYIV4dET TLA
0070082 L9G€EB 81/91/2 SUIVAEN ZLA
SMYOM DITdnd 0D 1S SZET6
£1°2¢¢E6 £€1°2¢6 0Zses 81/91/2 DNITIIE AJVNNYL
ONI SHOIANIAS ALITILN €4S 243N
0z 9Lv’T 08°0S9°'T £15¢8 81/91/2 NID AdHIIIWID
0%-GZs8 £19¢8 8T/91/2 NID AYHELIWID
S ® ANIM SHEZVID NITHLAOS £ZET6
11768 TT 68 1TS¢E8 8T1/91/2 SNOILATIOSTId HALVWNI
AFINID DNAA ® d00Jd SHLIKWS ZZET6
00 %¥9% 00°0¢ T9%€8 8T/91/2 NDIS ONIN¥vVd
00" v¥¥ 19%€8  81/9T/2 NOIS HONVMINA dWHL ‘NIETD
¥ad OTT1 SATELSAANI ADIfIS TZET6
00°0ST 007081 £eves 8T/91/2¢ 51004
SHWNYL ‘SNOWIS 0ZETE
00°06L'L 00°06L"L 6€5E8 8T/91/2 8T ‘TI€ 1INL -L1 ‘T Snv
SWHLSAS TOUINOD VIIIIS 6TETE
0S°91 0§°9T GESES 8T/91/¢ 81/L/2 OL 81/S52/1
NITIV NVI1dd ‘AYOHS 8TICT6
00"211 00°9S Zebveg 81/31/2 ATIN FLVHWNT
00°9S Zeves 81/91/2 ATIN SLVANI
ONI SUOLNIIVLSIA NIAVWAIHS LTETE
£E"98T'¥ 08°96 i A4 3%:] 8T/91/¢ INAWNIOUNYN ADNIADYIWA
00°89 44 1%’ 81/91/2 dOr 2960-L%8
0S°€88°¢ ¥roes 81/91/2 SNOILVDINNWWOD-ZI%9-252
£0°8€1 vroesg 8T/91/¢ DIDOA 00SL-LP8
ONI SHDIA¥IS TVYdOoTID D4S 9T€16
1€’ TE" 0B8SES8 81/91/¢ JITTOALANWOD
dT NI SEDIA¥AS TVdOID D™S STETE
00°L0OC 0oo-LoZ §5949¢8 81/91/¢ SHITAANS SWA
ONI 0ODddanid PTETE
00°00S 00 008§ T0S€8 8T/91/¢ IDVILS0d
LNNODOV JAYISTY ETETE
00°09 00709 919¢8 81/91/2 dNANACY TWaNY FIVL Snd
AMOLTW¥AL HOHVI ONIY ZIET6
z9°%e 29 ve 16¥€8  8T1/91/Z INIVd TIVD
I¥VW INIVd ONIM TTET6
£€L°992 €L°992 STSE8 81/91/2 dLMM
ONT ‘dsSnd=y 0TET6
LS 00T Te° st 8SSER 81/91/¢ NONVD Sd0SS3SSV
Y1 2L 855¢€8 81/91/¢ NONYD TL IS
CT°€T 859¢€E8 8T/91/2 NONVYD qOOMIDOT
(¥2) ONI OD NVOIOW AVd 60€T6
SY 9vE St 9ve S69¢€8 81/91/2 ADIAJ0 SMUATD Y04 TVINAA
211 dOVdS qIdvyd BOETE
00°SL%’9 0070002 9LYE8 8T/91/2 DIAN TTYIDOS
0070002 oLYES 81/91/2 WOdd VIQEW DOS ‘I'INSNOD
00°008 aLvesg 81/91/2 VIQEW TVIDOS/NOILYTIAY dnd
TYLOL INNOWY #SNVIL qLYa # 0o/4d NOIILJATIOSHEA dOIOANI HOANIA UHLGNWNN
ADAHD MDHEHD
8T1/91/2 WALSIDAN ADHIHD 8T/S1/20 : o3eq uny
L  9beg ALNNOD AF™OLS S1€1gd :oN 3xodsy




8

09°80T

00°08Z°1
00 €€y

00-"tve‘e

00°000°'S
6%'GSL'T
Y0TSTE

00°0€9

T19°T¥%¢

T€°89S'S

TZ Lsv’e

05°88
00°20%

00" 2LV

00°'00Ss°‘2
0S5 L¥%2Z

LE E60°'E

TYLOL
ADHHD

obeq

09°8S
00°09

00°08z't
00" €€P

00°08
00'L91°2

00°000°S
6% SSL T
v0°'S1¢€

00°082
00°0S€

0T" 06
T15°15¢C

T€°89S’S
€S°BLY T
89°8L6 T
05°88
00°20%

00" vz
00°8v%

00°00Ss°2
0s°Lve

20798
96" vE
Z8°99
6S°82T
L8'1Z¢€
ZSLTT

oeses
0gseEs

625¢8
BEVER

£vaes
£vS€E8

ZBSES
8E£GES
867¢8

8LGES
8LSEB

82s¢€8
825€R

£05€8

LZS5¢e8
Leses

[441%]
1 A%1%]

9€5€8
9€5¢E8

oLves
20s¢e8

815€E8
vses
1%ses
ivses
vs¢€8
1vses
vses
15473 %]
Tv5¢e8
152°3%:]
8 41%:]
I¥s¢€s8
£29¢€8
1%s€8
TvS€E8
%s¢€8
15 4°3%:]

#SNVAL

81/91/2
81/91/2

81/91/2
81/91/2

81/91/¢
81/91/2

81/91/¢
81/91/2C
81/91/¢

8T/91/2
81/91/2

mW\mﬁ\N
8T/91/2

81/91/2

81/91/¢
8T/91/2

81/91/¢
81/91/2

81/91/2
81/91/2

8T/91/2
81/91/2

81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/¢
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/¢
8T/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/¢
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2

dLYa

81/91/2

# 0/d

YALSIDEY MO
ALNNOD AHYOLS

AVAL INVND
YOAITOD ‘IV.LOL

OILd3ES HD
ST6°9LT SUN ONILSHIL ¥NA

NOZHONNT FAILVISIODAT
SEDIA¥AS LSIXEEOT

SNOILVTAY JOHVYT ASAIAAY
SV’ IIAdAL /ANYS HSYM

AT FDNIATAT ¥YOd SHLOL

d¥I- N¥dad SOLT
S/M- N¥Fd SOLT

Z00LTAD AMHDVZ

SHIA 002 93¥9 €5V
SAIA 02Z 99 009

AD0LS 11004

YILNID YOLISIA NI SA00d

8T/L/Z 01 81/S2/1

SLSIL OdAT

YELYM 1OdHd HO

IS8 D zLe

ddLVM SHAJI

NOILAIYDSHEA FDIOANI

HHD

0D A7ddNS VAVAIN NJYALSHM YveETSE
gYT TYINIWNOAIANT NYALSHAM €VETE
VEA AS JNVL DILAHS SYILVM [42313)
YAYAEN ‘AINNOD FOHSYM 1v€le
SELYIDOSSY ¥ YANTUM 0vETE

NOSVL ‘TIAYHNYA 6€ETE

ONI ‘MD0d 1 % A BEETE

ANITN LEETE

ONI ‘SHIDOTONHOHL HFTAL 9€€T6
INZNIACUANI TVIENAD IWL SEET6
‘MTEA  ONOYLSWEY ‘ TYANYOHL vEETE
OTT WNATOYLAL SYWOHL EEETE
S10Nd0dd 1004 YOI¥AANS CEETE
ONI ‘SNOILVDITEAd ITHENNS TEETe
SHSI¥AYILNE AYHAd NS 0EETE
FSS0d 4d3ar ALNNOD AHYOLS 6216
ONI DOSSV ® QY¥NV.LS 8ZET6
YOUNIA UITNNN

JADHHD

81/51/20 : @23eQ uny
ST€TEd :ON 3xodey




€L°65€°CE9

8€°590'8

TVIOL
JADHHD

6 abeg

TV.LOL SAD3HD
8T°0%¥S’s
SL9T6L

-85°16€'6

LNNOWY

LESES 81/91/¢ S AXW AD0LS
LESES 81/91/%2 SINXW XD0LS
LESES 81/91/¢ S NXW MDOLS
HSNYAL HIYA # 0/d NOILAI¥DSAA HDIOANI

81/91/2 ¥WALSIDAA NDHHD
ALNNOD AHIOLS

AOANIA HIGHAN
MDFHD

81/ST/20 : @3eg uny

ST€TEd :*ON 3x0dey



YANOISSIIWHWOD

81/91/2 EIVA ADIHD

IVLOL SMDHHD

NOILVZI¥OHLAY ANV MEIARY 40 INIWIDATTMONMDY




T

TVILOL
qQiavod

obeg

TZ 101
9v'8

6z 1L

L6°68C

00°00L°T
9¥%°S¢
€T°2¢
6L"9g¢C
00°€¢t6
SL°¥S

L6 0VL
18°9¢€c
0S° €€
00°SLE
LL EET
92°98

8Z LEE'T
S6°6¢€

88°SL
00" L
00-98
6V L
00°L
00°0s
16" 1T
Zr Sel

LNOOWY

Icet
TCeT
T2ET
8TET
8TET
STET
8TET
8TET
L2ST
¥ZET
1440
vZeET
vZET
VeEeT
veel
¥Zel
¥ZET
YZET
SZE1
SZET
8TET
8TET
8T€T
8TET
8TET
STET
STET
STET
STET
STET
6TET
6TET
STET
S2st
SZST
€TET
€CET
€CET
TZET
PIET
(4420
vZeET
vZET
YZET
VIET
vZET
9TET
SZST
SCST
SEST
LZST
8TET
8TET
TC€T
12ET

#SNYIL

81/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/9T/2
8T/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/2
8T/9T/2
8T/91/2
81/91/¢
81/91/2
8T/9T/2
8T/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/¢
81/91/2
81/91/¢
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/¢
81/91/2
81/91/¢2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/¢2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/2

JILYa

dDV.LS0d

ADVLSOd ONITIIHE HAIA
HDYLS0d

O¥d 444 DH [W HL O7T Md
INIWISYI ALITILN 90 Md
dLIYAVS

NANLIY A0 FDVYLSOd

00 HOHSYM NOILISOdAd

T4V ATOL HLY SIAADIL
J1OA TIYMAAIA 93M
ONILIEW HDNAT

YALSIDAY dNANNOY TVINA
¥AMOd SAAAId

FJIAYES EANOHd S¥AAId
SYAJId YILSNA YAHLVIAI
INIMI NIMAYN NID WHD
gI8 IAVIVd

/TE€/T SULLT AONVSIAN €
/0E/T S¥ILT IDNVSINN T
TYMVNAHLIM ONVT dIIN
TYMVEAHLIIM ANYT JLLIN
AN 1LATD INIWIAVIIIL

WL IJdID INIWNIAVIAEL
MY €N SHNOVId AWVN
AYALLYE ‘YIAAYT-SAAdId
YHIVEH HDVY4S -dOHS

€' TITHM HIANIED-YALVM
MALXAL MDOHA SAIATD-NOMW
FATYEOW ¥Ad HONAD MAVd
0Z°89€ =gX 1I1dSs
0Z°89€ =zX LITdS
HQ‘d1‘'dar’Hg’M-4ANOD
TANS EIONITYIANOD WAA
TANS HONITYIINOD WAQ
SHAX0d 915 d¥W TYATHDYUY
TAd ONAL J0¥d ZANILIVA
TI0¥ YHAVd ¥AINI¥d dTA
ALITIEVLIISYH vdD
SEJOTIANT

SUALLET FDNVSINN

A IN3AE 71dS 81 3 WANLH
av INZAT TMYED TIAEG
OFAIA YALHONVA ATHLVA
aood HALVANI OONIM

OMAL ANHQ ¥OA HSYM JYO
A 40 ALID HdA ONINAYL
HYLS D § ZLE ~IANMILNI
89229 Xd HSVM AVD

NID QOOMADOT -IIANATINT

NOMNA ¥O0d4 HSYM dV¥D
JIVOTATINAD YHA
INIVIW ©Q1d

INIVW JITIVAL HMDA

NOILdI¥DSaa

JALSIDIE dIYD IASYHIAN

AINNOD AFIOLS

8TL0Z0 SdsSn TTISSNY
819020 SdSn I71dSSNA
8T0ET0 SASN TTASSNN
X04 dHL Md

S.rd Md

LOdE3d AWOH-S¥IMOd
SMYYS §4SN AW
ONINYYd ONHY MW
dIOIdQ X009 HTANM
OD "ONILNIdALANOIL ai
JLISHIM I¥NDNS ad
NOIHSYJ 470 SAFY ad
WST¥NOL AN a4
ADYINT AN aXx

L31Y ax

NOZVWY ax

NOZVWY a3

NOZWWY a3

QITATIYIAD S4SN SO
QITAILIAD SdS0 Se
THLOH HVYAZIW WL

L9# ALIVD NEQTOD WL
IGYSYM 40

ISUNN ONILISIA 40
Sd00T¥D-¥YHOLOgd 40
aH-HA43L

dH-HAJFL

dH -HJ444dr

JH -H4J30

YIZILTIV -HALID
10ddd #1440 ar
LOd3d dADIAA0 AL
YMIAN-MNOSYL

dONOL TINd -SIIVND O
¥HYd TN -SILAND°C
EPETTSZH ANI
0T69ST# ANI
Zy8S06T " " "# ANI
NOZVIWY WWI¥D

g ‘YANIAVD
SANYV.LS/ATEIL
A00d3AdVI

A00dADVI

10049dovd

1 ‘NISod

0LV FDILSHEId aa
ATATANYD
LLY-NIAIN®D

N¥HL ANS -NIAIN'D
LLY -NIAAN'D
dI0Ido 3008 oIanv
SSFAAXE NYHLI JANS OV
I¥DH OV

10d3q IWOH SNINAY
10430 FWOH SNINAV
LNIWAVA

# IDIOANI IdIJ-ANOI

QYD TYIDAANWOD HANO STTAM
JOUNIA

8T/S1/20
Ls08¥SHd

621

FHEWON

od
3jeq uny
:oN 210day




A
YEINOISSIWWOD
YANOISS IWWOD
NYWIIVHD
YHANSVIAL
¥ATTOALIWOD
qLYa NOILVZI¥OHLAV ONV MAIATY 40 INIWIDCITMONIOY
TP €8L €T - +TeI0L pPIeD«
TP €8LET
88°96 6TET 81/91/2 IS 9NS AOOMID0T 00SE0I6MANLNDS
00°LET'T 6TET 81/91/2 - ¥HLEIA HOLVASIA SEJSE0I6IATLNDS
00°60¢€ 6TET 81/9T/2  ONINIVYL HIXOTIWA LI 856962
00°6%T 61€T 8T/91/2  ONINIVIL FIAOTAWI LT LSEBYLIZ-0C
¥6°6S€ 6TET 8T1/91/2 ¥dTAL SIIVDIIILNED 'ISS 0662680921
TL°€2 6TET 81/91/2 M00H ONINIVML HIAOTAWH  LZBEC6L-$OLSLBO-TTT
86°650°T 6TET 8T/91/¢ ILIANOD ¥IV ¥ALNADVIVA LLLS69FEE009LTYAZT
67" €85 6TET 81/91/2 ADOLS II 216580
00°20% 0ZET 81/91/Z 86688T SHE/LIWNEd TO0d HLITVEH AIQ AN/SNOVEM
$5°S vZEeT 8T/91/2 HOVLSOd sdsn
66 1€ 1ZEeT 81/91/2 HOVLSOd HIOLS SdN AAHOSN
¥0°2¥ 6TET 8T/91/2 WYMANIY ANOHA MOVLDIOVH EYS6VILLSL
86 L TZET 81/91/¢2 S€1Ng IHOIT TL3 SAMOT NASWOHL
90° 1S TZET 81/91/2 SHITAdNS ONILVNHALO SAMOT NASWOH.L
06°62 PZET 81/91/Z (QYYOE ¥OA SHLVId TWYN ANOZ QIVMY Al
00°0S STET 8T/91/2 WIEWIW SSOUD -0TE£950S OLNY OMYNN-V.LLAAAS
TYLOL INNOWY H#SNVAL IV NOILAT¥DSAA # @DIOANI 1dEd-aNnd YOANIA ATLWAN
aQavd od
¥ILSIDAY qIVD FSVHOING 81/ST/20 : 23eqg uny
Z 9beq ALNOOD AZNOLS 1S08%S€d :ON 3i10dsy




00°000°9

00°000°9

Te3jol
23uD

1 obeg

ALVa

00°000°9

Junouwy

AINIOLLY LDIMLSIA

NOILVZI¥OHINV ANV MIIAZY A0 INAWIDATTMONIDY

Te30L s3dayd

0Z 81/91/2 SHDIA¥IS TUYNOISSIIONA €-0S8-8T
017 dNO¥H ¥HILIOA
#I9yonoa a3eg uotydraosag soToAUT aopuap
81/91/2 SY08YD DTUOI}DSTT IOJ 19381699 8T/ST/20
ALNNOD AFYOLS HDO8€ETHA

61

Taquny
Xo8yD

: 93eQg uny

*ON 3jaoday




YEINOISSIWWOD

JLva NOILVZI¥OHLOVY ANV MIIAZY A0 INAWIDAITMONIDY

00°000°S TYLOL SADHHD AEIAL

8T/91/2 00°000°S od ‘dNO¥D MY TAOOW SteETe
OILVTAY ¥47 FSYAAAY S%d TIAVHNYA NOSYL 00°000°S S€89 8T0C

NOILAI¥DSAA #EDIOANI  FIVAd  IVIOL LNNOWY HWYN JOUNIA #AYODZEW AVHA HIEWNN

MADHEHD  MDIAHD TYOSId MDOHIHD &

JILSIOTA SADIHD AIdAL 8T/91/20 : @3eqg uny

T abeq AILNNOD XFUOLS 06£1dd :ON- 3x0day




69°599
%909
95°9%2
Zv'6

0g 92
15902
69552
00°88%
09°6%2
LL™SST
86°6TL

00°5%
60°62T
00°6S6

TYLOL
aqavod

LNOOWY

T obeg

LZET
LTET
LZET
LTET
9ZET
92¢eT
€EET
€EET
€EET
9€ET
TEET
€EET
€EET
TEET
9€ET
VEET
VEET
PEET
PEET
veet
6CET
62ET
SEET
SEET
92Z¢1
9Z¢tT
92¢€T
92¢T
92T
82¢T
CEET
CEET
CEET
CEET
CEET
CEET
TEET
TEET
EEET
VEET
PEET
VEET
82ST
9¢€eT
VEET
PEET
PEET
LEET
€EET
0EET
SEET
SEET
€EET
82ST
9EET

#SNVAL

81/Z0/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
8T/20/€
81/20/¢€
81/20/¢
81/20/¢€
8T/20/¢€
81/20/¢
81/20/€
81/20/¢€
81/20/¢
8T/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢€
81/20/¢
8T/20/€
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢€
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
8T/20/¢
81/20/€
81/20/¢€
81/20/¢€
8T1/20/¢€
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
8T/20/¢€
81/20/¢
81/2Z0/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/€
81/20/¢
81/20/¢€
81/20/¢
8T1/20/¢€
8T/20/€
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
8T/20/¢€
81/20/¢€
8T1/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/€
81/20/¢
81/20/€
81/20/¢
81/20/€

dLvd

VW dDVIS0d

LINN HOVAOLS NOSNVWD
SYAININ¥d ATAWOD

WIL ONINIVIL ODSID
NOILVTINSNI ¥ALAW JILVYM
OAL FDIAYHS WOA STOOL
YNIWAS H¥I4 TYDIALDITH
UNIWHS FdId TYDINIDITH
SALT FDNVSINN

HIVY 1¥T1d JOYLIS0d
QISYNEWIAL Fd TTI

33 MAN'XFTHSY A04 ¥SAQ
SSYID WY¥XHE SNVYId Say
NOLONIIIA

HYdONOL S¥D

¥D NOOTYS AANVD ANIL-A
IND IISIA ¥O4d S4Nd NIL
ONILITW

AIISEAM ANDALISIA

NOY¥ DF¥ dNANNOA TVINY
AV Ad SAYAMOTI AHLVAWAS
AV SYEMOTA AHIVIWAS
IOH ANOD ISW AONIDIAWI
NOL HONYHANOD WA -Tand
SAX0L YIAMAS

SATOHSHYHL VYAV DSMT
¥00d SSVIDIYIAIL OS
SLEMOVYE TOALWOD
SHIIT4dNS D % €
IXEINSIXAT 61/82/2-81/€
STT0¥ ¥YAdYd dAININd
WAVHD Ad INAWISANGWITH
JFINIYG dALAVAY

STT0Y 1a9v

YHLNINd I4IEDHY NOSAH
YAINIAd TYWITHL
AISYNEWIAL T
QASANIWIHY HE TTIIM-ION
SSYID NEQ SEDUYHD TI0L
OHAIA SL1I¥IAS

avy 1IA3A

0IAIA a%d

HIVWNI av0T avD OONIM
OI4d0 ® NEHDLIN SIHODIT
TTIAVE YOI SNND

OLW I3A

IODV X0d 13A

SWYOd S60T

SSVYID dSNI HQi1d sdy

4 MAYd ONINIVEL SNSNAD
HNOHd HIITIILVS

IOH dNOD IOW ADNADWIWH
HSYM dVD

INOSAW ¥OSAN OL SVD ¥
FIVMAYYH ¥ITIVIL HMDA

NOILAI¥DSHEA

YHLSTIDAY QAVD HASYHOAN

ALNNOD ATAOLS

8%¥2L0

vLZ930

€88900

9SELEDOO

YILIYAS "1

YLLIYAS "L
ANYNTA/SINAY.LS
SANIVLS

SANIV.LS

dsdn T7Issny

-CLLTIN YO ¥VD TYINTY
AOYNHA

anN¥NIA

qDANC Ad JESINEWIAY
NO¥ATHD HONOTTINOOW
LADAVL ax

dHHD 1S SSATINIVLIS aX
3SNOH ONILSVOY¥ ax
WOD "¥HLSIDAY ax
WSTINOL AN aX
SEDIA¥ES 1LAID 411 dAr
LSTYOTA SAYVYLS 4L
NNIAVJITOH-SILIND L
TINA-SIIAND " £
NYWIOH *

NVWTIOH -~

NYWTIOH -~

mhhRhb

NVIWTIOH
INIVWWLIYADS 899E€ZSNI
6C20LS80# ANI
NIFYEAH# ANI
SP0LSS8" " '# ANI
TSZ88I9L " '# ANI
TvZ086% " '# ANI
T00TO0ZZ " "# ANI
TIIM-LOIN 304 TILOH
YIANOD LN ¥O4 TaANA
SENIVLS/QTEId
A00gHIVA

A008dOYd

A008dDVA

082§ - NIsoa

LOdEA FWOH S NOXIA
SNYWIJOdS aa

dSNOH ODNILSVO¥ ad
WOD "X0d ad

L10d3d ADIAJ0 MD
SILEND

a¥0aa3d dTIIINYD
LSOdYOA-NIAIN D
NNIAVJITOH-NIAZN D

OQIAATZY

0SDS - OYONILNV
10d3d AWOH SNINAY
LNIWAVYA

# HDIOANI 1d4dd-gNNd

QIYD IVIDUAWWOD ANO STTEM 0€T
¥OANIA AIEWON
od
8T/10/€0 : @3eQg uny .
LS08¥Sdd :oN 3axoday



ZL°8€0°9T

ZL°8€0°91T
89°98
§S°S0T
6L°96
L6°06
26°58
00°0¢L
00°S01
9Z° 952

TYLOL LNNOWVY

aQivd
4 abeg

JLYd

YHANOISSTWRWOD

NOILVZINOHINY ANV MAIARY J40 INIWIOAITMONMNOY

LEET
LCET
LZET
LZET
LTET
LZET
82T
LZET

H#SNVIL

81/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
8T/20/¢
8T/z0/¢
81/20/¢
8T/20/¢€
8T1/20/¢

ALYA

T8d 2D20A

TSA AIAWOD

TSd °90S dOOMMDOT

I8a OSDA

180 ¥L1S

H4NATY DAY

TWY SENA YVYAN 8102
INIWAINOA SDOIHAVED ¥a

NOILAI¥DSHA

YALSIDAN O¥VD FSYHOANG

ALNNOD AZAOLS

dSUMZOA6MANLSYS
INAMZOA6MANLSYS
YE60Z0D6MANLANS
IN66COTEMANLIYS
D9T6Z0T6MANLDYES
TO-$IBETT-0SE
TE08TT

CEBT6E0

# HDIOANI

+TB30L pIeda

LdAJ-aNRg JOANIA YIHWNN
od

81/10/€0 : @3eq uny |

1S08¥Sdd :ON 3xoday



€€ 2ZET SS9€8  81/20/¢ T3Y WWOD 668%S¥T1086
0€"LL 9TLES 81/20/¢ 0T €34 - TIT NuC
057902 9TLESB 81/20/¢ 0T N¥L - T1 D3d
T0° 0% z99¢€8 81/2Z0/¢ 8T/C IAIM LV099TT086 ANI
dIHSHEANLIVA 0ODTTED S9€16
00°G9 0059 9719€8 8T/20/¢ MWA 40018 DISNANOL
VIH TYNOIDHTY FOHVI NOSHUVD ¥9€16
08°090'T 08°090°T 8%9€8 81/20/¢ SLINLS ADT009T
SYALIOATT TOLIAVD €9€T6
Z6'€z¢ z6-gee vz9€8 81/20/¢ QASYNESIA INAWHS IN¥YD
TYNOISSIAONd 3 SSEANISNE Z9€16
00°9%T°1 00°18 189€8 81/20/¢ 81/12/2 OL 81/8/2
00°590°T 189¢€8 81/20/¢ 81/12/2 OL 81/8/2
SIMIT LIODS ‘TII¥dng 19€16
09°591 09°691 985¢€8 8T/20/¢ HD ¥Ood s€1Ind aaa
NYWE1ng 09€T16
0009 00709 059€8 81/20/¢ NOILVILSINIWAY DITand
a TT1ISSNY ' NOANVEd 6SET6
€ 6S6 60" 78 ST9€ES 8T1/20/¢ S$AD0744ND
09°8S8 ST9€8 81/20/¢ STVANYS /SNIVHDATTAL /SNOYT
59°91 SI9€8 81/20/¢ SAIDVINY
ONI ANVAWOD ¥3NMVE €09 8S€16
00°SLE 00" GLE 60LEB 8T/20/¢ d¥dd N¥NE FAId FAL-HLIWS
DOWL LSETE
00" %SE‘TT 00" %SE’TT Y09€8  8T1/20/¢€ LHDISYAAO dOTAAZA WWOD
35S ONILIASNOD NMOd HTLIVE 95€16
L8°0TT L8°0TT LLIES 81/20/¢ X Qvdl
OTT II ALITIEOW IRLY SG€T6
00°002 00°002 099¢€8 81/20/¢€ VHINVIWYS ‘ T90L ’ UNVL
AAN J0 DOSSY §,d0SS3ASSY YSET6
BE'ESY 8€°€S¥ £99€8 81/20/¢ ULND LISIA Y04 SHO0H
ONI ONIHSITENd VIAVONY £SET6
82 ' VEL 88°00T $T9¢€8 81/20/¢ 2D IYDIAEW
88°00T YI9€8 8T/20/¢ 9D IYOIQHEKW
887001 pI9€8 81/20/¢ S TYOIQHNW
9 TEY L89€E8 81/20/¢ TYDISAHA ZAHONVS
SSENTTIM ANV HITVAH DAY 412143
00°08T 00°081 S0LES 81/20/¢€ ADIA¥ES ONIVIAMSNY IA
ONI ‘ISIMAIMSNY T1SET6
8% 28 8% vZ8 LS9E8  8T/20/¢€ JLDA INVIOUd
dT INVdOYd SYOHIATWY 0S€T6
S£°25¢C 00" €% €6S€8  8T/Z0/¢ NANIT HD
¥8°LL £65¢8 81/20/¢€ dOHS
P8 LL €65€8 81/20/¢ dOHS
ZS°0T 989¢8 81/20/¢ X4ANAYT aMiDT LS
86702 989¢€8 81/20/¢ A¥ANNYT T¥L IS
LL°8 989€8  81/z0/¢ A¥ANNYT SH IS
08" €1 989¢8 81/20/¢ X4ANOYT DA 1S
ONI ODS'IV 6VETE
T¥°65S 9L°00¢€ 869€8 8T/Z0/¢
§9°8SsZ 119€8  8T/20/¢ Ad0D A3 FDIANEIS
ONI D07 ANIJTY 8YET6
S0°0LE S0°0LE Z69€8 81/20/¢ TTYWES dD 62TZT00T LIIODS
INAWAINDE TATd ¥VISTIV LYETE
00°SL0°T 00°SL0°'T 509¢8 81/20/¢ Ld3d 3¥Id DS
arT ‘AIZNIADOVA ‘NOSITIV 9¥ET6
TYLOL LINNOWY #SNYAL 2LVA # 0/d NOILAI¥ISAA FADIOANI FOANTA HIGHON
MDEHD MDFHD
8T/20/¢ WIALSIOTA MDIHD 81/T0/€0 : 33eg uny
T abed ALNQOD AFAOLS STETEd :ON 3aoday




LT°959'% LoLES
oerzgs’'e 8T°L8Z vL9¢€8
TL 89V ‘T 089¢8
T1°sSL £€9¢8
0€ %L 80LES
09°6% SL"6 LT9¢E8
S8°6¢ 689¢€8
00°S¥%T 00°S¥T 629¢8
TS 0SE‘€ET 8T 'S%¥T'9 STLES
€€°902¢L otTLES
00°0%2°1 00°08S 0T9¢€8
00°099 019¢€8
88 €0L 6T 9L 885€8
¥9°121 884¢€8
8€°10T 88G€8
S9°PIT 885¢8
6Z°16 885¢8
89°28T 885€8
¥0°'€9 88G€8
ZL"S9 885¢€8
-Ev-6v 88S€E8
-S1°6L 885¢8
L8°ST 885€8
00°00s‘e 00°00s‘2 669¢8
00°¥%92 00°¥9¢ 929¢8
00 LLE'T 00°¥%0¢2 829¢8
0o0-zLe 879¢8
00°€ST 8Z9¢8
05°8LT 829¢8
00 0%E 8Z9¢8
0s°622 8z9¢8
66 °6%L FT 66 6VL VT L0O9€E8
¥¥ 9062 08-szsg L85¢8
00°08 L8SE8
80°0LL LBSES
00°1TS L8SEB
95 6TL L8S€E8
00°000°S€E 00°000°S€E 0€9¢8
9T 12T 9T 121 [43%:21-]
67°0L8°T 6V LLY L69¢t8
69°8EY S69¢€8
LT 86F §59¢8
IYLOL INNOWY #SNVIL
ADEHD
z sbeg

81/20/€

81/20/€
81/20/¢€
81/20/¢€
81/20/¢

81/20/¢
81/z0/¢

81/20/¢€

81/20/¢
81/20/¢

81/20/¢€
81/20/€

81/20/¢€
81/20/¢
81/20/¢€
8T/20/¢€
8T/20/€
8T/20/¢€
81/20/¢
8T/20/€
8T1/20/¢€
81/20/¢€
8T1/20/¢€

8T/20/¢€
81/20/¢€

81/20/¢€
81/20/¢
81/20/¢€
8T/20/¢€
81/20/¢€
81/20/¢

8T1/20/¢€
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
8T/Z0/¢€
81/20/¢
8T/20/¢€
8T/20/¢
8T/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
qLVA

81/20/¢€

AFAWOD ‘@ TI0L 01T
ANVdO¥d $.¥IJId
ANVdOdd TIVC

2a7d ONINIVYL

TIVL ¥04d SATYALLYE
JIL 37149Y0

ATITHSANIM ZE€8L9OS

81/%2/¢ ILNOANE NONVD
8T/€1/20 1NOANA NONYD

ONITAWYS/AHANNS SOLSHESY
ONITIWYS /XIAUNS SOLSHAISY

SLIM A -S20990S

80H SZ0990S
UANIVLIAA/LIOE $1Z2290S
DYVYHD JY0OD 0TE9SOS
WSY Id4Id ¥1Z290S

ao¥ dIL $12Zs0S
¥YILTIA FdNT SAVOAL
LT3d A 'XITINd S20990S
STIAIHM dILYOD -dOHS
SYOSNAS -09%LSOS
S7IVAS TIO SOP9SANIS

LNIWAVd IDOWVILNOD 934
LNIWAVAdEANO

Z8Z-81 @MIO
9LZ-8T Q¥0
6L2-8T d10
8LZ-8T1 Q¥0
08Z-81 Qd0
T8Z-81T a¥O

ddNS WYIDOAd B8T0Z HOAYW
896699HATI

INFWNDITY $Z20990S

SEYIL 0066908

SHYIL S20990S

MOId 06619Md

L¥0ddNs Z»1 1Ldad
STAMOLYIdYd ANV 4L TIVL
fog- s

AZQ WWOD ZZ6L0ST086
AWATO TZ6L0STO86

NOILAI¥DSHA HDIOANI

YILSIDIAY ADFHO
ALNNOD AHAOLS

ITI HOAH ‘YHHOVTIVO

dT SYDTTRYYIL

ANYAWOD TYNELSVL

ONI SSV¥ID 1S8Vd

NI TVIDATWWOD MNNVHIIAR

00 2 ONILSHLIVININNOAIANA

ONI A1ddNS 0OINY LIOIT1F
T AANYD ‘NVDNNA

ONI DIDOTHAOD

(DA) ETDINONHD MDOLSWOD

ONI LSAHD ALINNWWOD

ONI JYIL DWD
JHANSVYIANL NOSUVD J0 XLID

A1ddNS AVYLINVYS TVHINID

JOANIA

81/T10/€0
STETEd

6LETE

8LETE

LLETE

9LETE

SLET6

PLETE

€LETE
CLETE

TLETE

0LETE

69tT6

89¢tT6
L9ET6

99¢T6

YIGWON
MDHEHD

93eq uny

tON 3zoday

5



€€°8T

01°580'T

05°29¢
00°002°T
ve'ege
00°00S

89°'Z0T'¥Y

¥Z 95T

05°2Z8

vS veYvT

96 °SL
vy LSE'T

€V ZTPT L

00°sZ¢€

0S°LZ¥

LELOO'Z

L3 T6€E'C

LT°959'%
TY.LOL
JADHHD

€ abeg

00°86T
00009

£€°8T
65 €
TIS°620°1
00°2s
05°29¢
00°002°1T
ve €€
00° 009
0Z°v¥89
08°8SL
¢0°'¥6S
95°¢€8¢
0T"2Z88°1

90°T%1T
8T°ST

05°28

LE PP’V
L1°08Z°01

96°SL
Py LSE'T

00°TLO'T
€V TLO'Y

00°59

00°SET
05°¢262

90°8¢T
LY €€0'1
2E° 505
257 0¢€¢

L0"SSS

Z9°¥LS
86 192 T

LNNOWY

Z89¢€8
159¢8

9¢£9¢€8

969¢8
S69¢8
S69¢8

L6SER
z0Les8
T€9€8
809¢8

£v9€8
£€v9¢8
£v9€e8
£€v9¢es
£79¢8

965¢€8
96G€8

(44 2%:]

0¥s¢e8
0%9¢e8

svoeg
S65€8

TTLE8
TTLES

169¢8
169¢€8
169¢8
169¢8
265¢€8

viLES
vILES

v6ses
v6SE8
veses
v6s€E8

06s€8

06s€8
065€8

#SNVAL

8T1/20/¢€
81T/20/¢

81/z0/¢

81/20/¢€
81/20/¢
81/z0/¢

81/20/¢
81/z0/¢
81/20/¢
8T/c0/¢

81/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢€
8T/20/¢
81/20/¢

81/z0/¢
81/20/¢

81/z0/¢

8t1/20/¢
81/z0/¢€

81/z0/¢
81/20/¢

81/20/¢
81/z0/¢

81/20/¢
81/z0/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢

81/20/¢
81/20/¢

81/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢

81/z0/¢

81/20/¢
81/20/¢

JLva

81/20/¢

81/Tz/z OL 81/8/¢Z
1ISOddd SNYIL - QHAON dIMm

FAIT HIIILIA

S3ITddNS SWHE
SAITadNS SW3
STITA4NS SWA

LOHSITANOWL JALSVWIANI
LTINSNOD ONA

ANAN dWY'T LE6TTEIUIA
YHOIAA0 HITIVAH B8TOZ HOUVW

AYOLNIANT ¥YIAYW TAEVT
SYIANNYDS LINHWNDOQ
LNIDVIVJ YOLDOALOYd HTLYD
SATEYD ¥IMOd YILOAAWOD
ADVAUIINT MAOMLAN DHLOA

JSOH JITOVYJAH TL-1HAIA
ONITANOD 0L8€ELIYIA

HDIA¥ES LANYIINI ZLLS

SAV0o¥ €S000-T¥06009T
€S000-T%06009T

279¥YL 30IA40 LI
dT0D0 Savod

SEDIANAS DNILNNODDV
€34/NYL L0dId LOW/LODY

TO¥LNOD ISHd NOIIVLIS DA
TOYINOD LSHd SANYIHODIH
TOULNOD 1S3d TOOMIDOT
TOYLINOD LSHd I¥L
ATIALIVND -DSMT

S¥$ X S¥H €
S¥$ X S¥H §°9

WIL/QY0D NOIINILXE ¥AMHS
SdI1ddns

YIAWWYTIS HD

YIWWYIS HO

0LT TSA TL D39 @M1

LL S71A 00Z TINA -I¥L
TvT TSA 0S¥y TINQ -I¥L

NOILdI¥DSHEd IDIOANI

YALSIDHAY ADHHD
ALNNOD AFYOLS

NOISNVW AWADVNW

FATT TYNOILYN NTOINIT

ONI ILSISSV-HAIT

? ONIGWNTd SA¥Ad ¥ 1

W JT0S ¥L ¥¥Od T HLIAINNAN
J2T1 440

OddW NYNNITOW O SHWYD

01T d2dNOS TLI

A¥ES TYIVLSNANI DITNWAAAH

ONI ONVEQVO¥H 10dS LOH

HLTYEH NMOLAWOH
AOIA¥ES LIAHEAD 1043A TWOH

all ‘LYH

LNT0S SSANISNE AN ¥TLVIAD

S3d ® HLINJIAL NISVE LVAAD

WOL ‘A¥IESNVED

YIDONIVED

WNITO¥LAd 1AS/ILVD NIAATOD
HOANIA

8T/10/€0
STeTad

L6ETE

96¢€T16

S6€T6
vecle
£€6€T6
26tT6

16¢€T6

06€T6

68¢ET6

88ET6

LBETE
98¢tT6

SBET6

¥8ET6

€BET6

¢8ET6

IBETE

08€16

ATEWON

ADAHD
: 33eg uny
{ON 3xoday

\



05°2%9°t 007021
00°SET
00-s2¢2
0S° %901
00°86

00°S¥% 00" SV

00" %ST 00°2ST
00°¢

SL°882 SL° 882

00" 00T 00°00T

T9°0€T 86°09
1’6
€8°0¢€
L €
¥6°s¢

08 891 -50°891
60°8¢
00°8¢
€T1°0¢€
9€°€0T
0S"€ET
96°1
06°1

66°CT12C 66°C1C

0¥ 8c€’g ov gec’e
0L 6SL 0L 6SL
00°008°¢€ 00°008°¢€

SE°€d 6€°8T
96°¥%Z

L8°T9L 0g"9
9L'6C
LL"C6
1e° €2
Q€ 1IST
05°SL
€6°28¢€

L9°999'T L9°999°1

060-0LZ 007012
00°09

05°S18 0S°LT

TYLOL LNNOWY

ADHEHD

2 abeg

ZLotes
€L9€8
SLs€8
8TLES
859¢8

0L9¢€8

£89¢€8
£89€8

£09€8
259¢8

vSs9¢€8
¥59¢e8
¥59¢8
959¢8
959¢8

865¢€8
86S€8
865€8
865¢€8
86s¢€8
869¢8
86G€8
86S5€8

899¢8
Zvotes
[X4°1%:]
6¥9€8

999¢€8
999¢8

8L9€E8
8L9¢€8
8T9€8
069€8
9L9€8
9L9¢€8
699¢€8

609€8

T0LES
10LE8

z89¢8

H#SNVAL

8T/20/¢
81/z0/¢
81/20/¢€
8T/T0/€
81/20/¢

81/20/¢

gr/zo/¢
g1/zo/¢c

8T1/20/¢€
81/z0/¢

81/zo/¢
8T/20/¢€
81/20/¢€
g1r/zo/¢
81/20/¢

81/20/¢
g1/eo/¢
8T/T0/€
81/20/¢€
81/20/¢€
81/20/¢
81/z0/¢
81/20/¢

gr/2o0/¢
81/z0/¢
8t/z0/¢
8T1/20/€

81/20/¢€
81/20/¢

81/20/¢
8T/z0/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
81/20/¢
8T/20/¢€
81/Z0/€

81/z0/¢

81/20/€
81/zo/¢

81/20/¢€

JLVA

81/zZ0/¢

HO ONINOLINOW WYVIV FJYId
SMYOM DITENd ONIAOLINOW
AIVAIE X¥ALIVE SL IS adds
HOLIMS dN-aTOH/OIAIA HDL
SHTYILIYE WYY

81/1z/2 OL 81/8/%2
81/1z/2 oL 81/8/%2

HOVA SL°€ @ LL

A¥d X0 DNVHD avy0d11Ig
SAWVYT JS3a

SNId SYIATOS IFIIA
UATINT ITY0S

SHI¥ILLVYE JAd SNId

LIQEID S20990S
WOOT FIYIM 0L8ELANIA

WOOT HAIM 066TI9Md
LTd8 A ODUIW S20990S
N3 aOd dIL S20990S
SMOTTIE d/¥ S20990S
LIATY DIAS ¥12ZZ90S
ASD AUNTIO IV LS6E3MA
SHJIION

DHLO¥d HLTIVAH YHWNSNOD
NOILONAOAd ISd

INIWALYLS 8102 AYvVN¥"IL

SUAIN

SA¥d ONILI¥M/HAVL

LVW ¥TI-SdITD-SAALHOITIH
SHITA4NS HDIAJ0

UIVATA JYALNIAA

SHITA4NS INIVW

ddNS WYDI0¥d 8T0Z HOUVKW

SADIAYAS NIWAY
SADIAYEAS NIWAY

81/1Te/Z 0L 81/8/2

NOILAT¥DSAA IDIOANI

JALSIDAY ADTHD
ALNNOD AFYOLS

(YD) ONI OD NVDUOW AV

ONI SEDIAHI NOILDHLO¥d

OTT SASTAAYIAINT AANNIA

d OTIOHNV ‘INIVLAd
ONI LHDISNIWNILAO

IS ® SDOIHAVYD dAIS FHL NO

ONI LOddad dADIFJ0

SHSTYLYAINT OLNY ATIIHA,O

TASNNOD FAILVISIODET AIN
HLITVIH TYINFWNOIIANZ-HEdd
ALIFAVS DITHNd 40 1d3AA AAN

1 1L¥360¥ ‘SIAOW

VAVIWYL ' NYOIW

NI SNOILNTIOS ADIAJ0 OYLIAW

YLD ALINOWNOD NIVML MAVW

ONILINSNOD QUAVHNVW

JOANIA

81/10/€0
STE1Ed

€1vT6

[AR AN

Ti¥1l6

0Tv16
60716

80%T6

LOYT6

0%16
S0v16
¥0v16
€0¥16

20716

T0v16

00%T6

66ET6

86€16

ATHWNNN

ADHHD
@3eg uny
oN 3jxoday

.



S

00" %11
00°8%1T
00°6¢

00°CTT

00°0S

65°52T

0070zZe'T
82°29¢

£€9°09%

0Z 6LT

TYLOL

JADEHD

abed

00°8%T
00°6¢€

00°9s
00°9s

00°09

LL-ze
(41
§5°
60°§
sg”
LS'TT
(A2 14
S0°91
96°T
v0°T
8v'¢
8L ¥
L6
sg°s
[4: 24
29°0T
S6°9
00°S

00°02E‘T
8Z°29¢

8L°061
$8°69¢C

62 €T
T6°4991

LNNOWY

009¢8 81/20/¢ Ad¥d SNAWHATD WVYS 06¥
009¢8 81/z0/¢ TIVL T¥E XAMH SN 116
009¢e8 81/z0/¢ 08 I1s D 5§ s0zZ
009¢8 81/20/¢ 08 15 D § €02
009¢e8 81/20/¢ ¥a Is D § 102
009¢8 81/20/¢ /1T dOHS a¥ TIOL 00T
009¢€8 8T/20/¢€ a1 a¥ TIOL 01T
009¢8 81/c0/¢ 2a1d ¥ TIOL 0€T
oogte 81/20/¢ dOLSLSAY IS D N T8€
009¢8 8T/20/¢ LINOQ IS D N S%T
009¢e8 81/20/¢ SHY Q¥ IHOIYMINVD 2192
009¢€8 81/20/¢ ¥ LS AYM NOANVD TE€¥
009¢8 81/20/¢ FSHAWNd LHOTYMIAYD 0192
009¢e8 81/20/¢ LHOIT LS SYHNOISSIWWOD DS
009¢8 81/20/¢ SIHOIT LS ALID VINIDVIA
009¢8 81/z0/¢ (s¥adId) € N 21
6L9¢€8 81/20/¢ OLOA FDIAMIS 1LXIT FATA
109¢8 81/20/¢ Hd ® §-god€
v89¢€8 81/20/¢ 81/12/2 OL 81/8/2
6T9¢€8 81/z0/¢ ATIN HIVWNI
6T9¢8 8T1/20/¢ ATIN FALVWNI
653€8 81/z0/¢ LLO¥d (ONV'T VNVYL 'YNOJ ‘ XUVW

LTLES 8T/20/¢
LTLER 81/20/¢
LTLES 81/20/¢
LTILES 8T/20/¢
LTLES 81/20/¢
LTLES 81/20/¢€
LTLES 8T1/20/¢€
LILES 8T/20/¢
LTLES 81/20/¢
LTLES 81/20/¢
LTLES 81/20/¢
LTLES 81/20/¢
LTLES 81/20/¢
LTLES 8T/20/¢
LTLEB 81/20/¢
LTLES 81/20/¢
LTLES 81/20/¢
LTLES 81/20/¢

v0oLES 81/20/¢ SHEDIAYAS TVDHET
969¢€8 81/20/¢ HONYNYLINIVIW FONYVINGWY
sz9¢es 81/20/¢€ aasANGsSIa INIWHSINIVYD
S29¢€8 81/20/¢ dasANESIA INAWHS INIVYD
9%9¢€8 81/Z0/¢ YILNIAd JOOMIDOT
9¥9¢€8 81/z0/¢ YILNI¥d dOSSASSVY-UALLOTIA
#SNVAL AR {a§ # 0/d NOILdI¥DSAd dDIOANI

81/20/€ ¥WHALSIDAY MDOIHD
ALNNOD AJYOLS

0D WAMOd DIJIDVd VAMAIS
TT NOILDILOUWd JTYId VH¥IIS
TYININNOIIANT VIAIIS

NITIY NVYI¥d ‘dYOHS

ONI SYUOLNEIVISIA MIVWIHHS

A ¥YNVL ‘NOQQiES

a1 NI SEDIAYZS TVdOTD DdS
d17 ‘SETYH ¥ IMOA

FONVTINEWY NIVINAOW AMD0¥

NYd[L 19909 ‘SI1¥Fd0d

JOANHAA

8T/T0/€0
STETdd

£€CYTI6
[4aAN
12v16

0Zv16

61716

81v1e

L1¥1T6
91v16

STIv16

yiv¥ie

JTIHON

MDHHD
: 93eg uny
ON 3aodey

3



20" L9 [44°1% ] 81/20/¢€ Sy X¥ FLVWNI JOJ A¥4OD

INOT ’HEDATVEMOUL SEVI6
80°659°1 80°6S9°1 66S€E8 81/20/¢€ SEIA 0ST D3Y¥ 009
OTT WNITOYLAd SYWOHL vEV16
007901 007901 129¢8 81/20/¢ YIVIdHY NIVIA AMHS rIIVD
dWILVWITHL £EV16
00°000°0T 00°000°0T z09¢€8 81/20/¢ 0LSTOOWD TVYLAW HOVAAY
ONI DSSY LNAWADYNVMH XVL CEV16
00°€ze’C 00°2¢T $89¢8 81/20/¢ 81/1¢/Z OL 81/8/%
00°981°‘C S89¢€8 8T/20/¢ 81/12/Z 0L 81/8/T
00°L $89¢8 8T/20/¢ 81/12/T OL 81/8/2
SASTYIYIILNT AVId NNS TEVTE
00°00S°0T 00°00S°0T 90LES 81/20/¢ L1/0€/9 11Qnv
D771 ‘SHILVIDOSSY ¥ ATHALS 0E¥YT6
y0-€0¢ v0'€0e ¥99¢8 81/z0/¢ 8T/€£0- BTI/Z0 €/z ZId OS
‘SNOILVDINAWWOD ¥VISTAVLS 6C¥16
00°00S°Z 00°00S°‘2 889¢8 81/20/¢ €CZOVIHAXCZEY0964T
SMYOM DITENd 0D IS 82¥16
0¥ 8% oV 8v 0zocs 8T/20/¢ S3TANYH ANV SdOW
III £ DINIWOQ ‘ENOTIVAS 3449
997288 99°288 689t8 81/20/¢ HONVNVLINIVW JYOLVAVOXI
OTT ‘AMINIHOVW AYASNOS 9Z¥16
1T1°68 11°68 veoes 81/20/¢ AIVOIdHIN ALVWNI
YIINID DNIEA ¥ JOOd SHIIWS SCvie
TS CET (AR ANS €oLES 81/20/¢ L0ddd AYMTIVE 1A
0D ¥IMOd DIAIOVd VI¥FIS vevie
$9°9L8°TT VL EQC 009€8 81/20/¢ ASHIYTIL LHDIVMIYVYD 0192
89°28L 009¢8 81/20/¢ (NIVINNOA) g3d gd TI0L 00T
0% 10T 009¢8 8T/20/¢ SLHDIT ULS HO9 A0 NMOL
€2 16 009¢8 81/20/¢€ ¥ 40 9 /1S NOINN 09T
T2 9L 009¢€8 81/20/¢€ (d § 0T) LS NOINN
8¢°LE 009¢8 81/20/¢ A¥Yd Q¥ HONWVY I¥Ed 000T
zeze 009¢8 81/20/¢ q¥Yd HOA Q¥ JIIdWH TVIc
8% €1¢ 009¢€s8 81/20/¢ ¥ LINN AM NOANVYD 0Z%
vL 6L 0o09¢es 81/20/¢ g LINO AVM NOANVD 0Z%
8T €9 009¢8 81/20/¢€ LS O N §8T
08°66L"T 009¢8 81/20/¢ 40 N¥3d SOLT
86°9¢2T 009¢€8 81/z0/¢ J¥ HONVY I¥dd 008
16°921 009¢€8 81/z0/¢ SIHDIT IS D § T€S
LT 01T 009¢8 81/20/¢ SILHDIT 18 D S Zve
86" €L 009¢8 81/20/¢ SLHDIT LS O N 9LT
oL"8¢€8 009¢s8 81/z0/¢ HSNOHLANOD 1S g S 9¢
96°L89 1 009¢s 81/20/¢ NOANYD HTIW XIS 02Zc
h SE° 0¥ 009¢€8 81/20/¢ 10dd3ad HD LINN LS NIVRW
297 9¢€T 009¢e8 81/20/¢ (ONINIVYL) IS O N T%T
€L7L9T 003¢8 81/20/¢ N SHIYIL 1S DO N
00°¢g¢ 00s€es 81/z0/¢ A¥YATIVE 1S NOSAYD
62°'L0C 009€8 81/20/¢€ OA LINMI IS D S
LT %E 009¢€8 81/20/¢ IHDIT T¥d/d00dLA0 1S D §
verel 009¢€8 81/20/¢ LS O ZLE/OA LIND 1S DO §
[4 0N A 009¢€s8 81/20/¢ FOVAVD LS 9 S %01
€2 € 009¢te8 81/20/¢€ IS NOLLAS
96°¢¢ 009¢8 81/20/¢ dg¥d DA 1S I N S0C
LV 9t 009¢8 81/20/¢ wlfAn @4 ENIAVYE TVINVAS 00§
L0981 009¢t8 8T/20/¢ OWISY¥D 15 O § 1I¢
LS 9TS 009¢8 81/20/¢ LNId d¥IM LS HINOS MOOT
TYLOL INNOWY H#SNWAL ALYa # 0/4 NOILJINDSAA ADIOANI JOaNaA HITNNN
ADHAHD JDEHD
81/20/€ WHLSIDAY MNDIHD 81/10/€0 : ®3eQg uny
9 abeq ALNNOD XFYOLS ST€TEd :ON 3xoday

« -
bt




YE 0LS €S TV.LOL SADFHD
00°vZv ‘el 00°¥%28'TT 0o0LEs 81/20/¢ SLVYW/ddV¥ INIDIIWH -AAd
00°009 00LES 81/z20/¢€ NOILOHASNI MILA
TITIEYD ‘NVWYITIM 0Sv16
00°061 00°06T €19¢€8 81/20/¢ TYITY /NOEIVYD /H04T0D 1OL
€Y1 TYINIWNOJIIANT N¥ALSAM 6v¥16
SE"6¥ SE'6b L¥9¢€8 81/20/¢€ S47INg 81Z€d -DSMT
ONI 0Daam 8¥v16
0L %611 0L P6T'T 909¢8 8T/20/¢ STVHW JOOMMDO0T 8T0Z NYL
- AYIS YOINAS ALNNOD HOHSVM LY¥16
S0°¥veE’'8 S0°¥veE’8 £29¢8 81/z0/¢ € X Asdoinv
HYIANOQAOD 0D FOHSVM 9v¥T6
ZB’0s¢ 287 0S¢ 6€£9€8 81/20/¢ HJHATLIA T000 LYO8Y¥0O OF
ONI ‘NVId HDIANIES NOISIA S¥v16
00" 00cC 00°002 L9¢e8 81/zZ0/¢€ NOLTY¥A AD¥T
T09 XLID VINIDYIA Y¥vie
00°00S’2 00°00S‘2 £59¢€8 81/20/¢ SIS0D ONISILYIAQY
HTOAJYOLOW ALID VINIDIIA £EVP16
00-2¢L 00°2L T99¢8 8T/20/¢ vev Xod
(dA)  dd1dJd0LsS0d sn TZvv16
00° 002 00° 002 219¢€8 81/20/¢€
(dA)  HDIAAOLSOA sn I¥v16
TL ZPT'T 60°121°T v9¢€8 81/20/¢ 8T/€0 TYINZQ FAAILAA
29712 I%9¢€8 81/20/¢ ¥ALYM 8T/€0 TYINIA 139
0D SNI HIVYOHLIVHEHAALINA 0¥¥Te
S2°6 SZ°6 8€9¢8 8T/zZ0/¢ YEFENY VIT3d 8€2Z9H¥IA
IVI¥ISNAANT TYAINAD QILINN 6EVT6
YvoLYL 66°29 LEIJES 81/20/¢ AFTINS WIOJIINN
Sv v89 769¢8 81/20/¢ ‘aQ MIVID LS WNOJINN
OTT YAYAEN 40 AILIWNOJIINN BEVTE
00°2Zvs’sz 00°0Se’T €TLES 81/z0/¢
00°zZ61 VT €ILES 81/20/¢€
ONI ‘SHIDOTONHOAL dATXL LEYTE
60°6€L 60°6¢EL ZrLes 81/20/¢ 0€08 TAJOW FITYD NID
QIILYI0OJI0DNI ISL 9EVTE
20" L9
TYLOL LNOOWY H#SNVAL dLYa # 0/d NOILAI¥YDSAA EDIOANI YOANIA YFEWON
JADdHD ADHRD
81/20/€ ¥HLSIODAA MDTHD 8T/10/€0 : @3eQg uny
L abed ALNOOD ATYOLS STETEd ‘ON jxoday’

A




YINOISSIWWOD

8T/20/€ HLVA MDIHD vE"0LS €EST TYLOL SMDHFHD

NOTILVZIYOHLAV ONV MIIATE 40 INIWAOAITMONMDY




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3-20-18 Estimate of time required: 0- 5

Agenda: Consent (X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request),

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

S. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: —_ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attomey

Department Name:

Other agency review:

9. Board action;
(] Approved

[1] Approved with Modifications
(] Denied [l

Continued

Agenda Item No, é _ZZ‘




Storey County Community Bebvelopment
MBuginess

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 » (775) 847-0966 - Fax (775) 847-0935 ‘mfield@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office March 12,2017
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Melissa Field

Please add the following item(s) to the March 20, 2018, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
LICENSING BOARD

FIRST READINGS:

88%gs%xsﬂcﬁwppwpzzrzﬁﬁmpwmpﬁw?

EE.
FF.

NIKKE MACHINE MANUFACTURING CORP - Contractor / Hyogo, Japan

KORBIN CONRAD, DBA: TOP DOG CARPET CLEANING - Home Business /210 §"0” ~ VC, NV
WHITE DAISY DESIGNS, LLC - General / 160 C St ~ Virginia City, NV

SABER ENGINEERING, INC — General / 5421 Kietzke Ln ~ Reno, NV

FLUX RESOUCES LLC - General / 2100 SW River Pkwy ~ Portland, OR

CGS MULE, LLC - General / 680 E Glendale Ave ~ Sparks, NV

AUTOMATION & CONTROL CONCEPTS, INC — General / 401 Ryland St ~ Reno, NV
PRECISION AIR BALANCING CO, INC- General / 1240 N. Jefferson St ~ Anaheim, CA
TRAVELERS ALLIANCE GROUP - General / 6775 Engle Rd ~ Middleburg Heights, OH
VICTORY WOODWORKS, INC - Contractor / 3401 Kresge Ln ~ Sparks, NV

APEX ANODIZING (NEW), INC — General / 280 B Coney Island ~ Sparks, NV

ATKINS NORTH AMERICAN, INC - General / 10509 Professional Cr ~ Reno, NV

- RAGLEN SYSTEM BALANCE, INC - Contractor / 1121 University Terrace ~ Reno, NV

DEBBIE TAYLOR - General / 9910 Matterhorn BLVD ~ Reno, NV
EUROSOFT-CONTROL LLC - General / 401 Ryland St ~ Reno, NV

OCS GROUP LLC - General / 401 Ryland St ~ Reno, NV

JEOL USA, INC - General / 11 Dearbomn Rd ~ Peabody, MA

ADF INTERNATINAL INC - Contractor / 1401 N. University Dr ~ Coral Springs, FL
EDEN HOSPICE AT CARSON CITY - General / 4601 NE 77% ~ Vancouver, WA
W.W. GRAINGER, INC - General / 100 Grainger ~ Lake Forest, [L

VINNIE’S ELECTRIC INC - Contractor / 1773 Walnut Dr ~ Fernley, NV

NORTH BEND EQUIPMENT - General / 7453 Empire Dr ~ Florence, KY

- PIPEWORKS PLLUMBING & HEATING INC — Contractor / 550 E. Plumb Ln ~ Reno, NV

VIRGINIA CITY LODGING.COM - General / 74 S. “C” St ~ Virginia City, NV
FUNDIN PUMP & WELL SERVICE LLC - Contractor / 4030 Eastlake Blvd ~ Washoe Valley, NV
MARSH CREEK, LLC - Contractor / 2000 E. 88™ Ave ~ Anchorage ,

. ORBIS TECH SERVICES, LLC — Contractor / 1215 Kleppe Ln ~ Sparks, NV

. ALPHA OMEGA MECHANICAL LLC — Contractor / 135 Coney Island Dr ~ Sparks, NV .

. TA OPERATING LLC, DBA: TRAVEL CNTRS OF AMERICA-General/24601 Cntr Ridge ~Westlake, OH
- GEORGE DELONG CONSTRUCTION INC - Contractor / 833 E. Fourth St ~ Winnemucca, NV

SAGE RIVER DEVELOPMENT - Contractor / 9460 Double R Blvd ~ Reno, NV
VIEGA LLC - General / 12303 Airport Way ~ Broomfield, CO

GG. TIMELY TESTING, LTD - General / 8725 Technology Way ~ Reno, NV




Storep County Community Development
Buginess

P O Box 526  Virginia City NV 89440 (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 mfield@storeycounty.org

Licenging

HH. HOTATECH, INC - General / 15348 Valley Blvd ~ City of Industry, CA

Il. MARK STAFFORD REAL ESTATE APPRAISER — General / 685 Sienna Park Ct ~ Reno, NV
JJ. DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS - General / 375 Beale St ~ San Francisco, CA

KK. EVOLVED K9 TRAINING LLC - Home Business / 1537 Canal Rd ~ Sparks, NV

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/20/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First reading for General License — Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse. 62 N C St.,
Virginia City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the existing business license.

2. Recommended motion: I motion to approve as part of the consent agenda the first reading,
General License — Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse. 62 N C St., Virgini City, NV
89440. Add Frederic Cline to the existing business license.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: First reading for General License — Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse. 62 N C
St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the existing business license.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter
6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinorg .
s a— —
/ Q e
—\ County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. é ﬂ




STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

March 1, 2018

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Brandy Gavenda *%é{

Please add the following item(s) to the March 20, 2018 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

LICENSE BOARD
First Reading:
A. General Business License - Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse, 62 N
C St., Virginia City, NV. Add Frederic Cline to the existing license.

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/20/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First reading for General Business License name change — Firehouse BBQ, name change
to Firehouse Grill & Saloon. 171 S C St., Virginia City, NV.

2. Recommended motion: I motion to approve as part of the consent agenda the first reading for

General Business License name change — Firehouse BBQ, name change to Firehouse Grill
& Saloon. 171 S C St., Virginia City, NV.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant /%/
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: First reading for General Business License name change — Firechouse BBQ,
name change to Firehouse Grill & Saloon. 171 S C St., Virginia City, NV.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter
6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X__Department Head Department Nagle: Gerald Antinoro

N M.‘_% e
@/ &G / . .,_...;,.,A.M..M__‘h:

l‘ . ( <
%auager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No. b 77"

et




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Storey County to assume original Pipers Opera House elevator contract with
OTIS United Technologies

2. Recommended motion; Approval

3. Prepared by: Deny Dotson
Department: VCTC / Pipers Telephone:

4. Staff summary:

New ownership — Assumes Original Contract SV 65012

Beginning the effective date of the addendum, the new owner (Storey County) of Pipers Opera
House located at 12 N B St. VC, NV. 89440 agrees to assume the existing contract as stated above
Jor the elevator State # 14160. The original contract was dated 3-5-10, commenced on 5-1-10 and
signed 4-21-10. This addendum will show that the new ownership assumes all the original terms
and conditions.

S. Supporting materials: attached

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: Yes
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X_Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

C’"% / A)unty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——

Agenda Item No. é Y"




OTIS

{5 United Technologies

DATE: 01/11/2018

TO: FROM:

Storey County Courthouse Otis Elevator Company
PO Box 176 725 Trademark Drive #102
Virginia City, NV 89440 Reno, NV 89521
EQUIPMENT LOCATION: Amy Bennett

Piper's Opera House Phone: (775) 313-7066

12 N B Street Fax:(860) 353-0664

Virginia City, NV 89440
CONTRACT NUMBER: SV 65012 CONTRACT DATE:  05/01/2010

We propose the following modification to the Contract referred to above, to take effect as of: 01/11/2018

NEW OWNERSHIP - Assumes Original Contract SV 65012

Beginning the effective date of this addendum, the new owner Storey County Courthouse of Piper's Opera House located
at [2N B St., Virginia City, NV 89440, agrees to assume the existing contract as stated above for elevator State# 14160,
The original contract was dated 03/05/2010, commenced on 05/01/2010 and signed 04/21/2010. This addendum will
show that the new ownership assumes all the original terms and conditions.

© Otis Elevator Company 2011 All Rights Reserved LINX Form MNT-ADD (04/01/12) Contract #: SV 65012
Page 1 of 2

O
@)
Z
-
A
>
O
-
>
O
O
m
4
-
C
=




This proposal, when accepted by you below and approved by our authorized representative, will become binding as an
addendum and modification to the Contract. All other terms, conditions and obligations in the Contract referred to are to
remain in full force and effect. This quotation is valid for ninety (90) days from the proposal date.

Submitted by:  Amy Bennett
Title: Account Professional
E-mail: Amy.Bennett@otis.com

Accepted in Duplicate

CUSTOMER Otis Elevator Company

Approved by Authorized Representative Approved by Authorized Representative
Date: Date:

Signed: Signed:

Print Name: Print Name: Eric Henning

Title Title General Manager
E-mail:

Name of Company

0 Principal, Owner or Authorized Representative of Principal or Owner

0 Agent:
(Name of Principal or Owner)

© Otis Elevator Company 2011 All Rights Reserved LiNX Form MNT-ADD (04/01/12) Conlract #: SV 65012
Page 2 of 2

O
@)
Z
—
A
>
@
-]
>
)
)
L
Z
O
C
=




Jessie Fain
M

From: Keith Loomis

Sent: Friday, January 26, 2018 4:51 PM
To: Jessie Fain; Anne Langer
Subject: RE: Piper's Opera House

Jessie

I don’t see any specific problems with the agreement. | think that there ought to be an addendum whereby Otis
acknowledges and agrees to our assumption of the rights and responsibilities under the agreement.

Keith Loomis

Deputy District Attorney

Storey County District Attorney’s
Office

P.O. Box 496, 201 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 847-0964

Storey County is an equal opportunity provider

¥ Notice** This message and accompanylng documents are covered by the electronic
Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.8.C. §§ 2510-2521. This email and any files transmitted
with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to
whom they are addressed. Tf you are not the named addressee you should not disseminate,
distribute or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender immediately by e-mail if you
have received this e-mail by mistake and delete this e-mail from your system. If you are
not the intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or
taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited.

From: Jessie Fain

Sent: Thursday, January 25, 2018 1:05 PM
To: Anne Langer; Keith Loomis

Subject: FW: Piper's Opera House

Good Afternoon,

Attached is the contract we would be assuming for the elevator at Piper’s.
Please review and let me know if you see any issues,




OTIS

DATE: 03/05/2010

TO: FROM:

Piper's Opera House Otis Elevator Com;tmy
Drawer J 725 Trademark Driv

12N, B Street Suite 102

Virginia City, NV 89440 Reno, NV 89521
EQUIPMENT LOCATION:

Piper's Opera House Patrick Hollinger

12 N. B Street Phone: (775) 322-541 1 ext 15

Virginia City, NV 89440 Fax(775) 322-1385

PROPOSAL NUMBER; PHO21610

EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION:

Number of Manufacturer Equipment Machine 1
Units Type
1 Silver State Hydraulic TBRD

LUBRICATE AND SURVEY SERVICE

survey of equipment condlition and regular lubrication by a qualified examin

Numbers

. Lubricate and Survey Servicc Is not a

We propose to furnish Lubricate and Survey Service on the cquipment (“Units”) %escribcd above, We will provide an annual

preventive maintenance program.

Under this Contract, we will maintain the Units on the JSollowing terms and condit

COVERAGE

ons.

SURVEY
We will conduct an annual survey of the Units and provide a written repott of their 4

REGULAR VISITS

pondition,

We will use trained personnel dircctly employed and supervised by us to visit the Units at the frequency selected below:

Visit F Select

Monthly a
Bimonthly O
Quatterly )

The visits will consist of lubrication of the following parts when conditions warrant:
W Machine bearings, gears, pumps, pump motors, operating valves, valve motors

W Scleclors, governors, governor sheaves, governor tensian frame sheav
assemblies,

W Door operators, car door hangers, holstway door hangers, and inferlocks,

and leveling valves,

b assemblies, and compensating sheave

B Safeties, car and counterweight guide raits, and car and counterweight guide shoes including rollers and gibs.

-~
C
W
A
)
D
.—.|
m
>
P
)
0y
C
A
<
[T
=<
v

4DINMT

T OTTS ELEVATOR COMPANY, 1993, 1997 All Rights Reserved Impact FonnMNT-LS (1726

09 Proposal#: PH021610
Page t of 6




Lubrication of parts that are not listed above is specifically excluded. This Cong
repairs or emergency callback service. 1€ any of these services are later requested by
billing rates.

NORMAL HOURS
All visits will be performed during the regular wotking hours of our regular workir
service. If overtime services arc later requested by you, you agree to pay extra at our

24-HOUR DISPATCHING

EXCLUSIONS - .%

¢t docs not cover adjustments, cleaning,
you, you agree to pay extra at our regular

g days for the examiners who perform the
reguier billing rates.

We will, at your request, provide you with access to e*Service via Otis.com shd our OTISLINE® 24-hour, year-round

dispatching service. In the event a Unit malfunction eccurs between regular exami

call on e*Service or thru an OTISLINE® customer service representative, who wi
perform emergency minor adjustment catlback service.

CUSTOMER REPRESENTATIVE
An Otis representative will be available to discuss with you your elevator needs In {

ability, recommendations and requirements of code authorities, proper use and care

REPORTS - e*SERVICE

ations, you will be able to place a service
, at your request, dispatch an examiner to

he areas of modernization, traffic handling
f the Units, and the OMMS® program.

We will use the OMMS® program to plan and record completion of maintenance P
you access to e*Service via Otis,com. You will be able to access repair, complet
history for the Unil(s). You will be responsible for obtaining Internet access to usc ¢

SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

peedures. We will, at your request, provide
| maintenance procedure and service call
Service,

SAFETY TESTS - TRACTION ELEVATORS

Code requires an annual no load test and at each fifth year a full load, full spepd test of safety mechanisms, overspeed

governors, car bufters, and counterweight buffers. These tests are not included
pass the annual no load and five yeat, full load test on the Units and that this is a
such tests and to provide this record to Otls,

SAFETY TESTS - HYDRAULIC ELEVATORS

agree to conduct and pass the annual no load and annual pressure rolief valve test

the Contract. You agree to conduct and
aterinl duty. You agree to keep a record of

the Units and that this is 2 material duty,

Code requires an annual no load test and annual pressure relief valve test. These :F‘sts are not included in the Contract. You

You agree to keep a record of such Lests and to provide this record to Otis.

FIREFIGHTERS' SERVICE TEST

If the equipment has firefighters' service, you assume responsibility for performing ind keeping a record of any Code required

tests and for the maintenance and functioning of the smoke and/or heat detectors.

SAFETY TRAINING
We will instruct our personnel to use appropriate personal protection equipment and

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Otis endeavors to reduce generation of waste materials, to minimize risks to the envi
Otis employees, and to comiply with all federal and stale environmental laws ani
(MSDS) Manuals are available for review at your request,

You assume responsibility for removal of wastes, including but not limited to hyd]
part of this Contract.

MAINLINE DISCONNECTS

follow safe work practices,

ronment, customers, the general public and
regutations. Material Safety Data Sheet

Faullc oil, spoils, asbestos, ete., as it is not

You agree (o engage a qualified electrician to service at least once annually the elpvalor mainline disconnects located in the

clevator equipment room.

SHARED RESPONSIBILITY

You agree to provide us unrestricted ready and safe access to all areas of the by
focated and to keep all machine rooms and pit areas free from water, stored matoert
work place for our personnel, and to remove and remediate any waste or hazard
laws and regulations,

ilding in which any pait of the Units are
Is, and debris. You agree to provide a safc
s matcerials in accordance with applicable

It any Unit is malfunctioning or Is in a dangerous condition, you agree to immediat

ly notify us using the 24 -hour OTISLINE®

service, Until the problem is corrected, you agree lo remove the Unit from service ahd take all necessary precautions to prevent

-
C
W
X
0
>
-
m
>
z
o
0
=
%
<
m
..<
»
m
X
<
0
m

© OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY, 1995, 1997 Al Rights Reserved Impact FormMNT-LS (1/26/09) Proposnl#: PH02(610

Page2 of 6




access or use,

You agrec to properly post, maintain, and preserve any and all instructions or ward
use of any Units,

OWNERSHIP AND LICENSES

ings to passengers in conncction with the

WIRING DIAGRAMS

You agrec to provide us with current wiring diagrams reflecting all previously made
to facilitate proper maintenance of the equipment. We shall maintain the wiring
changes made by Otis to the equipment. These diagrams will remain your property.

OTIS SERVICE EQUIPMENT
Any counters, meters, lools, remote monitoring devices, or communication devi

changes for Units covered by this Contract
iagrams so that they properly reflect any

s which we may use or install under this

Contract remain our property, solely for the use of Otis employces. Such service equipment is not considered a part of the
Units. You grant us the right to store or install such service equipment in your building and to electrically connect it to the

Units, You will restrict access to the service equipment to authorized Otis porsony
in the service equipment in confidence as a trade sccret for Otis, You will not pe
disclose or disassemble the service equipment or the sofiware resident in the servie
If the service is terminated for any reason, we will be given access to your premises
the resident software, at our expense.

OTIS SOFTWARE

. You agree to keep the software resident
mit others to use, access, examine, copy,
s equipment for any purpose whatsoever,

o remove the service equipment, including

Software owned by Otis may be embedded in parts or otherwise provided by Otis ag part of this maintenance agreement. You

have the right to use this software only for operation of the units for which the
backup or archival copy of the software, provided you reproduce the copyright no

bart was provided. You may also make a
ice and any other legend of ownership on

the copy. You may not atherwise copy, display, adapt, modify, distribute, rever:
translate the software, You will not transfer possession of the software except as

assemble, reverse compile, or otherwise
rt of a transfer of ownership of the Units

and the assumption of the rights and obligations under this agreement by the transfdree.

NON-OTIS SOFTWARE
You retain your rights to any software not provided by Otis contained in the Units
or archival copy for you,

THE UNITS

operator, lessec, or agent of the owner or lessee, and that you arc solely respon

d agree to allow Otis to make ane backup

bic for all requirements imposed by any

It is agreed that we do not assume possession or contrel of the Units, that suci;LUuits remain yours solely as owner and

federal, statc, or local law, Code, ordinance or regulation.

CLARIFICATIONS

This Contract does not cover car enclosures (including, but not limited to, Wl:’!] pancls, door panels, car gates, plepum

chambers, hung ceilings, lighting, fight diffusers, light tubes and bulbs, handrails,

holstway enclosurcs, hoistway gates, hoistway inserls and brackets, mainline dise
swing door hinges and closing devices, below ground or unexposed hydraulic ¢y
piping, escalator balustrades. escalator fighting or wedge guards. Without affecti
this Contruct, you agree to permit us to train our personnel on the Units. Thi
microcomputer devices, such as terminal keyboards and display unlts, that are

irrors and floor coverings), rail alignment,
prnect switches, doors, door frames, sills,
nders and plungers, buried or unexposed
g our obligation to provide service under
k Contract does not cover computer and
10t exclusively dedicated to the elevator

srcoms, heal sensors, smoke sensors,

system. This Contract does not cover telephones installed by others, int
communications equipment, or safety signaling equipment, or instructlons or warni

We will not be required: (i) to make any tests other than that as specifically set fort
parts of a different design or type, (iil) to make any changes in the existing design
or install new attachments to any Units, whether or not recommended or directed b
authoritles, (v) to make repairs ot replacements necessitated by failures detected du
or unexposed hydraulic cylinders or piping and (vi) to make any replacemeats,
obsolete or discontinued part of the Unit(s) or by reason of any cause beyond oy
including, but not limited to, fire, explosion, thett, floods, water, weather, carthqu
repairs by others.

You assume responsibility for the cost of correcting all Elevator Code violatio
Contract. If such Code violations or other outstanding safety violations are not
Otis may with respect 1o the equipment not meeting Code tequirements cancel {t
thirty (30) days written notice.

Neither party shall be liable for any loss, damage or delay due to any cause beyon,
limited to, acts of government, strikes, lockouts, other labor disputes, fire, explosiol

gy in connection with usc by passcngers.

herein, (if) to make any replacements with
the Units, (iv) to alter, update, modernize
insurance companies or by governmental
ing or due to testing of the Units or buried
renewals, or repairs necessitated by any
r contro) (except ordinary wear and tear)
¢, vandalism, misuse, abuse, mischicf, or

s existing on the date we enter into this
treeted in accordance with this Conlract,
is Contract without penalty by providing

our reasonable control including, but not
, theft, floods, water, weather, earthquake,

-
c
W
X
O
>
-
m
>
pe
O
7))
C
P
<
m
<
)
m
A
<
0
m

© OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY, 1995, 1997 Alf Rights Reserved Impact FormMNT-LS (1736

09) Proposald: PH021610
Page 3 of 6




riot, civil commotion, war, vandalism, misuse, abuse, mischief, or acts of God.

We shall indemnify and hold you harmiess from damages or losses sustained by yo

i due solely to personal injury or property

damage occurring during the performance of the Work and only to the extent directly caused by our negligence os the

negligence of our employees, agents or subcontractors. We shall maintain worke
insurance covering our liability for injury or death sustained by our employees, and
You shall insure that all risk insurance upon the full value of the Work and material
cost (o us. If either parly so requires, in writing, the other party shail furnish certi
insurance coverages.

‘s compensation and employers” liability
tomprehensive general liability insurance.
delivered to the job site is maintained at no
cates of insurance evidencing the above

Notwithstanding any other agreement or provision to the contrary, under no circun)stances will cither party be liable for any

indirect, special or consequential damages of any kind,

located, to keep all machine rooms and pit areas free from water, stored materials,

d-debris, to provide a safec work place for

You agres to provide us unrestricted ready and safe access to all areas of the b%‘lding in which any part of the Units are

our personnel, to remove and remediate any waste or hazardous materials in accord
and to provide a grounded, 3-prong electrical system and proper lighting in the
obliged to perform until such unsale condition has been remedied.

If any Unit is malfunctioning or is in a dangerous condition, you agres to notify
OTISLINE®service. Until the problem is corrected, you agree to remove the L
precautions to prevent access or use.

You will provide written notice within twenty -four hours after occurrence of any &
escalator(s) to us and if required by law, to any local authoriries, You further agree §

nce with applicablie laws and regulations,
machine rooms and pits. We shall not be

4548 soon as possible using the 24 -hour
nit from service and take all necessary

ccident in or about the elevator (s) and/or
o preserve replaced parts.

Escalator Units are designed oniy for transporting passengers. For escalator Uni(iyou agree to take all necessary measures

to prevent other items from being conveyed, so that features designed to protcct p
not damaged. When stationary, escalators are to be properly barricaded and not to

You agree to properly post, maintain, and preserve any and all instructions or war
usc o’ any Units,

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

sengers and prevent property damage are
be used as steps.

ings to passengers in connection with the

Travel Time and Expenses

In the event of trouble calls between our regular examinations, you agree to pay us extra for travel time and
expenses, at our regular billing rates, from the dispatching point to the buildirlg under contract and return.

Otis Elevator will perform the State required annual no load pressure test at ho additional cost to Piper's Opera

House!

CONTRACT PRICE AND TERM

CONTRACT PRICE
Seventy-five dollars  ($76.00) per month

PRICE ADJUSTMENT
The Coniract Price will be adjusted annually to reflect increases or decreases in the

bor cost,

The original Contract Price will be increased ov decreased by the percent increase gr decrease in the straight time hourly labor
cost for the price adjustment month compared with such straight time hourly lgbor cost on 01/01/2010  which was

$82.000. The phrase “straight time hourly labor cost” means the sum of the sira
cost of fringe beuefits paid to elevator examiners in the focality where the equipment

TERM 75

The Commencement Date will be O4701/2010, The Term of this Contract wi
Commencement Date. The Contract will automatically be renewed at each five (53

ght time hourly labor rate plus the hourly
is to be maintained. -

I be for five (5) years beginning on the
year anniversary for an additional five (5)

years term unless terminated by either party by giving written notice to the other garty at least ninety (50) days, but no more

than 120 days prior to the end of the then current five (5) year term,

-
-
W
A
O
p
._{
m
D
4
O
)
C
py
<
m
.<
/)]
m
A
S
Q)
m

© OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY, 1995, 1997 AH Rights Reserved kmpact FormMNT-1.§ (IQ(ATO‘)) Proposal#: PH021610

Page 4 of 6




PAYMENTS' —

Payments will be made on a quarterly basis, due on or befors the last day of the month priot ta the billing period, beginning on
the Commencement Date.

The method of payment will be by check.

The work shall be performed for the agreed price plus any applicable sales, cxcige or similar taxes as required by law, In
addition 1o the agreed price, you shall pay to us any future applicable tax Imposedion us, our suppliers or you in connection
with the performance of the work described,

You agree to pay a late charge from the datc such sums become due of one andonehalf percent (1.5%) per month, or the
highest legally permitted rate, whichever is less, on any balance past due for more tHan thirty (30} days, together with all costs
(including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees) incurred by us to collect overdue amognts,

Failure to pay any sum due by you within sixty (60) days will be a material breach, We may at our option declare all sums due
or to become due for the unexpired term immediately due and payable as liquidateld damages, and until the same are paid be
discharged from further obligations under the contyact,

-
C
m
i
O
>
]
m
>
z
o
7
C
m
<
m
<
0
m
y
<
0
m

© OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY, 1995, 1997 All Rights Reserved Impact FormMNT-1S (1/26/69) Proposal#: PH021610
Page 5 of 6




ACCEPTANCE

This proposal, when accepted by you below and approved by our authorized reppesentative, will constitute the entire and
exclusive contract between us for the services to be provided and your authorization|to perform as outlined herein, All prior or
contemporaneous orul or written representations or agreements nol incorporated herein will be superseded. Any purchase
order Issued by you in cannection with the services to be provided will be deemdd to be issued for your administrative or
billing identification purposes only, and the partics hereto intend that the terrhs and conditions contained hercin will
exclusively govern the services to be provided. We do not give up rights under ahy existing contract until this proposal is
fully executed. This Contract may not be changed, modified, revised or amendell unless in writing signed by you and an
authorized representative of Otis, Furthor, any manual changes to this form will ngt be effective as to Otis unless initialed in
the margin by an authorized representative of Otis

THIS QUOTATION is valid for ninety (90) days from the proposal date,

Subitted by: ___Patick Hollinger
Title: _AccountManager. .
Accepted in Duplicate

CUSTOMER Otis Elevator C%mpany
Approved by Authorized Representative Approved by Anthortzed Representative

-21-70/0 P S(w(m [

Signed: . . Signed: /6 w
7

Print Name: . . Print Name:  Gagy Wardle

i
Title: E E Ve 22‘ f Title: annch Manager
E-mail: l-' i " ’ .1 won

pame of Company: M&Hﬂyxﬁﬂ voumns| INC.

&I Principal, Owner or

Authorized Representutive of Principal or Owner

0 Agent:

-
C
W
a
)
>
-
m
>
2
»
7
C
A
<
m
<
)
m
7
<
O
m

(Name of Principal or Owner)

© OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY, 1995, 1997 All Rights Reserved Impact FormMNT-1S$ (1/26/09) Proposal#: PI1021610
Page 6 of 6




v . &1/38/2811 13:21 7758470989 STOREY COUNTY SCH D

. 02/83
08:23:35p.m,  11-17-2u11 4

7753721385 Otls Elevator Company

DATE: 11/172011 =)
TO: FROM: ;U
Piper's Opera House Otin Elevutor Compsny :D
12N, B Street 725 Trademark Drive O
Drawer S Suitc 102
Virginia City, NV 89440 Reno, NV 89521 -
EQUIPMENT LOCATION: > )
PIPER'S OPERA HOUSE Putrick Holtingger O
12N B STRIET Phone: (775) 322-3411 oxt 1§ O
VIRUGINIA CITY, NV 89440 Paxy(775) 322-118S

m
CONTRACT NUMBER; SVas012 CONTRACT DATE: 050172010 %
We proposc the following modification to the Controct roferred to ahove, to take offect s of: (20172011 C

Maintenance Agreement Extension

Beginning on the Effective Date of this Addendum, the Term of the Contract referred to will be
extended for an additional five (5) years and will continue thereafter for additional five (5) year
periods unless terminated as follows. Elther party may terminate the Contract as modified herein
at the end of the Term or at the end of any subsequent five year period by giving the other party at
least ninety (90) days written notice prior to the end of the then current Term. This proposal, when
accepted by you below and approved by our authorized representative, will become binding as an
addendum and modification to the Contract. All other terms, conditions, and obligations in the
Contract referred to are to remnain In full force and effect. This quotation is valid for ninaty (90)
days from the proposal date,

The Category 5 Safety Tests are included in this addendum and will be enforced at the time this
addendum Is signed and approved.

Upon approval of this addendum, Otis Elevator will adjust the monthly maintenance fee to
accommodate the Category 5 testing. The rate will be increased by $17 per month per elevator.

Category 5 Safety Test ~ Over Speed Rupture Valve

Otis Elevator will conduct a State of Nevada required Category 5 Test. Otis Elevator will put a full
load of weights on the elevator, conduct a test of the over speed rupture valve, inspect and test
safety switches and circuits in the machine room, hoistway, elevator car, and elevator pit, perform
buffer compression tests if an oll buffer is used, nspect guide rails and fastenings, and test the
function of the over speed rupture valve. This State required Category 5 Test will bring the elevator
into compliance with the State of Nevada,

These tests impose much greater stresses on the equipment than those of normal operation, Ris
agreed that in making inspections or tests, you assume any and all liability for personal injury
(Including death) or property damage because of the action or fadlure of any part of tha elevator
equipment. If repairs are nacessary to obtain proper operation of the equipment to meet the

D OTI5 FLEVATOR COMPANY, 2011 All Right Resorved LiNX Form MNT.ADD (3/16/08) Contract: SV 65012
Page | of' 2




AR .
N [ il
A730/2811 13:1 7758479 249 STOREY COUNTY s§4 D
7753221385 Otls Blevator Company 04:23:40n,m. 11-17.2001

i SHLITHIBID UL WITDT Wou SULE TN WHH UGS al ) CALG WU U IS AU HY aLt,.

Extended Term Option

~if you decide to extend the contract for ten (10) years, Otis Elevator will subtract an additional 3%
off of the new monthly rate.
Please initizl here for the ten (10) year extended term option. X

This preposs!, when accepted by you telow and approved by our autharized representative, will become binding as an
addendum and mudification io the Contract, ANl other leans, condilians and obligations i the Contret refcrrcd to are (o

remain ia fill force and cffect. This qualntion is valid for nincty (90) days from the proposal date.
Subimined by: __Patrick Hullinger

Tide: . Accoupnt Managsr -

Aceepied in Duplicate

CUSTOMER Otiy Elevator Company
Approved by Authorized Representative Approved by Authorized Repretcntahvc

Dhate: H-3e=/ Dote. 2(#%; L\Ad 77
Siyned: Mi% Signed: )g / ( LC

Print Namwe; /6&5’ 5Z/E )/ Print Nkmc:/Gal’)‘ Wardle

Titke: Title; Branch Manager

bl OSi4BY@ sTeREY. K12 MV US

Name al Company: P 10L0t &o ’ W
/ /

O Principal, Osner or
Autherized Reprexeniative of Principal o7 Dver

Kom g

/ (Nameof Principal o Owner)

PAGE 93/93
b Y5

B

VH-LNOO

-

1O

aNJaav

e

Wn

.

P
e mr

< Al e,

iy SO

-

DONS ELEVATOR COMPANY, 2011 Al Rights Reserved LiNX Frem MNT.ADD (3/1609) Contracit: §V 63M2
Paje 20l 2




NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
Division of Industrlal Relations
Mechanical Compliance Section

4600 Kictzke Lanc, Suite F-151 Reno, NV 89502

Phone: (775) 688-3750

Fax (775) 688-1664

1301 N. Green Vallcy Parkway, Suite 160 Henderson, NV 89074

Phone: (702} 486-9054

Fax (702) 486-9176

ELEVATORS/RELATED EQUIPMENT OPERATING PERMIT

User: Piper's Opera House
12N B St
Virginia City, NV 89440

State No.
Object:
Year Built:
Serial:
Capacity:

Landings:

NV14180

Elevator

2002

3051635

2100

2

First Inspection:

Location Site:

Inspector:

Lobby

Mark Hanson

Inspection Date: 12/18/2017

Issue Date:

Owner:

Mail To:

01/30/2018

Piper's Opera House
12N B St
Virginia City, NV 89440

Piper's Opera House
PO Box J
Virginia City, NV 89440-0168

Drive:

Manufacturer:
User Object No.
Speed:

Cat 1:

Cat 3:

Cat 5:

Use:

Authorized Entity:
User Location No:

Explration Date:

Hydraulic
AMLIFT
1

100

12/18/2017

12/20/2016

Passenger

National Elevator Inspection
Service

3510897

12/18/2018




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meetiné (f;lie: March 20, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1. Title: For possible action, approval of Treasurer's Report for February 2018.

30

. Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.

w

. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969

4. Staff Summary: Attached.

wn

. Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

A

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Treasurer

C\%&QzCounty Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ 1 Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




T
9EWIYI8T § OV'I6T'ZS VEZLZS ST V/S'9S TZO06YI$ ES6T0L6Z $ STVOV'ZS 6C92T'8S 8T OBES S 6BSBIOVS bV L/TLZS OLESS8SLS LOEEO60F § ISPGLEOT S 9E'EEE'E9L §  IVLOL GONVYED
68'pLZ'T $ - $ - s - $ - $ 6601C S W1 s 18§ $ L8¢ S LE6T $ 9095 $ LS06T s - $ 8v'989 $ 1510 2d
ov'651'868  § WIYIBYT $ TTBLL'T S 8BOVEO'Y S 6E6ILT S VEIPYET $ ETVEY'EE $ E0POL'VOT $ 60'079'€8Y $ 1510 Xd
- $ - $ - s - s - $ - S 181G XW
- $ - $ - s - s - $ 1510 Jd'Xd
J5IN
6V'065'60T S OV'I6T°'CS - $ 8TbS'9$ €80T $ Lv'E98'ST § SOTET $ OL9Er $ 9T'I6C $ 18IS6' $ O8'SSY'T $ Z0STZ'Y $ [8'Sb8'TZ § 08ZZ86P S OPO6LT § DISNNIVIOL
wswAedonp
6V°065'60T $ 9TT6T'T S 8V'€L5'9 S T8TE $ TLTIYST § EOTET $ ¥99EY S EUI6T S LTISEY $ YISSHT $ SSPILY S vYEVSTZ $ 08786y S ¢8veLT S 8102/L10T
(000} $ vzo $ 0L0 $ (66'TT) § 9T $ 200 $ 900 $ €00 $ v50 $ 910 $ wo $ €pe $ - $ 8S'S $  ¥Oidd 1vioL
- N LT02/9102
(00°0) $ vzo  $ o0 ¢ (66T} $ o1 $ W0 $ 900 $ €00 $ SO $ 910 $ o $ €ve $ - $ 85§ $ lexoigns
- S 9T02/S10T
- $ STOZ/YT0T
vZ0 S 0L0 s (e6TT)  § 9LT $ 200 $ 900 $ €00 $ 50 S 910 $ Lo s x4 S 85'S $ ¥TOZ/ET0T
- $ €102/210
- $ 2102/1107
- $ TT0Z/010¢
- S 0102/600T
- $ 6002/800T
- S 8002/£00T
HOSSISSY
85'129'ss8 § - $ vewes - $ 6E6/8VE$ SITOEZET § CTEVO'TS OL68S'ES OL'SSETS SOVELIVS €ESSOTT S 6E880'SES 0976128 § TLTLEEST § 6L 95CLLL ¢ SIVLOL LuOd3d
- $ PaIn23s punjay
85129568 ¢ - $ vewes - $ 6EGLBYI S SUTOETZET $ PTEVO'T$ OLGBS'ES OL'SSETS BOVET'TY$ €ESSOZT $ 6E880°SE S 09°Z6T'Z8T § TLTLE'EST $ 6£9E2°4LT §  A3WNDISIVIOL
L6'€8Y'TZ8 § - $ - $ CITEL $ LUEIT'BTT $ L6'600'T S 99SLVES VL6LTTS E9TVE'6ES OTSLITT S STSBE'SES 6V'IEYOLT § TLTLEEST $ v6UIL'SIZ $  8T/LIIVIOL
- $ $S35SY [eadg
L6'EBV'TZS TUTTEL § LUEIL'SIT $ L6'600T $ 99SLV'E S VL6LTTS E€ITVE'6E S 9TSLITT $ STSBE'EE $ 6VTOV'ULT § TLTILEEST § V6P9L'E9T § 810Z/£10C
Lrs9g’se $ - $ - $ - $ LTBSSL § BVEETY $ LTEE $ VOVIT $ TO9L $ SVZET'T $ L0O8E  $ TLOOT'T $ TT00LS ¢ - $ SUTLV'ET § O IVIOL
€5°98€'0c 0§ - s - s - $ 8UI6S9E $ ¥ITEYT $ 6LTT 0§ TSTU S vE8Y $ 8LTZ8 S 89IvT S SYEES S LSETYE  § $6°S9S'8  §  LI0T/910Z jmot
$Sassy jewads
8T'659'€ $ ¥9TE€9T $ 6LTT S TS $ vE8Y $ 8LTZ8 S 89IYZ  $ 8Y669  $ LSET9E  $ 656958  $ £102/9102
[ 7572723 S 60°668'€ $ ¥B'90S'T $ SYIT § TSTP $ 89LZ $ (90 $ 6EBET  $ €£900F S ¥S9L0T § - $ 06'S06't $ fezoigng
oT's9z'IT S OT'LS6'C $ TLIET S 186 $ T9E S ovZ $ TT8OY $ YOOTT  $ vWLIPE S ¥6008'T. $ - $ BLVST'Y §  910Z/STOZ|EIOL
ssassy jeads
0T'LS6'C S TL90ET 6 786 $ W9 $ vz $ WY $ v00TT S wvhivE $ v6008T S 8LYSTY S 9102/5102
- s - S STOZ/Y10Z |ejoL
$59$SY |epads
- $ . ST0Z/¥10T
- S ¥10Z/£T02
STE6L S I5°0E $ zoozt $ 660 S 6C€ S 6IC $ ovie S T0TT $ T6TE $ TES9T S 55°06€ S £102/2102
6E°02F'T S Y116 $ oros $ (90 S 12T S LrT $ 66V $ vEL $ 8TT1T $ 67011 S 15°09¢C S ZT0Z/110Z
. $ TT0Z/0102
- S 0102/600T
- $ 6002/8002
- $ 8002/£002
- $ £002/900Z
vioL %TY/V  LNJUNO  %9/v  SAILIVNId  YIW3/3dld HLAOA 2OV ANl Q3 ONI VIS nov dvd €0 HOS dO HJS Ql9 1SNANI TV43IN3D YIUNSYIYL
s9T 90S9£-T00 POTPE-T00 100 0sz 100 S8T 010 oLt 090 09T 0sT 00S-100 100
8107 Aeniqay




00" 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" 00"

00 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" [lvhe
-00°000°000 T 00" 00° 00" [ 00" 00" -00°000°000°'T
-TE LET TS 00° 00° 0¢- 00" v0°L89 -GS €£2°80FE ~-08 059 '€€T
~E8 0PI LOT 00" 00" 00 00" 00" 00° -€8°0%T LOT
-08°9TE‘880 ¥ 00" 00" £9°209°¢ L1°666°96C £L°T90°LE -0T°Z99°280°T -€2°8ZE'E¥E’'E
-66°80S’6 00" 00" 00" 00" TL €952 -08°%59 ¢ -06°LTV'B

L6 E¥8 ELT 00" 00" 0T L9 08°T08'82 Z6°tZv'68 -TT°L69P0T LE BYZ 09T

00" 00" 00- 00" 00" 00" 00" 00"

-LB LBL PTL 00" 00" (1 00 00" 00" -L8 LBL'¥TL
-€0°81¢ 00" 00" 00- 00" 00" 00 ~E0°BTE

-90°L8S'€0T 00" 00" 00" 00" 0072621 -TL709€°T -SE BTG '€0T
~FE 00T L96°T 00 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" -¥E°00T°L96°T
-L5°6¥%8'8Z1 00° o]0 00° 00° 00" 00" LS 678°8TT

00° 00 00° 00" [l 00" 00" 00"

-98 ET¥ 'T% 00" 00" 00" 00° 00°59 -00°8%E°¢C -98°0ET‘6€
-58°0L0°8T 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" -6Z°9Z1°8 -95°¥¥6°6
-BL TEL'TS 00- 00" 00" 00" 00 €€y -00"8IV'T -8L°L08'0S
-L6°780°225'1 00° 00" 00" 00" LT 658’6 -00°LET LET -¥1°60L°¥%EC'T
-65°085'06 00" 00" 8T LTE'T 00" TE"0€T’'8 -51°¢66°2 -€0°S¥0 ‘L6
-91°ZLE L6 00" 00" 00° 00" ZL S9Z'SY -0L°€S8'8L 8T ¥8L'EY
-LS 9E8°L0S 00" 00" 00" 00" Ze"682'sET LD €€0‘60% -Z8°¢60 'pEE
~00°001 00" 00" 00" 00" 00°0L -00°0L -00°00T
-BS06€°S06 '€ 00" 00" 00 00° S0°TI9T S8 -%L°895°588 -68°Z86 ‘¥0T'E
-L9°T8T 9f¢ 00" 00" 00" LE EZL'E TO'6LS‘TT -LY 8E9'SE -65°9¥8°CT¢

00" co- 00" 00" 00" 00" oo 00"

-00°099 [ 00" 00" 00" o0 00 -00°099
-00°000°000‘T 00" [+ 00" 00" 00" 00" ~00°000°000°T
LT 90%°STE‘T 00" 00" -65°Z%9 16° €18 8T €L°SLY'9¢E -5Z°SL0'EY -L0°8L6°92E°T
-8T°LIZ'LS0’T 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" -IBL9Z €L -LY 696 '€86°T
-S¥°ZBZ'€9T 00" 00- 00- (1 €6°L98'¥50°T 00 -BEOST8TZ'T
-6T°6L6°TLS 00" oo- 00" 00" 00" -yPLLT LT -SL TOB'S¥S

00°STZ €Y 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" [e] 00 STZ'EY

-LZ 9L8°'%8 (] 00" 00-° 00" 00" 00 -LZ°9L8'%8

00" 00" 00" 00" 00° 00° 00" 00~

00" 00" 00" 00" 00° 00" 00" 00°

¥S°6%9°66 00" 00" 00- 00" 00" 00" ¥S5'6¥9°'66
-TT 198 [ 00" 00" 00° 00°0s2 -00°00¢ ~I1°118
-08°196°2LY 00" 00" 67 00€E°T 857 €8Y ' ¥T £6°ZVL €T -08°0GE'€E€T -00°8ET’'6LS

00" 00° 00 00" 00 00 00" 00"
-ST°S0L‘88% 00" 00" 00" 00" 6Z°S88'F -8T°08E‘S -9Z°0TZ‘L8Y
-8%°060'S0€E’¥ 00" 00 007998 €0 '€ SS°BLE'SPY S0°00L°S9¢€ -85°008°99Z°'%F -0S°¥ET'E60’'%

00°00¢C 00" 00" 00" 00" 00° 00" 00°002

00°000°2 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" [ 00°000°2
00°00T‘T 00" 0o0° 00 00" 00" 00" 00°00T'T

[ 833 4 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" 0E"6EY

DL ¥68°8LT 8 00" 00" 00" 00" 00 00" 0L v68°8LT8

0S°Z0Z'6ST 'L 00" 00 oo0° 00° 00" 00" 0S°Z0Z'6ST L

99°8L8ZEE'TT [+l 00-° -T6°025'6%0°'¢€ -8€°00Z %T0'T -T6°208°CI0’2 98°9€T TLL L T0°99T'8E9 ‘6

00° 00 00" 00" 00" 00 00" 00"

00" 00" 00" 00 00" 00" 00" 00°

0L €ZZ’S [ 00" [t 00" (1ol 00" oL gze's

9€°LYe’8 00 00 00" 00" o0 00 9€°LY6 ‘8
00" 00° 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" 00"

HONV'IVE ONIONI 1IN0 S¥EISNVEL NI SaddsNvdl SUNHONOA NJNOL STIOIAYG SINIWISINGSTA SIJdIdDEA QUYMEOS  “IvE

8102/20 ¥od
LIHHS DNIONVIVE ATHLNOW
ONIINIOODY SwITINSVIUL
T abeg YTANSYAYL ALNNOD AHIOLS

ONIQTIOH SIXVI AAENDIS 006
ONIQTOH SAXVYI qHANDIASNN 008
YIZ 1DdLr0¥d TYLIJVYD 082
dl¥ TYLOW 0LZ

ADNIDYIWE TYII 092
LIOTI¥LSIA FYIA 0ST

ESNOH YYA40 S¥AJId 1£2Z
NOISSTWWOD WSIVNOL DA 0€2Z
NOISSIWWOD I3A 1ZZ

IDAN0¥d TIVA DA 02T

aNNd DAIE TIVC S.AJTYIHS 012
SINYID TVIIAHA 902

MOVEAYd I¥L 002

aNNd MAVd 06T

LIN IAUL 681

anNfd LAN0D FDILSNC L8
LINIQIDOV INIDIAGNI S8T
LdN0D IOIYLSIA 081

dIYLS OLT

aNnd AD0TONHDJL S9T

Lg3a TOOHDS 09T

TOOHOS 0ST

LAN0O ONda 0%T

OD¥Yd STIEM ANOE ¥asn S€T
YIMES FAIATQ VINIOD®IA O€T
ALID VINISDAIA 40 NMOL 02T
TIIH Q109 40 NMOL 01T
NOIIVZITIEYLS 00T

WHLSAS ¥ALVM 060

ANNd FINLONILSVHINT 080
SLOEALOAd TYLIAVYD 0LO
NOILISINOOV INZWAINOE 090
ADIA¥IS 0S50

4aI1v TYNLOW SV0

LOTILSIA I¥IF 0%0
ADNIDYIWE FJIA SE€0

JIIL 0€0

NOILNLILSHEY ¥Z0

5av¥od 0zo

XYl- ADNVLSISSV INIZDIANI SI0
TYOIQIW LNADIANI 0TO
TYIIANID TOO

JYOSSISSY  HSYD ALLEd S06
JATYIHS HSYO ALLAd %06
HSYD ALLId £06

SNIOD U710 106

INNODOY JIDT ALVLS 961
LIMAYW AENOW OD¥v¥dA STIEM T61T
LNNODDY DD OD¥VA STTIEM 661
SATYS ALYEd0¥d ¥ 40 9 86T
SAAYDD JNVL SSANISNE L61
JNVE NI HSYD S6T

DNIQTOH LiNOD IDIYLSIA $61
HSVYD vasN ODYvd STIIM €61

NOILATYOSAQ IO¥Y

GE€:ST:60 8T/ZT/€0 :uny
00TZY¥L :ON 3xoday




Z¥°S6S
SLLLS'T
06" €Z
00°00T
05°L80°€
SZ°698°'S
S0°991
00°006°T
00°0¢c¢E
TIZ°626°T
007001
oo0-zZov'c
05765
00°0ST
00 9¢
§56°0¢C
£€8°96¢
80°L8
00°00T
00°GZ

0L 9L
0Z'116°C
v9°L
00°¢Cé6T1
LE'T6
£€°¢e
06°0¢
€2°91
S¥°9

¥8 t¥
80°¥Z8'T
00°sZ
69°%Z9
LY 8%e’c
0097
00" %1
00°vveE’C
€v°8

00" 9%
Z9°6C
€6°6T
6T°ST

00 00T
ve se
00°TO8
80°%T
00°S¢L
00°8L

8T 06
s0°98
00°06
SL'6¢
16°91
00°09

junowy
81/82/2
666666 ybnoIyr T
s)oayp bu
DNIILNNODOY
1 abeg

8T/91/2
8T/91/2
8T/9T/¢
81/91/2
8T1/91/2
81/91/2
8T1/91/¢
8T/91/¢
81/91/2
8T/91/2
81/91/2
81/91/¢
8T/91/C
81/20/2
81/20/2
8T/6T/T
8T/61/T
81/61/1
L1/22/21
Li/eez/et
LT/60/1T
LT/60/1T
LT/60/TT
LI/€T/0T
LT/€T1/01
LT/T0/6
LT/81/8
LT/%0/8
L1/0Z/L
LT/02/L
LT/€0/€
9T1/60/21
91/60/CT
9T/%1/01
9T/91/6
91/91/6
91/20/6
91/20/6
91/20/6
9T/61/8
91/2Z/L
91/80/L
9T1/80/L
9T/01/9
91/81/¢
S1/81/6
ST1/%0/6
S1/%vZ/L
ST/92/9
S1/21/9
ST/21/9
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/V
ST/LT/%

@3eq ooyd
- 00/00/0
#>309UD
TpuelsIno
Sw AEINSYALL
AINNOD AH¥OLS

FIYOIAAN NYIAINON

AT ‘SHDYNOSHA NYWAH AAN
NOISNVW AWIDVH

S HLIAM ‘NOSsanr

OTT dNO¥D HNIILINSNOD ¥NL
d1 SYDTIHJIEA

dIAYd ‘&@Ind

QYVHOI¥ ‘TTIINNOD

SIMAT LIODS ‘TIENdNg

DONI ‘DIdLOITIH SHOHINL
NATOL AANLIHM ‘dxod

DONI ‘"ESIHd¥ALINI NOXY
alTl INIWdOTIAZA SAVY
AJOLTIYYAL HOHVI ONAN

d OTIADNY ‘INIdIAd
TIAYHOIW NHOL ‘YZOANIW
DTT ¥AMOL TYHOID

NAAILS ‘A¥YMOTIH

AIYd AIDA

¥Yo0ddHEY ‘NYgdor

SIY¥YHD ‘dOOH

O ENAVYM ‘MDIMAJVYH

DNOod ‘snovd

SA09MOD ANOLSHWOL HHL
VIDI¥IVA ® "INYd ‘SIAVH
QAY0d ONIZVED VAYAIN
dAYS ¥ SSYID ‘MDO0T M 3 D
I¥d ‘NALLIHM

JAIINNAL ‘SI10d

NOYVHS 'ayvNd=d

dd0D ONINONAUL HLITIFANID
D711 ADILON ISHL
HSYHIWIW JTIYSHTOHM ODISOD
¥YSIT ® LI0DS ‘NOSIAVH
SNOISSTIIGWI HAIIYAONNI
NVIQ ‘JIOWAVH
SHSIYAYALNA MVHEd NAS
HISHETED ¥ NNATID ‘NOIHOIF'T
SNOISSTIAWI HAIIYAONNI
or 3rddod ‘Lsind

NOSVY[ ‘SNIMMVYH

qIVY0d DNIZVID YAVAEN
YANOL ‘MOTIVH

HIYYHAL ‘HONAT

ONI DIDOTIAOD

NOOVIV AIYVW NNV ‘AVYINNW
VYHIIEVY.L ‘NOSHOH

DONI 999 HHYHL

HONH ‘I¥0D4ddAr

AJ¥YVL ® VANIT ‘¥IdId
NHOL ‘ANSaH¥JInNd

NHOL 'AvVdS

avHD ‘SNYA"

HYJOgdd ‘JHANILD

sweN 29Aordwd/iopusa

woxqg
woxqg

1%:25:60

vo9%0%
0v6v0¥
LLOSOY
950S0V¥
£19€0?
SL6EOY
PIOP0V
£TCSOY
TLO9EOY
T0CS0%
880S50%
€TTSOP
S8C00T
£EV6E0Y
S68¢€0¥
002S0%
L9EEOT
v0ZS0V
€8190%
88TSOV
SCLYOP
T61TV07%
VY9TS0Y
TO6E0Y
LSTSOV
9SCTO0T
SE00T

9%6T0T
LTTSOV
8TTSOP
759001
818¥0%
LYZEOT
£€99%0%
0%EE0T
LLBOOT
C68E0V
£€S5670Y
OvEECOT
9¢€6¥07¥
806¥%07¥
9GCTI0T
S68¥0%
£L8Y0Y
LLO9EOY
L69VOY
9ELYOY
8€6€0Y
9L9YV0Y
O0L9%0¥%
Z8EE0Y
619%0V
TZ9%07%
6S6€07

00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 6671
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661

# uosasg bes jueg

SWTL uny

8T/2T/€0
29L1ad

96216 D
T6Z216 D
08216 D
€L2T6 D
CLZT6 D
LSZT6 D
08216 D
L¥YZT6 MO
¥€Z1i6e MO
£€€216  AD
cegzie D
82ZT6 D
LZZ16 AD
68116 D
98116 D
6S50T6 D
8€016 D
0€0T6 AD
8806 D
LZ806 D
L9706 MO
€9%06 MAD
8Z¥%06 D
€806 D
¥0206 2D
£€5868 MDD
96968 D
6£968 3D
65¥68 2D
08€68 D
61188 D
PESLS D
6€EPL8 D
L9698 MAD
£€vL98 D
8€L98 D
9L998 D
¥Z998 D
T1998 D
6%%98 D
§6T98 D
€098 D
TZ098 2D
T9LS8 AD
666%8 D
06€€8 D
062¢€8 MDD
LT6Z8 D
T6S9C8 D
SL¥Z8 AD
Y0o¥Z8 D
€L6T8 D
LEG6T8 D
CZ6T8 D
soayD di,
93ed uny
ON Jxodsy




LZ 0SSV LS Telol
LT 0SY LS *Tel0l5L jqueg
S9°00% €T :Tej0l =dAg
S9°¥69°¢€ 81/9z/¢ YHHAOLSTYHD ‘dOOH S0CTT 00 661 €TT9¢ ¥ud
00°0TH ‘T 8T/€Z/2 LZTYH# DOSSY ¥ALHOIA HAIA 105006 00 661 ITT9¢ ¥4
00°vE9’S 81/€2/¢ dWOD qI¥ydAdA 00€006 00 66T y0T9¢ ¥d
0S°2Z1L 81/¢€z/¢ (XYL-JALAY) dWOD aI¥IHAAd 662006 00 66T €0T9€ ¥ud
09°L g1/€z/e (NTODNTIT) HONVANSNI FAIT 9TT006 00 66T S609¢ ¥4
€6°9¢L 91/80/% HONVANSNI H4I1 £€IT006 00 66T €T0Se ¥4
€S EPT'T ST/60/0T dNANg HFAOTAWE/TYDIALIN LOT006 00 66T YLLYE dd
€L°09 S1/v1/8 SCT °"SNI HAIT "TYINOTOD T0Z006 00 66T soL¥E ¥Ud
TL°0T YT/ST/8 VD/NOIIDATIOD dHd JA4IUHAHS ST9006 00 66T 1egeve da
Z9°6%0°'%¥ 1305 =dAg
00°000°S 81/91/¢ NOSYL ' THAVHNYA S00S0% 00 661 6LET6 D
00°005°‘2 81/91/¢ 48804 dddEL ALNNOD XHYOLS ZSETOV 00 66T 6CET6 MO
00 006 % 81/91/¢ SYYOM DITdnd 0D 1S STLTIOT 00 66T SC€T6  AD
00°8¢ 8T/91/¢ d OTIDNVY ‘INIVLAd S68¢€0% 00 66T c0€T6 D
09°9¢T 81/91/¢ OTT DNILTINSNOD NOILYON E9TVOV 00 66T L6ZT6 D
Junowy 23ed qoayD swen safoTdwd/I0pusp  # uosisg beg yueg # yosyp dg
81/8z/Z - 00/00/0 woxa
666666 ybnoayr I #309UD woxg
s3o9yp burtpueisino
ONILNAOCIOOVY SudHINSYIAL T¥:2S:60 * swil uny 8I/ZI/€0 : =3ed Uuny
Z abeg ALNNOD AHJOLS ¢9LTag :oN 3xoday




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 20, 2018 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution # 18-483 authorizing staff
to negotiate with the developers for the formation of Storey County Special Assessment District
No. 01 (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) to provide a portion of the funds needed for the
construction of an effluent water line. Also attached are draft forms of a proposed Expense
Reimbursement Agreement and a Deposit Agreement for review and possible approval of the
forms.

2. Recommended motion: I, (Commissioner), move for approval of Resolution # 18-483
authorizing staff to negotiate with the developers for the formation of Storey County Special
Assessment District No. 01 (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) and move to approve the forms of the
Deposit Agreement and the Preliminary Expense Reimbursement Agreement.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten

Department: Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968
4. Staff summary: Please see Page 2
S. Supporting materials:  Resolution No. 18-483

Draft Deposit Agreement
Draft Expense Agreement

6. Fiscal impact: No
Funds Available: Fund: Roads Comptroller

7. Legal review required: Yes

8. Reviewed by:
\/’Qs"\/Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

mounty Manager Other agency review:

KL _ District Attorney

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

e )

Agenda Item No. 7




4.

|

Staff summary: As we continue to assess the viability of establishing a Special
Assessment District to serve as a funding mechanism for the effluent pipeline project, we
are now at a point that several professional consultants must be brought in to validate the
accuracy of the Developer’s application and plan. These include our Financial Consultant,
Marty Johnson with JNA, our Bond Counsel, Kendra Follet with Sherman & Howard, an
Appraiser which we have selected but not engaged Mark Stafford with Stafford Appraisal
and an Assessment Engineer which we have selected but not engaged Farr West
Engineering. Approval of Resolution No. 18-483 establishes a path for the Developer to
deposit an amount still being determined that will fully cover estimated costs associated
with these professional services inclusive of services performed to date by JNA and
Sherman & Howard. Nothing in this resolution or the current draft documents which
facilitate both the deposit and the payment of project related expenses binds the County to
establishing a Special Assessment District. It merely places responsibility on the Project
Developer to fully pay for professional services costs necessary to further analyze and
determine if staff chooses to recommend to the Board of Commissioners approval of
establishing a Special Assessment District to fund this project.

Also attached are draft forms of agreement for preliminary expense reimbursement and
deposit agreement. The Resolution authorizes the County Manager to sign these forms and
thereby bind the County to the agreements. The forms of the agreements are provided to
the board for possible approval.




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO.
(TAHOE RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER)

PRELIMINARY WORKS EXPENSE AGREEMENT

This Preliminary Works Expense Agreement is between Storey County, Nevada (the

"County") and Switch (collectively the "Developers"), who are the owners or control the owners of

all of the property proposed to be assessed in the proposed Storey County, Nevada Special

Assessment District No. _ (Tahoe Reno Industrial Center) and is made as of the ___ day of
, 2018.

WHEREAS, Developers have requested the County to form Storey County, Nevada
Special Assessment District No. _ (Tahoe Reno Industrial Center) (the "District"); and

WHEREAS, the County has determined that the project contemplated in the District,
i.e., an effluent water pipeline project (the "Project”, as more particularly described in the first
sentence of Section 1 hereof) will serve a public purpose; and

WHEREAS, in order to determine whether to create and finance the District, certain
studies, right-of-way acquisitions, engineering design work, and environmental, permitting, and other
preliminary work (collectively the "Preliminary Work", as more particularly described in the second
sentence of Section 1 hereof) must be done; and

WHEREAS, the Developers have agreed to fund the cost of the Preliminary Work
prior to the time of creation of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Developers desire to be reimbursed for amounts advanced to the
County pursuant to this Agreement from the proceeds of bonds issued to fund the District, and the
County is agreeable to such reimbursement provided that: (1) the bonds are issued, consistent with
the County's Special Assessment Guidelines (adopted by the Board of County Commissioners of the
County on February 6, 2018) and NRS 271.710 through 271.730, (2) there are bond proceeds
available to pay such reimbursements, after taking into account other amounts required or expected
to be paid with those proceeds; and (3) the reimbursement is otherwise consistent with federal and
State law and County policy; and

WHEREAS, the Developers understand that this agreement does not obligate the
County to issue Bonds, and that if the County does not issue Bonds for the District, the Developers
will not be reimbursed for the costs advanced pursuant to this Agreement, but the Developers will, in
that event, be entitled to any transferable work product of any work performed with money advanced
under this Agreement.

47974053




NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL
COVENANTS CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT, THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Project and the Preliminary Work. The Project is to provide an
effluent water pipeline project in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center area of the County. In connection
with that Project, the following tasks need to be done prior to creation of the District;

A. Right-of-ways on which the improvements are to be located
must be acquired by the Developers;

B. Engineering design work and assessment engineering for the
improvements must be completed; and

C. Any necessary environmental, wetlands, archeological, Corp of
Engineers and other studies and permitting need to be accomplished so that improvements can be
definite, right-of-way acquired and the Project constructed.

All of the above work will be done by or at the direction of the Developers with the
consent of the County except as provided in Sections 3 and 4 below.

Section 2. Timetable; Developers' Input. An estimated timetable for performance
of the improvements described in Section 1 will be provided by the Developers within 60 days of the
execution of this Agreement, but it is understood by the parties that this is an estimate only and is no
way binding on any parties. The Developers will keep the County informed of progress on the
Preliminary Work and allow the County to meet with it and the Developer's consultants to provide
input and suggestions with respect to each of the above steps. This Section obligates the Developers
to allow the County the opportunity to present their suggestions.

Section 3. Consultants. The County agrees to consult with Developers prior to
the hiring of consultants for the Preliminary Work and allow Developers' input into the decision to
hire the consultants and into the form of the contract or contracts with those consultants. The
Developers hereby consent to the use of and execution of contracts with Farr West Engineering, as
the assessment engineer for the District and Stafford Appraisal, as the appraiser for the District. No
consultant, the cost of which is to be paid pursuant to this Agreement, will be hired without the
consent of the Developers, but that consent will not be unreasonably withheld. After the County has
proposed the retention of a consultant and mailed a copy of the proposed contract with the consultant
to the Developers, Developers shall have 15 days to object thereto, and if no objection is delivered to
the County in writing within that 15 day period, the Developers will be conclusively presumed to
have consented to the retention of that Consultant on the terms specified in the proposed contract.

Section 4. Developers' Participation in Right-of-Way Acquisition. The County
agrees that as development proceeds, the Developers may approach property owners to attempt to
obtain the right-of-ways required for the Project, and County agrees to cooperate with Developers in

47974053 2




this effort; however the County does not agree to exercise its power of eminent domain for any
parcels. Itis understood that to the extent Developers so obtain rights-of-way or options thereto, the
County will not expend its own efforts in obtaining options or rights-of-way for the same parcels.
Developers understand that the County is able to reimburse them only for rights-of-way which are
actually used for the Project, and if the Developers acquire any rights-of-way or options to rights-of-
way which, for whatever reason, are not ultimately used for the Project, that particular cost is not
eligible for reimbursement.

Section 5. Costs and Expenses. All of the County's costs for performing the
Preliminary Work, including the cost of any consultant as described in the Section 3, the County's
out-of-pocket costs in connection with performing these tasks (such as the cost of mailing, express
deliveries, printing, etc.), and a reasonable charge for the County's in-house costs calculated by
multiplying the County's standard in-house billing rates times the number of hours actually expended
in working on the above tasks, will be billed to and paid by the Developers.

Section 6. Budgets. The Developers will prepare a budget for the Preliminary
Work at least annually within 2 months of the execution hereof and thereafter prior to July 1 of each
year, which the County will have the right to review and comment upon. The final budget, however,
must be approved by the County.

Section 7. Quarterly Statements. The Developer shall submit to the County on or
about the time the first annual budget is completed and thereafter on the 15th day of the second
month of each calendar quarter, a statement of the Developers' estimated costs and expenditures to
be made for the Preliminary Work during the next ensuing calendar quarter plus or minus the
amounts described in Section 8 hereof. The first statement shall also include all costs and expenses
incurred prior to the submission of that statement to the County, and an estimate of costs and
expenses to be incurred thereafter until the completion of the then current calendar quarter.

Section 8. Adjustments; Due Dates. Statements will also include as an addition
or subtraction, as the case may be, the difference between the billed estimated cost (previously paid
by the Developer) of Preliminary Work for the preceding calendar quarter and the actual amount of
costs and expenses for Preliminary Work during that preceding calendar quarter. Statements
rendered by the County shall be due and payable by the Developers without further demand or
notice, on the 30th calendar day after the statement is mailed by the County. All checks for
expenses hereunder must be received by the County Comptroller at the below address by no later
than 3:00 p.m. on the due date.

Section 9. Termination. In the event the Developers notify the County in
writing to cease the Preliminary Work or the Developers do not pay the amount specified in any
statement when due, the Preliminary Work shall be terminated. The County shall then wind up all
work on the Preliminary Work and request its consultants to wind up all of their work on the
Preliminary Work. The Developers shall be responsible to pay to the County: (1) an amount equal to
all of the County's costs incurred in performing the Preliminary Work to the date the Preliminary
Work is terminated and (2) the cost of winding up work on the Preliminary Work incurred by the

47974053 3




County and its consultants; but the Developers shall not be responsible for the payment of the costs
of any other services with respect to Preliminary Work performed after the winding up of the work is
completed. The County shall render to the Developers a final statement which will specify the
amount owed by the Developers which has not theretofore been paid, and if the amount theretofore
paid by the Developers s sufficient to pay all expenses and there remains a positive balance, the final
statement shall so state, and a check for the positive balance shall be forwarded by the County within
30 calendar days after mailing of the final statement. In the event that the Developers owe funds
pursuant to this section, those amounts are due and payable without further notice or demand, on the
30th calendar day after a statement is mailed by the County. On a termination as provided in this
section, the schedule described in Exhibit A to this contract or any amendment thereto, or re-estimate
thereof, is then terminated and the County shall have no obligation to recommence work on the
Preliminary Work except upon mutual written agreement of both parties, based on a new schedule.
Developers understand that if work ceases pursuant to this section, the County may commit its
resources to other projects; consequently, County can not commit that it will be able to recommence
work on the Preliminary Work at any particular time.

Section 10.  Billing Disputes. Should the Developers in good faith contest whether
or not an expenditure which has been billed on a statement to the County is a valid expenditure for
Preliminary Work, they shall nevertheless pay to the County the amount of that expenditure when
due. The Developers may, after making the payment, appeal to the County Manager, describing in
writing the reasons that it feels a particular expenditure is not an appropriate expenditure for the
Preliminary Work. The County Manager shall render his decision with respect to the Developers'
appeal to the Developers in writing. The decision of the County Manager shall be final and binding
on the Developers.

Section 11.  Late Payments. All payments made after the due date shall include
interest at a rate equal to the Prime Rate (or average Prime Rate, if more than one) as published in
the Wall Street Journal applicable to the period for which the payment is late, plus 2% per annum.

Section 12.  Notices. All notices, statements, suggestions, objections and payments
made hereunder shall be tendered to the following addresses by first class mail, or by overnight
delivery service, and shall be deemed received on the day after they are mailed or deposited with the
overnight delivery service:

47974053 4




If to the County: Storey County, Nevada
PO Box 176
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

If to Developers:
Attention:

Section 13.  Copies of County Notices. A copy of any notice, suggestion or
objection delivered to the County hereunder shall also be mailed to:

County Manager
and Storey County District Attorney

Section 14.  Copies of Developers' Notices. A copy of any notice, bill, or budget
delivered to the Developers hereunder shall also be forwarded to:

Section 15. Indemnification.

A. The Developers agree to protect, indemnify, defend and hold
the County, its officers or employees and agents and each of them harmless from and against any and
all claims, losses, expenses, suits, actions, decrees, judgments, awards, attorneys' fees, and court
costs which the County, its officers, employees or agents or any combination thereof may suffer or
which may be sought against or recovered or obtained from the County, its officers, employees or
agents or any combination thereof as a result of or by reason of or arising out of or in consequence
of: (i) any actions undertaken pursuant to this Agreement; or (ii) any act or omission negligent or
otherwise of the Developers or any of their subcontractors, agents or anyone who is directly
employed by or acting in connection with the Developers or any of their subcontractors, or agents, in
connection with the Project. If the Developers fail to do so, the County shall have the right but not
the obligation to defend the same and charge all of the direct or incidental costs of such defense
including any attorneys' fees or court costs to and recover the same from the Developers.

B. No indemnification is required to be paid by the Developers for
any claim, loss or expense arising from the willful misconduct or gross negligence of the County or
its officers or employees.

C. The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of
this Agreement. It is not intended by the parties hereto that this indemnification provision revive any
claim of or extend any statute of limitations which has run against any third party.

Section 16. No Third Party Beneficiaries. None of the provisions of this
Agreement are intended to cause the owners of any property assessed, the general public, or any

47974053 ' 5




member thereof, or any other person to become a third party beneficiary hereunder or to authorize
anyone who is not a party to this Agreement to maintain any suit for any claim or other matter
pursuant to this Agreement.

Section 17.  Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the County and the Developers and their respective successors and assigns.
No assignment of this Agreement or any right or obligation hereunder by either Developers hereto or
by the County shall be valid unless the other parties hereto consent to such assignment in writing.

Section 18.  Inspection of Books and Records. The County will permit the
Developers to inspect its books and records pertaining to the Preliminary Work, including but not
limited to, information relating to amounts budgeted and expended, interest earned, and balances of
funds held by the County.

Section 19.  Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including the exhibit hereto,
constitutes the entire agreement of the parties hereto. This Agreement may be modified by the
parties hereto but only by a written instrument signed by each party.

Section 20. No Waivers. No failure or delay on the part of either party in
enforcing any provision shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial enforcement
of any provision hereof preclude any other or further enforcement or the exercise of any other right,
power or remedy that either party may have.

Section 21.  Attorneys' Fees. Ifthe County incurs attorneys' fees or expenses or any
other fees and expenses in connection with the actual or overtly threatened breach by the Developers
of any provision hereof or in enforcing the provisions hereof, the County shall be entitled to recover
such fees and expenses from the Developers.

Section 22.  Partial Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement is deemed to be
invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the remaining provisions
hereof that can be given effect without the invalid or unenforceable provision and the County and
Developers agree to replace such invalid or unenforceable provision with a valid provision which
has, as nearly as possible, the same effect.

Section 23.  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada.

Section 24.  No County Obligation. Nothing herein obligates the County to expend
any money other than funds paid by the Developers for the purposes hereof and funds derived from
the sale of Bonds hereafter issued for the District which are available for expenditures. Nothing
herein obligates the County to issue the bonds. Nothing herein obligates the County to approve the
application to be filed by the Developers or to proceed with the District if the application is not
submitted or approved by the County.

47974053 6




Section 25. Term. Except as otherwise provided in Section 13 hereof, this
Agreement shall be in effect from the date and year first mentioned above until the earlier (i) the date
this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 9 hereof, but not before all amounts due hereunder
are paid by the Developer, (ii) the date the Preliminary Work is completed and all amounts due
hereunder by the Developers are paid, or (iii) the date this Agreement is succeeded by a definitive
financing agreement among the parties hereto or their successors for the District.

Section 26.  Power of Parties Signing Agreement. The persons executing this
Agreement hereby state and acknowledge that they are authorized and empowered to do so on behalf
of the party so designated.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the County and the Developers have caused this
Financing Agreement to be executed as of the day and year first mentioned above.

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
By:

County Manager
Storey County, Nevada

[DEVELOPER]
By:
Name:
Title:
47974053 7




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
DEPOSIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT
PROPOSED SPECIAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

THIS DEPOSIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made
and entered into as of , 2018, by and between STOREY COUNTY,
NEVADA (the "County"), and Switch (the "Developer").

WHEREAS, the Developer has requested that the County conduct proceedings pursuant
to the provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 271 to form a special improvement district
within the County (the "District"), to levy special assessments, and to issue one or more series of
bonds (hereinafter called "Bonds") to provide for the construction, acquisition, or furnishing of
certain public improvements within the District; and

WHEREAS, the Developer owns real property that is included within the boundaries of
the proposed District; and

WHEREAS, the Developer has agreed to advance moneys to be used by the Comptroller
of Storey County (the “Comptroller”) to pay costs and expenses associated with the formation
of the District, the levy of assessments, and the issuance of Bonds, such advances being subject
to reimbursement or credit upon a successful issuance of the Bonds or the termination or
abandonment of such proceedings as provided herein; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto wish to enter into the Agreement to define the terms and
conditions under which moneys will be advanced by and reimbursed to the Developer.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties, for mutual consideration, agree as follows:

SECTION 1. ADVANCEMENT OF MONEYS. The Developer shall advance moneys
(the "Deposit") to the Comptroller as provided in Section 3 hereof, which Deposit shall be used
by the County to pay costs generally described in Section 2 hereof. If the Deposit is not
advanced in accordance with Section 3 hereof, the County shall not proceed with the issuance of
Bonds.

48063442




SECTION 2. USE OF DEPOSIT. The Comptroller shall use the Deposit to pay costs
and expenses, if any, incidental to or associated with the formation of the District, the levy of the
assessments, and the issuance of Bonds (collectively, "Financing Costs"), including, without
limitation, costs and expenses relating to the following, as applicable: (a) the property appraisal,
(b) the absorption study, (c) noticing and publication expenses, (d) the assessment engineer,
(e) District, assessment, and Bond administration, (f) Sherman & Howard LLC, as Bond
Counsel, and (g) INA Consulting Group, as the County's financial advisor. The scope of work
and terms and conditions of the agreements for the foregoing advisors and special services will
be subject to the Comptroller's approval or as outlined in agreements that will be on file in the
Comptroller's office and available for inspection and review by the Developer. The Comptroller
shall maintain records of the payment of all Financing Costs and keep such records on file and
available for inspection and review by the Developer in the Comptroller's office.

SECTION 3. DEPOSITS. The Developer shall deposit with the Comptroller $175,000
within five (5) days after the date of approval of this Agreement by the Board of County
Commissioners of the County. As additional Deposits are required, the Comptroller shall make
demand upon the Developer, and the Developer shall deposit such additional Deposit with the
Comptroller within five (5) business days of receipt of such demand. The Comptroller shall
cause all Deposit received from the Developer to be deposited into a separate interest-bearing
account maintained by or at the direction of the Comptroller. All interest or other amounts
earned on Deposit in such account shall be held in such account for the payment of Financing
Costs or otherwise applied as set forth in Section 4 hereof.

SECTION 4. REIMBURSEMENT. If the District proceedings are unsuccessful and are
terminated or abandoned prior to the issuance of the Bonds, the Comptroller shall transfer to the
Developer all Deposit, including any interest earnings thereon, then on deposit in the account
established and maintained pursuant to Section 3 hereof, exclusive of Deposit necessary to pay
Financing Costs or portions thereof that have been actually incurred, are not payable contingent
upon the successful issuance of the Bonds, and are due and owing as of the date of such
termination or abandonment.

The Developer shall have the following options upon the successful issuance of the
Bonds:

A. The Developer may direct the County to reimburse the Developer for the Deposit,
and the interest thereon, previously advanced by the Developer from the proceeds
of the Bonds;

B. The Developer may direct the County to return unexpended Deposit, and the
interest thereon, to Developer; or

C. The Developer may direct the County to do any combination of the above.

SECTION 5. RESERVED RIGHTS. This Agreement does not in any way create an
obligation or commitment that the County will proceed with the issuance of the Bonds, and the
County expressly reserves the right to terminate or abandon the proceedings at any time prior to
the issuance of the Bonds, if in the County's sole discretion, it deems such termination or

2
48063442




abandonment to be in the best interests of the County.

SECTION 6. BINDING EFFECT. This Agreement shall be binding on the successors
and assigns of the parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in Storey
County, Nevada, as of the date and year first herein above written.

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

County Manager, Storey County, Nevada

SWITCH

Name:
Title;:

48063442




RESOLUTION NO. 18-483

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING STAFF TO NEGOTIATE WITH THE
DEVELOPERS FOR THE FORMATION OF STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA,
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 01 (TAHOE REGIONAL
INDUSTRIAL CENTER); AND PROVIDING THE EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") of the County of
Storey (the "County"), State of Nevada, pursuant to the County's special assessment guidelines (the
"Guidelines"), requires the submission of a petition and an application to initiate the formation of a
special assessment district; and
WHEREAS, prior to completion of the petition and application by Switch and its
related entities (collectively, the "Developers") to form a special assessment district in the Tahoe
Regional Industrial Center area (the "District"), the Board now desires to authorize staff to begin
negotiating the particulars of the financing for certain improvements which benefit the District,
including but not limited to a water effluent project (the "Project”).
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF STOREY, IN THE STATE OF NEVADA:
Section 1. The Board, pursuant to the Guidelines, hereby authorizes staff to begin to
negotiate the particulars of the financing with the Developers, subject to the Developers making a
security deposit with the County in the form of cash, a letter of credit, surety bond, or other form of
security acceptable to the County Manager or designee in the amount of $175,000 (the "Deposit™) to
be used to pay the costs described in the Guidelines for payment of any costs that the County may
incur in connection with the District prior to the issue of bonds for the District, and that the
Developers will pay all of the County's costs in connection with the District which are not paid from
the Deposit. The Board hereby authorizes the execution of the Deposit and Reimbursement
Agreement between the County and [developer] to be executed by the County Manager and the
Preliminary Works Expense Agreement between the County and the Developers to be executed by
the County Manager, substantially in the forms on file with the County Clerk with such changes as
are agreed to by the County Manager whose execution of the Deposit and Reimbursement

Agreement and the Preliminary Works Expense Agreement shall be conclusive evidence of such

48144544




officer's consent to any changes. Pursuant to the Preliminary Works Expense Agreement, the
Developers agree to pay such costs regardless of whether the District is formed or bonds are issued.

Section 2. The District shall be known as the Storey County Special Assessment
District No. 01 (Tahoe Regional Industrial Center). The County hereby appoints Farr West
Engineering, as the assessment engineer for the District. The County hereby appoints Stafford
Appraisal, as the appraiser for the District.

Section 3. All action, proceedings, matters and things heretofore taken, had and done
by the County, and the officers thereof (not inconsistent with the provisions of this resolution),
concerning the District, be, and the same hereby are, ratified, approved and confirmed.

Section 4. The officers of the County be, and they hereby are, authorized and directed
to take all action necessary or appropriate to effectuate the provisions of this resolution, including,
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the preparation of all further necessary contract
documents, legal proceedings, and other items necessary or desirable for the acquisition of the
improvements and for the completion of the District.

Section 5. Passage of this Resolution does not obligate the County to create the
District, issue the Bonds or any bonds therefor, or to give any approvals to any projects in the District
or elsewhere.

Section 6. All resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this
resolution, are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency. This repealer shall not be

construed to revive any resolution, or part thereof, heretofore repealed.

48144544




Section 7. If any section, paragraph, clause or other provision of this resolution shall
for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such

section, paragraph, clause or other provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this

resolution.
PASSED AND APPROVED MARCH 20, 2018.
(SEAL)
Attest:
Chairman
Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada
County Clerk
-3-
48144544




STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF STOREY )

I, the duly elected, qualified and acting County Clerk of Storey County (the
"County"), Nevada, and ex officio Clerk of its Board of County Commissioners (the "Board"), do
hereby certify:

1. The foregoing are a full and correct copy of the record of proceedings of the
Board taken at a meeting held on March 20, 2018, so far as such minutes relate to a resolution (the
"Resolution"), a copy of which is therein set forth; and the copy of such resolution contained in such
minutes is a true, correct, compared copy of the original proposed at such meeting.

2. The adoption of the Resolution was duly moved and seconded and the
Resolution was adopted by an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board as follows:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:
Those Absent:

Those Abstaining:

3. The members of the Board were present at such meeting and voted on the
passage of such resolution as set forth above.

4. The Resolution was approved and authenticated by the signature of the
Chairman of the Board, sealed with the County seal, attested by the Clerk and recorded in the
minutes of the Board.

5. All members of the Board were given due and proper notice of the meeting,
Pursuant to Section 241.020, Nevada Revised Statutes, written notice of the meeting was given no
later than 9:00 a.m. on the third working day before the meeting including the notice the time, place,

location, and agenda of the meeting:

48144544




and

(a) By posting a copy of the notice not later than 9:00 a.m. on the third
working day before the meeting at the principal office of the Board, or if there is no
principal office, at the building in which the meeting is to be held, on the County's
website, on the State's website and at least three (3) other separate, prominent places

within the jurisdiction of the Board, to wit:

1)
2)
3)

(b) By mailing a copy of the notice to each person, if any, who has
requested notice of the meetings of the Board in the same manner in which notice is
required to be mailed to a member of the Board. Such notice, if mailed, was
delivered to the postal service no later than 9:00 a.m. on the third working day prior
to the meeting,

6. Upon request, the Board provides at no charge, at least one copy of the agenda

for its public meetings, any proposed resolution which will be discussed at the public meeting, and

any other supporting materials provided to the Board for an item on the agenda, except for certain

confidential materials and materials pertaining to closed meetings, as provided by law.

7. A copy of the notice so given of the meeting of the Board is attached to this

certificate as Exhibit A.

48144544

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, [ have hereunto set my hand this March 20, 2018.

County Clerk




EXHIBIT A

(Attach copy of posted agenda notice)

48144544




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 03/20/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Appoint Storey County representative to the Carson
Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) Carson River Watershed Committee as a voting member.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, I [county commissioner]
motion to appoint Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne to represent Storey
County as a voting member on the Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) Carson River
Watershed Committee for the remainder of the 2018 calendar year.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: Appointing a voting member to the CWSD Carson River Watershed
Committee will allow Storey County to participate at a higher level in watershed-wide
discussion and decisions, some of which affect Storey County and its communities. Austin
Osborne has served on the CWSD board and its programs affecting Storey County since 2009
and is recommended to serve on this district committee.

6. Supporting materials: CWSD letter requesting an appointee to the committee.
7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:
____District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:
Z mepaﬂmem Head Department Name:

( Q “l~County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

- Approved with Modifications
Continued

P —
s

Agenda Item No. / O

Page 1 of 2




Enclosure A: CWSD letter requesting an appointee to the CWSD Carson River Watershed
Committee

February 21, 2018

CONSERV
DisiRIC

Marshall McBride, Chairman

Storey County Board of Commissioners
268.B St

P.0. Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re:  Carson River Watershed Committee
Dear Mr. McBride;

As you may be aware, in 1989, the Nevada Legislature charged Carson Water
Subconservancy District (CWSD) with the protection and oversight of the upper Carson
River Watershed. The counties initially involved with CWSD were Douglas County,
Carson City, and Lyon County. In 1999, Churchill County joined CWSD, and in 2001,
Alpine County began to participate with CWSD through a Joint Powers Agreement.
The only portion of the Carson River watershed not officially associated with CWSD is
Storey County.

CWSD would like to extend to Storey County the invitation to join the Carson River
Watershed Committee as a voting member so that Storey County can more fully
| participate in watershed-wide discussion and decision-making. In accepting this
| invitation, plcasc appoint a representative to the Carson River Watershed Committee
t which meets during the CWSD Board meetings on the third Wednesday of each month.

We valuc Storey County’s involvement in the Carson River Watershed, Fvery
county’s voice needs to be heard and considered to protect our precious resources.

Thank you for your consideration of this invitation.

Smcerely,

Chairman

Page 2 of 2




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 03/20/18 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent | | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Authorize the County Manager to sign contract
between Storey County and the Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) in the amount of
$15,000 in the 2018-19 fiscal year to reimburse the CWSD for development of the Mark Twain
drainage area master plan identifying and quantifying the flood hazard risk in the Mark Twain
Estates and immediate surrounding area.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, ] [county commissioner]
motion to authorize the County Manager to sign contract between Storey County and the Carson
Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) in the amount of $15,000 in the 2018-19 fiscal year to
reimburse the CWSD for development of the Mark Twain drainage area master plan identifying
and quantifying the flood hazard risk in the Mark Twain Estates and immediate surrounding area.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: See Enclosure A.

6. Supporting materials: Enclosures: (A) Project proposal; (B) draft contract and CWSD letter.
7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:
__x__ District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:
z ;~-Depa1“tment Head Department Name:
Munty Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

frm— pa—y
LI § S—7

Agenda Item No. / I

Page 1 of 2




Enclosure A: Staff Summary:

Recent flooding events have impacted the Mark Twain Estates and surrounding area. Storey
County has funding opportunities from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) to
develop an area stormwater drainage master plan to address area drainage and flooding issues.
Downstream of the Mark Twain area, Lyon County is experiencing similar flooding issues within
Dayton Valley, particularly from Six Mile Canyon Creek and other area tributaries.

The two counties are partnering to produce a single area drainage master plan. The Carson Water
Subconservancy District (CWSD) is leading the FEMA funding application effort. The overall
master plan study will cost roughly $300,000, with most of the funds coming from FEMA. The
project will be managed and funded through the CWSD. The project, however, is estimated to cost
approximately $37,000 more than FEMA is providing. Lyon and Storey counties will be splitting
the overage 60/40 respective the approximate amount of land each have within the study area.

Page 2 of 2




CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT
777 East William Street, Suite 110A
Carson City, NV 89701
775/887-7450, fax 775/887-7457

February 22, 2018

Austin Osborne

Administrative Officer/Planning Director
Storey County

P.O.Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re:  Interlocal Contract Between CWSD and Storey County
Dear Mr. Osborne:

I am enclosing two partially executed originals of Interlocal Contract #2018-5 between CWSD
and Storey County to Assist with the Cost of Developing a Dayton Valley Area Drainage Master
Plan, Lyon County and Storey County, Nevada, which was approved by the CWSD Board on
February 21, 2018.  Please have both originals signed by your county officials, keep one for
your files, and return one to me for ours.

Thank you for your help in completing these documents. If you have any questions, please feel
free to contact me.

Sincerely, i
4 A / {

Toni Leffler
Administrative Assistant

Enclosures




CONTRACT #2018-5
INTERLOCAL CONTRACT
Addressing Funding from Storey County
to Carson Water Subconservancy District
to Assist with the Cost of Developing
a Dayton Valley Area Drainage Master Plan,
Lyon County and Storey County, Nevada
THIS CONTRACT dated this day of , 2018, is entered into by

and between STOREY COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada and the
CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State
of Nevada (hereinafter “"CWSD").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, STOREY COUNTY s a governmental subdivision of the State of
Nevada and therefore a public agency under NRS 277.100; and

WHEREAS, CWSD is a water subconservancy district created and organized
under the provisions of Chapter 541 of NRS; and

WHEREAS, this Contract is entered into under the provisions of the NRS
277.180 and accordingly must be ratified by appropriate official action of the governing
body of each party as a condition precedent to its entry into force; and

WHEREAS, CWSD has engaged J.E. Fuller/Hydrology and Geomophology, Inc.
to develop a Dayton Valley Area Drainage Master Plan, Lyon County and Storey
County, Nevada, more particularly described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, STOREY COUNTY has agreed to provide $15,000.00 in FY 2018-

19 toward the costs of the project described in Exhibit "A."

Contract #2018-5 Page 1 of 4




NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual

covenants herein contained, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties as follow:

1.

STOREY COUNTY hereby agrees to reimburse CWSD up to $15,000.00
for the costs associated with development of a Dayton Valley Area
Drainage Master Pian, Lyon County and Storey County, Nevada, which is
described in Exhibit "A “.

After July 1, 2018, CWSD agrees to bill STOREY COUNTY in the amount
of $15,000.00 as STOREY COUNTY'S contribution to the project
described in Exhibit “A.”

STOREY COUNTY further agrees to pay the approved amount of the
request to CWSD within four (4) weeks of said request.

STOREY COUNTY shall have no responsibility for costs exceeding
$15,000.00.

This Contract shall terminate June 30, 2019.

The parties will not waive and intend to assert available NRS Chapter 41
liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be
subject to punitive damages. To the extent applicable, actual contract
damages for any breach shall be limited by NRS 353.260 and NRS
354.626.

a. Consistent with paragraph 6 of this Contract, each party shall
indemnify, hold harmless and defend, not excluding the others right to
participate, the other party from and against all liability, claims, actions,

damages, losses, and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable

Contract #2018-5 Page 2 of 4




attorney’s fees and costs, arising out of any alleged negligent or willful
acts or omissions of the indemnifying party, its officers, employees and
agents. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or
otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would
otherwise exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph.

b. The indemnification obligation under this provision is conditioned upon
receipt of written notice by the indemnifying party within thirty (30) days of
the indemnified party’s accrual notice of any actual or pending claim or
cause of action. The indemnifying party shall not be liable for any
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred during the indemnified party’s chosen
right to participate with legal counsel.

8. For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as follows:

STOREY COUNTY CWSD

Austin Osborne Edwin James
Admin.Officer/Planning Director General Manager

PO Box 176 777 E. William St., #110
Virginia City, NV 89440 Carson City, NV 89701
(775) 847-0963 (775) 887-7456

9. This Contract shall be by and between the parties hereto and shall not be
assignable or transferable.

10.  Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws
of the State of Nevada, with venue for any dispute being Carson City
District Court. If any part of this Contract is declared to be unlawful, any

remaining obligations shall be deemed terminated.

Contract #2018-5 Page 3 of 4




11. This Contract may only be amended by consent of both parties. Any
amendments must be written and executed with the same formality as this
Contract.

12, This Contract constitutes the entire understanding between the parties
and there are no representations, conditions, warranties or collateral
agreements (expressed or implied), statutory or otherwise, with respect to
the subject of this Contract.

13.  The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this
Contract on behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into
this Contract and that the parties are authorized by law to engage in
cooperative action set forth herein.

14.  This Contract shall be entered into with duplicate originals, realizing that
each entity, by necessity, must approve and execute the subject
document at different dates, times, and places.

DATED: DATED: 2/ 2/ / (5
STOREY COUNTY : CARSON WATER
SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT
Pat Whitten, County Manager Karer] Abowd, Chaitfan
ATTEST: ATTEST:
]
Vanessa m glerk/Treasurer Toni M. Leffler, Secretar to the Board
Contract #2018-5 Page 4 of 4




Exhibit "AY
to Contract-#2018-5

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
FOR
DAYTON VALLEY AREA DRIANAGE MASTER PLAN,
LYON COUNTY AND STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

This agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into between JE Fuller/ Hydrology
and Geomorphology, Inc., an Arizona corporation (“JEF”) and Carson Water
Subconservancy District, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (“OWNER”) and
shall be effective as of February 21, 2018.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein set forth and of
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. OWNER has authorized the services set forth on Exhibit A to be performed
by JEF (the Work™) and JEF has agreed to perform the Work set forth on Exhibit A,
according to the terms and conditions set forth herein. JEF will not be required to perform
any additional Work, not expressly set forth on Exhibit A, unless the parties agree in
writing 1o the additional Work and the compensation to be paid for such additional Work.

2, JEF will invoice the OWNER for the Work and OWNER agrees to
compensate JEF for performing the Work according to the terms and conditions set forth
in this Section 2 and as set forth on Exhibit A, Payment for the Work performed by JEF
and the expenses incurred by JEF shall be invoiced on at least a monthly basis. Payments
are due and payable by the OWNER within thirty (30) days after the date of the invoice
unless written notification is received by JEF from OWNER disputing the invoice amount
within five (5) “work days” of the date on the invoice. Upon receipt of the dispute
notification the parties agree to communicate in person, via telephone or electronic mail
within five (5) work days of the receipt of the dispute notification for the purpose of
resolving the dispute. If the dispute is resolved the amount agreed upon in writing shall
continue to be due within thirty (30) days after the date of the invoice. If the dispute
remains unresolved at the end of the thirty (30) day invoice period, then JEF may suspend
the performance of any additional Work until resolution of the dispute or may terminate
this Agreement pursuant to Section 9. Any payments that are not made within the thirty
(30) day invoice period shall accrue interest at ten percent (10%) per annum from the date
of the invoice until the date paid. For purposes of this Agreement a “work day” shall be
Monday through Friday except legally recognized holidays.

3. JEF and OWNER hereby agree that JEF is an independent contractor and
is not an employee of OWNER, and OWNER is not employee of JEF, for any purpose
including, but not limited to, Federal and State income withholding, Social Security,
Federal and State unemployment insurance and worker’s compensation, and agrees
further that the JEF will be responsible for the payment of all Federal and State income
tax and Social Security obligations with respect to payments received from OWNER
hereunder.

Nayton Valley Area Drainage Master Plan m1
JE Fuller/ Hydrology and Genmorphology, inc.




4. JEF is responsible for the securing of any licenses and/or permits
required in connection with the performance of this contract, except as specifically
excluded by the description of the Work in Exhibit A.

S, JEF shall perform the Work without undue delay and shall devote such
time and effort to complete the Work in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.
JEF agrecs that the services to be performed by JEF pursuant hereto will be performed
in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members
of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances.

6. JEF agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, religion, color, sex, age, disability, or national origin and
further agrees not to engage in unlawful employment practices.

7. The parties will not waive and intend to assert available NRS chapter 41
liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to
punitive damages. To the extent applicable, actual contract damages for any breach shall
be limited by NRS 353.260 and NRS 354.626.

Consistent with the above paragraph of this Contract, each party shall indemnify, hold
harmless and defend, not excluding the others right to participate, the other party from
and against all liability, claims, actions, damages, losses, and expenses, including, but not
limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of any alleged negligent or
willful acts or omissions of the indemnifying party, its officers, employees and agents.
Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other
right or obligation of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to any party or person
described in this paragraph.

The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon receipt of
written notice by the indemnifying party within thirty (30) days of the indemnified
party’s accrual notice of any actual or pending claim or cause of action. The
indemnifying party shall not be liable to hold harmless any attorneys’ fees and costs for
the indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel.

8. JEF shall provide OWNER insurance as follows:

a. General Liability Insurance: Prior to commencement and for the
duration of activities that constitute the Project that is the subject of this Contract, JEF
shall maintain commercial general liability as follows:

i. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate.

. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - Products &
Completed Operations Aggregate.

iif. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) - Each Occurrence.

Dayton Valley Arca Drainage Master Plan p.2
JE Fuller/ Hydrology and Geomorphology, Inc




iv, CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG
00 01 04 13 (or a substitute form providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability
arising from premises, operations, products-completed operations, personal and
advertising injury, and liability assumed under an insured contract [(including the tort
liability of another assumed in a business contract)].

\2 OWNER, its officers, employees and immune contractors
shall be included as an insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement
CG 20 10 or CG 20 26, or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, including coverage
under the commercial umbrella.

vi. This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect
to any other insurance or self-insurance programs afforded to OWNER There shall be no
endorsement or modification of the CGL to make it excess over other available insurance;
alternatively, if the CGL states that it is excess or pro rata, the policy shall be endorsed to
be primary with respect to the additional insured.

vil. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL
limiting the scope of coverage for liability assumed under a contract.

viii. JEF waives all rights against OWNER and its agents,
officers, directors and employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are
covered by the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance
maintained pursuant to this Contract. Insurer shall endorse CGL policy as required to waive
subrogation against OWNER with respect to any loss paid under the policy.

b. Business Automobile Liability Insurance:
i.  JEF shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary,
commercial umbrella liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each
accident for bodily injury and property damage.

ii.  Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of owned,
hired, and non-owned autos (as applicable). Coverage as required above shall be written
on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form providing equivalent
liability coverage.

iii. JBF waives all rights against OWNER and its agents,
officers, directors and employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are
covered by the automobile liability or other liability insurance obtained by JEF pursuant
this Contract. (No need for 3 year)

c. Professional Liability Insurance

i.  JEF shall maintain professional liability insurance applying
to all activities performed under this Contract with limits not less than One Million Dollars
($1,000,000.00) and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate.

Dayton Valley Area Drainage Master Plan p.3
JE Fuller/ Hydrology and Geomoerphology, Inc. .




ii.  Retroactive date: Prior to commencement of the
performance of this Contract.

iii.  JEF will maintain professional liability insurance during the
term of this Contract and for a period of three (3) years after termination of this Contract
unless waived by the OWNER. In the event of non-renewal or other lapse in coverage
during the term of this Contract or the three (3) year period described above, JEF shall
purchase Extended Reporting Period coverage for claims arising out of JEF’s negligence
acts, errors and omissions committed during the term of the Professional Liability Policy.
The Extended Reporting Period shall continue through a minimum of three (3) years after
termination date of this Contract.

9. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time without cause upon
delivery of written notice to that effect to the other, in which event this Agreement shall
terminate twenty-four (24) hours after the receipt of such written notice by the other party;
provided, however, that in the event of such termination, OWNER shall pay JEF for any
amounts due, as described in Section 2, through the date of termination. Upon full payment
by OWNER and receipt of all compensation and reimbursement of expenses by JEF, then
JEF shall deliver to OWNER all sketches, drawings, tracings, computations, survey notes
and any other documentation prepared or obtained by JEF in connection with this
Agreement. Notwithstanding a termination of Agreement pursuant to this paragraph,
except to the extent limited by a termination prior to completion of the Work, any
applicable representations and certifications of JEF shall remain in full force and effect and
the indemnifications of each party shall remain in full force and effect. Any obligation for
JEF to further perform any Work shall terminate as of the date of the termination of this
Agreement.

0 QOWNER now owns and will hereafter develop, compile and own certain
proprietary techniques, trade secrets, and confidential information which have great value
in its business (collectively, “Owner Information”). OWNER will be disclosing Owner
Information to JEF during JEF's performance of the Work. Owner Information includes
any and all information concerning discoveries, developments, designs, improvements,
inventions, formulas, software programs, processes, techniques, know-how, data, research
techniques, customer and supplier lists, marketing, sales or other financial or business
information, scripts, and all derivatives, improvements and enhancements to any of the
above.  Owner Information also includes like third-party information which is in
OWNER'’S possession under an obligation of confidential treatment.

a. JEF agrecs that at all times during or subsequent to the performance
of the Work, JEF will keep confidential and not divulge, communicate, or use Owner
Information, except for JEF's own use during the period of time that JEF is performing the
Work according to the terms of this Agreement, to the extent necessary to perform the
Work. JEF further agrees not to cause the transmission, removal or transport of tangible
embodiments of, or electronic files containing, Owner Information from OWNER’S
principal place of business, without prior written approval of OWNER.

b. JEF’s obligations with respect to any portion of the Owner

Dayton Valley Area Drainage Master Plan p.4
JE Fuller/ Hydrology and Geomorphology, Inc.




Information as set forth above shall not apply when JEF can document that (i) it was in the
public domain at the time it was communicated to JEF by OWNER,; (ii) it entered the public
domain subsequent to the time it was communicated to JEF by OWNER through no fault
of JEF; (iii) it was in JEF's possession free of any obligation of confidence at the time it
was communicated to JEF by OWNER; or (iv) it was rightfully communicated to JEF free
of any obligation of confidence subsequent to the time it was communicated to JEF by
OWNER.

11.  JEF and OWNER acknowledge that this Agreement constitutes the entire
agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may be
modified or amended only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto. This
Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Nevada. Duties and obligations
under this agreement are not assignable.

12.  In the event either OWNER or JEF shall be in default in connection with
this Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall have the right to pursue any remedies
available at law or in equity. The prevailing party will be entitled to recovery of all
reasonable costs incurred, including staff time, court costs, attorneys' fees and other related
expenses.

13.  All notices, requests, demands or other communications required or
permitted to be given hereunder (“Notices”) shall be delivered to the parties respectively
at the address set forth below each party’s signature on this Agreement. Either party hereto
shall have the right to change the address as to which Notices are sent to it under this
Agreement by providing to the other party written notice of the change of such address in
the manner set forth above. All Notices shall be in writing and shall be either personally
delivered, delivered via overnight courier, or deposited in the United States Mails, postage
pre-paid to the appropriate address as set forth above. Any Notice that is personally
delivered, or delivered via overnight courier, shall be deemed to be given immediately
upon delivery. Any Notice that is mailed shall be deemed to be given three (3) days after
the deposit of the same into the United States Mails.

14, In an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise during the design or
construction of the project or following the completion of the project, the OWNER and
JEF agree that all disputes between them arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall
be submitted to nonbinding mediation unless the parties mutually agree otherwise. The
OWNER and JEF further agree to include a similar mediation provision in all agreements
with independent contractors and consultants retained for the project and to require all
independent contractors and consultants also to include a similar mediation provision in all
agreements with subcontractors, subconsultants, suppliers or fabricators so retained,
thereby providing for mediation as the primary method for dispute resolution between the
parties to those agreements.

15. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual
relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the OWNER
OR JEF. JEF's services under this Agreement are being performed solely for the OWNER
's benefit, and no other entity shall have any claim against JEF because of this Agreement

Dayton Valley Area Drainage Master Plan p.-5
JE Fuller/ Hydrology aad Geomorpholagy, inc.




or the performance or nonperformance of services hereunder. The OWNER agrees to
include a provision in all contracts with contractors and other entitles involved in this
project to carry out the intent of this paragraph.

16.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more parts, all of which taken
together shall constitute one instrument. The parties agree that fax or pdf signatures shall be
deemed original signatures for the purposes of this Agreement.

17. The terms of this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the
parties, and the parties represent that there are no collateral agreements or side agresments not
otherwisc provided for within the terms of this Agreement and the Exhibits hereto.

18.  The parties agree to execute all documents that may be necessary to carry out
the intent and purposes of this Agreement.

19.  Any modification or amendment of this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be executed by all parties.

20.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable, all
the remaining provisions shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect.

21, The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding
upon the parties hereto.

22.  Any waiver by any party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall
not operate as or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach thereof.

23.  Inthe event suit is brought (or arbitration instituted) or an attorney is retained
by any party to this Agreement to enforce the terms of this Agreement or to collect any money
due hereunder, or to collect money damages for breach hereof, the prevailing party shall be
entitled to recover, in addition to any other remedy, reimbursement for reasonable attorneys’
fees, court costs, costs of investigation and other related expenses incurred in connection
therewith. All lawsuits under this Agreement, unless otherwise specified, shall be filed in
Carson City County, Nevada.

24.  This Agreement shall be subject to and governed by the laws of the State of
Nevada, regardless of the fact that one or more of the parties now is or may become a resident
of a different state.

25. Whenever a word is used in this Agreement in the masculine gender, it shall
also be construed as being used in the feminine and neuter genders, and singular usage shall
include the plural and vice versa, all as the context shall require.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement
to be effective the day and year first above written.

Dayton Valley Area Drainage Master Plan p.6
JE Fuller/ Hydrology and Geomorphology, Inc.




OWNER: Carson Water JE Fuller/ Hydrology & Geomorphology,
Subconservancy District: Inc.:

— Ak Do
Signature: ; O Signature:
Signature W Mﬁ@é/ ignature 2
Name: £/l sim J & IS Name: Michael Kellogg

Title: (Fernera / M.@ & G Lar Title:  Vice President

Address: 777 £ William St Suie Jlod Address: 8400 South Kyrene Road, STE 201
Carsen Crty MY &970] Tempe, AZ 85284

Dayton Valley Ares Drainage Master Plan p.7

JE Fuller/ Hydrology and Geomorphology, Inc.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 20, 2018 Estimate of time required: 5-10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1.Title: Public hearing on an Interfund Loan for the Storey County 5 Mile Water Line Project
from the General Fund to the Water System Fund in the amount of $2,126,000.

2. Recommended motion: NO MOTION NEEDED

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Storey County secured United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) loan
funds for $2,126,000 to finance the construction of the Five Mile Waterline Replacement Project.
Per the Letter of Conditions Item #17 dated December 22, 2016, Storey County is required to seek
Interim Financing for construction activities.

We are seeking approval of this Interfund Loan from the General Fund to the Water Fund for
financing the construction of this project, which is slated to begin June 2018. Utilizing the Interfund
loan will allow us to save interest costs that we would have had using commercial interim financing.
This loan must be repaid within one year after the date on which the loan is made, the loan may be
prepaid in whole or in part at any time without penalty, and no interest will be charged on the loan.
The permanent loan from the USDA will kick in upon completion of construction.

S. Supporting materials: Resolution 18-484
USDA Letter of Conditions
6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: YES Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

__District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued

Agenda Item No. / 2




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 20, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10-15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Approval of United States Department of Agriculture (USDA)
Rural Development Loan Resolution for the Financing of the Storey County 5 Mile Water Line
Project.

2. Recommended motion: I Move to approve the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA)
Rural Development Loan Resolution for the Financing for the Storey County 5 Mile Water Line
Project.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: Storey County secured United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) loan funds
for $2,126,000 to finance the construction of the Five Mile Waterline Replacement Project. The USDA
Letter of Intent to Meet Conditions outlines all of the conditions that must be met prior to USDA Rural
Development authorizing the County to go out to bid and proceed with construction. It is anticipated
that construction will not commence on this project until June 2018, however, staff is working to meet
the conditions prior to that. One of the conditions is the RUS Bulletin 1780-27 “Loan Resolution”
required by USDA Rural Development. This loan is scheduled for repayment over a period of 40
years. The interest rate for loan is 1.375%.

5. Supporting materials: RUS Bulletin 1780-27 Loan Resolution
USDA Letter of Conditions

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
/ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Béard action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—

Agenda Item No. / 3




USDA, Rural Development
NV 1780 Guide 24
(Rev. 04/2013)

Position 3

GRADUATION CERTIFICATION

Agency Loans are a temporary source of credit; and borrowers are to refinance their loans when
other credit is available at reasonable rates and terms.

The Agency expects borrowers to comply with graduation requirements, evidenced by the
legally binding graduation clauses in the promissory note, security instrument and the loan
agreement,

Borrower accounts are periodically reviewed for graduation by the Agency.

The borrower will be required to provide financial information upon request.

In certain cases, prepayment restrictions or other limiting conditions will be considered in the
graduation process.

Requests for an additional loan funds, subordination or consent to incur additional indebtedness
will not normally by approved until an outstanding graduation request resolved.

I have read and understand the graduation requirements of our agreement with the
Federal Government.

Mayor/Chairperson Date

Attested to:

Clerk/Secretary Date

Certification to be signed at loan closing to comply with RD Instruction 1951-F, 1951.260.




Position 5

RUS BULLETIN 1780-27 APPROVED
’ ‘ OMB. No. 0572-0121

LOAN RESOLUTION
(Public Bodies)

A RESOLUTION OF THE  Board of County Commissioners

OF THE Storey County

AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE INCURRENCE OF INDEBTEDNESS FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING A
PORTION OF THE COST OF ACQUIRING, CONSTRUCTING, ENLARGING, IMPROVING, AND/OR EXTENDING ITS

Water Line from 5-mile reservoir to Virginia City

FACILITY TO SERVE AN AREA LAWFULLY WITHIN ITS JURISDICTION TO SERVE.

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Storey County

(Public Body)
(herein after called Association) to raise a portion of the cost of such undertaking by issuance of its bonds in the principal amount of

Two Million One Hundred Twenty-Six Thousand & 00/100

pursuant to the provisions of NRS 244 A ; and
WHEREAS, the Association intends to obtain assistance from the United States Department of Agriculture,

(herein called the Government) acting under the provisions of the Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act (7 U.S.C. 1921
et seq.) in the planning. financing, and supervision of such undertaking and the purchasing of bonds lawfully issued, in the event
that no other acceptable purchaser for such bonds is found by the Association:

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises the Association hereby resolves:

1. To have prepared on its behalf and to adopt an ordinance or resolution for the issuance of its bonds containing such
items and in such forms as are required by State statutes and as are agreeable and acceptable to the Government,

2. To refinance the unpaid balance, in whole or in part, of its bonds upon the request of the Government if at any time
it shall appear to the Government that the Association is able to refinance its bonds by obtaining a loan for such purposes
from responsible cooperative or private sources at reasonable rates and terms for loans for similar purposes and periods
of time as required by section 333(c) of said Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act (7 U.S.C. 1983(c)).

3. To provide for, execute, and comply with Form RD 400-4, "Assurance Agreement," and Form RD 400-1, "Equal
Opportunity Agreement," including an "Equal Opportunity Clause,”" which clause is to be incorporated in, or attached
as a rider to, each construction contract and subcontract involving in excess of $10,000.

4. To indemnify the Government for any payments made or losses suffered by the Government on behalf of the Association.
Such indemnification shall be payable from the same source of funds pledged to pay the bonds or any other legal ly per-
missible source.

5. That upon default in the payments of any principal and accrued interest on the bonds or in the performance of any
covenant or agreement contained herein or in the instruments incident to making or insuring the loan, the Government at
its option may (a) declare the entire principal amount then outstanding and accrued interest immediately due and
payable, (b) for the account of the Association (payable from the source of funds pledged to pay the bonds or any other
legally permissible source), incur and pay reasonable expenses for repair, maintenance, and operation of the facility
and such other reasonable expenses as may be necessary to cure the cause of default, and/or (c) take possession of the
facility, repair, maintain, and operate or rent it. Default under the provisions of this resolution or any instrument incident to
the making or insuring of the loan may be construed by the Government to constitute default under any other instrument
held by the Government and executed or assumed by the Association, and default under any such instrument may be
construed by the Government to constitute default hereunder.

6. Not to sell, transfer, lease, or otherwise encumber the facility or any portion thereof, or interest therein, or permit others
to do so, without the prior written consent of the Government.

7. Not to defease the bonds, or to borrow money, enter into any contractor agreement, or otherwise incur any liabilities
for any purpose in connection with the facility (exclusive of normal maintenance) without the prior written consent of the
Government if such undertaking would involve the source of funds pledged to pay the bonds.

8. To place the proceeds of the bonds on deposit in an account and in a manner approved by the Government. Funds may be
deposited in institutions insured by the State or Federal Government or invested in readily marketable securities backed
by the full faith and credit of the United States. Any income from these accounts will be considered as revenues of the system.

9. To comply with all applicable State and Federal laws and regulations and to continually operate and maintain the facility
in good condition.

10. To provide for the receipt of adequate revenues to meet the requirements of debt service, operation and maintenance, and
the establishment of adequate reserves. Revenue accumulated over and above that needed to pay operating and mainte-
nance, debt service and reserves may only be retained or used to make prepayments on the loan. Revenue cannot be used
to pay any expenses which are not directly incurred for the facility financed by USDA. No free service or use of the
facility will be permitted.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless
it displays a valid OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0572-0121. The time required to complete this information
collection is estimated to average I hour per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the
data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.




11. To acquire and maintain such insurance and fidelity bond coverage as may be required by the Government.

12. To establish and maintain such books and records relating to the operation of the facility and its financial affairs and to
provide for required audit thereof as required by the Government, to provide the Government a copy of each such audit
without its request, and to forward to the Government such additional information and reports as it may from time to
time require.,

13. To provide the Government at all reasonable times access to all books and records relating to the facility and access to
the property of the system so that the Government may ascertain that the Association is complying with the provisions
hereof and of the instruments incident to the making or insuring of the loan,

14, That if the Government requires that a reserve account be established, disbursements from that account(s) may be used
when necessary for payments due on the bond if sufficient funds are not otherwise available and prior approval of the
Government is obtained. Also, with the prior written approval of the Government, funds may be withdrawn and
used for such things as emergency maintenance, extensions to facilities and replacement of short lived assets.

15. To provide adequate service to all persons within the service area who can feasibly and legally be served and to obtain
USDA’s concurrence prior to refusing new or adequate services to such persons. Upon failure to provide services which
are feasible and legal, such person shall have a direct right of action against the Association or public body.

16. To comply with the measures identified in the Government's environmental impact analysis for this facility for the pur-
pose of avoiding or reducing the adverse environmental impacts of the facility's construction or operation.

17. To accept a grant in an amount not to exceed $ 0.00

under the terms offered by the Government; that the

and of the Association are hereby authorized and empowered to take all action necessary
or appropriate in the execution of all written instruments as may be required in regard to or as evidence of such grant; and
to operate the facility under the terms offered in said grant agreement(s).

The provisions hereof and the provisions of all instruments incident to the making or the insuring of the loan, unless otherwise
specifically provided by the terms of such instrument, shall be binding upon the Association as long as the bonds are held or
insured by the Government or assignee. The provisions of sections 6 through 17 hereof may be provided for in more specific
detail in the bond resolution or ordinance; to the extent that the provisions contained in such bond resolution or ordinance
should be found to be inconsistent with the provisions hereof, these provisions shall be construed as controlling between the
Association and the Government or assignee.

The vote was: Yeas Nays Absent
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the 30ard of County Commissioners of the
Storey County has duly adopted this resolution and caused it
to be executed by the officers below in duplicate on this , day of
(SEAL) By

Marshall McBride

Attest; Title Chairman

Title Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk




CERTIFICATION TO BE EXECUTED AT LOAN CLOSING

1, the undersigned, as County Clerk of the Storey County
hereby certify that the Board of County Commissioners of such Association is composed of
3 members, of whom , constituting & quorum, were present at a meeting thereof duly called and
held on the day of : and that the foregoing resolution was adopted at such meeting

by the vote shown above, I further certify that as of >
the date of closing of the loan from the United States Department of Agriculture, said resolution remains in effect and has not been

rescinded or amended in any way.

Dated, this day of

Title




NV 1780, Guide 14

‘ United States Department of Agriculture Letter of Conditions
(Rev. 04/2013)

U S DA USDA, Rural Development
b eeneaoe e

December 22, 2016

Storey County

Attn: Marshall McBride, Chairman
P.O.Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

SUBJECT: Recipient Name: Storey County
Project Name: Storey County 5 Mile Water Line Project
Type of Project: Water Application
CFDA NUMBER — 10.760 Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural
Communities
Loan: $2,126,000

Dear Chairman McBride:

This letter establishes conditions which must be understood and agreed to by you before further
consideration may be given to your application. The loan will be administered on behalf of the
Rural Utilities Service (RUS) by the State and Area staff of USDA Rural Development, both of
which are referred to throughout this letter as the Agency. Any changes in project cost, source of
funds, scope of project, or any other significant changes in the project or applicant must be reported
to and concurred with by the Agency by written amendment to this letter. If significant changes are
made without obtaining such concurrence, the Agency may discontinue processing of the
application.

All conditions set forth under Section Il — Requirements Prior to Advertising for Bids must be met
within 180 days of the date of this letter. If you have not met these conditions, the Agency reserves
the right to discontinue the processing of your application.

If you agree to meet the conditions set forth in this letter and desire further consideration be given to
your application, please complete and return the following forms within 5 days:

Form RD 1942-46, “Letter of Intent to Meet Conditions”
Form RD 1940-1, “Request for Obligation of Funds”
NV 1780 Guide 31 - Conflict of Interest Policy

After you sign and return the forms to the Agency, the request will be processed and loan funds will
be approved and obligated. The loan will be considered approved on the date the Form RD 1940-1,
“Request for Obligation of Funds,” is signed by the approving official.

Rural Development * Nevada State Office
1390 South Curry Street » Carson City, NV 89703
Voice 775.887.1222 + Toll-Free Fax 855.816.1209

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer and lender.




Extra copies of this letter are being provided for use by your engineer, attorney, auditor, bond
counsel and accountant. All parties may access information and regulations referenced in this letter
at our website located at www.rd.usda.gov.

The conditions are as follows:

SECTION I - PROJECT DETAIL

1. Project Description — Funds will be used to construct a new water transmission line for the
Storey County Water System.

Facilities will be designed and constructed in accordance with sound engineering practices and must
meet the requirements of Federal, State, and local agencies. The proposed facility design must be
based on the Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) as concurred with by the Agency.
2. Project Funding — The Agency is offering the following funding for your project:

Agency Loan $2,126,000

TOTAL PROJECT FUNDING: $2,126,000
This funding is offered based on the amounts stated above.
Any changes in funding sources following obligation of Agency funds must be reported to the
processing official. Project feasibility and funding will be reassessed if there is a significant change
in project costs after bids are received. If actual project costs exceed the project cost estimates, an

additional contribution by the Owner may be necessary.

3. Project Budget — Funding from all sources has been budgeted for the estimated expenditures as
follows:

Project Costs: Total Budgeted:
Construction $1,630,400
Contingency $162,990
Engineering Fees — includes the following:
Preliminary Engineering/Environmental $55,442
Engineering Design $81,520
Environmental/Archaeological $32,608
Construction Engineering $48,912
Resident Project Representation (Inspection) $81,520
Interest on Interim Financing $16,304
Legal Fees - Bond Counsel $16,304
TOTAL $2,126,000

Obligated loan funds not needed to complete the proposed project will be deobligated prior to start
of construction. An amended letter of conditions will be issued for any changes to the total project
budget.

Page 2 of 23




SECTION II - LOAN TERMS

4. Repayment— The interest rate will be the lower of the rate in effect at the time of loan
approval or the time of loan closing, unless you request otherwise. Should the interest rate be
reduced, the payment will be recalculated to the lower amount.

Your loan will be scheduled for repayment over a period of 40 years. Payments will be equal
annual amortized instaliments, beginning one year after closing. For planning purposes, use a
1.375% interest rate and an amortization factor of 32.67 which provides for an annual payment
of $69,457.00. The precise payment amount will be based on the interest rate at which the loan
is closed, and may be different than the one above.

The payment due date will be established as the day that the loan closes. Due dates falling on
the 29th, 30th, and 31st day of the month will be avoided.

5. Security— The loan will be secured by a Revenue bond with first lien position in the amount of
$2,126,000. The bond will be fully registered as to both principal and interest in the name of the
United States of America, Acting through the United States Department of Agriculture.

The bond and any ordinance or resolution relating thereto must not contain any provision in
conflict with the Agency Loan Resolution, applicable regulations, or its authorizing law. In
particular, there must be no defeasance or refinancing clause in conflict with the graduation
requirements of 7 U.S.C. 1983.

Additional security requirements are contained in RUS Bulletin 1780-27, “Loan Resolution
(Public Bodies).” A draft of all security instruments, including draft bond resolution, must be
reviewed and concurred in by the Agency prior to advertising for bids. The bond resolution and
Loan Resolution must be duly adopted and executed prior to loan closing.

6. Electronic Payments — Payments will be made on the day your payment is due through an
electronic preauthorized debit system. You will be required to complete Form RD 3550-28,
“Authorization Agreement for Preauthorized Payments,” for all new and existing indebtedness
to the Agency prior to loan closing. It will allow for your payment to be electronically debited
from your account on the day your payment is due.

7. Construction Completion Timeframe — All projects must be completed and all funds
disbursed within five years of obligation. If funds are not disbursed within five years of
obligation, you must submit to the Agency a written request for extension of time with adequate
justification of circumstances beyond your control. Requests for waivers beyond the initial
extension will be submitted to the Assistant Administrator for concurrence decision.

8. Disbursement of Agency Funds — Agency funds will be disbursed into the borrower’s
depository account through an electronic transfer system. SF 3881, “ACH Vendor/
Miscellaneous Payment Enrollment Form,” must be completed and submitted to the Agency
prior to advertising for bids.

Any applicant contribution will be the first funds expended, followed by other funding sources.
Interim financing or Agency loan funds will be expended after all other funding sources unless a
written agreement is reached with all other funding sources on how funds are to be disbursed
prior to start of construction or loan closing, whichever occurs first.

Page 3 of 23




9. Reserves — Reserves must be properly budgeted to maintain the financial viability and
sustainability of any operation. Reserves are important to fund unanticipated emergency
maintenance and repairs, and assist with debt service should the need arise. The following
reserves are required to be established as a condition of this loan:

a. Debt Service Reserve — As a part of this Agency loan proposal, you must establish a
restricted debt service reserve fund equal to at least one annual loan installment, It should be
funded at the rate of 10% of one annual payment per year for ten years or until the balance is
equal to one annual loan payment. Ten percent of the proposed loan installment would
equal $578.81 per month; this amount should be deposited monthly until a total of $69,457
has accumulated. Prior written concurrence from the Agency must be obtained before funds
may be withdrawn from this account during the life of the loan. When funds are withdrawn
during the life of the loan, deposits will continue as designated above until the fully-funded
amount is reached.

b. Short-Lived Asset Reserve — In addition to the debt service reserve fund, you must
establish a short-lived asset reserve fund. The short-lived asset reserve is not a restricted
account, and it is expected to see withdrawls from this fund as well as deposits. Based on the
preliminary engineering report, you must deposit at least $35,060 into the short-lived asset
reserve fund annually for the life of the loan to pay for repairs and/or replacement of major
system assets. It is your responsibility to assess your facility’s short-lived asset needs on a
regular basis and adjust the amount deposited to meet those needs. ‘

Current assets can also be used to establish and maintain reserves for expected expenses,
including but not limited to operation and maintenance, deferred interest during the
construction period, and an asset management program.

SECTION 111 -REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO ADVERTISING FOR BIDS

10. Environmental Requirements — At the conclusion of the proposal’s environmental review
process, specific action(s) were determined necessary to avoid or minimize adverse
environmental impacts. As outlined in the Environmental Report dated December, 2015, the
following actions are required for successful completion of the project and must be adhered to
during project design and construction:

Biological Resources

Nesting birds may be disturbed during construction and as such during nesting season from
April through September a biologist will provide a survey to assure that no nesting birds are
present in the area of construction.

Invasive Species of Weeds
Identify and flag all noxious and invasive weed populations present in the project area,

Treat or contain any weed populations that may be impacted or disturbed by construction
activity;

Provide training to construction workers and equipment operators on the identification of
weeds to be avoided, Certify that all construction material sources are weed-free, Minimize

Page 4 of 23




11,

12.

13.

ground disturbance and vegetation removal as much as possible and practical, Re-vegetate
or otherwise prevent the establishment of weeds in all areas of the job site.

Historic and Cultural Properties

Buried components associated with the dirt road are unlikely within the project area.
However, should any unanticipated discoveries of subsurface features occur, work will cease
and the federal agencies, SHPO, and consulting parties will be notified. In this event,
specific mitigation and/or avoidance protocols will be determined by the lead federal agency
in consultation with the SHPO and other interested parties. Work will not resume until
consulting parties have had opportunity for comment and the lead federal agency has given
notice to proceed. Within these parameters, the undertaking poses no adverse effect to the
eligibility of this resource and no further management is recommended.

Air Quality
Watering of the construction site will be required to reduce fugitive dust.

The project as proposed has been evaluated to be consistent with the National Environmental
Policy Act. Other Federal, State, tribal, and local laws, regulations and or permits may apply or
be required. If the project or any project element deviates from or is modified from the
originally-approved project, additional environmental review may be required.

Engineering Services — You have been/will be required to complete an Agreement for
Engineering Services, which should consist of the Engineers Joint Contract Documents
Committee (EJCDC) documents as indicated in RUS Bulletin 1780-26, “Guidance for the Use
of EJCDC Documents on Water and Waste Projects with RUS Financial Assistance,” or other
approved form of agreement. The Agency will provide concurrence prior to advertising for
bids, and must approve any modifications to this agreement.

Contract Documents, Final Plans, and Specifications

a. The contract documents must consist of the EICDC construction contract documents as
indicated in RUS Bulletin 1780-26 or other Agency-approved forms of agreement.

b. The contract documents, final plans, and specifications must comply with RUS Instruction
1780, Subpart C — Planning, Designing, Bidding, Contracting, Constructing and Inspections,
and must be submitted to the Agency for concurrence prior to advertising for bids along with
an updated cost estimate. The Agency may require another updated cost estimate if a
significant amount of time elapses between the original submission and advertising for bids.

c. The use of any procurement method other than competitive sealed bids must be requested in
writing and approved by the Agency.

Legal Services — You may be required to execute a legal services agreement with your attorney
(if you are not using the services of the district/county attorney) and bond counsel, for any legal
work needed in connection with this project. The agreement should stipulate an hourly rate for
the work, with a “not to exceed” amount for the services, including reimbursable expenses.

RUS Bulletin 1780-7, “Legal Services Agreement,” or similar format may be used. The Agency
will provide concurrence prior to advertising for bids. Any changes to the fees or services
spelled out in the original agreement must be reflected in an amendment to the agreement and
have prior Agency concurrence.

Page 5 of 23




14. Property Rights — Prior to advertising for bids, you and your legal counsel must furnish
satisfactory evidence that you have or can obtain adequate continuous and valid control over the
lands and rights-of-way needed for the project. Acquisition of necessary land and rights must
be accomplished in accordance with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition Policies Act. Such control over the lands and rights will be evidenced by the
following:

a. Right-of-Way Map — Your engineer will provide a map clearly showing the location of all
lands and rights-of-way needed for the project. The map must designate public and private
lands and rights and the appropriate legal ownership thereof.

b. Form RD 442-20, “Right-of-Way Easement” — This form may be used to obtain any
necessary easements for the proposed project.

¢. Form RD 442-21, “Right-of-Way Certificate” — You will provide a certification on this
form that all right-of-way requirements have been obtained for the proposed project.

d. Form RD 442-22, “Opinion of Counsel Relative to Rights-of-Way” — Your attorney will
provide a certification and legal opinion on this form addressing rights-of-way, easements,
and title.

e. Preliminary Title Work (Title Opinion) — When applicable, your attorney will provide a
preliminary title opinion for any property related to the facility, currently owned and to be
acquired, along with copies of deeds, contracts or options for purchasing said property.
Form RD 1927-9, “Preliminary Title Opinion,” may be used.

The approving official may waive title defects or restrictions, such as utility easements, that do
not adversely affect the suitability, successful operation, security value, or transferability of the
facility. Any such waivers must be provided by the approving official in writing prior to closing
or the start of construction, whichever occurs first.

You are responsible for the acquisition of all property rights necessary for the project and for
determining that prices paid are reasonable and fair. The Agency may require an appraisal by
an independent appraiser or Agency employee in order to validate the price to be paid.

15. System Policies, Procedures, Contracts, and Agreements — The facility must be operated on
a sound business plan. You must adopt policies, procedures, and/or ordinances outlining the

conditions of service and use of the proposed system. Mandatory connection policies should be
used where enforceable. The policies, procedures, and/or ordinances must contain an effective
collection policy for accounts not paid in full within a specified number of days after the date of
billing. They should include appropriate late fees, specified timeframes for disconnection of
service, and reconnection fees. A draft of these policies, procedures, and/or ordinances must be
submitted for Agency review and concurrence, along with the documents below, before closing
instructions may be issued unless otherwise stated.

a. Conflict of Interest Policy — Prior to obligation of funds, you must certify in writing that
your organization has in place an up-to-date written policy on conflict of interest. The
policy will include, at a minimum: (1) a requirement for those with a conflict or potential
conflict to disclose the conflict/potential conflict; (2) a clause that prohibits interested
members of the applicant’s governing body from voting on any matter in which there is a
conflict, and (3) a description of the specific process by which the governing body will
manage identified or potential conflicts.

Page 6 of 23




16.

17.

18.

You must also submit a disclosure of planned or potential transactions related to the use of
Federal funds that may constitute or present the appearance of personal or organizational
conflict of interest. Disclosure must be in the form of a written letter signed and dated by
the applicant’s official. A negative disclosure in the same format is required if no conflicts
are anticipated.

Sample conflict of interest policies may be found at the National Council of Nonprofits
website, https://www.councilofnonprofits.org/tools-resources/conflict-of-interest, or in
Internal Revenue Service Form 1023, Appendix A, “Sample Conflict of Interest Policy,” at
http://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/i1023.pdf. Though these examples reference non-profit
corporations, the requirement applies to all types of Agency borrowers.

Assistance in developing a conflict of interest policy is available through Agency-contracted
technical assistance providers if desired.

b. Contracts for Other Services/Lease Agreement — Drafts of any contracts or other forms of
agreements for other services, including audit, management, operation, and maintenance, or
lease agreements covering real property essential to the successful operation of the facility,
must be submitted to the Agency for review and concurrence prior to advertising for bids.

Fully executed copies of any policies, procedures, ordinances, contracts, or agreements must be
submitted prior to loan closing, with the exception of the conflict of interest policy, which must
be in place prior to obligation of funds.

Closing Instructions — The Agency will prepare closing instructions as soon as the
requirements of the previous paragraphs are complete, as well as a draft of the security
instrument(s). Closing instructions must be obtained prior to advertising for bids.

Interim Financing — For all loans exceeding $500,000, where loan funds can be borrowed at
reasonable interest rates on an interim basis from commercial sources for the construction
period, such interim financing will be used to preclude the necessity for multiple advances of
Agency loan funds. You must provide the Agency with a copy of the interim loan financing
agreement for review prior to advertising for bids. The Agency approving official may make an
exception when interim financing is cost prohibitive or unavailable.

Construction Account — You must establish a construction account for all funds related to the
project. Construction funds will be deposited with an acceptable financial institution or
depository that meets the requirements of 31 CFR Part 202. A separate account will not be
required for Federal funds and other funds; however, the recipient must be able to separately
identify, report, and account for all Federal funds, including the receipt, obligation and
expenditure of funds. Financial institutions or depositaries accepting deposits of public funds
and providing other financial agency services to the Federal Government are required to pledge
adequate, acceptable securities as collateral, in accordance with 31 CFR Part 202. All funds in
the account will be secured by a collateral pledge equaling at least 100% of the highest amount
of funds expected to be deposited in the construction account at any one time. Your financial
institution can provide additional guidance on collateral pledge requirements.

Agency funds will be disbursed into the borrower’s depository account through an electronic
transfer system. SF 3881, “ACH Vendor/Miscellaneous Payment Enrollment Form,” must be
completed and submitted to the Agency prior to advertising for bids.

Page 7 of 23




19.

20.

21,

22,

23.

System Users — This letter of conditions is based upon your indication at application that there
will be at least 485 residential users and 221 non-residential users on the existing system when
construction is completed.

Before the Agency can agree to the project being advertised for construction bids, you must
certify that the number of users indicated at application are currently using the system or signed
up to use the system once it is operational.

If the actual number of existing and/or proposed users that have signed up for service is less
than the number indicated at the time of application, you must provide the Agency with a
written plan on how you will obtain the necessary revenue to adequately cash flow the expected
operation, maintenance, debt service, and reserve requirements of the proposed project (e.g.,
increase user rates, sign up an adequate number of other users, reduce project scope, etc.).
Similar action is required if there is cause to modify the anticipated flows or volumes presented
following approval.

Proposed Operating Budget — You must establish and/or maintain a rate schedule that
provides adequate income to meet the minimum requirements for operation and maintenance
(O&M), debt service, and reserves. Prior to advertising for bids, you must submit a proposed
annual operating budget to the Agency which supports the operation, maintenance, debt service,
and reserves, as well as your proposed rate schedule. The operating budget should be based on
a typical year cash flow after completion of the construction phase and should be signed by the
appropriate official of your organization. Form RD 442-7, “Operating Budget,” or similar
format may be utilized for this purpose. It is expected that O&M will change over each
successive year and user rates will need to be adjusted on a regular basis.

Technical assistance is available at no cost to help you evaluate and complete a rate analysis on
your system. This assistance is available free to your organization. If you are interested please
contact our office for information.

Permits —~The owner or responsible party will be required to obtain all applicable permits for the
project. The consulting engineer must submit written evidence that all applicable permits
required prior to construction have been obtained with submission to the Agency of the final
plans, specifications, and bid documents.

Vulnerability Assessment/Emergency Response Plan (VA/ERP) - The Agency requires all

financed water and wastewater systems to have a VA/ERP in place. Borrowers with existing
systems must provide a certification that a VA/ERP has been completed prior to advertising for
bids. The VA/ERP documents themselves are not submitted to the Agency. The VA/ERP must
address potential impacts from natural disasters and other emergency events. In particular, it
should include plans to address impacts of flash flooding in areas where severe drought or
wildfires occur. The documents should be reviewed and updated every three years at a
minimum.

For VA/ERP requirements throughout the life of the loan, see Section VII. Technical assistance
at no cost is available in preparing these documents.

Bid Authorization — Once all the conditions outlined in Section III of this letter have been met,
the Agency will authorize you to advertise the project for construction bids. Such advertisement
must be in accordance with applicable State statutes.

Page 8 of 23



SECTION IV - REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION

24. Bid Tabulation — Immediately after bid opening, you must provide the Agency with the bid
tabulation and your engineer’s evaluation of bids and recommendations for contract awards. If
the Agency agrees that the construction bids received are acceptable, adequate funds are
available to cover the total project costs, and all the requirements of Section III of this letter
have been satisfied, the Agency will authorize you to issue the Notice of Award.

a. Cost Overruns. If bids are higher than expected, or if unexpected construction problems are
encountered, you must utilize all options to reduce cost overruns. Negotiations, redesign,
use of bidding alternatives, rebidding or other means will be considered prior to
commitment of subsequent funding by the Agency. Any requests for subsequent funding to
cover cost overruns will be contingent on the availability of funds. Cost overruns exceeding
20% of the development cost at time of loan approval or where the scope of the original
purpose has changed will compete for funds with all other applications on hand as of that
date.

b. Excess Funds. If bids are lower than anticipated at time of obligation, excess funds must be
deobligated prior to start of construction except in the cases addressed in this paragraph. In
cases where the original PER for the project included items that were not bid, or were bid as
an alternate, the State Office official may modify the project to fully utilize obligated funds
for those items. Amendments to the PER, ER, and letter of conditions may be needed for
any work not included in the original project scope. In all cases, prior to start of
construction, excess funds will be deobligated. Excess funds do not include contingency
funds as described in this letter.

25. Contract Review — Your attorney will certify that the executed contract documents, including
performance and payment, if required, are adequate and that the persons executing these
documents have been properly authorized to do so in accordance with RUS Instruction
1780.61(b).

Once your attorney has certified that they are acceptable, the contract documents will be
submitted to the Agency for its concurrence. The Notice to Proceed cannot be issued until the
Agency has concurred with the construction contracts.

26. Final Rights-of-Way — If any of the rights-of-way forms listed previously in this letter contain
exceptions that do not adversely affect the suitability, successful operation, security value, or
transferability of the facility, the approving official must provide a written waiver prior to the
issuance of the Notice to Proceed. For projects involving the acquisition of land, you must
provide evidence that you have clear title to the land prior to the issuance of the Notice to
Proceed.

Final Title Work — Your attorney must furnish a separate final title opinion on all existing real
property related to the facility, now owned and to be acquired for this project, as of the day of
loan closing or start of construction, whichever occurs first. Form RD 1927-10, “Final Title
Opinion” may be used.

27. Insurance and Bonding Requirements — Prior to the start of construction or loan closing,

whichever occurs first, you must acquire and submit to the Agency proof of the types of

Page 9 of 23




insurance and bond coverage for the borrower shown below. The use of deductibles may be
allowed, providing you have the financial resources to cover potential claims requiring payment
of the deductible. The Agency strongly recommends that you have your engineer, attorney, and
insurance provider(s) review proposed types and amounts of coverage, including any exclusions
and deductible provisions. It is your responsibility and not that of the Agency to assure that
adequate insurance and fidelity or employee dishonesty bond coverage is maintained.

a. General Liability Insurance - Include vehicular coverage.

b. Workers’ Compensation — In accordance with appropriate State laws.

c. Fidelity or Employee Dishonesty Bonds — Include coverage for all persons who have
access to funds, including persons working under a contract or management agreement.
Coverage may be provided either for all individual positions or persons, or through blanket
coverage providing protection for all appropriate workers. During construction, each
position should be bonded in an amount equal to the maximum amount of funds to be under
the control of that position at any one time. The coverage may be increased during
construction based on the anticipated monthly advances. After construction and throughout
the life of the loan, the amount of coverage should normally approximate the total annual
debt service of all outstanding Agency loans. The Agency will be identified in the fidelity
bond for receipt of notices. Form RD 440-24, “Position Fidelity Schedule Bond,” or similar
format may be used.

d. National Flood Insurance — If the project involves acquisition or construction in designated
special flood or mudslide prone areas, you must purchase a flood insurance policy at the
time of loan closing.

e. Real Property Insurance — Fire and extended coverage will normally be maintained on all
structures except reservoirs, pipelines and other structures if such structures are not normally
insured, and subsurface lift stations except for the value of electrical and pumping
equipment. The Agency will be listed as mortgagee on the policy when the Agency has a
lien on the property. Prior to the acceptance of the facility from the contractor(s), you must
obtain real property insurance (fire and extended coverage) on all facilities identified above.

Insurance types described above are required to be continued throughout the life of the loan. See
Section VII. '

29. Initial Civil Rights Compliance Review — The Agency will conduct an initial civil rights
compliance review of the borrower prior to loan closing or start of construction, whichever
occurs first, in accordance with 7 CFR 1901, Subpart E.

SECTION V — REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO LOAN CLOSING

30. Multiple Advances - Multiple advances of Agency funds will be used. Loan closing will occur
prior to when the funds are needed, and all of the items detailed in the sections above, as well as
the items listed in this section, must be completed prior to closing.

31. Vulnerability Assessment/Emergency Response Plan (VA/ERP) — The Agency requires all
financed water and wastewater systems to have a VA/ERP in place. Borrowers with existing
systems must provide a certification thata VA and ERP are completed prior to authorization to
advertise for bids. The VA/ERP documents are not submitted to the Agency. Technical
assistance is available in preparing these documents at no cost to you. The VA/ERP must
address potential impacts from natural disasters and other emergency events. In particular, it
should include plans to address impacts of flash flooding in areas where severe drought or

Page 10 of 23




wildfires occur. The documents should be reviewed and updated every three years at a
minimum.

32. Other Requirements — All requirements contained in the Agency’s closing instructions, as well

as any requirements of your bond counsel and/or attorney, must be met prior to loan closing.

a. System for Award Management. You will be required to maintain a Dun and Bradstreet
Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number and maintain an active registration in
the System for Award Management (SAM) database. Renewal can be done on-line at:
http://sam.gov. This registration must be renewed and revalidated every twelve (12) months
for as long as there are Agency funds to be expended. See Appendix A.

To ensure the information is current, accurate and complete, and to prevent the SAM
account expiration, the review and updates must be performed within 365 days of the
activation date, commonly referred to as the expiration date. The registration process may
take up to 10 business days. (See 2 CFR Part 25 and the “Help” section at http://sam.gov).

b. Litigation. You are required to notify the Agency within 30 days of receiving notification
of being involved in any type of litigation prior to loan closing or start of construction,
whichever occurs first. Additional documentation regarding the situation and litigation may
be requested by the Agency.

¢. Certified Operator. Evidence must be provided that your system has or will have, as
defined by applicable State or Federal requirements, a certified operator available prior to
the system becoming operational, or that a suitable supervisory agreement with a certified
operator is in effect.

SECTION VI — REQUIREMENTS DURING CONSTRUCTION AND POST

CONSTRUCTION

33.

34.

33.

Resident Inspector(s) — Full-time inspection is required unless you request an exception. Such
requests must be made in writing and the Agency must concur with the request. Inspection
services are to be provided by the consulting engineer unless other arrangements are requested
in writing and concurred with by the Agency. A resume of qualifications of any resident
inspector(s) will be submitted to the owner and Agency for review and concurrence prior to the
pre-construction conference. The resident inspector(s) must attend the pre-construction
conference.

Preconstruction Conference — A preconstruction conference will be held prior to the issuance
of the Notice to Proceed. The consulting engineer will review the planned development with
the Agency, owner, resident inspector, attorney, contractor, other funders, and other interested
parties, and will provide minutes of this meeting to the owner and Agency.

Inspections - The Agency requires a pre-construction conference, pre-final and final
inspections, and a warranty inspection. Your engineer will schedule a warranty inspection with
the contractor and the Agency before the end of the one-year warranty period to address and/or
resolve any warranty issues. The Agency will conduct an inspection with you of your records
management system at the same time, and will continue to inspect the facility and your records
system every three years for the life of the loan. See Section VII of this letter.

Page 11 of 23



36. Change Orders — Prior Agency concurrence is required for all Change Orders.

37. Payments — Prior Agency concurrence is required for all Invoices and Partial Payment
Estimates before Agency funds will be released. Requests for payment related to a contract or
service agreement will be signed by the owner, project engineer, and contractor or service
provider prior to Agency concurrence. Invoices not related to a construction contract or service
agreement will include the owner’s written concurrence.

38. Use of Remaining Funds — Applicant contribution and connection or tap fees will be the first
funds expended in the project, followed by non-Agency sources of funds. Remaining funds
may be considered in direct proportion to the amounts obtained from each source and handled as
follows:

a. Remaining funds may be used for eligible loan purposes, provided the use will not result in
major changes to the original scope of work and the purpose of the loan remains the same.

b. Loan funds that are not needed will be applied as an extra payment on the Agency ‘
indebtedness unless other disposition is required by the bond ordinance, resolution, or State
statute.

39. Technical, Managerial and Financial Capacity - It is required that members of the Board of

County Commissioners and other governing members possess the necessary technical,
managerial, and financial capacity skills to consistently comply with pertinent Federal and State
laws and requirements. It is recommended members receive training within one year of
appointment or election to the governing board, and a refresher training for all governing
members on a routine basis. The content and amount of training should be tailored to the needs
of the particular individual and the utility system. Technical assistance providers are available
to provide this training for your organization, often at no cost. Contact the Agency for
information.

40. Reporting Requirements Related to Expenditure of Funds

a. Financial Audit- An annual audit under the Single Audit Act is required if you expend
$750,000 or more in Federal financial assistance per fiscal year. The total Federal funds
expended from all sources shall be used to determine Federal financial assistance expended.
Expenditures of interim financing are considered Federal expenditures.

All audits are to be performed in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, as adopted by USDA
through 2 CFR Part 400. Further guidance on preparing an acceptable audit can be obtained
from the Agency. The audit must be prepared by an independent licensed Certified Public
Accountant, or a State or Federal auditor if allowed by State law, and must be submitted
within 9 months of your fiscal year end.

If an audit is required, you must enter into a written agreement with the auditor and submit a
copy to the Agency prior to the advertisement of bids. The audit agreement may include
terms and conditions that the borrower and auditor deem appropriate; however, the
agreement should include the type of audit to be completed, the time frame in which the
audit will be completed, and how irregularities will be reported.

b. Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation — You as a recipient of Federal funds
and your first-tier contractors are required by 2 CFR Part 170 to report disbursements to

Page 12 of 23



subrecipients in accordance with Appendix B of the CFR and www.fsrs.gov. Your Agency
processing office can provide more information.

SECTION VII - SERVICING REQUIREMENTS DURING THE TERM OF THE LOAN

41. Prepayment and Extra Payments - Prepayments of scheduled installments, or any portion
thereof, may be made at any time at the option of borrower, with no penaity.

Security instruments, including bonding documents, must contain the following language
regarding extra payments, unless prohibited by State statute:

Prepayments of scheduled installments, or any portion thereof, may be made at any time at
the option of borrower. Refunds, extra payments and loan proceeds obtained from outside
sources for the purpose of paying down the Agency debt, shall, after payment of interest, be
applied to the installments last to become due under this note and shall not affect the
obligation of borrower to pay the remaining installments as scheduled in your security
instruments.

42. Graduation - By accepting this loan, you are also agreeing to refinance (graduate) the unpaid
loan balance in whole, or in part, upon request of the Government. If at any time the Agency
determines you are able to obtain a loan for such purposes from responsible cooperative or private
sources at reasonable rates and terms, you will be requested to refinance. Your ability to refinance
will be assessed every other year for those loans that are five years old or older.

43. Security/Operational Inspections — The Agency will inspect the facility and conduct a review
of your operations and records management system and conflict of interest policy every three years
for the life of the loan. You must participate in these inspections and provide the required
information.

44. Annual Financial Reporting/Audit Requirements — You are required to submit an annual

financial report at the end of each fiscal year. The annual report will be certified by the appropriate
organization official, and will consist of financial information and a rate schedule. Financial
statements must be prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and must include at a minimum a balance sheet and
income and expense statement. The annual report will include separate reporting for each water and
waste disposal facility, and itemize cash accounts by type (debt service, short-lived assets, etc.)
under each facility. All records, books and supporting material are to be retained for three years
after the issuance of the annual report, Technical assistance is available at no cost with preparing
financial reports.

The type of financial information that must be submitted is specified below:

a. Audits — An annual audit under the Single Audit Act is required if you expend $750,000 or
more in Federal financial assistance per fiscal year. The total Federal funds expended from
all sources shall be used to determine Federal financial assistance expended. Expenditures
of interim financing are considered Federal expenditures.

All audits are to be performed in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, as adopted by USDA
through 2 CFR Part 400. Further guidance on preparing an acceptable audit can be obtained
from the Agency. It is not intended that audits required by this part be separate and apart

Page 13 of 23




from audits performed in accordance with State and local laws. To the extent feasible, the
audit work should be done in conjunction with those audits. The audit must be prepared by
an independent licensed Certified Public Accountant, or a State or Federal auditor if allowed
by State law, and must be submitted within 9 months of your fiscal year end.

If an audit is required, you must enter into a written agreement with the auditor and submit a
copy to the Agency prior to the advertisement of bids, The audit agreement may include
terms and conditions that the borrower and auditor deem appropriate; however, the
agreement should include the type of audit or financial statements to be completed, the time
frame in which the audit or financial statements will be completed, what type of reports will
be generated from the services provided, and how irregularities will be reported.

b. Financial Statements — If you expend less than $750,000 in Federal financial assistance per
fiscal year, you may submit financial statements in lieu of an audit which include at a
minimum a balance sheet and an income and expense statement. You may use Form RD
442-2, “Statement of Budget, Income and Equity,” and 442-3, “Balance Sheet,” or similar
format to provide the financial information. The financial statements must be signed by the
appropriate borrower official and submitted within 60 days of your fiscal year end.

45. Annual Budget and Projected Cash Flow - Thirty days prior to the beginning of each fiscal
year, you will be required to submit an annual budget and projected cash flow to this office. With
the submission of the annual budget, you will be required to provide a current rate schedule, and a
current listing of the Board or Council members and their terms. The budget must be signed by the
appropriate borrower official. Form RD 442-2 or similar format may be used.

Technical assistance is available at no cost to help you evaluate and complete a rate analysis on
your system, as well as completing the annual budget. If you are interested, please contact our
office for information.

46. Vulnerability Assessment/Emergency Res onse Plan RP) - You will be required to
submit a certification to the servicing office every three years that the VA/ERP is current and covers
all sites related to the facility. The documents themselves are not submitted to the Agency. The
VA/ERP must address potential impacts from natural disasters and other emergency events. In
particular, it should include plans to address impacts of flash flooding in areas where severe drought
or wildfires occur. The documents should be reviewed and updated every three years at a
minimum.

47. Insurance. You will be required to maintain insurance on the facility and employees as
previously described in this letter for the life of the loan.

48. Statutory and National Policy Requir ments — As a recipient of Federal funding, you are
required to comply with U.S. statutory and public policy requirements, including but not limited to:

a. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 — Under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation
Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), no handicapped individual in the United States
shall, solely by reason of their handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving
Agency financial assistance,

Page 14 0f23




b. Civil Rights Act of 1964 — All borrowers are subject to, and facilities must be operated in
accordance with, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.) and 7
CFR 1901, Subpart E, particularly as it relates to conducting and reporting of compliance
reviews. Instruments of conveyance for loans subject to the Act must contain the covenant
required by Paragraph 1901.202(e) of this Title.

¢. The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 ~ This Act (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.)
- prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in employment, State and local
govermnment services, public transportation, public accommodations, facilities, and
telecommunications.

d. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 — This Act (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.) provides that no
person in the United States shall on the basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be
denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity
receiving Federal financial assistance.

e. Limited English Proficiency (LEP) under Executive Order 13166 - LEP statutes and
authorities prohibit exclusion from participation in, denial of benefits of, and discrimination
under Federally-assisted and/or conducted programs on the ground of race, color, or national
origin. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 covers program access for LEP persons.
LEP persons are individuals who do not speak English as their primary language and who
have a limited ability to read, speak, write, or understand English. These individuals may be
entitled to language assistance, free of charge. You must take reasonable steps to ensure that
LEP persons receive the language assistance necessary to have meaningful access to USDA
programs, services, and information your organization provides. These protections are
pursuant to Executive Order 13166 entitled, “Improving Access to Services by Persons with
Limited English Proficiency” and further affirmed in the USDA Departmental Regulation
4330-005, “Prohibition Against National Origin Discrimination Affecting Persons with
Limited English Proficiency in Programs and Activities Conducted by USDA.”

Agency financial programs must be extended without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national
origin, marital status, age, or physical or mental handicap. You must display posters (provided by
the Agency) informing users of these requirements, and the Agency will monitor your compliance
with these requirements during regular compliance reviews.

49, Compliance Reviews and Data Collection — The Agency will conduct regular compliance
reviews of the borrower and its operation in accordance with 7 CFR Part 1901, Subpart E, and 36
CFR 1191, Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accessibility Guidelines for Buildings and
Facilities; Architectural Barriers Act (ABA) Accessibility Guidelines. Compliance reviews will
typically be conducted in conjunction with the security inspections described in this letter. If
beneficiaries (users) are required to complete an application or screening for the use of the facility
or service that you provide, you must request and collect data by race (American Indian or Alaska
Native, Asian, Black or African American, White); ethnicity (Hispanic or Latino, Not Hispanic or
Latino); and by sex. The Agency will utilize this data as part of the required compliance review.

SECTION VIII - REMEDIES FOR NON-COMPLIANCE

Non-compliance with the conditions in this letter or requirements of your security documents will
be addressed under the provisions of 7 CFR 1782 and other applicable regulations, statutes, and
policies.

Page 15 0f 23



We look forward to working with you to complete this project. If you have any questions, please
contact Lisa Goodfellow, Community Programs Specialist at 775-887-1222 ext. 114 or by e-mail at

Lisa.Goodfellow@ny.usda.gov

Sincerely,
Cheryl Couch

Community Programs Director

Attachments

cc: Sarah Adler, State Director Nevada  via email only sarah.adler@nv.usda.gov

USDA Rural Development

Pat Whitten, County Manager via email only at pwhitten@storeycounty.org
Storey County

Hugh Gallagher, Comptroller via email only at hgallagher(@storeycounty.org
Storey County

Cherie Nevin, Storey County via email only at cnevin{@storeycounty.or
David A. Pringle, Auditor via email only at dpacpaltd@gmail.com

Keith Loomis via email only at kloomis@storeycounty.or,

Deputy District Attorney, Storey County

wshermanhoward.com

Kendra Follett, Bond Counsel via email only kfollett
Sherman & Howard, LLC

Lucas Tipton, P.E. via email only Lucas@Farr WestEngineering.com

Farr West Engineering

Page 16 of 23




FORMS and BULLETINS:

Form RD 440-24, “Position Fidelity Schedule Bond”

Form RD 442-2, “Statement of Budget, Income and Equity” — not attached

Form RD 442-3, “Balance Sheet” — not attached

Form RD 442-7, “Operating Budget” — not attached

Form RD 442-20, “Right-of-Way Easement”

Form RD 442-21, “Right-of-Way Certificate”

Form RD 442-22, “Opinion of Counsel Relative to Rights-of-Way”

Form RD 1927-9, “Preliminary Title Opinion”

Form RD 1927-10, “Final Title Opinion”

Form RD 1940-1, “Request for Obligation of Funds”

Form RD 1942-46, “Letter of Intent to Meet Conditions”

Form RD 3550-28, “Authorization Agreement for Preauthorized Payments” — not attached

SF 3881, “ACH Vendor/Miscellaneous Payment Enrollment Form”

RUS Bulletin 1780-26, “Guidance for the Use of EJCDC Documents on Water and Waste Projects
with RUS Financial Assistance”

RUS Bulletin 1780-27, “Loan Resolution (Public Bodies)”

NV 1780 Guide 8 — User Documentation

NV 1780 Guide 12 — Vulnerability Assessment

NV 180 Guide 24 — Graduation Certification

NV 1780 Guide 31 — Conflict of Interest Policy

Page 17 of 23




Appendix A
2 CFR Part 2§

SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT AND UNIVERSAL IDENTIFIER REQUIREMENTS

A. Requirement for System for Award Management

Unless you are exempted from this requirement under 2 CFR 25.110, you as the recipient must
maintain the currency of your information in the SAM until you submit the final financial report
required under this award or receive the final payment, whichever is later. This requires that you
review and update the information at least annually after the initial registration, and more
frequently if required by changes in your information or another appendix.

B. Requirement for unique entity identifier
If you are authorized to make subawards under this award, you:

1. Must notify potential subrecipients that no entity (see definition in paragraph C of this
appendix) may receive a subaward from you unless the entity has provided its unique
entity identifier to you.

2. May not make a subaward to an entity unless the entity has provided its unique entity
identifier to you.

C. Definitions
For purposes of this appendix:

1. System for Award Management (SAM) means the Federal repository into which an
entity must provide information required for the conduct of business as a recipient.
Additional information about registration procedures may be found at the SAM Internet
site (currently at http://www sam.gov).

2. Unique entity identifier means the identifier required for SAM registration to uniquely
identify business entities.

3. Entity, as it is used in this appendix, means all of the following, as defined at 2 CFR part
25, subpart C:

A Governmental organization, which is a State, local government, or Indian Tribe;
A foreign public entity;

A domestic or foreign nonprofit organization;

A domestic or foreign for-profit organization; and

A Federal agency, but only as a subrecipient under an award or subaward to a non-
Federal entity.

oo o

4, Subaward:

a. This term means a legal instrument to provide support for the performance of any
portion of the substantive project or program for which you received this award
and that you as the recipient award to an eligible subrecipient.

Page 18 of 23




b. The term does not include your procurement of property and services needed to carry
out the project or program (for further explanation, see 2 CFR 200.330).

c. A subaward may be provided through any legal agreement, including an agreement
that you consider a contract.

5. Subrecipient means an entity that:

a. Receives a subaward from you under this award; and
b. Is accountable to you for the use of the Federal funds provided by the subaward.

Page 19 of 23




Appendix B
2 CFR Part 170

Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation

a. Reporting of first-tier subawards.

1. Applicability. Unless you are exempt as provided in paragraph d. of this appendix, you must
report each action that obligates $25,000 or more in Federal funds that does not include
Recovery funds (as defined in section 15 12(a)(2) of the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 11 1-5) for a subaward to an entity (see definitions in
paragraph e. of this appendix).

2. Where and when to report.

i. You must report each obligating action described in paragraph a.1. of this appendix
to http://www.fsrs.gov.

ii. For subaward information, report no later than the end of the month following the
month in which the obligation was made. (For example, if the obligation was made
on November 7, 2010, the obligation must be reported by no later than December 31,
2010.)

3. What to report. You must report the information about each obligating action listed in the
submission instructions posted at http://www.fsrs.gov.

b. Reporting Total Compensation of Recipient Executives.

1. Applicability and what to report. You must report total compensation for each of your five
most highly compensated executives for the preceding completed fiscal year, if—

i. the total Federal funding authorized to date under this award is $25,000 or more;
ii. in the préceding fiscal year, you received—

(A) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenues from Federal procurement
contracts (and subcontracts) and Federal financial assistance subject to the
Transparency Act, as defined at 2 CFR 170.320 (and subawards); and

(B) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal procurement contracts
(and subcontracts) and Federal financial assistance subject to the Transparency Act,
as defined at 2 CFR 170.320 (and subawards); and

iii. The public does not have access to information about the compensation of the
executives through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986. (To determine if the public has access to the

Page 20 of 23




compensation information, see the U.S. Security and Exchange Commission total
compensation filings at http://www.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm.)

2. Where and when to report. You must report executive total compensation described in
paragraph b.1. of this appendix;

i. As part of your registration profile at https://www.sam.gov.

ii. By the end of the month following the month in which this award is made, and
annually thereafter.

¢. Reporting of Total Compensation of Subrecipient Executives.

1. Applicability and what to report. Unless you are exempt as provided in paragraph d. of this
appendix, for each first-tier subrecipient under this award, you shall report the names and
total compensation of each of the subrecipient's five most highly compensated executives for
the subrecipient's preceding completed fiscal year, if—

i. in the subrecipient's preceding fiscal year, the subrecipient received—

(A) 80 percent or more of its annual gross revenues from Federal procurement contracts
(and subcontracts) and Federal financial assistance subject to the Transparency Act,
as defined at 2 CFR 170.320 (and subawards); and

(B) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal procurement contracts
(and subcontracts), and Federal financial assistance subject to the Transparency Act
(and subawards); and

it, The public does not have access to information about the compensation of the
executives through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986. (To determine if the public has access to the
compensation information, see the U.S. Security and Exchange Commission total
compensation filings at http://www.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm.)

2. Where and when to report. You must report subrecipient executive total compensation
described in paragraph c. 1. of this appendix:

i. To the recipient.
ii. By the end of the month following the month during which you make the subaward.
For example, if a subaward is obligated on any date during the month of October of a
given year (i.e., between October 1 and 31), you must report any required
compensation information of the subrecipient by November 30 of that year.
d. Exemptions
If, in the previous tax year, you had gross income, from all sources, under $300,000, you are

exempt from the requirements to report:

Page 21 of 23



Subawards, and

The total compensation of the five most highly compensated executives of any
subrecipient.

e. Definitions. For purposes of this appendix:

1. Entity means all of the following, as defined in 2 CFR part 25:

i

ii.

iii.

iv,

A Governmental organization, which is a State, local government, or Indian tribe;
A foreign public entity;

A domestic or foreign nonprofit organization;

A domestic or foreign for-profit organization;

A Federal agency, but only as a subrecipient under an award or subaward to a non-
Federal entity.

2. Executive means officers, managing partners, or any other employees in management
positions.

3. Subaward:

ii,

iii.

This term means a legal instrument to provide support for the performance of any
portion of the substantive project or program for which you received this award and
that you as the recipient award to an eligible subrecipient.

The term does not include your procurement of property and services needed to carry
out the project or program (for further explanation, see Sec. __.210 of the
attachment to OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations™).

A subaward may be provided through any legal agreement, including an agreement
that you or a subrecipient considers a contract.

4. Subrecipient means an entity that:

i

ii.

Receives a subaward from you (the recipient) under this award; and

Is accountable to you for the use of the Federal funds provided by the subaward.

5. Total compensation means the cash and noncash dollar value earned by the executive during
the recipient's or subrecipient's preceding fiscal year and includes the following (for more
information see 17 CFR 229.402(c)(2)):

i

Page 22 of 23

Salary and bonus.



ii.

iii.

vi,

Page 23 of 23

Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights. Use the dollar amount
recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to the fiscal year
in accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(Revised 2004) (FAS 123R), Shared Based Payments.

Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans. This does not include group
life, health, hospitalization or medical reimbursement plans that do not discriminate
in favor of executives, and are available generally to all salaried employees.

Change in pension value. This is the change in present value of defined benefit and
actuarial pension plans.

Above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not tax-qualified.
Other compensation, if the aggregate value of all such other compensation (e.g.

severance, termination payments, value of life insurance paid on behalf of the
employee, perquisites or property) for the executive exceeds $10,000.




Position 3

Form RD 1942-46 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FORM APPROVED
(Rev. 6-10) RURAL DEVELOPMENT OMB NO. 0575-0015
OMB NO. 0570-0062

LETTER OF INTENT TO MEET CONDITIONS

Date 12-22-2016

TO: United States Department of Agriculture
USDA Rural Development
(Name of USDA Agency)

1390 South Curry St.
Carson City, NV 89703

(USDA Agency Office Address)

We have reviewed and understand the conditions set forth in your letter dated 12-22-2016 It is our intent to meet all of

them not later than 06-22-2017

Storey County

_(Name ofAssociation)
s A it

Marshall McBride, Chairman

(Title)

Accarding to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1993, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a persons is not required to respond to a collection of information
unless it displays a valid OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0575-0015 and 0570-0062. The time required fo
complete this information collection is estimated to average | hour per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources,
gathering and maintaining the data. needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information,

Form RD 1942-46 (Rev. 6-10)




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 20, 2018 Estimate of time required: 5-10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Resolution #18-484 authorizing an Interfund Loan to the Storey County
Water Fund from the Storey County General Fund for the Five Mile Waterline
Replacement Project.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Resolution #18-484 authorizing an Interfund Loan
to the Storey County Water Fund from the Storey County General Fund for the Five Mile
Waterline Replacement Project.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Storey County secured United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) loan
funds for $2,126,000 to finance the construction of the Five Mile Waterline Replacement Project.
Per the Letter of Conditions Item #17 dated December 22, 2016, Storey County is required to seek
Interim Financing for construction activities.

We are seeking approval of this Interfund Loan from the General Fund to the Water Fund for
financing the construction of this project, which is slated to begin June 2018. Utilizing the interfund
loan will allow us to save interest costs that we would have had using commercial interim financing.
The loan is required to be paid back in less than a year from the first draw. The permanent loan from
the USDA will kick in upon completion of construction.

5. Supporting materials: Resolution 18-484
USDA Letter of Conditions
6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: YES Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
Q,\%V(Zgﬁnty Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:

[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

———
el

Agenda Item No. / 4




Summary - a resolution authorizing an interfund loan to the Water System Fund from the
General Fund and setting forth the intent of the County to reimburse out of bond
proceeds the cost of certain projects.

RESOLUTION 18-484

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN INTERFUND LOAN

FOR THE STOREY COUNTY 5 MILE WATER LINE

PROJECT FROM THE GENERAL FUND TO THE WATER

SYSTEM FUND; SETTING FORTH THE INTENT OF THE

COUNTY TO REIMBURSE OUT OF BOND PROCEEDS

THE COST OF CERTAIN PROJECTS AS REQUIRED

UNDER THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE

REGULATIONS SECTION 1.150-2; PROVIDING CERTAIN

DETAILS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; AND

PROVIDING THE EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF.

WHEREAS, Storey County, Nevada (the "County" and the "State," respectively),
is a political subdivision of the State, a body corporate and organized and operating as a County
under the statutes of the State; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS") Sections 244A.011
through 244A.065, inclusive (the "Project Act") and NRS Sections 350.350 through 350.490,
NRS (the "Water and Sewer Act"), cited in NRS Section 350.350 as the Water and Sewer
Revenue Bond Law, the Board of County Commissioners of the County (the "Board") is
authorized and empowered to acquire, improve, equip, operate and maintain, within the County,
a water project as defined in NRS 244A.056, including the Storey County 5 Mile water line
project (the "Project") and to issue the Storey County, Nevada, Water Revenue Bonds in one or
more series in the combined maximum principal amount of $2,126,000 (the "Bonds") to finance
the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Board expects to incur certain expenditures relating to the
Project prior to obtaining permanent financing, and the Board intends to reimburse itself for such
prior expenditures with proceeds of the Bonds issued in one or more series in the combined
maximum principal amount of $2,126,000; and

WHEREAS, the County has on this date held a public hearing on a loan of
$2,126,000 from the General Fund to the Water System Fund (the "Loan") for the purpose of

funding the Project prior to obtaining permanent financing; and

47690541




WHEREAS, the Board shall adopt its "official intent" declaration in accordance
with Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2 in order for the County to reimburse expenditures
incurred by the County with respect to the Project in anticipation of the issuance of the Bonds,
the interest on which is exempt from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation, for
purposes of Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2 promulgated under the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended, and it is intended that this resolution shall constitute the Board's "official
intent" declaration as required by Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF STOREY, NEVADA:

Section 1. All action, proceedings, matters and things heretofore taken, had and
done by the Board, and the officers thereof (not inconsistent with the provisions of this
resolution) directed toward the issuance of the Bonds and the Project, be and the same hereby
are, ratified, approved and confirmed.

Section 2. A temporary interfund loan in the amount of $2,126,000 from the
General Fund to the Water System Fund is hereby authorized for the purpose of funding the
Project.

Section 3. The Board hereby finds and determines at the public hearing that:

(a). A sufficient amount of money is available in the General Fund to
provide the Loan of up to $2,126,000 to the Water System Fund to finance the Project prior to
obtaining permanent financing;

(b).  The money in the General Fund may be used for capital projects
and is not otherwise restricted as to its use, and will not compromise the economic viability of
the General Fund; and

(c).  The Loan may be provided by the General Fund without having an
adverse impact on the financial condition of the fund or any approved capital allocations.

Section 4. The Board hereby establishes at the public hearing that:

(8).  The Loan must be repaid within one year after the date on which
the Loan is made;

(b) The Loan may be prepaid in whole or in part at any time without
penalty;

() No interest will be charged on the Loan; and

2

47690541




(d) The Loan is to be repaid from legally available funds of the County
that are deposited into the Water System Fund and from proceeds of bonds, notes or other
securities by the County over the term of the Loan.

Section 5. The Loan shall be made at such time as determined by the County's
Comptroller at the time funds are needed to fund the Project.

Section 6. The term of the Loan will commence on the date of the first draw on
the Loan.

Section 7. The County hereby declares its intent to reimburse the costs of the
Project out of the Bonds. This is a declaration of official intent under Section 1.150-2 of the
Treasury Regulations promulgated under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Section 8. The Board hereby determines and declares that:

(a) The County intends to incur expenditures with respect to the
Project prior to the issuance of the Bonds and to reimburse those expenditures from the issuance
of the Bonds;

(b) The payment of costs related to the Project and the reimbursement
of such costs from the proceeds of the Bonds is consistent with the County's budgetary and
financial circumstances as of the date of this Resolution. The County does not currently have
moneys which are, nor does the County reasonably expect moneys to be, allocated on a long-
term basis, reserved or otherwise available pursuant to the County's budget to pay the
expenditures which the County intends to reimburse; and

(c) The maximum principal amount of the Bonds expected to be
issued for the Project is $2,126,000.

Section 9. All resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of
this resolution, are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency. This repealer shall
not be construed to revive any resolution, or part thereof, heretofore repealed.

Section 10.  If any section, paragraph, clause or other provision of this
resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or other provision shall not affect any of the

remaining provisions of this resolution.

47690541




Section 11.  This resolution shall become effective and be in force immediately
upon its adoption.
PASSED AND ADOPTED this March 20, 2018.

(SEAL)

Attest: Chairman

Clerk

47690541




STATE OF NEVADA
) SS.
STOREY COUNTY )

I am the duly chosen and qualified County Clerk of Storey County (herein
"County"), Nevada, and in the performance of my duties as Clerk do hereby certify:

A. The foregoing pages constitute a true, correct, complete and compared
copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") on March 20,
2018. The original of the resolution has been approved and authenticated by the signatures of
the Chairman of the Board and myself as Clerk, and sealed with the seal of the County, and has
been recorded in the records of the Board kept for that purpose in my office which record has
been duly signed by such officers and properly sealed.

B. All members of the Board were given due and proper notice of such
meeting and voted on such resolution as follows:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:
Those Absent:

Public notice of such meeting was given and such meeting was held and
conducted in full compliance with the provisions of NRS Section 241.020. A copy of the notice
of meeting and excerpts from the agenda for the meeting relating to the resolution are attached as
Exhibit A, as posted by 9:00 a.m. at least 3 working days in advance of the meeting at the
principal office of the Board, or if there is no principal place, at the building in which the
meeting is to be held, on the County's website, on the official website of the State of Nevada
pursuant to NRS 232.2175 and at least three (3) other separate, prominent places within the
jurisdiction of the Board, to wit:

(1) Virginia City Post Office

(ii) Storey County Courthouse

(iii)  Virginia City Fire Station

(iv)  Virginia City Highlands Fire Station
) Lockwood Fire Station

47690541




C. Prior to 9:00 a.m. at least 3 working days before such meeting, such notice
was mailed to each person, if any, who has requested notices of meetings of the Board in
compliance with NRS 241.020(3)(b) by United States Mail, or if feasible and agreed to by the

requestor, by electronic mail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this March 20, 2018.

County Clerk

47690541




EXHIBIT A
(Attach Copy of Notice of March 20, 2018 Meeting)

47690541




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 03/20/18 Estimate of time required: 30 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ x | Public hearing required [ x ]

1. Title: Discussion/No Possible Action. Workshop to review and discuss different performance
evaluation criteria and methods that may be used for evaluating the annual performance of a
County Manager.

2. Recommended motion: Workshop only, no action

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

4. Staff summary: The workshop will allow the board and staff to discuss different performance
evaluation criteria and methods that may be used in developing an annual
performance evaluation procedure for the Storey County Manager position.

3. Supporting materials: Talking guide for developing performance evaluation; International
City/County Manager Association (ICMA) Code of Ethics

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: .
Department Head Department Name:

,/.Dj&é&;_/&)unty Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued
Agenda Item No.
Page 1 of 1




BOCC Workshop 03/20/18
Enclosure A: Talking Guide for Developing Performance Evaluation

Bold items are derived from the County Manager job description. Sub-points are
draft concepts to discuss in developing potential evaluation criteria.

1. Executive leadership

a. Motivator

b. Delegate authority
Effective management team
Communication
Strategic leadership: goals, objectives, policies
Relationship with the board
Relationship with staff, departments, elected offices
Relationship with residents, businesses, and public
Ownership of error

Inter-governmental relations (local, state, federal)
Follows ICMA Code of Ethics

AT EE o Ao

2. Managerial and organizational effectiveness
Carry out board directives
Communicates with board appropriately
Efficiency and effectiveness

Detail and error avoidance

Carry out policies

Resolves problems

Deliver product

©ome a0 o

3. Financial planning

Best financial management practices

. Meets board policies, guidelines, and directives

Cost control

Efficient use of labor and resources

Appropriate allocations and expenditures

Financial knowledge

Anticipates and plans for future financial needs

Utilizes federal and state grant and funding opportunities

o

PR o oo

4. Human resource development

Fosters a team

. Team common objectives

Professional and effective with departments/elected offices
Team’s positive impact on citizens and businesses

Carries out personnel policies

Addresses disciplinary problems, takes appropriate action

Page 1 of 3

o

Mo oo




BOCC Workshop 03/20/18

g. Monitors performance, initiates corrective action’
h. Evaluates and coaches consistently and fairly

S. Public service and communication
a. Positive impression by citizens
b. Visible and accessible

o oo

Outgoing to meet with citizens
Communicates with citizens
Citizen/customer oriented

Responds timely to citizen complaints

6. Economic development in the county
a. Builds private-public partnerships

@ o a0 g

. Intergovernmental cooperation
Responds quickly to stakeholder needs
Adapts to changing economic environment

Knows county assets, strengths, weaknesses, and opportunities
Builds positive image of county based on fact

Demonstrates consistency and integrity

7. Emergency management
a. Crisis manager and leader
b. Intergovernmental cooperation

¢. Maintains conformance with requirements

8. Self-Evaluation

a. County Manager’s self-evaluation of the foregoing
b. Board views comments before evaluating

¢. Comparison

9. Growth

a. Use evaluation criteria to build performance goals for following year.
b. Evaluate goal achievement in the following year

Reference: Job Description Essential Functions Summarized

Assist BOCC

Develop goals, objectives

Adpvises policies

Fosters team management

Evaluates staff

Contract administrator

Oversees budget Administers budget Preps BOCC meetings
Media PIO Legislature representative | Lobbyist
Investigates Resolves complaints Economic development

Responds to emergencies

Page 2 of 3




BOCC Workshop 03/20/18

Reference: International City/County Manager Association (ICMA)

ICMA Code of Ethics

Tenet 1 - Be dedicated to the concepts of effective and democratic local government by
responsible elected officials and believe that professional general management is essential to the
achievement of this objective.

Tenet 2 — Affirm the dignity and worth of the services rendered by government and maintain a
constructive, creative, and practical attitude toward local government affairs and a deep sense of
social responsibility as a trusted public servant

Tenet 3 — Demonstrate by word and action the highest standards of ethical conduct and integrity
in all public, professional, and personal relationships in order that the member may merit the
trust and respect of the elected and appointed officials, employees, and the public.

Tenet 4 — Recognize that the chief function of local government at all times is to serve the best
interests of all people.

Tenet S — Submit policy proposals to elected officials; provide them with facts and advice on
matters of policy as a basis for making decisions and setting community goals; and uphold and
implement local government policies adopted by elected officials.

Tenet 6 — Recognize that elected representatives of the people are entitled to the credit for the
establishment of local government policies; responsibility for policy execution rests with the
members.

Tenet 7 — Refrain from all political activities which undermine public confidence in professional
administrators. Refrain from participation in the election of the members of the employing
legislative body.

Tenet 8 — Make it a duty continually to improve the member's professional ability and to
develop the competence of associates in the use of management techniques.

Tenet 9 — Keep the community informed on local government affairs; encourage communication
between the citizens and all local government officers; emphasize friendly and courteous service
to the public; and seek to improve the quality and image of public service.

Tenet 10 — Resist any encroachment on professional responsibilities, believing the member
should be free to carry out official policies without interference, and handle each problem
without discrimination on the basis of principle and justice.

Tenet 11 — Handle all matters of personnel on the basis of merit so that fairness and impartiality
govern a member's decisions, pertaining to appointments, pay adjustments, promotions, and
discipline.

Tenet 12 — Public office is a public trust. A member shall not leverage his or her position for
personal gain or benefit.

Page 3 of 3




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 20, 2018 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action on administrative policies that give the county manager
either significant job duties or the responsibility for making sure the policies are approved by the
board and are followed by staff,

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the adoption of the following policies (call out
specific policy numbers), alternatively, I move to continue the following policies (call out specific
policy numbers)

3. Prepared by: Prepared for Marshall McBride, Chair, by Robert Morris, outside counsel.
Department: County Commissioners Tel: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: On November 7, 2017 the Board considered the county manager job description
in conjunction with several administrative policies that set out county manager job duties and
responsibilities. The discussion included how the county manager’s job description did not include
specific duties that are included in county administrative policies. The Board approved the county
manager’s job description on February 20, 2018 and has had an opportunity to discuss the attached
policies in a workshop, which contain specific county manager job duties and responsibilities as well
creating new policies with specific duties for the county manager and other staff. The Board will not
consider the current county manager’s job performance in connection with this agenda item.

(Continued on next page)

5. Supporting materials: Administrative policies that include some of the county manager job
duties and responsibilities, Policy No. 001, 002, 008, 042, 00X, and 0XX.

6. Fiscal impact: The payments under the policy on separation agreements will increase the amount
the county spends on employees. The payments under the voluntary retirement program should be
covered by salary savings within three years.

7. Legal review required: No District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
artment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
///:Ej: County Manager Other agency review:

z‘—_’/
9. Board action:

[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued
Agenda Item No. / b

— p——
e )




4. Staff summary continued:
The included policies are:

Revised Policy No. 001 Function of the policy and procedure manual. Clean copy and one
showing changes. The changes to this policy are to make it more readable and understandable.

Revised Policy No. 002 Creating, reviewing, and modifying policies. Clean copy and one showing
changes. The changes to this policy are to make it more readable and understandable.

Revised Policy No. 008 Agenda requests for the Board of County Commissioner’s meetings.
Clean copy. This policy has been changed to include the suggestions by the county manager and
the clerk, and is ready for approval by the Board.

Revised Policy No. 042 Contracts and agreements. Clean copy and one showing changes.

This policy includes changes discussed at the most recent workshop including the review and
approval of contracts by the Board, the duties of the county manager, comptroller, district attorney,
and the director of human resources.

Proposed Policy No. 0XX Voluntary retirement program. This is a new policy that allows certain
employees to retire early with the County making a payment to the employee’s PERS or deferred
compensation account. While there have been some Board approved payments there is no written
policy. This proposed policy requires the Board to approve use of this program. The cost would be
recovered with salary savings of the new replacement employee.

Proposed Policy No. 00X Separation agreement. This is a new policy that would pay employees
separating from the County for their exceptional service. The proposed policy requires the Board
to approve use of this program.




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 001

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 9/18/07
REVISED: 03/20/18
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER:

SUBJECT: Function of the policy and procedure manual.

L PURPOSE: This-precedure To describes the purpose and format of the Storey County
Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual (the manual).

Definitions:

A. Policy: 4 definite course or method of action selected by the board ro guide or direct

ihe counly Q()vernment in pr esent and fulme deczszons A-basierule-established-to-govern

B. Procedure: The act, method, or manner of proceeding in seme a particular process, ot
course of action,—the- or sequence of steps to be followed for doing or accomplishing

something.

I POLICY: The Sterey—County—Policies—and—Proeedures manual is designed to be a

comprehensive manual document incorporating all policies, procedures, eommission
board regulations and directives that affect and guide the actions of all county
departments and employees. They are intended to respect department specific approved
policies and adhere be consistent with the provisions of te collective bargaining
agreements. eentraets: The county manager’s office is responsible for providing a digital
version of the current version of the manual to be available on the county’s web site.

III. PROCEDURE:

A F unction

The Administrative—PRolicies—and—Procedures manual will be a resource for

containing all countywide procedures, policies and directives.

B. Reasons for establishing and maintaining a policies and procedure manual.
To give the board an opportunity to;
] . Communicate their ideas clearly by reviewing and adoptine policies.
._Give direction by including appropriate procedures.
3 lnsure umfo/mlty of actwn by use of the policies within the county.

Draft 3-2-2018 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page I of 2




C. Content:
The following types of policies and procedures will be included in the manual.

1. These Policies or procedures, which cross department lines and require action,
compliance or give direction to more than one department.

2. Policies and procedures adopted by the board to ouide the actions of all county
departments.

3. These Policies or procedures that provide information of value to all county
departments.

D. The policies and procedures will be reviewed and signed by the county manager or
the person designated in_the policy and approved by _the board before being

placed in_the manual. County—policies—and-procedures shall-be—reviewed—and

oranad by the Countx MNManaoer anrd authorized-h tha Raard af C A a i C St OBReES
STENCO Uy OOy VIt LUy Iy dtoiZeoa—o )yt —ouara-Iut OO STOTIVIS

AR .

IV. RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The county manager’s office will review this
policy every 5 years.

Draft 3-2-2018 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 2




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 001

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 9/18/07
REVISED: 03/20/18
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER:

SUBJECT: Function of the policy and procedure manual.

L PURPOSE: To describe the purpose and format of the Storey County Administrative
Policies and Procedures Manual (the manual).

Definitions:

A. Policy: A definite course or method of action selected by the board to guide or direct
the county government in present and future decisions.

B. Procedure: The act, method, or manner of proceeding in a particular process, course
of action, or sequence of steps to be followed for doing or accomplishing something.

IL. POLICY: The manual is designed to be a comprehensive document incorporating all
policies, procedures, board regulations and directives that affect and guide the actions of
all county departments and employees. They are intended to respect department specific
approved policies and be consistent with the provisions of to collective bargaining
agreements. The county manager’s office is responsible for providing a digital version of
the current version of the manual to be available on the county’s web site.

III.  PROCEDURE:

A. Function:
1. The manual will be a resource containing all countywide procedures, policies
and directives.

B. Reasons for establishing and maintaining a policies and procedure manual.
To give the board an opportunity to:
1. Communicate their ideas clearly by reviewing and adopting policies.
2. Give direction by including appropriate procedures.
3. Insure uniformity of action by use of the policies within the county.

C. Content:
The following types of policies and procedures will be included in the manual.
1. Policies or procedures, which cross department lines and require action,
compliance or give direction to more than one department.

Draft 3-20-2018 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 1 of 2




2. Policies and procedures adopted by the board to guide the actions of all county
departments.

3. Policies or procedures that provide information of value to all county
departments.

D. The policies and procedures will be reviewed and signed by the county manager or
the person designated in the policy and approved by the board before being placed
in the manual.

IV.  RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The county manager’s office will review this
policy every 5 years.

Draft 3-20-2018 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 2




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 002

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 9/18/07
REVISED: 3/20/18
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER:

SUBJECT: Creating, reviewing, and modifying policies.

L. PURPOSE: To establish guidelines for the board. county manager, and departments to

use for proposing, reviewing, modifying or deleting policies or procedures from the
Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual (manual).

IL

hat they be consistently
procedus practices,
y propose a policy or

.  PROCEDURE:

A. ed official. county manager,

n existing policy, or the

1. Procedure for proposing a Pre
* Type in policy format, Ch G
* Proposed amendments to existing policies and procedures or the addition
of new policies and procedures must be shown in the following format:
Policy language to be deleted must be shown with a red strikethrough line
through each word and character to be deleted; and policy language to be
added must be shown in blue italics and underlined for regular text and
bold italics and underlined for any text which is to be bolded in the final
document.

* Send to county manager or designee for review with justification for the
change requested.

ose policy draft or revision.

2. County manager’s office (or designee)
* Forward to district attorney if there are legal implications.
e Forward to human resources if there is employee relations, benefit or
personnel related impact.

Draft 3-2-2018 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page I of 2

T




Revise draft if necessary.
Upon preliminary approval, submit to the affected impaeted department
heads for review and comment.

e Revise as appropriate.
e Review final draft.
e Prepare action-sheet g board agenda request form, schedule on

commission-board agenda and obtain approval for policy from the board
of county commissioners.

e Provide documentation of Commissien board approval and copy of policy
on a computer disk to all departments.

d as part of the policy.

2. ager’s office will establish and maintain a ‘tickler” file to
ull out those policies due for revi

3. on of all changes will folloy

4.

IV. RESPONSIBILITY
review at least every >

Draft 3-2-2018 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 2




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 002

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 9/18/07
REVISED: 3/20/18
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER:

SUBJECT: Creating, reviewing, and modifying policies.

L. PURPOSE: To establish guidelines for the board, county manager, and departments to
use for proposing, reviewing, modifying or deleting policies or procedures from the
Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual (manual).

rimary reference for direction that
ential that they be consistently
s, legal requirements, issues,
procedure or revision of an

IL POLICY: County policies
applies to county admini
reviewed and updated
and trends. Any dep
existing policy relat

jon. As such, it is
eded to reflect current prac
or office-may propose a poli

y their departments.

. PROCEDURE:

s 1 10wn in the following format:
Policy language to be deleted must be shown with a red strikethrough line
through each word and character to be deleted; and policy language to be
added must be shown in blue italics and underlined for regular text and
bold italics and underlined for any text which is to be bolded in the final
document.

¢ Send to county manager or designee for review with justification for the
change requested.

2. County manager’s office (or designee)

e Forward to district attorney if there are legal implications.

e Forward to human resources if there is employee relations, benefit or
personnel related impact.

e Revise draft if necessary.

e Upon preliminary approval, submit to the affected department heads for
review and comment.

e Revise as appropriate.

Draft 3-20-2018 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 1 of 2




IV. RESPONSIBILITY F
review at least every 5"

Draft 3-20-2018

e Review final draft.

e Prepare a board agenda request form, schedule on board agenda and obtain
approval for policy from the board of county commissioners.

e Provide documentation of board approval and copy of policy on a
computer disk to all departments.

Review of policies:

1.

2.

At the time of proposal of a policy or procedure a specific time period will be
assigned for review and discussion and be approved as part of the policy.

The county manager’s office will establish and maintain a ‘tickler’ file to
identify and pull out those policies due for review.

Implementatlon of all changes will follow procedures outlined under
proposing or rev1smg policies.

Policies must be teviewed by the de51gnated authority or person at least once
every five years or as needed and a report glven to the board containing the
results of each polic

er’s office is responsible for

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 2




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 008
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 10-6-2009

REVISED: 3-20-2018
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER

SUBJECT: Agenda requests for Board of County Commissioners’ meetings.

IL

PURPOSE: To outline procedures and policies regarding request for placement of items on the
Board of County Commissioners’ agenda.

PROCEDURE OR POLICY:
A. The county manager is responsible for the agenda of the board meetings and the approval of
agenda items to be placed on the agenda.

B. All requests for agenda items must be made in writing on approved agenda action report
forms and must be submitted to the clerk’s office for placement on the agenda. The request must
include all supporting documentation and must be submitted by noon on Monday of the week
preceding the board’s meeting. On receipt, the clerk will send the item to the county manager.
The county manager will review the item and either approve the item for a subsequent meeting
agenda or disapprove the item and respond to the requester in writing with the reasons why it is
being denied. If the county manager, or his designee, is unavailable or there is a conflict, the
chair of the board may approve items for the agenda.

C. Any member of the public, the board, or county staff may request an agenda item. All agenda
item requests by county staff must be approved by the employee’s immediate supervisor or
department head and the county manager.

D. All ordinances and resolutions must be reviewed, approved, and signed off on by the district
attorney’s office before placement on the agenda. Once the county manager approvese the
ordinance or resolution for placement on the next meeting’s agenda, the clerk’s office will issue
a number. The person requesting a resolution must provide the clerk with a clean copy ready for
signature for the agenda packet. A resolution may be approved by the board after a public
hearing. The person requesting the ordinance must provide the clerk with a redline version for
the first reading showing changes by using red strikethrough for deleted text and underlined blue
italics for new text. If changes are made to the ordinance between the first and second reading a
redline version showing the changes must be submitted for the agenda packet for the public
hearing. The person is also responsible for providing a clean copy of the ordinance ready for
signature for the agenda packet before the public hearing. An ordinance may be approved by the
board after a first reading and public hearing (second reading) in conformance with NRS 244,

E. Items, including those involving personnel matters, may be subject to closed meeting
provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes and the Open Meeting Law.

F. Matters raised during public comment that are not on the agenda may not be acted on by the
board until the matter is placed on subsequent agenda as an action item.

Draft 3-20-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page ] of 3




RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The county manager or his or her designee will review this
policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Draft 3-20-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 3




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Staff Report

Meeting date: Time requested: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Administrative [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve ...
2. Recommended motion: [ move to approve ...
3. Prepared by: (name)
Department: Tel:

4. Staff summary:

5. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund:
6. Supporting materials: (item and list of supporting materials)

7. Reviewed by:

___Department Head Department Name:
_ Comptroller

__ County Manager Other agency review:
__ District Attorney

8. Board action:

Approved with Modifications

[] Approved
[] Continued

Denied

e
e

Agenda Item No

Draft 3-20-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 3 of 3




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 042
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 7-3-2012
REVISED: 3-20-2018
AUTHORITY: BOC
((DRAFT: Blue, Austin; green, Bob Morris)) COMPTROLLER:

SUBJECT: CONTRACTS and AGREEMENTS

IL

PURPOSE: To outline procedures and policies regarding Stor

unty contracts and
agreements.

PROCEDURE OR POLICY:

A. Only the board is authorized to approve contr: d. except as otherwise
provided in this policy. g

B. All agreements and contracts entered ifi
the county must be filed in the county clerk’s of
C. All contracts must be reviewet
comptroller before consideration
and permanent staffing, labor relati
matters impacting the county positio
administrative offic

by the board during the budeet process still
omplroller, and the county manager but do

not require furthe
arec ]

. € cits are approved by the board, the board chair, or if designated by .
the board, the’ ty manager or another designee will sign the agreement or contract.
The county manager is authorized to approve and sign, on behalf of the Board,
agreements and contracts that have not been approved by the board and are valued less
than 5,000 and sign change orders on construction projects if the change order is no
greater than 10% of the total amount bid on the for the project.

Nothing in this policy prohibits the county manager from having the board review, vote
on, and sign contracts and change orders, including those routine matters in which the
manager is normally authorized to engage the county. Additionally, this policy does not
prohibit the board from requesting certain agreements, contracts, and change orders be
approved by a vote of the board or reviewed if already signed by the county manager. The
county clerk will retain the original agreement-or contract. The document will not be

Draft 3-20-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 1 of 2




removed from the clerk’s office once all parties have signed it.

G. The originating department must obtain the signatures of the second parties prior to
presenting the agreement or contract to the board. If they are unable to obtain the
necessary signatures of the second parties, the county clerk will retain a copy the
document and notify the originating department that they will need to obtain the
signatures and return an original to the county clerk.

H. The county clerk will make a certified copy of the contract or agreement and deliver
it to the county recorder for recording.

I. The clerk’s office will notify the originating departmen the documents have

review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessa

Draft 3-20-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 2




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 042

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 7-3-2012
REVISED: 3-20-2018
AUTHORITY: BOC
COMPTROLLER:

SUBJECT: CONTRACTS and AGREEMENTS

IL

PURPOSE: To outline procedures and policies regarding S
agreements.

ounty contracts and

PROCEDURE OR POLICY:

A. Only the board is authorized to approve contra
provided in this policy.

B. All agreements and contracts entered i

C. All contracts must be reviewe
comptroller before consideration

t atterney and comptroller. A contract approved using this
the board’s next agenda for review.

F. After con approved by the board, the board chair, or if designated by the
board, the co nanager or another designee will sign the agreement or contract. The
county manager is authorized to approve and sign, on behalf of the Board, agreements
and contracts that have not been approved by the board and are valued less than $5,000
and sign change orders on construction projects if the change order is no greater than 10%
of the total amount bid on the for the project. Nothing in this policy prohibits the county
manager from having the board review, vote on, and sign contracts and change orders,
including those routine matters in which the manager is normally authorized to engage
the county. Additionally, this policy does not prohibit the board from requesting certain
agreements, contracts, and change orders be approved by a vote of the board or reviewed
if already signed by the county manager. The county clerk will retain the original
agreement-or contract. The document will not be removed from the clerk’s office once

Draft 3-20-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 1 of 2




all parties have signed it.

G. The originating department must obtain the signatures of the second parties prior to
presenting the agreement or contract to the board. If they are unable to obtain the
necessary signatures of the second parties, the county clerk will retain a copy the
document and notify the originating department that they will need to obtain the
signatures and return an original to the county clerk.

H. The county clerk will make a certified copy of the contract or agreement and deliver
it to the county recorder for recording.

the documents have
Qfm to schedule the

L. The clerk’s office will notify the originating department.
been signed. This will keep the department informed
commencement of the project.

review this policy every 5 years or sooner as nece

Draft 3-20-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 2




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 0XI
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 3-20-2018

REVISED:
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER:

SUBJECT: VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT PROGRAM

II.

II1.

PURPOSE: The voluntary retirement program is designed to
employees to voluntarily agree to leave county employmen
measure.

rage eligible
a budget reduction

PROCEDURE OR POLICY:

A. Only the board of county commissioners ai D issioners or
their designees are authorized to approve:; 1

B. Participation in the program is voluntary. Tt
county manager may initiate the process of se
the program. N

C. The board will consider budg ly retirement, and the board
will receive a budget savings anal 5 s caused by the early
retirement and filling the vacated posit 0. the depariment head or the county
manager s offic

department head or the
g participants for consideration in

ble employees may receive up to 2 years of
Retirement System (PERS) purchased on their

iscretion, may modify or cancel this program at any time and it
st for early retirement buy-out. Participation by the county and the
any particular request is also dependent on the county’s fiscal
proposed purchase of service.

board’s"
ability to fi

PROGRAM CONDITIONS:

A. An employee’s participation in the program requires that the person filling the vacated
position start at a lower step or salary than that of the employee participating in the
program so that there will be substantial budgetary savings

C. The amount of purchase of service is conditioned on the ability of the department to
recover the purchase of service expense within three years and the department being
able to show an on-going personnel cost reduction to cover the expense.

D. The maximum purchase of service payment is $30,000.

Draft 3-2-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page I of 5




IV.

VL

ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS:

A. Full-time regular employees who have 10 or more years of continuous service with
the county, are vested in the PERS system, and are eligible to partlclpate in the PERS
program.

B. The county manager may determine certain positions may
the board with this as a factor to be considered by the_
employee is eligible to participate in the program ’ ,

C. Elected officials, regular part-time and less-than part-ti yees contract
employees, and employees hired with or paid |
program. Note: how to handle grant employees.

itical and may present
d whether or not the

Voluntary Retirement Program
the administrative officer and/or
his or her department head.

A. An eligible employee may request to partici

i

permanent cost savings. The depar

pry

vithdraw his or her request up until the decision by the board. If
during the approval process or the employee is determined not to
>/oyee must be notified of that determination in writing by the

director.
CALCULATiON FOR PURCHASE OF SERVICE:

A. The amount of the purchase of service given the employee is based on the cost of
PERS credit as of the effective date of the employee’s termination of employment
from the county.

B. The calculation of the PERS amount will be based on standard PERS requirements.

C. The payment to PERS will be made before the termination date

Draft 3-2-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 5



VII. RESPONSIBILITIES:

A. The director is designated by the county manager to administer the program.

B. The department head will review the employee’s requests before they are submitted to
the human resources office.

C. The director will accept and process requests, determine eligibility, and consult with
PERS to calculate years of service.

D. The employee is responsible for signing all necessary paperwork and, if approved for
the program, separating from the county.

E. The human resources office will work with the affected depa%ment to make sure that
any change in pay grades, reassignment of duties, update b descriptions and
authorized positions are completed in accordance with county administrative
policies and any bargaining agreement.

VIII. FORMS:
A. Employee request form.
B. Waiver and release form.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Mana
this policy every 5 years or sooner as necés

r his or her designee will review

Draft 3-2-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 3 of 5




Request Form

Name of employee:

Position:

Department:

Years of full-time continuous service:

Date of requested separation:

ment program by the purchase by
em not to exceed $30,000. I am

I am requesting participation in Storey County’s volunt
the County of up to 2 years of service in.the Nevada PERS
requesting the purchase of years.

Attach the department head written budget re luctio
changes in pay grades, job des: i%ions, and auth

i

uding any reorganization, proposed
v

(to be verified)

Date;

Date:

Date:

Draft 3-2-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 4 of 5




Storey County voluntary retirement program agreement
and

Waiver and release agreement.

Storey County and (employee)

Agree as follows:

ent’program. Employer
est and will forward this

1. Employee has requested participation in the voluntary reti
(specific department head and county manager) has approved the

effective on the Board’s approval and no payment will be ma ~
date.

2. Employee has reviewed, understands and
program. A copy of the voluntary retirement progr
this agreement.

3. Employee acknowledges that he or she has bee n adequate time to review the
program before signing this agreement. %

4. Employee has up until the Boar
acceptance.

Discrimination in Emple
law of contract and tort. iver: aims presently known or unknown.

Date:
Date:
County manager: y Date:
Board Chair: Date:

Draft 3-2-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 5 of 5




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 0XI

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 3-20-2018
REVISED:
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER:

SUBJECT: VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT PROGRAM

II.

III.

IV,

PURPOSE: The voluntary retirement program is designed to lirage eligible
employees to voluntarily agree to leave county employment as a budget reduction
measure.

PROCEDURE OR POLICY:

A. Only the board of county commissioners Mmissioners or
their designees are authorized to app etirem

B. Participation in the program is voluntary. ' cad or the
county manager may initiate the process of sele: participants for consideration in
the program. '

C. The board will consider budg ly retlrement and the board
will receive a budget savings a ;

le employges may receive up to 2 years of
tirement System (PERS) purchased on their

1 , may'modify or cancel this program at any time and it
rl retlrement buy-out Participation by the county and the

position startat a lower step or salary than that of the employee participating in the
program 50 that there will be substantial budgetary savings

C. The amount of purchase of service is conditioned on the ability of the department to
recover the purchase of service expense within three years and the department being
able to show an on-going personnel cost reduction to cover the expense.

D. The maximum purchase of service payment is $30,000.

ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS:

A. Full-time regular employees who have 10 or more years of continuous service with

Draft 3-20-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page ] of 5




the county, are vested in the PERS system, and are eligible to participate in the PERS
program.

B. The county manager may determine certain positions may be critical and may present
the board with this as a factor to be considered by the board whether or not the
employee is eligible to participate in the program.

C. Elected officials, regular part-time and less-than part-time employees; contract
employees, and employees hired with or paid by a grant are not eligible for the
program.

V. PROCEDURE FOR PROCESSING REQUESTS: "
A. An eligible employee may request to participate in the untary Retlrement Program
by submlttlng a completed employee request form t

grades, job descriptions, and authorized posit,
C. Any request approved by the department head
county manager for review. [fith
and approves the request, the e
form. The county manager wil
and consideration.
. The board has the

anges irif?pay grades or authorized positions
e cted in the department’s budget.
request up until the decision by the board If

VL

VII. RESPONSIBILITIES:
A. The director is designated by the county manager to administer the program.
B. The department head will review the employee’s requests before they are submitted to
the human resources office.
C. The director will accept and process requests, determine eligibility, and consult with
PERS to calculate years of service.
D. The employee is responsible for signing all necessary paperwork and, if approved for

Draft 3-20-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 5




the program, separating from the county.

E. The human resources office will work with the affected department to make sure that
any change in pay grades, reassignment of duties, updated job descriptions and
authorized positions are completed in accordance with the county administrative

policies and any bargaining agreement.

VIII. FORMS:

A. Employee request form.
B. Waiver and release form.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Manager er designee will review

this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary. %

Draft 3-20-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 3 of 5




Request Form

Name of employee:

Position;

Department:

Years of full-time continuous service:

Date of requested separation:

ent program by the purchase by
tem not to exceed $30,000. Iam

I am requesting participation in Storey County’s volunt
the County of up to 2 years of service i
requesting the purchase of years.

Attach the department head wrltten budget r
changes in pay grades, job d

] any reorganization, proposed

(to be verified)

Date:

Date;

Date:

Draft 3-20-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 4 of 5




Storey County voluntary retirement program agreement
and

Waiver and release agreement.

Storey County and (employee)

Agree as follows:

; yrogram. Employer
st and will forward this
proval. This agreement is

1. Employee has requested participation in the voluntary reti
(specific department head and county manager) has approved th
agreement to the Board of County Commissioners (Board) for fii
effective on the Board’s approval and no payment will be ma
date.

2. Employee has reviewed, understands and
program. A copy of the voluntary retirement progr;
this agreement.

3. Employee acknowledges that he or she has be
program before signing this agreement. %

4. Employee has up until the Boar ja.rescind his or her

acceptance.

5. Employee waives, releases, and agrees never to assert Claims against employer and the
termination of employmer this program.’These claims include but are not limited to,
claims arising under federal, state, a ry or common law, such as the Age
ivil Rights Act of 1964 and 1991 and the
aims presently known or unknown.

Date:

Department head sig; Date:

County manager: Date:

Board Chair: Date:
Draft 3-20-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 5 of 5

D




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 00X
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 3-20-2018
REVISED:
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER:

SUBJECT: Separation Agreements

I. PURPOSE: To outline procedures and policies regarding separation agreements
between an employee and the county.

II. PROCEDURE OR POLICY:

A. The board, or its designee, must approve all separati

authorized to approve separation agreements.

by the appropriate county officers, recomm.

separating from employment with the ¢

outstanding service to the county. The:

$30,000 to be paid either to PERS or to t
compensation account.

B. All separation agreements ente

county or the fire district must

C. All contracts must be reviewed

administrative officer and/or perso

" consideration by the board.

Once approved board, the board chair will sign the agreement.
py of the contract or agreement and deliver it

m o

ty manager or his or her designee will review

Draft 3-2-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 1 of 1




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Review and possible approval of Auditors Recommendations pertaining to Storey
County Audit Report for the period ended June 30, 2017

2. Recommended motion
I hereby make a motion to approve the recommended actions pertaining to the Auditors
recommendations for the Audit Report Period ended June 30, 2017

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4. Staff summary: The Comptroller will address the Auditors report on current recommendations
and purposed solutions for the next fiscal year.

S. Supporting materials: Provided prior to the meeting

6. Fiscal impact: none
Funds Available: Fund: x Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
~County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e

Agenda Item No. /7




STOREY COUNTY
OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER
POST OFFICE BOX 432

| VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA 89440

STOREY COUNTY

BOARD OF ¢OUNTY COMMISSIONERS March 20, 2019
Gentlemen:

Pursuant to NRS 354.6245, the following represents corrective action to the Storey County Audit
Report dated June 30, 2017. Under “Auditors Report on Current year’s Recommendations.” Our
outside auditor sited three current recommendations.

1. “We recommend monitoring expenditures to prevent exceeding budgeted amounts as
expenditures exceeded appropriations in three Special Revenue Funds and two

Enterprise Funds.

a. The Virginia City Tourism Special Revenue Fund Exceeded revenue projections by
$11,225, however expenses exceeded appropriations by $52,832. A letter from
Tourism Director Deny Dotson is attached for your review. In addition, the Virginia
City Tourism Commission was notified that they must also monitor expenditures on a
quarterly basis.

b. The Mutual Aid Special Revenue Fund is used to account for all fire incidents outside
of the 474 Fire District area. As resource is supplied to those incidents, a billing to
the outside agency also occurs. Revenues did exceed appropriations by $108,890;
however, expenses did exceed appropriations by $109,277. Continued evaluation of
this fund will prevent this fund from over appropriations in the future.

c. The Emergency Mitigation Special Revenue Fund exceeded appropriations by
$42, 910 due to the early 2017 Flood. This fund also reflected a negative ending fund
balance, which will be corrected by a transfer from the General Fund of $150,000.

As significant events occur, we will monitor this account.

d. The Water System Enterprise Fund has excess expenditures over appropriations of
$120,530 is mainly due the addition of Pension requirements per GASB 63. These are
future liabilities which no budget number is assigned. In the future, the Auditor will
move this amount out of operating expenses.

e. The Virginia Divide Sewer Special Revenue Fund has excess expenditures over
appropriations of $149,480. $37,332 is mainly due the addition of Pension liability
per GASB 63. These are future liabilities which no budget number is assigned. In




the future, the Auditor will move this amount out of operating expenses. Another
$110,019 was a Depreciation Expense error due to new infrastructure being
depreciated.
f. District Court within the General Fund had expenses over appropriations for $2,080.
A professional contract for the district court was inputted incorrectly resulting in the
overage.
2. Report Finding 2017-A Report Preparation
This county has always asked the outside auditor to give assistance with the audit report
because of staff constraints. The auditor has explained, “This circumstance is not
unusual in an organization of this size, due to time constraints of management and costs
associated with compliance of the standards.” Understanding this is the first audit
examiniation by Dipitero and Thornton CPA, we are prepared to provide the necessary
information required.
3. Report Finding 2017-B Cash and Investment Accounts
Investments were in the past recorded on the Cash Basis and for the annual report
adjusted to fair market value. In the future all internal and external statements will be
adjusted to fair market value.
4. Report Finding 2017-C Report Preparation
The Storey County Board of County Commissioners will adopt policy standards that will
require approval of any future additional retirement benefits by the Board.
5. Status of Prior Years Findings
“We recommend account names in the Federal/State Grant Fund be reviewed and
adjusted to father differentiate the Federal and state grant revenues and expenditures.
a. We have made great strides in the identification of Federal vs. State Grant
revenues and expenditures. Our biggest problem exists when a State Grant
changes into a Federal Grant. We will continue monitor these programs on a
quarterly basis.

Sincerely,

Hugh J. Gallagher

Comptroller

Marshall McBride-Chairman



Jack McGuffey-Vice Chairman

Lance Gilman-Commissioner




o "k‘»“; },‘r STOREYCQUNTY NBVA;)A . ‘ R LR . ‘;', o ": ‘y ',,; .
oo NO’IESTOFNANCIALSTATEMENTS B
I L O
mwmsmp COMPLIANCE AND Accouummmv I V - L
A BUDGETARY!NFORMATION SR S 'k R I L S .

3 “ sow

Anmw;l Mdgm are adoptsegi on a basfs eanslatent thh gcmalty acoeptf.d moum!ng primzplos for a!l govemmantah- L -
ﬁmds. L ) Y N aE :

K . . x RN

T ’mc County toﬁows thesa prowdurcs in mblistdng the lmdgetary date renec(ed inthe ﬂmmctal suwmems

4 pror to7XpriL 15, the County budget officer subbits o the Chinty Commissionets the tentativé operating! hndgm o
- (4) for the fiseal-yoars oommtﬁcing the’ fpllowmg July L T;z; opmﬁng budgm includc proppsgd cxpendimm o :
’ aud thc maana ofﬁnancingthm i . « ‘

C 24 The tentunve budgcts are filed with tho Statc Department of Taxation by Aprxl 15 .

. n'nf ” o
oL, -

3, .A publlo hearlng ls conducted at the County ‘Court Houso to obtain taxpayers comments (3'd Monday in May) O e Um0

B Thc ﬁmi budgcis are adopted anc; ‘filed: thh the S;ate Depanmmt of'l‘axaﬁon. Final budgqts must be ccnlﬁe;g: by" DR
S | mqiority ofaﬂ mcmbm oﬂhc govcming body. The final budgets must'bé adqptcd on.or beforc Jupe L. 7 .. o

-3, Budgct amounts. may be tmnsfczwd within ﬂmds if the ‘governing body is advised and tﬁe action is recorded inthe . .
1o official minutes-of the next mesting, Revitlons that alter the total eupenditurcs of aity fiind must bé approved by S
+ the County Commissiam Budgetmmwns st also be ﬁlod with the State Deparfment ot"l'axatlon R

s Budgets for ﬂm Geucral, Special anmues, Dobt Service; Proprichry and Capnal Projecla P\mds dre addptcd ona
" "basis consistent with: gcnmlly acccptcd accounﬁng pnnciplos (GMP) . :

L 7 xBudgut augmemsﬁons wsrc preparcd for the gcncrn.l varlous speclal rcvenuc ﬁmds and enterprlse funds durmg
C meﬁscaiymendodluncwzm? o . ) o o s e

7 8. Al! ‘éudgct appmpﬁatmna lapse at thctndet‘ cach ﬁscs! yw , L .
o . Iu mordancc with state smuw, actusl cxpendimms may not ex:cwd budgututy apyxgpriuwns of thé vaﬂous
govmmmm programs-of the General Pund or total eppmpriaﬂomofﬁw S;m:ml Rmmnuo mxi Oapitx! ijocls Fund.s, o,
&xmpn.suptcsslyamhndzodbth - S o e
B EXCBSSEX?BNDWRBS OVBRAPPROPRIM*IONS

For ﬂ-ﬂs ycar endod Junc 30. 201? uxpenmtm-es cxcmsod appmpmﬁons L fMIows:

¥ . A
R N : ,:-,¢ . ‘.~'-' R e

vmmcmroummmmtsstmruné o s 1302124 § - 1,290.900

wMutual Ald "Special: Re‘vcnuel*uud L - L A44TTT T 335, 500 4
. /Bmergency Mitigation Specw.! Rcvmuc Fund W T 114291 io ) - 100,000
- wWater System- Bnterprise Fund. e o608, 278 484,748 .
w'Virglnla Divide Sewer Improvoment Dismawprise?und - CoL 38197 VT 238496
o General PundDistrict Cout * . o uses o 142088

‘ N R R e T LT
. . ) . ;

c DEFICIT FUND EQUITY ‘ ¥ .
'I'hc Emrxcncy Mitigaﬁcm Fund imm “a defioit ﬁmd equlty 8t Junc :w zow m thc mwum ofm,m

iA'
R B .t

. '37,‘1 S




N( Vabpa

vl i?b'rﬁli'sgfei y

Virginia City Tourism Commission
3/9/18

Department of Taxation

CC:

Storey County Commissioners

Pat Whitten, County Manager

Hugh Gallagher, County Comptroller

RE: Virginia City Tourism Commission over-expenditure

To whom it may concern:
The following is an explanation for being over on expenditures for the following three
items:

¢ Special Event Funding is over due to an error in the previous year’s holding
account being carried over and charged this fiscal year. (see auditors notes)

» Promoter Commissions are directly related to projected revenue accounts tied
to this item exceeding projections. (Camel Races, Oyster Fry, Chili, Father-
Daughter and Christmas)

¢ Visitor Center Expense (COGS) directly reflects running out of merchandise in
the visitor center prior to the end of the fiscal year and having to replenish
items for the busy season. The additional merchandise is reflected in our
inventory number at year end. Going forward, staff understand the importance
of proper budgeting and being prepared for the start of the busy season.

Please feel free to contact me with any additional questions.

Best Regards,

[T

DEN OTSON Director

Virginia City Tourism Commission
775-847-7500
ddotson@storeycounty.org

86 SOUTH 'C' STREET~ PO Box 920, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA 89440
(775) 847~7500 ~ Fax (775) 847~7507
EMAIL: viSITORIMO@STOREYCOUNTY.ORG




Selol vmcmmnmumsmeomssm FUND Lo,

+ * N - 4 e o ti
" , s O o ) - ) . .
N ¢ . " B "E}
+ : ' “ - - PR
. M ¥ ¥ g - :«
" ¢ . . s e .. Toaw B -
: * Ty oL - i -$\1x Co T Joe “ oo

.

.. - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ~ - . e o .
oSTotro. . ANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCES - .~ - Lo e ot
o . BUDOBTANDAGUTAL .l e il T

o ‘  FOR THE YEAR KNDED JUNE 30,2017 - |
. ‘odeNAL‘ ﬁfNAL?‘ ' : N

" ACTUAL - VAmmcsro o

MR BUDGETED -* - BUDGETED - . .
S e T AMomm FmALBUDGBT W e

AMOUNTS . AMOUNTS .

mmmmmuf R P

o

Intcrgpvcmmomal
Gxamrevcnuc
. State Hoénsed .
Room tax ' . S L
“Tourigitax < . o o
Chargoaforscrvice& R
. Specialevents . o
e CAPservioe charge (net)
S Miscellancous Pl e
c:m:nbu;ibm R

- Licsnsgs -pefmits .- T s :

“33.5500.; s

33;"5@)&)” $ .

. 398628

6,362 "

e

~:Totachv‘qnuh_' o S

(Qeneral goverament. .. .- o
_Salaries and | wages ol -
Bcnefts - S
Services and supphes W

v,
. Lo . s
et v st e L e .
3 . o LN . Y
5 v . . . 4

’7'} [ Capita] outlay .
3 e ‘ Tmal Bxpcndilurcs ’
. *Exoess (Deﬁniency) amwcnuesmcr Expmdxtures

S0 <. Cmedoe T 39000 ¢  ono) )
Too200.0 0 1,200 2,741 - 1,541 ; :
156000, 156,000° 149968° . (6032) ,
265000 265000 . . 309663 i 440 ;
o ‘{m,.ooo T Ene00 0 375 68 (3,232)
200000 200000 18842 '(nm) '
500 : {596 ' R Tew ety
L4500 4,500. Caar (73)
: mzoo m&_ 193 (L N gys J
..____J,.zaw M ’ ‘1392.12.{ oz
’f‘ ¥ T *
w4401 o 26’4,401‘-“' Coaskors 3,325 N
135.450“ W, 126450 . 120,883 o ‘562 ‘ o
877,200, . . 886,200 . 955,135 . (6g93%) . - .
mzm 4700,@ ; 2216 o
(33 151) " s, 151) (74759) Sl aL608) .

: FundBulnnce Julyl ’ S fﬂg}g’m

L

f‘_“: PnorPenodAdJustnlent, SecNothVIﬂ o L L "i"

L 410993 -

6.957

amae. '.

e e L6957

\ -

P o ‘ ; * B [
4 . . PR

" Fund Balance, June 3o e 80 T8 8.0 3Tiea S 304077 S (73 7@ ,
; . B R ;
0 T - - V’ 2 : - )
\; \ K :A . . i,
t“,‘l v 2.\: * i ) '.E-
T The notes to the financial statemets-are.an in‘iégml part dfthls's;mtpm?mi" e !
. PR .27 B . - . o Lo .

l‘ .‘

'

B |




- c STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA | : .
e : ; MUTUAﬁAxDspEcrALREVENUBFUNu o i :
o SCHEDULEOFREVEN’UES. ENDI'!UREANDCHANGBSINFUND BALANCB .
LT . e BUDGB'I‘ANDACI‘UAL . - o
iy ~ i Fonmmmrmnsnmao 2017 3 . ; S
* 2  ORIGINAL ° mw, I e el
., BUDGETED = BUDGETED ACTUAL VAR]ANCETQ
, NUE". . . ; momn‘s . AMOUNTS AMOUN‘TS FrNALﬁumm' Lo
" .Other revenucs: ' . ’ ’ T R
' Firc suppressicn - - 8. »'4ooooo s 458.000 s ~566,390 5 wosasa T

" Total ;Rzycn;ié

7 . k -’x“““
. Publlcsafety .

~ 453,000“‘

a0

2

260,000 -

210,657

..mg&__ ‘ i

¢

(10 657) ‘ , R

, Saladesemdwascs :
‘ . Benefits - T c-IBS00 - 38,500 37,037, 7 1,463
’ - Services and supphca ] R " 50,500 ; 64,500 63918 or sy ;_ L.
 Capital ‘outlay - Lo im0 T 135000 1330080 0 "‘(120"605) o
C‘ontmgency O 20000 20000 .- 20000 ... .
TotalB:(pendlturcs . e L 211500 33 35500 - 4TT) o ;*(w_ggzg_)
Bxccss (Dcﬁcxcncy) quzvcnucs ovch,xpendlmres i ‘1225067 - 122,560 122,113 (337)‘ .
F““"B““”"“lyl IASES - " m,ng 33313‘:’ t 298685 (14498
F“"dBﬂ’a““-’m” o ‘!s 435678 s 435,678 s 420798 § - - {14880)
- . Lo s AT S
A N ) w b
o JE o : : . . y
A S RN
‘{; i Lo e : ‘, :'y_/ ‘, ‘ R :jz P o sy fet . *V. ,
! “ “The notes to the financial statem: cn;sgrk;‘mintegml mo;mggym)’ . . 3 .
. "i - - B '63 . v . B - ’ | )
3 . . ‘,;




None

.

Public Bafety-

g scmznuia OF REVENUBS EXPENDITURE AND CHANGES IN #UND BALANCB

EMERQ&NCV MITIGATION SPECIAL RBVENUB FUNﬁ

BUDGETANDAC’IUAL R
FORTHB YBARENDEDJUNESO 2017

v

SN R ORIGINALAND Sl

mw,aumm “ACTUAL " VARIANCETO *

Ar«;jm AMO[NYS __FINALBUDGET- |

- B »s ST ‘-s ) .
* . : ¢ N
§ . . BRI ‘ x i « H ] ‘«‘ .‘; : ,,')‘:'
Serviaesandsuppll‘cs SR = . . 100000 ‘%23_. - ](42,9;0)
B ) ' R ,‘.‘ " ‘.M, B 4_- * e ‘a ,7‘V

Fund Balance. July 1 f :

Fimd Baluhce, Junc 30

.
.
PR
Y
<
A
o] .
.
.
!
N
Tt ¥
I
-
e
.
B
,
)
P
.

. Bx'cess (Dcﬁcienqy) ochw)enhEs 6VEE'Expc;1diturcs ’ L . o "(iOO,QOO')’~fA . (142 9;) o (4?,219) o

A

3 « . ¢ 'k .‘ g : o B Lt
100000 100._'0_._001 e
: § e . (42010)°8 - (42910)
E .
_ .
‘ :
; ,
.
< . M o ~
o )
. 4
~ *
*
' i * * 1,
LY ‘: : ‘(
b * g e Y
‘, + ! - v’ o
T
.
at » B
- . A .
B .o .
L " A
;‘ “.L
;«'
v “
.
.
* -
>l
4
‘
.
.
.
-
.
.
A

’ Thcnou;stome ﬁnmeialstmmcnmman mtegral partofthlsstatmm
63 N ’

smaﬁvcomv NBVADA - o R L

“eer oy




O sronz?coumwmvwzk : ST
e oot WATER SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND - Co T e
S N sc;mnmovmwzmbmmm N SR
T T BUDGET AND ACTUAL AP T s
T AP FORT[{EYEARBNDEDJUNESO.ZOI‘I Coe e T e

”

- S Emn E T ORIGINAL - FINAL. - f 0 1l
.. 4 .0 . .« .7 <. BUDGETED: BUDGETED.: *A'CTUAL ‘ VARIANCETO
Loevos w0 AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUN’I‘S ‘FmALBumm‘

Salesofwater . - e Lt ~sd9auooo s 604000 s ‘ 554700 t e (49,;00)

 OPERATING EXPENSES - . T L D
" Seliriesand wages' . R U X ) U 1453._319? CT1es43 - T (11824)

.. Bonéfits. che T T 0529 14209 G330 Doe o (59.478)-

’ ,Smmsandsuppnes EEY ST T 1609000 L 152,200 0 198,426 - - - ?;(46,215).’.

<07 Copitdloutlay . .. . v et e UL . ~*,~ 785 (L188) -,
~+ Deprecigtion - 1T i C L .108.000 o 10500077 o .- %2}7 (121D
L Total Opcraung expcnscs P ST . & .. S 4 35_;25_& 595.225 - _(_IZM&Q)

V'_,Ope,rating lngomc(lq;a)~ u oL T 119282 ’ ','132'252' (50 518) ﬂﬁﬁ !391

S ,ltxt«mcanﬁnga E ,;_-1-: PR VY I 10000 '24,643‘ L e
© " Reats . LT 12,000 < uoooj' 210000 . o 2000

- . Grints and capttal contnbutxons P T T T 25()0 . 200
Nﬂlncnme(loss) W e e 121847 0 8 1218478 ‘(46.887) s _(168,738)"
t 3 4 C ;~- - i ¢ W -
N . . PR N ] . v
-y N . j ,‘ ,'L % 3 . ) .
: e ) ] o . ‘o ,
‘ S i . i " . + s
- " ¢ - w <4 “u'; . * ¢
51 £, »‘{“’ ; . % 'A , 1 -
. * 7, < ¢ - } 3 . -
y ; N :
¢ 4 . d
g ' ’
. R
" ' s g *
. S
. + ' i
' i .
H : .
.
S : ) ." - . S PR o PR ot - by . B " 3
. . . . :

. . S :fhenmcstomcﬁamcialstammtsmanmmgmpmofmism:nmt LR SRR L
A S ‘ . 75 v R oo .

g o

.Imﬁrestﬂxpcnsc el e T e ;(23.405),«; , (23405)‘ L ‘(3’1,1'48) ‘ C(13,743) S
* Miscellancous™. ; T e e e 4296 . 4296 7 -




" Sales of watér -

- .~ Salaries and wages
. <" Benefitg” :

- Services and supphes ’

Deprcciaﬂon

. Tl .o > B [N . B .
. . N . R . e . . )
. [ . . B o -

R sroaavcomy,uavw,x
\zmcmm mvmn SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT mgymsn FUND
SR scrmmsormuammansn A R
- : " BUDGET-AND.ACTUAL | AR N
Fonnmmmmﬁssmwsao 2017 ! ' g C

,fk"’

P T omGrNALAND C V
., 7t st FINALBUDGETED AcrUAL v,mmacnm

P AMQUNTS . AMOUNTS FmALBUDGBT

T A 367.0003 fsszovs § 15076

P

¥

Cow 3400 Ty - (3713%)
T 83400 . 75504 896"

Tozaxope;acingexpenses S 238496 _ . mgzﬁ __'__agz.gam
Opcratmg mcomc(loss) IR c : '. 12 3‘594"' rsm (13&.,_95_)

o lmewst mcomc
- Interest expcnsq, o
Debt sérvice

- Other income :

" Net Income (loss) -

* i >
$
N
o
*E
5.
P
.
* ;
. 5
o
p
-
4
P
.

K

Lo 1soo'.,t Lossm I‘a,-flizo

T (118900) S B asser

+ “r PR R -

L T . 1099 A ~'[¢,o"99‘1

. ; - v — :
. N S . i AR [ .
‘ S e g (72,1) I ). ) S
« o : S ) .
) - - . .
, ¢
b
. ~
¥
p v
<R
“
- "
e . " )
. £ N f
e . .
‘)‘ " ) -’r
N A . , .
: .
‘ “a e o
e ) * .
. [ ]
e < L.
B ) h
. . v R
. . R % M , ;
- N .
. B
.
" "
» ¢ .
i T
.
; "y : |
A
-

E Thq notcs to the f'nancia! stn!emcm areaf integm part of mis statunem ‘
) , i o e

LT e mas L oies)

150019~ (119@2} -

g et




' © ..+ . 'GENBRALFUND . " : ' :
B STA’IM‘NT OF RB‘VBNUES gxrmmn&smbcmess :Npm«m BALANCBS
R , "t BUDOET'AND ACTUAL ... L .
FORTHE mmﬁvmao 2017 .
. ORIGINAL F:NAL Pl L
‘ nuncman BUDGB’!’ED AC'ITJAL " VARIANCETO. - *°
moums AMOUNTS Amovms . FINAL BUDGET_ -
General Govemmcnt (contd) v - ,*‘ B *‘. } .
BuildingandGrounds . R P
" Salaries and wages - PRI 134270 129270 127 157 4 RR AV
- Bmployéc benefits . -+ . .7 D X A 7 1 A - 1 B | 12,682
Services and supplles' ~ e .234soox' . 224300 1. ‘175.107 "48,193
‘ Capi'talfoutl‘ay'-. - R - 15,000 ;L. 33995 (23995)
: Ll ‘:;416'527"" 436,527 - 397534 - 38,993 .

PlanningCommissiop ! S S st
‘Saluries.and wages | - S m991 SRR k12 SO 123,917 RPN X/ I

Bmployeebenef‘ts T 161,997 67997 . . 55352 o 12,648

oo Servlces and supplws P , * 53,900 . (53900 .. 27,545 26335
’ - R T S 274888 254 888 . 208,814 ‘ -9;," 074"

’ S“Yiccs ’ : ! - . T ‘. r N v " o

Snlartes and wagcs
‘Employee benefits

Setvices'and supplies . . -

S . <Copitaloutldy;

Compu'oller,

Iy

Bmployee benefits, .
Servides and supplies
Capital outlay )

k

Infurmatmn lcchnology. ‘

" Salaries and wages
Employees beneflts
- Servicesand mxpphcs

Capnafouﬂny

R Total (}meral Govammem

Judiciai. R
Dastricmttomcy
.‘Salnrin and wages
) - Employes benefits: -
. “ . Servicés and supplies :
R Capital outlay ‘

stlrict Cqurt. -
Scrvices and supplies

Salaries and wages i

k b’I‘OREY COUNTY NEVADA

A

SR asiae
L e T T mam
PR

©. 83,450

157364'
. 18281
100
.- 53,450

A

< 139 262,

61,437
38,348 .
- 4,665

' 18’ 102
16,850

L ‘(33 748)

. 48,785

.

289200

75,810

PO "~""'237"530"'
03406"'

289, 201 :

241,530
- 109,006 - .
779,610,
9,000, - -

744212 T

“

gre YR
10234400
81,579

Taasset

S a9 e

" .,6,662
* (1,969)

r:_____.“.__é}}ﬂ_!ﬁ

R A 2*6,682
Ch e 113,614,
A 149,600

M }'Y.” f“A‘" . A.:. o 58@0

218,182

T 439,146 . "

113614,
148,100 . -

', 184 500"

| 498,658

" 182,195

. ixs;sisé
© 106,960
. 135.066

(367)

. 6,654 "
13,0347
2,408

538426. m&&@ m.ﬂf)_

21,726

316618
135,086 .

T eges

2,000

316618

. 135,086 -
3193785

2,000

296646
21214
202,658 ..

“

e VT

Sy 4

'

1997

13,872

L aem

- TIAO,

it

Tysasel

sv.ng, .

B ¥

o

MZ 945

: 145,025

(2,080)

ST uasils

:

14245

145,025 -

- 125948

‘ The notes to the ﬁr@anc,ﬁl ﬁtptgmzq!s‘are’qx{ integral port of fhis statement

o ;“>“’ y “ ‘20‘

a -
. (2,080)

H
»

e * < 5 N
& S RO

e

- 91000 A’*A
. x.‘mm‘

R




. "Br.‘

K 2017-ARep0ﬂPrcpmﬁm e T R S

. Fmdmgs Rclatlng to The Fimmg!al Statemcms Repor(cd in Accordance w:th em&s P

N : o R B v [ oot

Fmanclal Statcmcm Fmdmga ‘, o

| srgumcmmﬁeiency ‘ BN
,;'Critena . Management ot Storey Coumy!sresponsibie fofcstsbﬂshing

i B mcﬁnat)wswtements.miscircmmwwmtmuml"m ‘

S : .7 an-orgatizition: of -this size,” due”to time constraints of
- : LT e mmagcmmt and costs .associated with compliance of the:
CoL s udtem T slandards, However, management +has not imiplémented
S I . “sufficient. proceduires to capture the -necessary information’ -*
P N nwdcdf&rtheﬁmncial statements mdrefa}cd dssc‘!esures to

P O bepmpnredin&llmatcdalmpwts. L

Effect ’ “fhe County s finanglal: records reguired audit adjuximctm in

o financial. roporting. . One” of the key eomponmts ‘of .gh
L V.. o effective system .of Intsntal contro] fi-to] provids the finance
e _ staff.with adcqﬂm rescurces avéilable to propare the financlal
oL stxtcmeﬁts i swordam&u wiih gcnem!ly acoeptr;d accounﬁng

. priuctplea. s

B

Condtlon 7_ - Inthe process at’comjﬂedﬁ ouraudll, weweroxequeswdm

' drafy the-financtal statemonts, assist-with the conversfon of,

-

T " ) C _L f . | )‘ pmpmmemmmﬂngnmtomeﬁwwmmnm

) ‘,Catiiafc ‘. Lo e - " Given the dauly msponsxbtlmu of mam.gemnt, the resoufm R

O A v of time, #nd training’ riecessary to propars’ the. Couﬁty’
AR S0 -0 - financial statéments In saccordance’ with. generally“acceptod
e e o I T " sccounting principlés are not available. As & result'ths County,
<1770 T has chosen to contract with Dipletro and Thomton 16 prepare

orderfora»ﬁﬁmcfalsimmemxtobqhmordmwhh

. . GAAP, Intemally, prepared finasiolal informatiofi may not be .
L+ Jaccurat and- full disclosure finsntial stafements may’ fot bs

avaliable as timely ag thoy "would be’ lf prepared by Coixtity

personnel R .

N Rwomcndation LT W&recommdecun:ymffcoatznuewobmmininginme «

P rcpaxation of the financial statements and related financial
. o lstatement disclosures Incrder to gain the' knowledge noeded
g, ‘prepare the fivanelal ‘statements and related” ﬂnmcial
m;cmmt dlsciosum in all mateml réspwts. :

;. Viéws of Responsible Officials SRS Mdnagemcnt agwes wah this t’ndlng *
¥ + o ‘ “
[
: . R
b .
‘E "“ ¥ ‘K‘A
L - : %
e ’ .
» . N A
. 9 )
L N : L '*’1‘ i -
@ M . ‘ *
B K

' :;: " ‘and ‘mainteining an effective system of intermal contro) over .

fund finincial statements to' government-wide statements; and -




1 5 W . >
[s N ot
St s N .
. . .
. ¥
. ¢ -
: ¥
B N ' B
e uh » B s
e . L
5 " . s
R g * Y
¥ .
» B . * . o

. 20178 Cash and Investtherit Agoouns, L . o T e T

Significant Deficioncy .= . . = . Lo e O

. Criterla .~

" Condition

R Cause

ce

Effer

. Recomrgndation -

“
¢
1
<
3
*
»
.
«
L
o
b 3
§
S
[
wd
:
LA
i N
w

L Manageanots:myc«mmyimsmsib*cfﬂ’m"“‘“""
Sroere. 0Tt T and ‘maingalning e effective system of intomal coatrol over .
o ~-7 " - financial reporting. ' Projperly valuing Investménts ls'a key - -

T, R “comporient .of - effective - Gantrol _ over financial. T -
R Durmg otif rcview of the mh and investmom aocounts, we ¢ :':' ot

~; © -npted that the bonds hiéld with Wells Pargo wers not booked - -

' ‘at ttwirma:k&v&uc The Cdtmty ‘used the cost ba.sxs, ’ e

i “‘mCmrmyhas always acwumcdforbonds usingthqcost . . R
basis, 'l‘hcyhuvcnoi;impcﬂy implemm}ndGASB?Z . ‘; ey

. P The Co&nty undmtnted theircushacconnts byammﬁg:ial

s Wt rqcothmd tho bondsbe rocorded az thexr Mt markct . R
S R valuekolngt‘omard ; N

- s
L R . (.
R FT < D Q' i s e - ¥
L Spons ) wihth{sﬁ di
.. Views of Responsible Officials . L8 Mmagemem agreas t ny ng
- e < s . N .~” . . L 5 Y : ¥
i [ « .. o
' 3 # N -
o M N * » . . .
L . - < L !
* * i .
5 - * " EN
. * "
. . [ + e
o > > * N " N
. ¥ . I . L}
) R N + P N N
* N * “ " 1 b
) .
3 - v' L
- P s * i -
, .
+ ¢ . '
5 ¢
¥ i
¥ . . . ’
- . v - ¢
; :
A + ‘, < *
, :
1 ° N ¥ i
1] i
. ,
;
L] . -
. N ‘u P
: .
. . Y R
g . -~
N » . P .
= - . B . -
:
) . *
: ;
¥ -
ke . .
. . , .
] - * -
. N s - 3
. .
.
. # . .
. ]
,
.
. e ‘
.
, :
N 4
H . “ N »
< . 5
3 M * L) -
. a . ° ¥ .
; :
‘. ‘ » * s e .
¥ A y M
.
3 3 « M -
; ,
» * - N 3
- » 5 ¥ > R «
* ”'a » .
‘ .
s M x
<, . % Lt ' wr
3 ’, B N \' ~a k -
g ) .
. v ¥ ' . v
1 - 7
- ¢ ~>
! A M M 4 -
> ® Y »
" P I
i
.

A ey Ty




Fmdings Reléﬁng tb The Financial Sw.emems Reporwd in Aomdancc wi&h GAGAS ) )
'20_17~CRemempmﬁon o N :' ‘,: fi. . L .

’

: Significant Deficlency : . . )
i, Criterig - o MwagemcntofStorcyCountyismpamlblcforesmbnsmng. BT

a C AP - and maintalning an effectivo systeri of intermal controb over - ot -
ST - financial’ reporting One of the key ooinpamms of an -t Tt

effective system of inteinal control s to provide a prop« RV

chodcsmdbdanmontppmedpaymcms R BT

Condition’™ . *~ . .. " Inthe process ofgompleting our audit, ws- became’ aware: of, - S
“ot e WU e paymcnmmadcdoﬂweetcﬁﬁnsmpioyecsoftlm.County,x . R .
S . mpaymcntswueappmmgwytbyﬂount)fmmgﬂ T

TUoCause o e e o Tthowuymamg«madeptymmmwﬁue:emplbwesmatw

ol T < DU -~ retired during-the yosr. The manager says the payments wérs N

S P inmﬁmfmdomgagoodjobommeyears. Heboumndedg .

Lo e N similupaym;ntshambegmmsdein thepast. - L

s o S Effestt T s e T Quesﬁons havé sroseas&owhcﬁmdwpaymnm wero“ cY

s LA e T RTEE ppmpnmformn(fouutymmkz, Thmh&saisobeena»_‘ww RS

Coo LT e e question whiether the County Nhnagerlmd the author,xtyto RN

IR B P P TE RS appmethepaymcnubelngmde. T S

e Recommeng&ﬁon Lo ! Lo Wc tom‘mmad ’that m ﬂlﬁ ﬁxtufc &ﬂ pag.mems made -ﬁt D PR

e Lo T o e rﬂbmtbcappmvcdbythec«oumy&mnlsslonm‘ This - -

P AP S wmmtanlyhelpﬂxecountybcmmmpa{mt.mwﬂr e e T

v " ‘ T heiyprotéctﬁdeomtyManam . , ‘ L

et

) " . Vigws ofR;c'spoliyslb'l‘a Officials .- Ma.nagcmentis micwmgmqmanwmdwnll dccxde howto Lo
- N B pmwdwﬁanthomvia\vlseomplcted St el R
RN o8 I‘mdmgaandcumoned(:osts Mqior!’edmle\ward?mmmdit : o s L T
s ' v e L S T e
+ +'No audltﬁndlngs werereportnd CET R
i ' ° ! ¢
) R f ' ‘ N V
N L V ¥ “ « - . ! ..‘* N :
" f P [ ' . A :
2 o x ] €~
o . T o : - $
i 3 S ) .
‘ ¢ H > 4 N
) * . i - s ! : '
‘ . x . ) IS )
» . M - % . & 5
. ! ‘93 - : DL
o >

o e



o B . © ” PR ! ) . ’ N 18 r
s*mnsvcommr NBVADA - - LT e T
STATUS OFPRIDRYEARPDQDINGS ANDQUBSTKONEDCOS’YS R T L
Fonmmmmanmao 2016 T e
S A »Fmdihgs Rclatmg to ‘I‘he ?:mcial Smtaments chomd in A&cerdancewthA(}AS \ sl
"No'pdor ycar matcrlal wcakncsses or stgmﬁcam deﬁclcncxcs were report E L S R B I S T
. : N Fmding,s and Queshoned Costa»MajorFodctal Award ngram Audnt

Nbaudrlﬁndmgswmrepomd ) . el Ty

cu ¢ 'me pﬂoryw audit did niot eomain any mamﬁ@l ——— dr significance duﬁciemles. but did contain aﬂ:w - ;‘ vl
- . recanimendations to improve| internal control We have reviewed the status-ofthe 1 reeommbndatiom iucluded in oo
'.., 'Iastyw‘s audit tepon dated Novembam 2016 Tth mﬂ'ew iadlcatcd. Do .

.}'~ ‘.(‘ , ) . . ha “y“ “ g L -

I X Wcmommcndmomtonng expenditurcstomcvcﬂtcxcecdmgbudgctcdamoumxu ST - R v .
a2 wtpmdmxxesopcceeded approﬁriaﬁon’s in thc Geneml ?und and fbur Spccial Rcvcnue L S
' Fuads . ) ] ) - S ’ S

v - s e e T R

Thc momtorlng Was partiaﬂy unplcmemod o » . . i
. ~' . x .
RGN 2 Wc mmmd _aggount “names:"in tbe Fedcm!lsmc Gram Fund ‘be . . S e
T " revicwed “and’ att;ustcd to° further diffcrentiste the Federal and Siate grant - T
v - revenues -and ‘expienditures. The County may want to consldcr eembi!shing R
: mmmSmentFunds T , o R M REO

gt

. This was not implemcnted durinrg thc year ) o ’ ; )
= 3: - We rwommcnd a»gutui‘f dte. of August 30 be as(ablishod ax;d strlctly o ' TR Sl
. S enforced: for all. payables, recewabies, and joumal entries byanyguvemmem N S
s am;ﬂoycc topreven:campllcationswlﬁt t!teaudu S0 . oL . N L O
‘ L ’I‘Mswas“implemeawdbymedounty o o L ‘:‘ e '

o are - * . - L e w, N Fa
3 Rt . P . . LI e . My . .
A [ .
. +
. . . R
h
y R . -
. . t J .
v ; : R
B P . o g
I “ f N
St . st -
B . Vi -
" * » #* *
/ ; .
i
‘ . « .
w0 4
. B .
y R .
+ ¥ 4 -
o
. .
1 . .
* ¥ - - %
. * *
k] . ‘9
. N - .
. B .
. » s 3 * A .
Is ! 3
% . v .
“x ¥ . . rEn
’ ; . . ' .
p . 7 . o
B 3 ¥
. ] N
3 L L3
B . o 1 " » i
- ; H
N b
. .
- )
- .
. iv A
B :
s s _
. . - s B
A <
. . N £
' 94 ’
s . f
) N \ .
1
' - N



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ x] Public hearing required [ ]

L. Title: Selection of an Auditor for Storey County for the year ended June 30, 2018.

2. Recommended motion
Per NRS 354.624, the Storey County Commissioners due hereby select DiPietro and
Thornton, CPA, LTD as the auditor for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4. Staff summary:
This was DiPietro and Thornton, CPA’s first engagement with Storey County. The
changing of the guard is never easy, however DiPietro and Thornton, CPA have done an
excellent job of providing audit compliance, accounting and auditing advice and financial
statement presentation to Storey County. Their work is professionally done and their rate
is more than reasonable. In addition, any questions or meetings that may be needed are
accomplished at no additional charge.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: __x__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

Mounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e

Agenda Item No. / y




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 03/20/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent { ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/For Possible Action: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-283 an
ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.28 C Commercial
Zone to restrict “adult uses” with a special use permit, and Chapter 17.10 Definitions to amend
definitions and add definitions for adult uses including “adult retail”, “adult bookstore”, and “adult
motion picture theatre” uses, and other properly related matters. In addition to provisions of the
NRS, any person may complete and return to the board or planning commission a statement
supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance.
Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or
planning @storeycounty.org.

2, Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning
commission, I [commissioner] motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-283 an
ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.28 C Commercial
Zone to restrict “adult uses” with a special use permit, and Chapter 17.10 Definitions to amend
definitions and add definitions for adult uses including “adult retail”, “adult bookstore”, and “adult
motion picture theatre” uses, and other properly related matters.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: The proposal makes necessary corrections to the definition and application of
“adult uses” in the zoning ordinance to better align with the Nevada Revised
Statutes.

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed and posted at https://www.storeycounty.org/517/Updates.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:
__x__ District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:
@ja/partmem Head Department Name:

ounty Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
[ I——

Agenda Item No. /q

Page 1 of 1




Ordinance No. 18-283

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.28 C
Commercial Zone to restrict “adult uses” with a special use permit, and Chapter 17.10
Definitions to amend definitions and add definitions for adult uses including “adult retail”, “adult
bookstore”, and “adult motion picture theatre™ uses.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.28 C
Commercial Zone to restrict “adult uses” with a special use permit, and Chapter 17.10
Definitions to amend definitions and add definitions for adult uses including “adult retail”,
“adult bookstore”, and “adult motion picture theatre” uses, and other properly related
matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

SECTION I: Chapter 17.28 C Commercial Zone is amended as follows:

17.28.030  Uses Subject to Special Use Permit

Unless stated otherwise, the following uses may be permitted subject to securing a special
use permit pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

A. Automobile paint shops and body repair shops.

B. Buildings and structures constructed for permitted uses as listed in section 17.28.020

that will exceed 45 feet in height, or that will be less than 25 feet in width.

C. Casinos and gaming establishments of more than 5,000 square feet of total floor area
where slots and/or video machines are located, where there are more than 15 slots
and/or video machines, and where other forms of gambling such as poker, craps,
blackjack, keno, sports book and other similar activities may take place.

. Manufactured home sales lots.

Propane sales and storage.
Firewood sales and storage.

. Fortune tellers, astrology parlors, clairvoyance and palmistry. Additionally, uses
under this subsection must comply with the regulations under title 5 Business
licenses, and be located no closer than 1,000 feet from a public or private school,
religious institution, public building or facility, or another permitted fortune teller,
astrology parlor, clairvoyance and palmistry use, and 300 feet from any E, R, or SPR
Zone.

H. Public utility service yards, buildings, electric substations, gas transmission

substations, and ancillary uses.

[. Recreational vehicle (RV) parks.

J. Billboards as regulated pursuant to Chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

ammg

Page 1 of 4




K. The keeping of 5 or more dogs or 3 or more pot-belly pigs more than 12 weeks of
age. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

L. Commercial kennel. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

M. Mini-warehouses and storage facilities for rent including recreational vehicle, boat,
utility trailer, horse trailer, and similar equipment storage.

N. Healthcare facilities including hospital services, medical services, convalescent
services, civic convalescent and group care service, continuum of care facilities for
seniors, and group care services.

. Crisis care uses and facilities, permanent.

. Open-air markets, flea-markets, and similar outdoor venues for the sale of goods, not
including farmers markets featuring exclusively the sale of edible and items made
from edible products.

. Trade and craftsman industries, including furniture and carpentry manufacturing and
refining, upholstery shops, monument works, and similar uses.

. Outdoor veterinarian services and shelters for small and large animals.

. Permanent outdoor skateboard parks and related facilities.

. Display, sale, barter, or trade of items associated with a business outside of a
permanent building, except farmer’s markets pursuant to this chapter and permitted
temporary uses. The sale and display of merchandise and other items, and business
that is conducted on the public right-of-way and between the public travelled way
and the building is prohibited pursuant 17.12 General provisions.

U. The use of up to one shipping container as an accessory building. Review and
approval by the director of planning for conformance with section 17.12.045 is
required if the use exceeds 90 days or the period of an active building permit for the
principal use on the premises.

V. Uses involving the outdoor discharge of firearms.

W. Uses involving outdoor archery.

X. Fairgrounds, rodeo arenas, horse and other animal competition tracks and arenas, and
similar uses.

Y. Amusement parks involving various devices for entertainment such as thrill and
theme rides, roller-coasters, water slides, and games and concession booths.

Z. Facilities and uses that include outdoor sets and props for the development and
production of movies, film, television, and similar visual media.

AA. Race tracks and arenas involving the use of automobiles, trucks, tractors, and other
motorized vehicles.

BB. Radio-controlled (RC) cars, vehicles, watercraft, and aircraft facilities and uses.

CC. Child care of more than 4 children.

DD. Education facilities that include student residential and boarding accommodations.

EE. Temporary real-estate tract offices not located within a permanent structure.

FF. Cemeteries, columbariums, crematories, mausoleums, mortuaries, and funeral
parlors.

GG. Permanent outdoor theatres and other uses involving the outdoor discharge of
firearms

HH. Micro-distilleries

II. Open storage not directly associated with an active construction project on the

prcmises.

®C

HnR O

Page 2 of 4




JJ. The use of two or more shipping containers as accessory buildings exceeding 90
days or the period of an active building permit for the principal use on the premises.
KK. Zoos, animal theme and amusement parks, and other maintenance, display, or
possession of one or more wild animals.

LL. Adult retail, adult bookstore, and adult motion picture theatre. The adult retail use

may not exceed 20 percen! or 5 00 sguare-ﬁzet whzchever is less, of the bwldmg. Retai}

allowed by a granted specml use per mz{ the use must be located within a fully enclosed
room which is entirely segregated from the remaining floor area of the business and the
room’s entrance must be screened from view of the remaining floor area. Retail-e
Establishments featuring the above material in excess of the allowable retail floor area
are prohibited.

MM. Natural resources river restoration regulated under section 17.12.100.
SECTION II: Chapter 17.10 Definitions is amended as follows:

Chapter 17.10

Definitions
Sections:

17.10.020  Definitions generally
17.10.030  Definitions

17.10.030  Definitions

Adult Bookstore. The term “Adult Bookstore” means an establishment which merchandises
printed material, movies, or videos depicting, describing, or otherwise featuring specific sexual
activities and anatomical areas.

Page 3 of 4




Adult Motion Picture Theatre, The term “Adult Motion Picture Theatre” means a motion
picture theatre whose program, during the time of its operation, contains one or more motion
pictures which are rated “X by the Code Rating Administration of the Motion Picture
Association of America, or-are not rated, and whose program depicts, describes, or otherwise
Jfeatures specific sexual activities and anatomical areas.

Adult Retail, The term “Adult Retail” means an establishment which merchandises items and

paraphernalia depicting, describing, or otherwise featuring specific sexual activities and
anatomical areas.

Page 4 of 4




Ordinance No. 18-283

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.28 C
Commercial Zone to restrict “adult uses” with a special use permit, and Chapter 17.10
Definitions to amend definitions and add definitions for adult uses including “adult retail”, “adult
bookstore”, and “adult motion picture theatre” uses.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.28 C
Commercial Zone to restrict “adult uses” with a special use permit, and Chapter 17.10
Definitions to amend definitions and add definitions for adult uses including “adult retail”,
“adult bookstore”, and “adult motion picture theatre” uses, and other properly related
matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

SECTION I: Chapter 17.28 C Commercial Zone is amended as follows:

17.28.030  Uses Subject to Special Use Permit

Unless stated otherwise, the following uses may be permitted subject to securing a special
use permit pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

A. Automobile paint shops and body repair shops.

B. Buildings and structures constructed for permitted uses as listed in section 17.28.020

that will exceed 45 feet in height, or that will be less than 25 feet in width.

C. Casinos and gaming establishments of more than 5,000 square feet of total floor area
where slots and/or video machines are located, where there are more than 15 slots
and/or video machines, and where other forms of gambling such as poker, craps,
blackjack, keno, sports book and other similar activities may take place.

. Manufactured home sales lots.

. Propane sales and storage.

Firewood sales and storage.

. Fortune tellers, astrology parlors, clairvoyance and palmistry. Additionally, uses
under this subsection must comply with the regulations under title 5 Business
licenses, and be located no closer than 1,000 feet from a public or private school,
religious institution, public building or facility, or another permitted fortune teller,
astrology parlor, clairvoyance and palmistry use, and 300 feet from any E, R, or SPR
zone.

H. Public utility service yards, buildings, electric substations, gas transmission

substations, and ancillary uses.

I. Recreational vehicle (RV) parks.

J. Billboards as regulated pursuant to Chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

@mmg

Page 1 of 4




K. The keeping of 5 or more dogs or 3 or more pot-belly pigs more than 12 weeks of
age. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

L. Commercial kennel. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

M. Mini-warehouses and storage facilities for rent including recreational vehicle, boat,
utility trailer, horse trailer, and similar equipment storage.

N. Healthcare facilities including hospital services, medical services, convalescent
services, civic convalescent and group care service, continuum of care facilities for
seniors, and group care services.

O. Cirisis care uses and facilities, permanent.

P. Open-air markets, flea-markets, and similar outdoor venues for the sale of goods, not
including farmers markets featuring exclusively the sale of edible and items made
from edible products.

Q. Trade and craftsman industries, including furniture and carpentry manufacturing and
refining, upholstery shops, monument works, and similar uses.

R. Outdoor veterinarian services and shelters for small and large animals.

S. Permanent outdoor skateboard parks and related facilities.

T. Display, sale, barter, or trade of items associated with a business outside of a
permanent building, except farmer’s markets pursuant to this chapter and permitted
temporary uses. The sale and display of merchandise and other items, and business
that is conducted on the public right-of-way and between the public travelled way
and the building is prohibited pursuant 17.12 General provisions.

U. The use of up to one shipping container as an accessory building. Review and
approval by the director of planning for conformance with section 17.12.045 is
required if the use exceeds 90 days or the period of an active building permit for the
principal use on the premises.

V. Uses involving the outdoor discharge of firearms.

W. Uses involving outdoor archery.

X. Fairgrounds, rodeo arenas, horse and other animal competition tracks and arenas, and
similar uses.

Y. Amusement parks involving various devices for entertainment such as thrill and
theme rides, roller-coasters, water slides, and games and concession booths.

Z. Facilities and uses that include outdoor sets and props for the development and
production of movies, film, television, and similar visual media.

AA. Race tracks and arenas involving the use of automobiles, trucks, tractors, and other
motorized vehicles.

BB. Radio-controlled (RC) cars, vehicles, watercraft, and aircraft facilities and uses.

CC. Child care of more than 4 children.

DD. Education facilities that include student residential and boarding accommodations.

EE. Temporary real-estate tract offices not located within a permanent structure.

FF. Cemeteries, columbariums, crematories, mausoleums, mortuaries, and funeral
parlors.

GG. Permanent outdoor theatres and other uses involving the outdoor discharge of
firearms

HH. Micro-distilleries

II. Open storage not directly associated with an active construction project on the

premises.

Page 2 of 4




JJ. The use of two or more shipping containers as accessory buildings exceeding 90
days or the period of an active building permit for the principal use on the premises.
KK. Zoos, animal theme and amusement parks, and other maintenance, display, or
possession of one or more wild animals.

LL. Adult retail, adult bookstore, and adult motion picture theatre. The adult retail use

may not exceed 20 percent or 500 square-feet, whichever is less, of the building. Retail

Y

; rehaser 55 e erses-of stess—he-mer ise When
allowed by a granted special use permit. the use must be located within a fully enclosed
room which is entirely segregated from the remaining floor area of the business and the
room’s entrance must be screened from view of the remaining floor area. Retail-e
Establishments featuring the above material in excess of the allowable retail floor area
are prohibited.

MM. Natural resources river restoration regulated under section 17.12.100.
SECTION II: Chapter 17.10 Definitions is amended as follows:

Chapter 17.10

Definitions
Sections:

17.10.020  Definitions generally
17.10.030  Definitions

17.10.030  Definitions

Adult Bookstore. The term “Adult Bookstore " means an establishment which merchandises
printed material, movies, or videos depicting, describing, or otherwise featuring specific sexual
activities and anatomical areas.

Page 3 of 4




Adult Motion Picture Theatre. The term “Adult Motion Picture Theatre” means a motion
picture theatre whose program, during the time of its operation, contains one or more motion
pictures which are rated “X" by the Code Rating Administration of the Motion Picture
Association of America, or are not rated. and whose program depicts, describes, or otherwise
features specific sexual activities and anatomical areas.

Adult Retail. The term “Adult Retail” means an establishment which merchandises items and

paraphernalia depicting, describing, or otherwise featuring specific sexual activities and
anatomical areas.

Page 4 of 4




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 20, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First Reading of Ordinance 18-284 amending provisions of the transient lodging tax
provisions of Storey County Code chapter 3.60 to provide for the maximum stay to which
the tax applies, to clarify the disposition of the revenues of the tax, providing a route for
review of a transient lodging tax audit and other matters properly relating thereto.

2. Recommended motion: I (Commissioner) move to approve the first reading
of Ordinance 18-284

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Ordinance 18-284 revises the provisions of Storey County Code Chapter 3.60
clarifying that transient lodging subject to the tax is lodging for less than 30 days. It also
provides for a clarification as to the disposition of the proceeds of the tax and provides a
route for review of a transient lodging tax audit.

5. Supporting materials:
See staff report on page 2.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

X District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

artment Head Department Name:

D
Mmty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued




Agenda Item No.

STAFF REPORT

The genesis of this code amendment arose out of a concern that the presence of hotels
within the TRI Center would lead to extended stays, exceeding 28 days, by persons doing
construction work or involved with extended business stays within TRI with a consequent loss of
room tax revenues. TRI however is governed by the 1999 zoning ordinance and the Resolution of
Similar Uses which became effective on May 3, 2005. TRI Center is zoned I-2, the heavy
industrial zone. By this zoning, ten percent of the 1-2 zone may include commercial uses. See
§17.37.030(K) of the 1999 ordinance. Commercial zoning allows motel and hotel uses. In the
Resolution of Similar Uses , Hotels and Motels are defined as:

Hotels and motels use type refers to temporary residences for transient

guests, primarily persons who have residence elsewhere, with access to each room

through an interior hall and lobby or outside porch or landing.

Consequently, hotels and motels within the TRI Center are limited to transient
guests. Further, the Residential Landlord and Tenant Act (Chapter 118A of the NRS)
(Act) exempts from the requirements of the Act: “Occupancy in a hotel or motel for less
than 30 consecutive days unless the occupant clearly manifests an intent to remain for a
longer continuous period. NRS 118A.180(2)(f). If the stay is longer than 30 consecutive
days, the stay is subject to the Act. Buildings intended for residential use are
“dwellings”. SCC §17.10.030. Such uses are not allowed in the C, I, orl-2 zone within
the TRI Center pursuant to the 1999 zoning ordinance. Consequently, within TRI Center,
residence at a hotel or motel is not allowed for 30 or more days.

Outside of the TRI Center the Storey County Code used to define an “extended
stay hotel” as a transient use of property and identified it as a stay at a hotel or motel for
more than 28 days but less than 180 days. By defining an extended stay hotel was not a
residential use of property. It therefore would have been allowed in the C, CR, I I-2 and
I-3 zones. The provision defining an extended stay hotel as a transitory non-residential
use has since been removed from the Storey County Code. Accordingly, extended stay
hotels are no longer authorized transient uses of property in the C, CR, I, I-2, and I-3
zones in Storey County.

What the proposed ordinance does is increase the period of transient use from less
than 28 days to less than 30 days. It identifies the authorization for the two types of
transient lodging taxes that have been imposed and specifies the uses to which they may
be put. It also provides a route for the review of transient lodging tax audits as is
required by NAC 364.030




ORDINANCE NO. 18-284

Summary

An ordinance amending the Storey County Transient Lodging Tax to further
define transient lodging, to clarify the disposition of revenues received from the
Transient Lodging Tax, providing a route for review of a transient tax audit, and
other matters properly relating thereto.

Title

An ordinance amending chapter 3.60 of the Storey County Code to
further define transient lodging, to provide for the disposition of revenues
received from taxes on transient lodging and providing for other matters
properly relating thereto.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada,
does ordain:

SECTION 1

Storey County Code Section 3.60.010 is amended to read as follows:
The mandatory transient lodging tax and the license tax imposed under this chapter are known and may

be cited as the Storey County "Transient Lodging Taxes."

SECTION 2

Storey County Code Section 3.60.015 is hereby amended to provide as follows:

A. "Transient lodging" is defined as a room, reoms of suite or space spaces for rental to temporary or

transient guests in any one or more of the following:
(a) Hotels.
(b) Motels.

(c) Apartments.




(d) Apartment hotels.
(e) Campgrounds.
(f) Parks for recreation vehicles or recreational vehicle overflow parking and camping.

(9) Any other establishment, including brothels, that rents rooms or spaces to temporary or

transient guests.

Transient lodging consists of the occupancy of a specific room, suite or space for a period less than 30
days. It does not include any occupation of premises which is subject to the Nevada Residential
Landlord and Tenant Act (NRS Chapter 118A) as such use is considered a residential rather than

transient lodging and is not allowed in property zoned for commercial use.

B. "Rent" means the gross income from the rental of transient lodging in the county. It does not include

any tax on fuel or on retail sales which is collected by the transient lodging enlerprise.

that-peried—. “Mandatory transient lodging tax " means the tax imposed pursuant to NRS 244.3354 upon

the rent received from transient lodging.

D. “License tax” means a license tax imposed pursuant to NRS 244.335 upon the rent received from

transient fodging.
SECTION 2.
Section 3.60.020 is hereby amended to provide as follows:

A= Pursuant to the authority of NRS 244-335 through 244.3354, a tax is imposed upon the amount of
rent paid for transient lodging in the county (the mandatory transient lodging tax). This tax is

—

imposed at the rate of one percent, effective December 1, 2002.

B.  Pursuant to the authority of NRS 244.335 an additional tax is imposed upon the amount of rent

paid for transient lodging at the rate of nine percent (9%)(the license tax)




SECTION 3.
Section 3.60.030 is hereby amended to provide as follows:

A. Pursuant to NRS 244.3354, three-eighths of all the proceeds of the mandatory transient lodging
fax et-the-tax must be paid to the Department of Taxation for deposit with the state treasurer for
credit to the fund for the promotion of tourism. Five-eighths of alf the proceeds of the mandatory
transient lodging tax must be deposited with the county in the county fund for the promotion for
tourism for use by the fair and recreation board also known as the Virginia City Tourism
Commission (VCTC), pursuant to statute, to be used to advertise the resources of the county
related to tourism including available accommodations, transportation, entertainment, natural

resources and climate, and to promote related special events.

B. The proceeds of the license tax are hereby assigned to the VCTC and must be deposited with the
county in the county fund for the promotion for tourism. Such funds must be used for purposes

allowed by NRS 244A 597 through 244A.655.
SECTION 4
Storey County code Section 3.60.060 is amended to provide as follows:

A.  Each licensee shall add the amount of the transient lodging tax taxes to the amount of the

room rentals due and must collect the tax taxes and rentals from each lessee.

B.  The amount of the tax taxes must be displayed separately from the price of the

accommodation or room on guest registration card or other proof of guest registration.
SECTION 5

Storey County Code Section 3.60.070 is hereby amended to provide as follows:

Each licensee shall prominently display in each room or suite of rooms leased as a unit, or at the
licensee’s option, in a lobby at or in the immediate vicinity of the registration desk for the business, a sign

reading substantially as follows: Notice:

For each rental of less than thirty days, this business is required by law to collect a ten
percent transient lodging tax.

The management.




SECTION 6
Storey County Code section 3.60.090 is hereby amended to read as follows:

A. The fair-and-recreation-board VCTC or its duly-authorized agent may, at all reasonable
times_with thirty days advance written notice, ; examine and audit the books, papers and

records of any person operating a transient lodging business within Storey County and make
investigations in connection with the collection of the transient lodging tax-faxes.

B. Ifany person operating a rental business refuses to allow the board or its duly-authorized
agent to examine and audit the books, papers, and records of the rental business, the fair and
recreation board may estimate the amount of transient lodging tax taxes due for any month

based upon the following information:

1. In cases where the rental business is a new business, the amount and volume of

business of like kind, character, and location, or

2. In cases where the rental business is a continuing business, the amount and volume
of business done in the corresponding month of the preceding year, plus any reasonably
estimated increase in the amount and volume of business in the present year

SECTION 7
Storey County Code section 3.60.110 is hereby amended to provide as follows:

The power and authority to enforce the transient lodging tax liens created by this chapter are
delegated to the-fair-and-recreation-boardVCTC. The boardVCTC must keep proper records
of the transient lodging tax raxes imposed, taxes that are due, taxes collected, including
records of delinquent taxes, and any interest and penalties imposed. These records are
deemed confidential and are not to be revealed in whole or in part to anyone except in the
necessary administration of this chapter or as otherwise provided by law.

SECTION 8

There is hereby added to Storey County Code Chapter 3.60 sections 1 and 2 which provide:




Section 1.

14

The propristor of a transient lodging enterprise must maintain adequate accounting records and
supporting documentation for determining the amounts collected by the proprietor for transient
lodging taxes.

Section 2.

A. Any audit of the amounts due from the fransient lodging entity must not include any period for the
licensing of the business ending more than 3 years before the date of the audit, unless the
enterprise has been operating without such a license or the auditor has reason to believe that
the entity has made a fraudulent or material misstatement of its revenue.

8. The proprietor of a transient lodging entity may obtain a review of the results of an audit
performed pursuant to subsection A as follows:

a.  Upon request, the auditor must disclose the results of the audit to the proprietor.

b. The auditor must discuss with the proprietor any relevant issues that have not been
previously resolved and attempt to resolve those issues with the proprietor.

c. Ifthe issues are not resolved between the auditor and the proprietor within 60 days:

I The proprietor may prepare documentation of the unresolved issues and

submit the documentation along with a copy of the final audit report to the
executive director of the VCTC.

ii.  The executive director must acknowledge receipt of the documentation within
seven days after receiving the documentation.

fi.  The executive director must respond lo the proprietor within 60 days after
receipt of the documentation regarding the unresolved issues.

d. If the proprietor is dissatisfied with the determination made by the executive officer
he/she may appeal the decision of the executive officer to the Virginia City Tourism
Commission. The VCTC must hear and decide the matter at its next available
meeting.

e. Ifthe proprietor is dissatisfied with the decision of the VCTC he/she may appeal the
matter to the Justice's Court of Virginia Township Justice's Court. If the amount in
controversy exceeds the jurisdictional limit of the Justice'’s court, the appeal may be
taken to the First Judicial District Court.

SECTION 9

Storey County Code Section 3.60.100 is hereby repealed.




Proposed on , 2018.
Proposed by Commissioner
Passed on: , 2018.
Vote:
Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners
Absent: Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chairman

Attest;

Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk

This ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after the
month of of the year 2018.

day of the




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 20, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1.

8.

D ment Head Department Name:
/)Mgﬁg Manager Other agency review:

Title: Interlocal agreement providing the terms and conditions for the use of Piper’s Opera
House by the Storey County School District and the display of historic personal property
within Pipers belonging to the School District.

. Recommended motion: I move to approve the interlocal agreement with the Storey County

School District and authorize the chairman to sign.

. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

. Staff summary: Paragraph 7 of the contract for the purchase of Pipers Opera House from the

School District by the County provided that following the close of escrow the County and
the School District would enter into an interlocal agreement providing for the use of Pipers
Opera House by the School District. Attached is that Agreement

. Supporting materials: Interlocal Agreement

. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

. Legal review required:

District Attorney

Reviewed by:

9. Board action:

[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [l Continued

Agenda Item No.

R/




INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT REGARDING USE OF PIPER’S OPERA HOUSE

This Agreement is entered into by and between the County of Storey (County), a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada and the Storey County School District (District), a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada and is effective as of the date of its execution by the last party
signing this Agreement.

BACKGROUND

On or about November 15, 2017, District entered into an agreement for the sale of Pipers
Opera House (Pipers) to County. Section 7 of that agreement provided:

Interlocal Agreement. Following the close of escrow in this matter County and
School District will enter into an interlocal agreement, whereby County will allow
School District to utilize Piper’s Opera House for school functions such as,
without limitation, plays, musical events, assemblies and other functions for up to
thirty days per year without charge. Further there are certain historical items of
personal property on display at the Opera House which School District will agree
may remain on display at Opera House. The terms of the interlocal agreement
will be set out in a separate agreement.

Escrow for the sale of Pipers closed on or about December 21, 2017.

Interlocal agreements are authorized by NRS 277.180 and allow public agencies such as
District and County to jointly use the facilities of the other. Accordingly, by this Agreement the
parties intend to provide for the joint use of Pipers and the historic personal property located
within Pipers on the terms set forth below.

AGREEMENT

1. County hereby agrees:

a. District may utilize Pipers for school functions such as plays, musical events,
assemblies, award presentations, lectures and other similar activities for up to
thirty (30) days per year.

b. County will not charge any fee, charge or rental amount for such use of Pipers.

c. County may authorize further use of Pipers by District with or without additional
charge upon such terms as may be acceptable to both parties. Such additional
usage and terms may be established by agreement of the Superintendent of
District and the County Manager.

2. District hereby agrees:




a. District will give notice 30 days in advance of an event for which it requests the
use of Pipers. Such request will be made to the County Manager and will be
granted if County does not have an event planned for the same day and has not
authorized any other person to utilize Pipers on the same date.

b. District will be responsible for the set-up, take down and clean-up of Pipers for
any event for which District intends to utilize Pipers.

c. District will allow County to display historical items of personal property
belonging to District in Pipers.

3. Both Parties agree:

a. Term. This Agreement will last for three (3) years, but will automatically renew
for additional periods of one year unless a notice is sent by either party to the
other at least thirty (30) days in advance of a renewal date. Termination may be
for any reason or no reason at all.

b. Insurance. Each party will be responsible for insuring its own property, i.e.,
County will insure building, fixtures and its personal property, District will insure
its personal property.

c. _Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, each party shall
indemnify, hold harmless and defend, not excluding the each parties’ right to
participate, each other from and against all liability, claims, actions, damages,
losses, and expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and
costs, arising out of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the party
committing the negligent act, whether committed by that party’s officers,
employees and/or agents. The obligation to indemnify shall apply in all cases
except for claims arising solely from either parties’ own negligence or willful
misconduct. Each party waives any right of subrogation against the other. Either
party’s duty to defend begins when a party entitled to indemnification requests
defense of any claim arising from the activities arising out of this Agreement.

d. Relationship of Parties. The parties are associated with each other only for the
purposes and to the extent set forth in this Agreement, and in respect to
performance of services pursuant to this Agreement, each party is and shall be a
public agency separate and distinct from the other party and, subject only to the
terms of this Agreement, shall have the sole right to supervise, manage, operate,
control, and direct performance of the details incident to its duties under this
Agreement. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed to
create a partnership or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-
employee or principal-agent, or to otherwise create any liability for one agency
whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the

other agency or any other party.
e. Third Party Beneficiaries. Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, nothing

in this Agreement shall be construed to create any third party beneficiaries.

f.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute
one and the same agreement




g Waiver of Conflict. The Storey County District Attorney has drafted this
agreement for the benefit of both parties, but is an elected official of the County.
School District is advised that it is free to have this agreement reviewed by legal
counsel of its choice. If School District does not have independent review then it
waives any conflict the Storey County District Attorney’s Office may have in
preparing this agreement for both parties.

Dated this day of , 2018.

STOREY COUNTY

By Marshall McBride
Chairman Board of County Commissioners of Storey County

Attest:

Storey County Clerk

Dated this 4 n day of Maeart , 2017 %

STOREY COUNTY SZHOOL DISTRICT
SR

PreYide
Storey County School District Board of Trustees




INVENTORY OF SCHOOL DISTRICT PROPERTY

AT PIPER’S OPERA HOUSE

The following items of personal property, presently located at Piper’s Opera House
(Opera House), are owned by, or are on loan to, the Storey County School District:

1. Sideboard Buffet — Originated in Sharon House Dining Room — Donated by John and
Lydia Zalac and Family

2. Historic Piano — made in Vienna Austria — circa in 1835. Donated to Pipers by Dorothy
and Donald Kemp of Las Vegas

3. Gold Pier Mirror — Originated in the Miners Union Hall in the 1800’s — Donated by John
and Lydia Zalac and Family

These items may remain on the premises of Piper’s Opera House for so long as Storey County
retains ownership of the Opera House or until demand for return of loaned property is made by
the owner of property on loan to the School District.

The Storey County School District makes no claim of ownership over other items of personal
property within Piper’s Opera House.

Dated this 7-4_14 day of MM ,2018.

STOREY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

NI

@mev n, Pre§ident, Board of Trustees




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 20, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 Minutes.

Agenda: Consent [] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Action: Approval of Interlocal Agreement between Nevada
Department of Public Safety/State Fire Marshal Division, Storey County
and Board of Fire Commissioners.

2. Recommended motion: Move to approve the Interlocal Agreement between Nevada Department of
Public Safety/State Fire Marshal Division

3. Prepared by: Martin Azevedo, Storey County Fire Marshal
Department: Community Development Telephone: (775) 847-0966
4. Staff summary: The Nevada Department of Public Safety, State Fire Marshal Division is

required by Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 477 and Nevada
Administrative Code Chapter 477 to perform certain fire /life safety
functions in the counties having populations of less than 100,000. Storey
County Community Development, Board of Fire Commissioners and the
Storey County Fire Protection District has requested the State Fire Marshal
Division to delegate fire and life safety functions.

S. Supporting materials: Interlocal Agreement and Addendum “A”

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: N/A Fund: N/A _ Comptroller
7. Legal review required: , Z L
: District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_ X Department Head Department Name: Community Development

Wounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved
[] Denied
Agenda Item No.

Approved with Modifications
Continued

boeed b



INTRASTATE INTERLOCAL CONTRACT BETWEEN PUBLIC AGENCIES

A Contract Between the State of Nevada
Acting By and Through Its

Department of Public Safety
State Fire Marshal Division
107 Jacobsen Way
Carson City, NV 89701
Phone (775) 684-7509 / Fax (775) 684-7507

and

Storey County Fire Protection District (District) and
Storey County, (County)
110 Toll Road
PO Box 526
Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone (775) 847-0366/ Fax (775) 847-0935

WHEREAS, NRS 277.180 authorizes any one or more public agencies to contract with any
one or more other public agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking
which any of the public agencies entering into the contract is authorized by law to perform; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed that the services hereinafter set forth are both necessary and in the
best interests of the State of Nevada (“State”) and the Storey County Fire Protection District
(District) and Storey County; and

WHEREAS, District, by interlocal agreement (Agreement) with County, approved on October 3,
2017 has delegated its duties to administer and enforce the 2012 Intemational Fire Code (Code)
to the Storey County Department of Community Development for a period of two years which
agreement automatically renews for additional two year periods unless previously terminated;
and,

WHEREAS, District and/or County may terminate the Agreement upon which termination the
duties to administer and enforce the Code will return to District

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the aforesaid premises, the parties mutually agree as
follows:

1. REQUIRED APPROVAL. This Contract shall not become effective until and unless approved
by appropriate official action of each party.

SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and Storey County
Intrastate Interlocal Contract
Page 1 of §




2. DEFINITIONS. “State” means the State of Nevada and any state agency identified herein,
its officers, employees and immune contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307.

3. CONTRACT TERM. This Contract shall be effective upon approval for a period of two years
unless sooner terminated by either party as set forth in this Contract. This Contract may be
renewed for successive two year periods subject to termination as set forth below.

4. TERMINATION. This Contract may be terminated by any party prior to the date set forth in
paragraph (3), provided that a termination shall not be effective until 60 days after a party has
served written notice upon the other parties. This Contract may be terminated by mutual
consent of all parties or unilaterally by any party without cause. This Contract may be
terminated by the State with less than 60 days notice after the County and/or District have been
served written notice that it has failed to comply with the terms of this Contract; has failed to
comply with any provision of NRS or NAC; or has failed to meet the personnel or program
requirements of NRS 477.030, paragraph 10.

5. NOTICE. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this
Contract shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally
in hand, by telephonic facsimile with simultaneous regular mail, or mailed certified mail, return
receipt requested, postage prepaid on the date posted, and addressed to the other party at the
address set forth above.

6. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. The parties agree that the services to be performed shall
be specifically described; this Contract incorporates the following attachments in descending
order of constructive precedence:

ATTACHMENT A: SCOPE OF WORK

7. CONSIDERATION. The County and/or District agree to provide the services set forth in
Attachment A at no cost to the State based on other good and valuable services performed by
each party under this contract, including but not limited to the Agency’s being permitted to gain
benefits, including collection of certain fees, which would otherwise be unavailable, from
performing those services. Any intervening end to an annual or biennial appropriation period
shall be deemed an automatic renewal (not changing the overall Contract term) or a termination
as the results of legislative appropriation may require.

8. ASSENT. The parties agree that the terms and conditions listed on incorporated attachments
of this Contract are also specifically a part of this Contract and are limited only by their respective
order of precedence and any limitations expressly provided.

9. INSPECTION & AUDIT.

a. Books and Records. Each party agrees to keep and maintain under general accepted
accounting principles full, true and complete records, agreements, books, and documents as
are necessary to fully disclose to the other party, the State or United States Government, or
their authorized representatives, upon audits or reviews, sufficient information to determine
compliance with any applicable regulations and statutes.

SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and Storey County
Intrastate Interlocal Contract
Page 2 of §




b. Inspection & Audit. Each party agrees that the relevant books, records (written, electronic,
computer related or otherwise), including but not limited to relevant accounting procedures and
practices of the party, financial statements and supporting documentation, and documentation
related to the work product shall be subject, at any reasonable time, to inspection,
examination, review, audit, and copying at any office or location where such records may be
found, with or without notice by the other party, the State Auditor, Employment Security, the
Department of Administration, Budget Division, the Nevada State Attorney General's Office or
its Fraud Control Units, the State Legislative Auditor, and with regard to any federal funding,
the relevant federal agency, the Comptroller General, the General Accounting Office, the
Office of the Inspector General, or any of their authorized representatives.

c. Period of Retention. All books, records, reports, and statements relevant to this Contract
must be retained by each party for a minimum of three years and for five years if any federal
funds are used in this Contract. The retention period runs from the date of termination of this
Contract. Retention time shall be extended when an audit is scheduled or in progress for a
period reasonably necessary to complete an audit and/or to complete any administrative and
judicial litigation which may ensue.

10. BREACH; REMEDIES. Failure of either party to perform any obligation of this Contract shall
be deemed a breach. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this Contract, the rights and
remedies of the parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and
remedies provided by law or equity, including but not limited to actual damages, and to a
prevailing party reasonable attoreys' fees and costs.

11. LIMITED LIABILITY. The parties will not waive and intend to assert available NRS chapter
41 liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive
damages. To the extent applicable, actual contract damages for any breach shall be limited to
the amount appropriated for the performance of the contract

12. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Contract if it is
prevented from performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public
transportation, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts
of God, including, without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the
intervening cause must not be through the fault of the party asserting such an excuse, and the
excused party is obligated to promptiy perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract after
the intervening cause ceases.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Neither party waives any right or defense to indemnification that may
exist in law or equity.

14. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AGENCIES. The parties are associated with each other only for
the purposes and to the extent set forth in this Contract, and in respect to performance of
services pursuant to this Contract, each party is and shall be a public agency separate and
distinct from the other party and, subject only to the terms of this Contract, shall have the sole
right to supervise, manage, operate, control, and direct performance of the details incident to its
duties under this Contract. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed or construed to
create a partnership or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or

SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and Storey County
Intrastate Interlocal Contract
Page 3 of §




principal-agent, or to otherwise create any liability for one agency whatsoever with respect to the
indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other agency or any other party.

15. WAIVER OF BREACH. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular
breach of the Contract or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as a
waiver by such party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach.

16. SEVERABILITY. If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceable by a
court of law or equity, this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the
nonenforceability of such provision shall not be held to render any other provision or provisions
of this Contract unenforceable.

17. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights, obligations or
duties under this Contract without the prior written consent of the other party.

18. OWNERSHIP OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Unless otherwise provided by law or
this Contract, any reports, histories, studies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs,
negatives, blue prints, plans, maps, data, system designs, computer code (which is intended to
be consideration under this Contract), or any other documents or drawings, prepared or in the
course of preparation by either party in performance of its obligations under this Contract shall
be the joint property of both parties.

19. PUBLIC RECORDS. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents may be open to
public inspection and copying. The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a particular
record is made confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests.

20. CONFIDENTIALITY. Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form,
produced, prepared, observed or received by that party to the extent that such information is
confidential by law.

21. PROPER AUTHORITY. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing
this Contract on behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and
that the parties are authorized by law to perform the services set forth inAttachment A.

22. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION. This Contract and the rights and obligations of the
parties hereto shall be govemed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of
Nevada. The parties consent to the jurisdiction of the Nevada district courts for enforcement of
this Contract.

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION. This Contract and its integrated
attachment(s) constitute the entire agreement of the parties and such are intended as a
complete and exclusive statement of the promises, representations, negotiations, discussions,
and other agreements that may have been made in connection with the subject matter hereof.
Unless an integrated attachment to this Contract specifically displays a mutual intent to amend a
particular part of this Contract, general conflicts in language between any such attachment and
this Contract shall be construed consistent with the terms of this Contract. Unless otherwise
expressly authorized by the termms of this Contract, no modification or amendment to this
Contract shall be binding upon the parties unless the same is in writing and signed by the

respective parties hereto, approved by the State of Nevada Office of the Attorney General.
SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and Storey County
Intrastate Interlocal Contract
Page 4 of §




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed and intend to be
legally bound thereby.

Board of County Commissioners of Storey County

By: Dated this day of , 2018
Marshall McBride, Chairman
Board of Fire Commissioners,
Storey County Fire Protection District
By: Dated this day of ,2018
Marshall McBride, Chairman
Approved as to form:
Dated this day of ,.2018
Anne Langer, Storey County District Attorney
Attest:
Dated this day of ,2018
Vanessa Stephens, Storey County Clerk Title Date
Chief
Bart J..Chambers, State Fire Marshal Division Title Date
Administrative Services Officer
Sheri Brueggemann, Title Date
Department of Public Safety , Director's Office
Approved as to form by:
On
Nathan Hastings, Deputy Attomey Generat (Date)

for Attomey General, State of Nevada

SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and Storey County
Intrastate Interlocal Contract
Page 5 of 5§



Attachment A
Scope of Work
Between the
Storey County Fire Protection District and

Storey County Community Development, hereinafter known as “Agency”
And the

State Fire Marshal Division, hereinafter known as “Division”

. The Department of Public Safety, State Fire Marshal Division (“Division™) is required by
Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) Chapter 477 and Nevada Administrative Code (NAO)
Chapter 477 to perform certain fire/life safety functions in counties having populations of
less than 100,000. This Attachment A Scope of Work, becomes part of the Interlocal
Contract upon signature of all parties and shall be reviewed annually not later than March
Ist. Upon annual review of the contract, if the Agency and Division agree no changes are
necessary a letter documenting that decision will be issued by Division to the Agency. If
upon annual review of the contract, changes are deemed necessary, Agency and Division will
agree to the changes and the Interlocal Contract will be amended.

. The Agency has requested that the Division delegate fire and life safety functions to the
Agency in accordance with NRS 477.030(10).

The Agency certifies, and the Division has verified, that the Agency is qualified and willing
to perform these fire and life safety functions within its jurisdictional boundaries. The
Agency agrees to perform the plan examination prior to construction, during construction,
and to supervise field inspections of all commercial structures on an annual basis, including,
but not limited to those facilities as identified in NRS 477.030(1)(c).

The Agency agrees to perform annual inspections for all buildings, except private residences,
used for sleeping purposes, such as hotels and motels, buildings used for public assembly and
all buildings where large numbers of persons work, live or congregate for any purpose as
identified in NRS 477.030(1)(c).

. Hazardous Materials verification shall be completed by the Agency, and the Agency shall
direct the facility to the Nevada Combined Agency Hazardous Materials Permit “on-line”
reporting web site or to the “help desk” for assistance in filling out the report form. The
Agency will forward the inspection report to the Division within thirty (30) business days of
the inspection/verification.

a. A report from the Division to the Agency listing current occupancies for Hazardous
Materials Reporting to ensure tracking of permits from the Agency to the Division will be
done quarterly.

b. The Division will assist the Agency on providing the application, website and phone
number for the “help desk”.

SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and
Storey County Community Development

Page 1 of §

Rev: 01/17/2018




10.

The Agency is hereby delegated the responsibility to perform plan reviews for all occupancy
groups covered by the currently adopted editions of the International Fire Code, International
Building Code, Uniform Mechanical Code or the International Wildland-Urban Interface
Code, as applicable to the plan review being performed, with the exception of all state-owned
facilities. The responsibilities delegated to the Agency by the Division will be performed by
the Agency within its boundaries only. Plan reviews will be performed using codes and
standards adopted by the Division as specified in NAC sections 477.280, 477.281 and
477.283. For the purposes of commercial properties within its boundaries, the Agency may
be more stringent in its adoption of a fire, building, mechanical or wildland-urban interface
code than the State and may enforce Agency adopted amendments that are more stringent for
such plan reviews. State-owned facilities shall be required to comply only with codes as
outline in NAC 477.280, 477.281 or 477.283 and amendments adopted by the State plus
those locally adopted codes and standards specific to fire apparatus access to the facility.

It is expressly understood that the delegation of this authority makes the Agency the statutory
designee of the Division for the purpose of administering the program described in this
agreement and does not reduce or eliminate the Agency’s responsibility for all damages to
persons or properties of any kind resulting from any act, omission, neglect or misconduct of
the Agency staff in the manner or method of performing the work for the duration of this
Agreement.

The Agency’s jurisdiction for occupancies listed above shall cover the plans examination for
new construction, additions, and remodel leading to the issuance of a Certification of
Occupancy in concert with the Building Department.

The Agency shall submit a list of employees/agent conducting plan reviews and inspections
for Special Deputy Cards no later than December 10™ of the calendar year to the Division for
annual renewal. The District will send with the list a JPEG picture (above the shoulders) of
the employee/agent to the Division for the ID card issued to the employee/agent

If any project exceeds 1,000,000 square feet, by the request of the Agency, the State Fire
Marshal may review the project for compliance with state adopted codes. The Division may
impose additional plan review fees upon the applicant for these reviews:

a. Any project when the Division is requested to do so by the Agency.

b. When the Agency requests, based upon the scope and technical complexity of a project
and exceeds the Agency’s capabilities of those projects that are the responsibility of the
State Fire Marshal.

SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and
Storey County Community Development

Page 2 of §

Rev: 01/17/2018




11.

12.

The Agency is required to maintain qualified personnel and programs under this Agreement
as outlined in NRS 477.030 (10). Personnel conducting activities under this Agreement are
required to maintain professional licenses, certifications, or other documentation acceptable
to the Division as listed in the Nevada Fire Service Professional Qualifications and as
nationally acceptable standards in order to demonstrate their proficiency, experience and
qualifications to conduct the associated work. Continuing education is the responsibility of
the Agency personnel to complete in accordance with the issuing authority, such as ICC. One
of the following certificates or licenses must be maintained current without pending
disciplinary action by Agency personnel involved in conducting plan review and inspection
at all times:

a. A Nevada licensed professional engineer practicing within their area of expertise.
b. A Nevada licensed architect practicing within their area of expertise.

c. A current International Code Council and State Of Nevada certification as outlined in the
Nevada Fire Service Professional Qualifications as a Fire Plans Examiner. The
acquisition of an International Code Council certification as a plans examiner will qualify
an individual for a State of Nevada certification provided the fire chief or his/her
designee of the agency formally requests in writing to the State Fire Marshal Division
and as outlined in the Nevada Fire Service Professional Qualifications. A state
certification may also be obtained by attending a state sponsored course for certification.

d. A current International Code Council and State Of Nevada certification as outlined in the
Nevada Fire Service Professional Qualifications as a Fire Inspector I. The acquisition of
an International Code Council certification as a Fire Inspector I will qualify an individual
for a State of Nevada certification provided the fire chief or his/her designee of the
agency formally requests in writing to the State Fire Marshal Division and as outlined in
the Nevada Fire Service Professional Qualifications. A state certification may also be
obtained by attending a state sponsored course for certification.

e. A current International Code Council and State Of Nevada certification as outlined in the
Nevada Fire Service Professional Qualifications as a Fire Inspector II. The acquisition of
an International Code Council certification as a Fire Inspector II will qualify an
individual for a State of Nevada certification provided the fire chief or his/her designee of
the agency formally requests in writing to the State Fire Marshal as outlined in the
Nevada Fire Service Professional Qualifications. A state certification may also be
obtained by attending a state sponsored course for certification.

A State of Nevada certification as a Fire Inspector, Level III as outlined in the Nevada Fire
Service Professional Qualifications combined with an International Code Council
Certification. Contract personnel or firms conducting work for or on behalf of the Agency
shall meet the same qualifications as the Agency defined in the above section and shall also
hold state of Nevada licenses to provide such work. If the Agency identifies a special project
requiring review by a group of experts, the result, outcome or opinion resulting from such
review must be analyzed and approved by a Nevada licensed Fire Protection Engineer;

SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and
Storey County Community Development

Page 3 of §

Rev: 01/17/2018




13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

documentation of such approval must be provided to the Agency and Division for those
projects listed under NRS 477.030.

Documentation of the qualifications and continuing education required in items 13 and 14
above, including re-certification as required by the certification organization, shall be
supplied to the Division prior to this Agreement taking effect; annually thereafter; and upon
the request of the Division. The requirement to have approved certified personnel will not
prohibit the Agency from utilizing a trainee position(s) for up to one (1) year provided the
trainee operates under the direct supervision of approved personnel.

The Agency shall require full enforcement of the most current edition of the Nevada State
Fire Marshal regulations (Nevada Administrative Code, Chapter 477), the most currently
adopted editions of the International Building Code, International Fire Code, Uniform
Mechanical Code and the National Fire Protection Association (N FPA) Standards as adopted
by any Agency’s governing ordinance(s), but never less than those established by the
Nevada Department of Public Safety, State Fire Marshal Division in the NAC sections
477.280 through 477.283. State-owned facilities shall be required to comply only with codes
as outline in NAC 477.280, 477.281 or 477.283 and amendments adopted by the State plus
those locally adopted codes and standards specific to fire apparatus access to the facility.

Plan review and inspection of the fire alarms must be conducted by the Agency pursuant to
NFPA Standard 72, National Fire Alarm Code, as modified by the adopted edition of the
International Fire Code and provisions contained in both NRS and the NAC.

The Agency is authorized to charge permit applicants such fees as the Agency may adopt for
plan reviews and field inspections performed in accordance with this Agreement. The
Agency will not charge the State or the Division fees nor will it bill the State or the Division
for any of its costs for the services provided under this Agreement.

The Agency is prohibited from granting waivers, variances, or approvals of alternate
methods, or materials differing from the regulations or adopted codes and standards of the
Division for any project/property of which is the responsibility of the State Fire Marshal
Division under NRS 477.030. All requests for variances under NRS 477.030 must be
reviewed and approved by the Division through the use of the State Fire Marshal’s Variance
Request procedure in accordance with NAC 477.287. Variances shall be approved only if
the State Fire Marshal concurs that the request provides an acceptable alternate means to
achieve a comparable level of safety. The Division may, within its discretion, seek input
from the Agency in the review of variance requests related, but not limited to, fire apparatus
access and water supply, however, the final decision to approve, approve with conditions or
reject the variance request remains solely with the State Fire Marshal for those
projects/property of which is the responsibility of the State Fire Marshal Division under NRS
477.030. The Division may impose additional fees upon the applicant for its review of a
variance request.

The Division may develobp formats for reporting forms and training guidelines for use by the
Agency as they become necessary.

SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and

Storey County Community Development

Page 4 of §
Rev: 01/17/2018




19.

20.

21.

22.

The Agency shall submit to the Division an annual report under NRS 477.030 of building
plans reviewed, fire protection plans reviewed and of fire inspections conducted each
calendar year under this agreement no later than February 1% of each succeeding year. The
report forms are attached herewith and are labeled “Attachment A, #22, Building Plans
Review”, Fire Protection Plans Review, and Fire Inspections.”

Pursuant to NRS 477.030(7) and NAC 477.905, the Agency will report to the National Fire
Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) via website that it is in full compliance with NFIRS.

The Agency will report fire deaths as they occur in its jurisdiction to the Division via email
to SFM@dps.state.nv.us.

State Fire Marshal Division Training Bureau will meet with the Agency to ensure the
requirements for certification testing are being followed to maintain national accreditation
within the state. The Agency shall ensure that individuals who perform these functions
maintain a current State of Nevada certification as a written test proctor, or assistant
evaluator, or lead evaluator, dependent on the test to be administered and at the level in
which these individuals are operating. The Agency shall ensure that all certification proctors
and evaluators used by the Agency follow the procedures as outlined in the Division’s,
Guidebook for Certification Proctors, Lead and Skills Evaluators.

SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and
Storey County Community Development

Page 5 of §

Rev: 01/17/2018




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

LIQUOR BOARD

Meeting date: 3/20/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required { ]

1. Title: First reading for On-Sale Liquor & Cabaret License — Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse.
62 N C St., Virgini City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the existing business license.

2. Recommended motion: I motion to approve the first reading, an On-sale Liquor & Cabaret
License — Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse. 62 N C St., Virgini City, NV 89440. Add
Frederic Cline to the existing business license.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959
4. Staff summary: First reading for On-Sale Liquor & Cabaret License — Virginia City Brewery &

Taphouse. 62 N C St., Virgini City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the existing business
license.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X _ Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro __,

o ==
'\/é&v County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[ Approved [1] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied (] Continued
Agenda Item No.

26



STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

March 1, 2018

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Brandy Gavenda %%,
Please add the following item(s) to the January 16, 2018 Commissioners Agenda:

[.First reading for the On-Sale Liquor & Cabaret License for the VC Brewery &
Taphouse. Add Frederic Cline to the existing Liquor license.

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



- Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

LIQUOR BOARD

Meeting date: 3/20/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First reading for On-sale Liquor License Firehouse Grill & Saloon. 171 S C St., Virginia
City, NV.

2. Recommended motion; I motion to approve the first reading for On-sale Liquor License
Firehouse Grill & Saloon. 171 S C St., Virginia City, NV.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant %
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: First reading for On-sale Liquor License Firehouse Grill & Saloon. 171 S C
St., Virginia City, NV.

S. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Nge: Gerald Antinoro P
e Pl /2—_\
\ 7
W,g(lmmty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
] ]

Agenda Item No.

27




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
LIQUOR BOARD

$7°  Meeting date: 3/20/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Second reading for On-Sale Liquor License. Applicant is Stephanie Collins, business
owner of Silver Dollar Saloon located at 15 N C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

2. Recommended motion: Motion to approve the second reading, On-Sale Liquor License &
Cabaret License. Applicant is Stephanie Collins, business owner of Silver Dollar Saloon
located at 15 N C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440. &

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst. \ 74

Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959
4. Staff summary: Second reading for the On-Sale Liquor License & Cabaret License. Applicant

is Stephanie Collins, business owner of Silver Dollar Saloon located at 15 N C Street,
Virginia City, NV 89440.

5. Supporting materials: None
6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

_X__ Department Head Department e: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro
: L
_
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

L e |
—t

Agenda Item No.

28




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/20/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Second reading, General Business License. Applicant is Stephanie Collins, business
owner of Silver Dollar Saloon located at 15 N C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440,

2. Recommended motion: I motion to approve the second reading for the General Business
License. Applicant is Stephanie Collins, business owner of Silver Dollar Saloon located at

15 N C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440,
3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst. %A

Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Second reading, General Business License. Applicant is Stephanie Collins,
business owner of Silver Dollar Saloon located at 15 N C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

S. Supporting materials: None
6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro

2 Pt o nv— S
- -
. tﬂ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[

Agenda Item No. 30




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 20, 2017 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Special Use Permit 2018-008 request by the applicant Evergreen
Reno Industrial Park, LLC, to construct a hotel with additional height beyond the allowed 3 stories or
45 feet in height. The proposed hotel will be four stories and approximately 59 feet in height. The
subject property is located at 691 Britain Drive, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-041-57.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning
Commission, the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, I (county commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit 2018-008, a request by the
applicant Evergreen Reno Industrial Park, LLC, to construct a hotel with additional height beyond the
allowed 3 stories or 45 feet in height. The proposed hotel will be four stories and approximately 59
feet in height. The subject property is located at 691 Britain Drive, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-041-57.

3. Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144

5. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-008
6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-008

7.  Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: ____ Comptroller
8. Legal review required: _____District Attorney
9. Revigwed by:
mxnmem Head _____ Department Name: Planning
/%;(___ ounty Manager _____Other agency review:

[4

A -

10. Board action:
[] Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

s gy
O w—)

Agenda Item No. g (




26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Storey County

Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 — Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Staff Contact:
File:
Applicant:

Property Owner:

Property Location:

Request:

1. Background & Analysis

A. Site Location and Characteristics. The property is located within the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center in McCarran, Storey County, Nevada. The property is located at the
southeast corner of Britain Drive and London Drive. The site is zoned |-2, Heavy
Industrial but has been identified for commercial land uses by the TRI Center. The site is
currently an undeveloped parcel. Surrounding land uses include vacant land to the
north, east and west and commercial uses (gas station, fast food, offices) to the south.

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department

March 20, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.

Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada
Kathy Canfield

Special Use Permit File 2018-008

Evergreen Reno Industrial Park, LLC

Evergreen Reno Industrial Park, LLC

691 Britain Drive, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada

Special Use Permit 2018-008 request by the applicant Evergreen Reno Industrial
Park, LLC, to construct a hotel with additional height beyond the allowed 3
staries or 45 feet in height. The proposed hotel will be four stories and
approximately 59 feet in height. The subject property is located at 691 Britain
Drive, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-041-57.

10f 11



s

Property Location




Existing Development

Proposed Use. The applicant, Evergreen Reno Industrial Park, LLC, is proposing to
construct a four-story Hampton Inn and Suites hotel. The proposal includes a hotel in
the center of the property with surrounding parking areas. Access to the site will be
from Britain Drive and London Drive. The hotel will have 85 guest rooms, an indoor
pool, meeting room, common breakfast room, offices, fitness center and hotel laundry.

Hampton Inn & Suites is a higher mid-level Hilton franchise hotel. The Hampton Inn &
Suites franchise does not license any hotels that are less than four stories due to
booking requirements. Hilton requires a certain number of rooms to be profitable.
Hilton has established a four-story prototype and the McCarran Hampton Inn & Suites
has been designed along these strict guidelines.

The Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Architectural Review Committee has reviewed and
approved the proposed project as designed.

3 of 11




Proposed site layout

Proposed elevations

4 of 11




C. Special Use Permit. This property is subject to the provisions of the 1999 Zoning
Ordinance of Storey County. The property is zoned |-2, Heavy Industrial, however, the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center has identified this property for Commercial land uses as
allowed in the Development Agreement. As a commercial use, the development shall
be required to be consistent with Chapter 17.28, Commercial Zone, of the 1999 Zoning
Code. Hotels are a permitted use in the Commercial Zone. The permitted commercial
land uses are limited to three stories or 45-feet unless a Special Use Permit is issued to
allow for additional height.

The applicant has requested to be allowed a four story building with a total height of
approximately 59 feet. The additional height includes the architectural features and
roof parapets which is shown in Appendix A of this staff report. This additional height
can be allowed with a Special Use Permit per the 1999 Zoning Ordinance.

2. Compatibility and Compliance

A. Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones.

The following table documents land uses, zoning classifications, and master plan
designations for the land at and surrounding the proposed project.

Land Use Master Plan 1999 Zoning Code | 2015 Zoning Code
Designation
Applicant’s tand vacant Industrial -2 Heavy 12 Heavy
l industrial tndustrial
| Land to the North | vacant Industrial -2 Heavy 12 Heavy
‘ sndustrial industrial
‘ Land to the East vacant & industrial I-2 Heavy 12 Heavy
commercial Industrial Industrial
tand to the South | commercial industrial I-2 Heavy i2 Heavy
Industrial Industriat
Land to the West | vacant Industrial 1-2 Heavy 12 Heavy
Industrial Industrial

B. Compliance with required building height limitations.

The 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance Section 17.28.040 states “No building shall be
higher than three (3) stories, not to exceed forty-five {45) feet”. Section 17.28.030
states that properties zoned commercial that proposed a permitted use higher than 45
feet in height require a Special Use Permit.

The property is zoned I-2 Heavy Industrial, however, the Development Agreement
between Tahoe Reno Industrial Center and Storey County states that along with the
land uses listed in the I-2 Heavy Industrial Zoning, uses listed in the I-1, Light Industrial,
and C, Commercial, along with a list of similar uses, may be permitted within the I-2
zoning. The Development Agreement allows for ten percent of the area of the Tahoe
Reno Industrial Center to be developed as a commercial uses. This parcel has been
identified as a commercial property, and as such, is developed to the commercial
standards identified for commercial zoning in the 1999 Zoning Ordinance.

5 of 11




3.

The surrounding 1-2 Heavy Industrial zoning allows for building heights of 6 stories or 75
feet in height without the requirement for a Special Use Permit. If the site was to be
developed with an industrial use, the height could extend as high as 75 feet.

C. Compliance with required setbacks. The 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance Section
17.28.050 states no front or side yard setback is required and a ten foot rear setback is
required. The proposed development is consistent with this requirement,

D. General use allowances and restrictions. The 1999 Storey County Code Section 17.62,
Special Uses (which refers to Section 17.60) identifies the administration for the Board
and Planning Commission for allowing special use permits. The additional height
beyond three stories and 45 feet in height is subject to a Special Use Permit. Approval
of a Special Use Permit “may only be granted without substantial detriment to the
public good and without substantially impairing the intent and purpose of any ordinance
or resolution and under such conditions as the board may deem necessary to assure ‘
that the general purpose and intent of this ordinance will be observed, public safety and
welfare secured and substantial justice done.” The approval, approval with conditions,
or denial of the Special Use Permit must be based on findings of fact that the proposed
use is appropriate or inappropriate in the location. The findings listed in Section 3 of
this staff report are the minimum to be cited in an approval.

E. Conformance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan. This project is located within
the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center which the Master Plan states “provides for light
industrial, heavy industrial, commercial, and industrial commercial uses and zones
pursuant to the Development Agreement between Storey County and the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, LLC.” The property and the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center are located
in the McCarran Area Plan which the Master Plan states “depicts a homogenous
planned industrial center located toward the north-central part of Storey County nine
miles east of Lockwood. It is home to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center and is dedicated
solely to manufacturing, utility power production, warehousing and distribution, and
other heavy- and light-industrial, and commercial uses. The industrial center has grown
to become a major regional hub for distribution, alternative energy production, digital
data management, and highly intensive and experimental industries.” The proposed
hotel has been identified as a desired use by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center as a
needed commercial use to serve surrounding properties. The additional height will
provide an additional floor of hotel units than what would be permitted without the
Special Use Permit.

Findings of Fact

A. Motion for approval. The following Findings of Fact are evident with regard to the
requested special use permit when the recommended conditions of approval in Section
4, Recommended Conditions of Approval, are applied.

(1) This approval is for Special Use Permit 2018-008, a request by the applicant
Evergreen Reno Industrial Park, LLC, to construct a hotel with additional height
beyond the allowed 3 stories or 45 feet in height. The proposed hotel will be
four stories and approximately 59 feet in height. The subject property is located

6 of 11




(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

at 691 Britain Drive, Tahbe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-041-57.

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
McCarran planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion
supporting this finding for the Special Use Permit is provided in Section 2.E of
this staff report and the contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special
Use Permit.

The subject property is located within an existing mixed use industrial and
commercial neighborhood in the McCarran area of Storey County. The zoning is
based on the 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance which identifies this
property as |-2 Heavy Industrial. The Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center has
identified this parcel as eligible for commercial uses as allowed by the
Development Agreement and as such follows the zoning requirements for
Commercial zoning. The additional height for this structure is consistent with
what would be permitted for adjacent industrial land uses.

Granting of the Special Use Permit, with the conditions of approval listed in
Section 4 of this report, will not under the circumstances of the particular case
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons/property in
the neighborhood of the subject property. The project is expected to meet the
safety and health requirements for the subject area. The use will also be subject
to building and fire plan review in order to ensure compliance with federal,

state and other codes.

The Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety
hazards on the abutting properties or the surrounding area, and it will comply
with all federal, state and county regulations.

The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in the 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance Sections 17.37 I-2
Heavy Industrial, 17.28 Commercial, and 17.62 Special Uses.

Granting of the Special Use Permit will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons working in the neighborhood or area of the subject property and will
not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to
property improvements in the neighborhood or area of the subject property.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request,

the following findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

(1)

This denial is for Special Use Permit 2018-008, a request by the applicant
Evergreen Reno Industrial Park, LLC, to construct a hotel with additional height
beyond the allowed 3 stories or 45 feet in height. The proposed hotel will be
four stories and approximately 59 feet in height. The subject property is located

7 of 11




at 691 Britain Drive, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-041-57.

(2) The conditions under the Special Use Permit conflict with the minimum
requirements in the 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance Sections 17.37 |-2
Heavy Industrial, 17.28 C - Commercial, and 17.62 Special Uses.

(3) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for surrounding use.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

A.

Special Use Permit. This approval is for Special Use Permit 2018-008, a request by the
applicant Evergreen Reno Industrial Park, LLC, to construct a hotel with additional height
beyond the allowed 3 stories or 45 feet in height. The proposed hotel will be four
stories and approximately 59 feet in height. The subject property is located at 691
Britain Drive, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-041-57.

Requirements. The Permit Holder shall apply for all required permits and licenses,
including building and fire permits, for the project within 24 months from the date of
final approval of this Special Use Permit, and continuously maintain the validity of those
permits/licenses, or this approval shall be null and void. This permit shall remain valid
as long as the Permit Holder, its heirs, assigns, or successors remain in compliance with
the terms of this permit and Storey County, Nevada State, and federal regulations.

Permit Contents. This permit incorporates by reference the standards, objectives,
conditions, terms and requirements of all plans, including the operating plan, safety
plan and training plan, to be submitted separately from this permit. The requirements
of all submitted plan, along with support material submitted with the application,
become part of this Special Use Permit.

Taxes. Before obtaining a building permit, the Permit Holder must show the building
department valid evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid-to-date.

Separate Permits Required. This Special Use Permit shall not be construed to be a
permit for design or construction. A separate Storey County plan review, fire safety
review, and building permit will be required

Legal Responsibility. Issuance of this permit does not convey property rights of any sort
or any exclusive privilege; nor does it authorize any injury to persons or property, any
invasion of other private rights, or any infringement of state or local laws or regulations.

State/Federal Taxes. Whenever Nevada law requires the payment of a sales and/or use
tax, all materials and equipment purchased or rented for this project should be received
in Storey County and the value reported as ‘county-of-delivery’ on the Nevada Dept. of

8 of 11




Taxation form TXR-01.01 ‘Sales/Use Tax Return’. Proof of appropriate reporting is
required prior to a ‘Certificate of Occupancy’ being issued.

H. Fire. The applicant shall meet all regulations identified by the Storey County Fire
Protection District for development of this property. The project shall be evaluated for
inclusion in the respiratory consortium, the hose and nozzle consortium, ladder
reimbursement consortium and/or foam consortium. The Fire Protection District shall
have the final authority on participation.

Public Comment

As of March 6, 2018, Staff has not received any comments from the public.

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff and the Planning Commission in accordance with the Findings of Fact
under Section 3.A of this report. Those findings should be made part of the approval motion. A
motion for denial may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown
in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact determined appropriate by the Board of County
Commissioners should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, | (county commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit 2018-008, a
request by the applicant Evergreen Reno Industrial Park, LLC, to construct a hotel with
additional height beyond the allowed 3 stories or 45 feet in height. The proposed hotel
will be four stories and approximately 59 feet in height. The subject property is located
at 691 Britain Drive, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-041-57.

B. Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, but in accordance
with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.B of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, | (county commissioner), move to
deny Special Use Permit 2018-008, a request by the applicant Evergreen Reno Industrial

9 of 11




Park, LLC, to construct a hotel with additional height beyond the allowed 3 stories or 45
feet in height. The proposed hotel will be four stories and approximately 59 feet in
height. The subject property is located at 691 Britain Drive, Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-041-57,

10 of 11




APPENDIX A

PIORESES B Fidessdnn

s

s iyanis: S Sheprs ™ P )

oo s e L) R

insraiinss [l vacess TR sor o3 :'
am

soeemnispains B oo uReressy
B T

ﬂn»«eﬁ g e
e

bttt it

a1

___—__
| 5

e IR BN
R B ps I At b
wiiswsesissrnsns 4 st 5 s
won apsessyunciaires; BN 5 woi s QB ivsaveis
wk owsmargmeneois I ¢ oy P Sovie
Bl v S TR Y

ssssc I T cinmminiin rave smaessesernions

e —
P —
P
R
pirsanri

i)

:xam‘ﬁwbw.g

11 of 11




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3-20-18 Estimate of time required: 0- 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: Approval
3. Prepared by: Melissa Field

Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary:; Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

S. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: ___ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
____ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by

x D ent Department Name:
; % ey,
(},ﬁg?,f County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
(] Approved
i1 Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

ey p—
[I— )

Agenda [tem No. 2 L




Storey County Community Bevelopment
Business @

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-6 66 » Fax (775) 847-0935 « mfield@storeycounty.org

d Licensing

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office March 12, 2018
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the March 20, 2018 COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD

SECOND READINGS

DESERT BOILERS AND CONTROLS, INC - Contractor / 303 W. Saint Louis Ave ~ Las Vegas, NV
OUTBOUND TECHNOLOGIES INC ~ General / 30026 Research Dr ~ New Hudson, MI

GEORGE & SONS, INC - Contractor / 5301 Longley Lane ~ Reno, NV

GREGORY R. ANDERSON, DBA: MOBILE NOTARY SVC’S — General / 785 Joel Way ~ Fallon, NV
CMC TIRE INC - General / 95 Washington St ~ Spokane, WA

GREGORY R. CHAPEL, DBA: ONSTREET CONCESSIONS — General / 385 Freeport~ Sparks, NV
GILLETT CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 1226 Wigwam Pkwy ~ Henderson, NV

LEE’S JANITORIAL SERVICES, INC - General / 561 Keystone~ Reno, NV

TOP DOG CARPRT CLEANING - Home business / 210 S. O St ~ Virginia City, NV

FEQEETAWp

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office




Meeting date:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ] (x Closed Session)

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

03/20/18

Agenda Action Report

Estimate of time required: 60 min.

1. Title: Call to order closed session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the
Storey County Employees Association/AFSCME 4041 Comstock Chapter. Discussion will
be limited to Appendix A of the 2016-2019 collective bargaining agreement pertaining to
wages for building inspectors and fire prevention officers, and other properly related
article(s) of the agreement. This meeting will commence immediately following the regular
meeting of the board.

2. Recommended motion. No action

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Human Resources

4. Staff summary: In accordance with NRS 288 and the existing bargaining agreement,

management proposes to discuss potential wage, classification, and job description
modifications with the proposed consolidation of certain building and fire inspection
functions, knowledge, skills, and abilities.

5. Supporting materials: Draft job descriptions including Fire Inspector Trainee, Fire Inspector I,
Fire Inspector II, Building Inspector Trainee, Building Inspector I, Building Inspector II, Senior
Inspector 111, and Senior Inspector [V; bargaining agreement Appendix A; and draft regional
compensation survey of like positions. These materials will be brought to the meeting for review.

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available:

7. Legal review required:

Reviewed by:

8. gy

n/a

Department Head

& County Manager

9. Board actio

[]
[]

n:
Approved
Denied

District Attorney

Telephone: 775.847.0968

Fund: Comptroller

Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

Other agency review:

Approved with Modifications
Continued

p— g——

Agenda Item No.

Page 1 of |




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 03/20/18 Estimate of time required: 30 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ] (x Closed Session)

1. Title: Call to order closed session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the
Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employees’ Association/NAPSO. Discussion will be
limited to amending Appendix B of the 2017-2020 collective bargaining agreement
pertaining to wages for certain employees promoted to Sergeant in 2016 and Deputies hired
in 2011 and other properly related matters of the agreement. This meeting will commence
immediately following the regular meeting of the county commission.

2. Recommended motion. No action
3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

4. Staff summary: Management and the union identified certain structural elements in the
existing bargaining agreement that may result in unintended wage chart placement for
employees identified in the agreement as Sergeants promoted to that position in 2016 and
Deputies hired in 2011.

5. Supporting materials: CBA Appendices A and B.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: n/a Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

_____District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
~ - Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

Mnty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

gramy gon———y,
I —

Agenda Item No.

Page 1 of |




(DS ® VHOSDS uadmiag wowsady Jurutedieq 3an09110) 0TOT-0L107) 1 3ed

£08°78 ovres | o01g'is LSEPL 09¢° 1L ¥84°89 $LL'SY YLO'EY 7£5°09 760°8S 1SL°6S F0S°ES LyeiS

Juradaag
$L9°9L [4ARY 689'CL 768°L9 §sI's9 62579 80009 06$°LS 897°6S 1P0°'ES £06°0S 1688t 788'9%

jesodio)
1S0°€L 8IS°IL | #ITOL 659°19 £50°79 755765 1518 8HRYS LE9°TS $15'0¢ 6LY'8Y STS 9P 059ty

Andag
(%50°c) (%02 (%57
cidans | zrdas | jrdag | g1 dag 6 dagg 8 daig LN 9 dagg ¢ dogg y dag £ dug 2 dogg / dag
Sy 100 24minf puv 34
1svd Sunpiodiosur sdays paagy [pi2ua) Sd2IS 1AW P ssv1)
npagag da)¢ pue adey

YD Sarmoljo} ay; uo uoissnasip aatsuayazduios apracid g xipuaddy pae uenesuadwiory £ Iy

(fyuno) £31018 % YHOSIS U2amidq JuswasaBy Butuyedieg 5A199[10)) 0207 — L107) AINATHIS ALS ANV TOVA  :V XIANAdIV




2017-2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

Appendix B: Steps, Grades, and Movements

General Provisions 2017 - 2020

L.

2

Steps 11, 12, and 13, and other movements described in this article, adjust and account
for subject employees’ past COLAs. Therefore, effective July 1, 2017, and after the
described movement occurs, all employees in the bargaining unit will be paid the base
amount indicated in the chart, and past COLAs will not be calculated or added to wages.

The anniversary date for cach employee will remain unchanged by the chart movements
described in this article.

This agreement becomes effective July 1, 2017, at 12:01 a.m. Employees who have
anniversary dates on July 1 will for the 2017-2018 period advance to their next merit step
at their next anniversary date period, that being in the following year. Wage chart
adjustments described in this agreement become affective during the described period.

There is one pay chart in this agreement, and it is contained in Appendix A.

Movements described in this article also account for migrating employees from the 2014-
2017 agreement “Appendix B” pay chart to the 2017-2020 agreement one-chart system.

An employee who promotes from Deputy to Corporal will receive no less than a 5
percent increase in base pay shown in the chart. An employee who promotes from any
position in this agreement to Sergeant will receive no less than a 10 percent increase in
base pay shown in the chart.

The term “hired” means hired into the bargaining unit subject to this agreement.

Employees hired into the bargaining unit on or after January 1, 2012, may advance no
further than step 10 in the chart. Step 10 in the chart is the “cap” for those employees.
This system differentiates employees who received past COLAs from those who did not
receive past COLAs. The following demonstrates examples, but is not exhaustive:

a. An employee hired on or before December 31, 2011, may advance beyond step 10
where provided for in this agreement.

b. An employee hired on or after January 1, 2012, is “capped” at step 10.

c. Anemployee hired as a Deputy, Corporal, or Sergeant on or after January 1,
2012, but who was employed as a Reserve Deputy, Corrections Officer, or other
non-bargaining unit position prior to that period, is “capped” at step 10.

d. An employee who was hired as a Deputy or Corporal on or before December 31,
2011, and who promoted to Sergeant after that period may advance beyond step
10 where provided for in this article.

e. An employee who was hired as a Deputy or Corporal on or before December 31,
2011, and who promoted to Sergeant after that period, but then was demoted back
to Deputy or Corporal for non-disciplinary reasons, may advance beyond step 10
where provided for in this article.

f.  An employee who was hired as a Deputy or Corporal on or after January 1, 2012,
and who promoted to Sergeant after that period, but then was demoted back to
Deputy or Corporal for non-disciplinary reasons, will remain “capped” at step 10.

Pages 42 — 44 Appendix B 2017 — 2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA-SC.




2017-2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

2017 —

L.

2018 -

2018 Period

On July 1, 2017 all employees at step 7 advance to step 11 in the chart. The employees
must be at step 7 on June 30, 2017, no later, to reccive this advancement.

(Step 11 incorporates a 2.5 percent COLA increase for the 2017-2018 year.)

On July 1, 2017, employees hired or promoted to Sergeant in 2016 are placed at step 10
in the chart. These employees are “capped” at step 10.

On July 1, 2017, Deputies hired in 2011 advance to step 9 in the chart. These employees
will advance to the next step in the chart on their anniversary date and upon successfully
earning merit step. These employees are “capped” at step 10.

On July 1, 2017, Deputies hired to the bargaining unit between July and December of

2012 advance to step 8 in the chart. These employees will advance to the next step in the
chart on their anniversary date and upon successfully earning merit step.

On July 1, 2017, Deputies hired to the bargaining unit between January and July of 2012
advance 1o step 6 in the chart on their anniversary date and upon successfully earning
merit step.

On July 1, 2017, Deputies hired in 2014 will be placed at step 3 in the chart. These
employees will advance to the next step in the chart on their anniversary date and upon
successfully earning merit step.

On July 1, 2017, Deputies hired after 2014 will be placed at their current step in the chart.
These employees will advance to the next step in the chart on their anniversary date and
upon successfully earning merit step.

Employees will advance to the next step on the chart on their anniversary date and upon
successfully earning merit step in accordance with this agreement.

2019 Period

Step 11 employees (from above) advance to step 12 on their anniversary date and upon
successfully earing merit step.

(Step 12 incorporates a 2.0 percent COLA increase for the 2018-2019 year.)

Employees hired or promoted to Sergeant in 2016 are “capped” at step 10 and may
advance no further in the chart.

. Employees hired in 2011 will advance to the next step in the chart on their anniversary

date and upon successfully earning merit step. These employees are “capped” at step 10.

On July 1, 2018, Deputies hired between July and December of 2012 advance to step 9 in
the chart. These employees will advance to the next step in the chart on their anniversary
date and upon successfully earning merit step.

On July 1, 2017, Deputies hired to the bargaining unit between January and July of 2012
advance 1o step 7 in the chart on their anniversary date and upon successfully earning
merit step.

Deputies hired in 2014 advance to the next step on their anniversary date and upon
successfully caring merit step. These employees will advance to the next step in the chart
on their anniversary date and upon successfully earning merit step.

Pages 42 — 44 Appendix B 2017 — 2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA-SC.




2017-2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

7. Deputies hired after 2014 advance to the next step on their anniversary date and upon
successfully caring merit step. These employees will advance to the next step in the chart
on their anniversary date and upon successfully earning merit step.

2019 - 2020 Period

1. Step 12 employees (from above) advance to step 13 on their anniversary date and upon
successfully earning merit step.

(Step 13 incorporates a 2.0 percent COLA increasc for the 2019-2020 year.)

0

Employees hired or promoted to Sergeant in 2016 are “capped” at step 10 and may
advance no further in the chart.

(V]

Employees hired in 2011 are capped at step 10 and may advance no further in the chart.
These employees will be paid an extra amount equaling 2.0 percent of their base wages
during the 2019-2020 period. This is a one-year only payment that does not count and is
not added to the employee’s pay after the 2019-2020 period. This pay will be counted
toward establishing the employees’ regular rate and PERS contribution for the entire
year.

»

On July 1, 2018, Deputies hired between July and December of 2012 are “capped” at step
10 and may advance no further in the chart.

5. OnlJuly 1, 2017, Deputies hired to the bargaining unit between January and July of 2012
advance to step 8 in the chart on their anniversary date and upon successfully earning
merit step.

6. Deputies hired in 2014 advance to the next step on their anniversary date and upon
successfully earing merit step. These employees will advance to the next step in the chart
on their anniversary date and upon successfully earning merit step.

7. Deputies hired after 2014 advance to the next step on their anniversary date and upon
successfully earing merit step. These employees will advance to the next step in the chart
on their anniversary date and upon successtully earning merit step.

Pages 42 — 44 Appendix B 2017 - 2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA-SC.




